
G
TATA



CORPORATE IDENTIFICATION NUMBER: 
 
U45300MH1942PLC003573 
 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
 
• Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Non-Executive Director, Chairman 

• Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar - Independent Director 

• Mr. Sanjay Dutt   - Managing Director & CEO 

• Mr. Kamlesh Parekh  - Independent Director 

•  Mr. Sudip Mullick   - Independent Director 

• Mr. Ankur Dalwani  - Non-Executive Director 

 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL: 
 

Mr. Kirtikumar Bandekar - Chief Financial Officer 

Mr. Ritesh Kamdar   - Company Secretary 

 
STATUTORY AUDITORS: 
 

BSR & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants 

SECRETARIAL AUDITORS: 
 

M/s. Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP,  
Practicing Company Secretaries 
 
REGISTERED OFFICE 
 

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, 
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033 
Tel: +91 22 6661 4444 
 
 
WEBSITE: 
 
www.tatarealty.in 
 

CONTACT DETAILS OF THE DEBENTURE 
TRUSTEE: 
 

SBICAP Trustee Company Limited 
Mistry Bhavan, 4th Floor,  
122 Dinshaw Vachha  Road, 
Churchgate, Mumbai – 400 020 
Email Id.: dt@sbicaptrustee.com 
Website: www.sbicaptrustee.com 
Phone: 022 4302 5500/5566 

  
 

 

 



CONTENTS: 
 

 

• NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING  

• DIRECTORS’ REPORT & ITS ANNEXURES 

• AUDITOR’S REPORT  

• AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 



G
TATA

NOTICE OF 44'" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that 44th Annual General Meeting of Tata Housing Development
Company Limited will be held on Tuesday, 25th day of July, 2023 at
11.00 a.rn. at Bombay House, 2nd Floor, Meeting Room No. 201, Homi Mody Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001 to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

a. the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the
Auditors thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of-the Company for the Financial Year
ended March 31,2023 together with the Report of Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029), Director, who
retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as
an Ordinary Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (includinq any statutory modification or re­
enactment thereof for the time being in force) and the Companies (AUdit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, as amended from time to time, the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration of
<2,47,5001- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty Seven Thousand Five Hundred Only) plus applicable
taxes, travel and actual out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable
to Mis. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), who
are appointed by the Board of Directors as the Cost Auditors of the Company to conduct the
audit of cost records maintained by the Company for the Financial Year 2023-24."

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors (including any Committee thereof) be and
is hereby authorized to do all acts and take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or
expedient to give effect to this resolution."

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
eIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Offce:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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4. Approval for issuance of Non~ConvertibleDebentures on Private Placement Basis:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following Resolution
as a Special Resolution:

"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of earlier Resolution passed at the 43rd Annual General
Meeting of the Members of the Company held on September 15, 2022 and pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies
Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force) (hereinafter to be referred as the "Act") and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of
Securities) Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, both
as amended from time to time, and subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India ("SEBf"), as amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities)
Regulations, 2021, as amended, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018, as amended if applicable and the enabling provisions of the listing
agreements entered / to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the securities of the
Company be listed (the "Stock Exchanges"), and subject to the applicable Regulations, Rules,
Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India ("RBJ"), the
Memorandum of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and subject to
such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be required from the Government
of India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory authority or any other
authorities, as may be required (the "Appropriate Authority") and subject to such conditions
and/or modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while
granting such approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the. Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be
deemed to include any Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any other
persons authorized by the Board, to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this
Resolution), subject to the total borrowings of the Company not exceeding the borrowing powers
approved by the Members from time to time under Section 180(1)(c) of the Act, consent of the
Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors for making
offer(s) or invitations to subscribe to rated, redeemable, cumulative/non-cumulative,
listed/unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter collectively referred as "NCDs")
up to an amount of ~2,300 Crore (Rupees Two Thousand Three Hundred Crore only) On private
placement basis to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, Qualified Institutional
Buyers, financial institutions and any other categories of investors ("Eligible Investors")
permitted to invest in the NCDs under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during
the period of one year from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions
as the Board or any Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board, may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial to the
Company including as to when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for the issue,
utilization of issue proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental thereto and that the
said borrowing is within the overall borrowing limits of the Company. ,,"-~ousir19'-

;;·l~~O.:\....... ......" (';l \-
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RESOLVED FURTHER.THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the Board be
and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the terms of issue including
the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued, time, the number of NCDs, tranches,
issue price, tenor, interest rate, par/premium/discount, unlisted/listing (in India or overseas) and
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary,
proper, or desirable and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in respect of the borrowings
aforesaid and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper, desirable or
expedient. "

By order of the Board of Directors
For Tata Housing Development Company Limited

(j;:~ey~~ ~.';£'0:'\ L:\....J0 ~y., .~~l~ r; ,-- Ritesl'rluffifdar
Y . J Company Secretary
\:". [',,)0'6 ICSI Membership No.: A20154
~~

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 28, 2023

Registered Office:
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033
Tel No: 022-6661 4444
E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in Website: www.tatarealty.in
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpoldi, Mumbai - 400033
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Notes:

1. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the
Act') in respect of the business under item n05. 3 and 4 set out above and the relevant
details of the Director seeking re-appointment at this Annual General Meeting ('AGM'I
'the meeting') in respect of business under item no. 2 as required under the Secretarial
Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India
('Secretarial Standard') are annexed hereto.

2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. THE DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED
INSTRUMENT APPOINTING PROXY AS PER THE FORMAT INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT SHOULD BE RETURNED TO THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY·EIGHT (48) HOURS BEFORE THE TIME
FOR HOLDING THE AGM. PROXIES SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF LIMITED
COMPANIES MUST BE SUPPORTED BY APPROPRIATE
RESOLUTION/AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE.

A person can act as a proxy on behalf of Members not exceeding 50 and holding in the
aggregate not more than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. In case a proxy is proposed to be appointed by a member holding more than 10%
of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not
act as a proxy for any other person or Member.

3. Corporate members intending to send their authorised representatives to attend the
AGM are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the AGM. Members,
Proxies and Authorized Representatives are requested to bring the duly completed
Attendance Slip enclosed herewith to attend the AGM.

4. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding as
maintained under Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangement in
which the Directors are interested as maintained under Section 189 of the Act, if
applicable and relevant documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory
Statement are open for inspection by the members at the Registered Office of the
Company on all working days between Monday to Friday except public holidays,
between 10:00 a.m. (1ST) to 1:00 p.m. (1ST) up to the date of the meeting and also at
the AGM venue during the meeting.

5. The Members may avail the facility of nomination in terms of Section 72 of the Act read
with Rule 19 (1) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014, by
nominating in the Form SH 13, any person to whom his/ their shares in the Company
snauvest in the event of death of shareholder(s). SH~13 to be submitted in the duplicate
with the Company.

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
("MeA") under the Act requires the Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents
("RTA") to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, a-mail

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY UMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, ChinchpokJi, Mumbai - 400 iiJoo;;;"
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022·66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in /?/-~~~

Website: www.tatarealty.in (&()%\
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address, bank details for payment of dividend etc. Members holding shares in the
Company are requested to submit the details to their respective Depository Participant.

6. Members desiring any information as regards the Accounts are requested to write to the
Company at an early date so as to enable the management to keep the information
ready at the meeting. Further, the Members who would like to express their views or ask
questions during the AGM may raise the same at the meeting or send them in advance
(mentioning their name and folio no. IDP ID - Client ID), at least 3 working days prior to
the date of AGM at riteshkamdar@tatarealty.in.

7. To support the 'Green Initiative', the Members who have not yet registered their email
addresses or updated their email addresses, are requested to register the same with
their Depository Participants CDPs"). The members who are desirous of receiving the
Annual Report may write to the Company at thdcsec@tatarealtv.in for a copy of the
same. Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2022-23 is being sent by
electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses .are registered with the
Company, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.

8. Attendance Slip, Proxy Form and the Route Map showing directions to reach the venue
of the AGM are annexed hereto.

9. The Company had filed a Petition with the Honorable High Court at Bombay in the matter
of the Scheme of Re-construotlon. The High Court approved the same vide order dated
February 15, 1980. Subsequently, AGM was held on October 22, 1980 which is
numbered as the first AGM post reconstruction as mentioned above. Thereafter, the
AGMs of the Company are chronologically numbered.

10. The Members may note that the Annual Report for FY 2022-23 would be made available
on the Company's website viz. www.tatarealty.in and on the website of SSE Limited at
www.bseindia.com.

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 28, 2023

By order of the Board
For lata~o~ingDevelopment~Limited

.~;;'O."IQ\, ~~
I",C\f,' .-----r"Ritesh Kamdar
~ $ Jo::J Company Secretary

• , \-"~ ICSI Membership No.: A20154
.....al~

Registered Office:
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Ghinchpokli, Mumbai 400033
Tel No: 022-6661 4444
E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in Website: www.tatarealt'ilD.
GIN: U45300MH1942PLG003573

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY UMITED
ON: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Vallas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECRETARIAL STANDARDS ON GENERAL MEETINGS:

Item No.2:

The brief profile of Mr. Banmali Aqrawala (DIN: 00120029) in terms of Secretarial Standard- 2
on General Meetings (SS~2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India, is provided
in Annexure A.

STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("THE
ACT")

Item No.3

The Board of Directors at its meeting held on May 18, 2023, considered the reappointment of
MIs. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co, Cost Accountants (Firm registration No.: 102395), as Cost
Auditors for auditing the cost records of the Company for the Financial Year 2023~24 at a
remuneration not exceeding ~2,47,500/- (Rupees Two Lakh Forty-Seven Thousand Five
Hundred Only)plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and
AUditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the
Financial Year 2023-24 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the members
as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives is/are, In any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.3 of the Notice for approval
of the Members.

Item No.4:

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time issued
Non-Convertible Debentures (NCDs), in. one or more series / tranches on private placement
basis in accordance with the provisions of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.

In order to augment resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing debt, ongoing
working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the Company may be required
to make further offering(s) or to invite suoscnpnon to rated secured/unsecured redeemable,
cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/ unlisted Non-Convertible Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter
referred as "NCOs") on private placement basis, up to an amount of ~2300 crore (Rupees Two
Thousand Three Hundred Crare) to eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks,
qualified institutional buyers, financial institutions and any other categories of investors ("Eligible
Investors") permitted to invest in the NCDs under applicable laws, in one or r!:lQ(e

series/tranches. f;,1U';0~~

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED r~ \\
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 ~b;:;

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chlnchpokli, Mumbai .- 4 '" .~~.
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in <• ~

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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The terms and conditions including pricing for any instrument which may be issued by the
Company on the basis of the Resolution set cut at the Notice will be done by the Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term shall be deemed to include any
Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the Board or any person authorised by the Board
to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by the Resolution) in accordance with
applicable laws including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non
-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 and other Rules, Regulations, Circulars and
Guidelines issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), Ministry of Corporate
Affairs, Reserve Bank of India ("RBI") or any Stock Exchanges and subject to the Memorandum
of Association and the Articles of Association of the Company, and also subject to such
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions as may be required from the Government of
India, SEBI, RBI, the Stock Exchanges or any other applicable regulatory or statutory authority
or any other authorities (the 'Appropriate Authority') and subject to such conditions and/or
modifications as may be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granting such
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board.

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act, read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules. 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'). provide that a Company
shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of securities or
invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the Members of the
Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the PAS Rules provides
that in case of offer or invitation for non-convertible debentures, where the proposed amount to
be raised through such offer or invitation exceeds the limit as specified in Section 180(1)(c) of
the Act, it shall be sufficient if the company passes a previous special resolution only once in a
year for all the offers or invitations for such debentures during the year. Further, fourth proviso
to Rule 14(1) of PAS Rules provides that in case of offer or invitation of any securities to qualified
institutional buyers, it shall be sufficient lf the company passes a previous special resolution only
in a year for all the allotments to such buyers during the year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are as
follows:

a) Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board Resolution:
The Board resolution passed on April 6, 2023, which inter-alia provides for issuance of
NCOs ana private placement basis.

b) Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from time
to time.

c) Basis of justification for the price (including premium,if any) at which the offer or
invitation is being made:
The basis for justification for issuing NCDs at a particular price would be determineO'd""",,",_

the Board from time to time. . rfc'~'l~\,?~

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED~. J"i
crN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 "'a/",,,"I ,,,<

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T, B, Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 Oc .
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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d) Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:
Not Applicable

e) Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:
Up to <2,300 Crore.

f) Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule, purposes or
objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or directors either as
part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects; principal terms of assets
charged as securities:
As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to ~2,300 Crore vide
resolution passed at the AGM held on September 15, 2022. The said approval would expire on
September 14, 2023. If approved by the Members, the proposed resolution shall supersede the
previous resolution. The proposed NCDs are within the overall borrowing limits of ~2,500 Crore,
approved by the Shareholders, pursuant to the provisions of Section 180(1)(c) of the Act.

As on March 31, 2023, the net worth of the Company was ~ 2059.67 crore (standalone) and the
total long term debt (including current maturity) of the Company was ~1308.50 cram
(standalone). As on the date of this notice, the current outstanding NCDs are ~1400 crore.

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of ~2,300

Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act,
read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in this Notice.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives is/are, in any way,
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution.

The Directors recommend the Special Resolution as set out at item no. 4 of the accompanying
Notice, for the approval of t~e Members.

Place: Mumbai
Dale: June 28, 2023

By order of the Board
For Tata Housing Developm~CompanyLimited

,,~f3~~\ ~~
!'~~U~~ ,----, Rit~hK;;dar
'::>;.:. ;! Company Secretary
''<t?{ lII- p3\\\? ICSI Membership No.: A20154
'-~-=~

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942Pt.C003573

Regd. Office.- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. !<adam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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Annexure A

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standard in respect of Re-appointment of Director
as per agenda Item no. 2:-

Agenda Item no. 2

Name Mr. Banmali Agrawala
AgelYears 30/04/1963 (60 years)
DIN 00120029
Qualification Mr. Agrawala is a Mechanical Engineering graduate from Mangalore

University and an alumnus of the Advanced Management Programme of
Harvard Business School.

Experience Mr. AgrawaJa is the President, Infrastructure and Defence & Aerospace,
Tata Sons Private Limited. In his earlier role, he was President and CEO
of GE, South Asia, where he was responsible for all of GE's operations in
the South Asia region. Prior to GE, he was Executive Director (BO &
Strategy) and a member of the Board of Tata Power.

A veteran in the Energy domain, Mr. Agrawala has over 30 years of global
experience. He started his career with the Wartsila Group where he spent
over 20 years, both in India and in Finland. At the time of leaving the
Wartsila Group, he was the Managing Director of Wartsila India Ltd, the
Global head of the Blo Power Industries and a member of the Global
Power Plant Management Board.

Terms of re-appointment To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration sought to Mr. Agrawala would not draw any remuneration from the Company except

be paid the sitting fees for attending the Board/Committee Meetings.

Remuneration last drawn Sitting fees of ~1,40,OOO/- was paid for attending the Board /Committee
Meetings which were held in the Financial Year 2022~23.

Date of First appointment 24/03/2018
Shareholding in the Nil
Company

Relationship with other None
Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel
No. of Board Meetings soucr s
attended during the year -

£,.i,,\\I:"'::'<:J!I,,~

f~C'%
TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED $ ) ~

ON: U45300MHI942PLC003573 ~ ,,}>J'
Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 ;!/lu!1 f..u

Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.m
Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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Other Directorship, Directorship:
membership/chairmanship - (i) Tata Realty and Infrastructure Ltd.
of committees of the other - (ii) Tata Advanced Systems Ltd.
Boards - (iii) Tata Medical and Diagnostics Ltd.

- (iv) Tata Electronic Pvt. Ltd.

- (v) Pratham Education Foundation

Chairmanship/Membership of Committees of the Board:

Name of the Name ofthe Committee Chairman/Member
Company
Tata Realty and Nomination & Member
Infrastructure Remuneration Committee
Limited Securities and Allotment Member

Committee
Tata Advanced Audit Committee Chairman
Systems Limited Nomination & Chairman

Remuneration Committee
Tata Electronics Treasury Committee Member
Private Limited

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Vallas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: lhdcsec@talarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE FILL THE ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF
THE MEETING VENUE

Joint Shareholders may obtain additional Attendance Slip in request

I Regd. Folio No.1 DP ID-Client ID

NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHAREHOLDER:

NO. OF SHARES HELD: ~

I/We hereby record my presence at the 44th Annual General Meeting of Tala Housing
Development Company Limited held on Tuesday, 25th day of July, 2023 at
11.00 a.m. at Bombay House, 2nd Floor, Meeting Room No. 201, Homi Mody Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001.

Signature of the Shareholder or Proxy

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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Form No. MGT-11

Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruie 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Name of the company: Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Registered office: E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400 033

Name of the member (5):

Registered address:
E-mailld:
Folio No/ Client Id:
OP 10:

IM/e, being the member (5) of shares of the above named company, hereby appoint

1. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:
Signature:

2. Name:
Address:
E-mail id:
Signature:

3. Name:
Address:
E-mail ld:
Signature:

or failing him

or failing him

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 44th Annual
General Meeting of Tata Housing Development Company Limited to be held on Tuesday, 25th

day of July, 2023 at 11.00 a.m. at Bombay House, 2"' Floor, Meeting Room No. 201, Hom; Mody
Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as
are indicated below:

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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Resolution No"

1. To receive, consider and adopt:

8. the Audited Standalone Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended
March 31, 2023 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors
thereon; and

b. the Audited Consolidated Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year
ended March 31,2023 together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029), who retires by
rotation and, being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

3. Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration

4. Approval for issuance of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement Basis

Signed this day of 2023

Signature of the shareholder

Signature of the proxy holder(s)

AffIx
Revenue

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the Meeting.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-66614444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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BOARD'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS,

The Directors present the Annual Report of Tata Housing Development Company Limited (the
"Company" or "THDC") along with the audited financial statements for the Financial Year (FY)
ended March 31, 2023. The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has
been referred to wherever required.

1. Financial Results

Key highlights of standalone and consolidated financial performance for the year ended March
31, 2023, are summarized as under:

Rs. In Crores
. Standalone Consolidated

Particulars
2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22

Revenue 381.32 494.23 1,428.61 811.05

Other income:

- Gain on re measurement of
4.93 126.37- -

previously held equity interest

- Other income 365.75 348.19 230.44 234.00

Total income 747.07 842.42 1,663.98 1,171.42
Expenses
Operating expenditure 477.72 500.91 1,681.92 1,004.38

Depreciation and amortization
8.84 6.42 9.31 6.81

expenses

Total Expenses 486.56 507.33 1,691.23 1,011.19
Profit before finance cost,

260.51 335.09 (27.25) 160.23
impairment and tax
Impairment of Investments 557.40 83.72 (41.50) (14.16)

Finanee cost 176,01 255.67 244.86 305.73

Loss before tax (LBT) (472.90) (4.30) (230.61) (131.34)
Tax expense 12.24 4.02 12.42 24.26

Share of loss of joint ventures - - 167.00 99.78

Loss for the year (485.14) (8.32) (410.03) (255.38)

;ff1.;.~lIAt
TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CDMPANT UMITED (~'O

(3 0
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 '" UlA!l~I";'

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 03 IJI ;:
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in 01- ... ;'
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Attributable to:
Shareholders of the Company (485.14) (8.32) (411.79) (252.39)
Non-Controlling Interest - - 1.76 (2.99)
Opening Balance of retained

(1,491.90) (1,482.55) (2,506.02) (2,252.35)
earning
Profitj(Loss) for the Year (485.14) (8.32) (411.79) (252.39)
other comprehensive income j

2.09 (1.03) 2.14 (1.30)
(losses)
Transfer from Capital Redemption - - - 0.02
Reserve
Transfer fromj(to) Debenture - - - -
Redemption Reserve (net)
Closing Balance of retained

(1,974.95) (1,491.90) (2,915.67) (2,506.02)
earning

2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the financial year under review, the Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

3. Transfer to Reserves

During the year under review, no amount has been transferred to the Reserves of the Company

4. Company's Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2022-23 was Rs.381.32 crore, lower by 22.85 % over the
previous year's revenue of Rs. 494.23 crore in FY 2021-22. The loss after tax (LAT) attributable to
shareholders for FY 2022-23 was Rs.485.14 crore compared to the LAT of Rs.8.32 crore for FY 2021­
22.

On a consolidated basis, the revenue for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 1,428.61 crore, higher by 76.14% over
the previous year's revenue of Rs. 811.05 crore. The loss after tax (LAT) attributable to shareholders
for FY 2022-23 was Rs. 411.79 crore compared to the LAT of Rs. 252.39 crore for FY 2021-22.

State of the Company's Affairs:
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underdevelopment and planning stage. With 38 projects present in 15cities, these projects cater
to various customer groups. Your Company offers a wide product portfolio spanning from luxury
to affordable housing projects, holiday homes, senior living homes and weekends homes projects
in 15 cities.

5. Subsidiary Companies

As on March 31, 2023, the Company was having 20 subsidiary companies/body corporates and 6
associate entities/joint ventures. There has been no material change in the nature of the business
of the subsidiary companies, bodies corporate, associate entities and joint ventures.

During the year under review, the Company had acquired the entire equitystake of the Investors
in Ardent Properties Private Limited and asa result, it became the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company with effect from June 17, 2022. Further, the Company through its wholly owned
subsidiaries had acquired entire partnership stake of 5AS Realtech LLP with effect from October
18, 2022, which led to HL Promoters Private Limited became the wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On March 31, 2023, the Company's wholly owned subsidiary namely Tata Value Homes Limited
has signed relevant agreements with the Joint Venture Partner to divest its entire partnership
stake in Arvind & Smart Value Homes LLP effective from April 1, 2023 subject to such terms and
conditions as mentioned therein. The parties are fulfilling the conditions as prescribed underthe
said agreements.

Except asstated above, there has been no change in the companies, which became or ceased to
be the subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company.

The summary of the performance of subsidiaries, associates and joint venture companies and
their contribution to the overall performance of the Company during the financial year has been
provided in AOC-1 and attached to the Financial Statements of the Company.

6. Covid-19 Pandemic Situation - Update on Operations

a) Impact of the Covid-19 pandemic on business:

TheCovid-19 pandemic subsided compared to earlier waves, thus resulting in minimal disruptions
to residential business during FY 2022-23.

The underlying changes in consumer preference which the pandemic has driven - shift towards
highertypologies, bigger homes with more amenities - along with general rise in homebuying a
'safe haven'continued to drive high residential sales. This positive tail wind sustained even when
the short-term incentives like stampduty cutswere withdrawn and interest rates rose during the
year. The digital modes of selling and conducting business established now helps operate
remotely as required, for example in reaching out to NRI prospects or employees working flexlblv.

..;--~
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Residential demand sustains at all-time high, helping the Company surpass FY 2021-22 gross
sales as well FY 2022-23 gross sales targets committed.

b) Ability to maintain operations during Covid-19:

All locations of the Company - project construction sites, sales offices and corporate offices ­
were back to normal operations without disruption, as during pre-pandemic months. The NGT
ban on construction during Q3 of FY 2022-23 led to a brief stoppage of work in the NCR region,
but the same was forecasted and managed.

c) Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

The SOPs implemented for construction and sales related activities, covering transport, social
distancing, hygiene and basic do's & don'ts, continue to be in place as precautionary measure.
Sanitizers, spare face masks, etc. are still provided for all personnel and visitors.

d) Estimation of the future impact of Covid-19:

The underlying demand drivers for home ownership and thus long-term outlook remains positive
in India, across our micro-markets. Some of the steps taken to make homes and offices suitable,
related to hygiene, automation, layouts etc., are already becoming permanent fixtures of planning
for any new project.

With Widespread vaccination now achieved and potency of the virus generally reducing, the
Management cautiously believe that the pandemic's disruptions are behind us and the Company
now have clear optimistic long-term outlook of the market.

7. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
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As per IBEF, contribution of real estate sector was expected to increase from current 6% to 13%
of GDPby 2025 and the sector was expected to reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion
in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5% - however the economic downturn due to COVID 19 may
push timelines by 1-2 years.

Residential real estate:

In FY2022-23, more than 6.5 lakh units were sold across India with a N25% growth in absorption
over the last financial year. Markets have rebounded to much higher levels than pre-COVID and
stayed there, with Q3 of 2022-23 witnessing highest ever absorption in several years. More than
5 lakh units were launched in FY 2022-23, an aimost N5% growth in new launches over last year.
Pricing has continued to rise due to favorable demand-supply dynamics - Q4 prices increased by
>15% over the last year. Inventory overhang, N17 months in Q4 of FY 2023, is at one of the
lowest levels in several years.

The move towards higher transparency and accountability has continued, evidenced by the
continued consolidation in the market towards reputed, trust-worthy developers with strong
processes & fiscal positions. While higher traction is seen in high-end and premium segments,
the Government's policy push to affordable housing with its efforts under Housing for All as well
as infrastructure status will continue to drive traction in the affordable housing segment as well.

*Sources: RBIAnnualreport, IBEF, PropEquity, KnightPrenk; Media reports, Press articles

8. Share Capital and other Securities

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company had issued equity shares on preferential allotment
basis and have allotted 182,481,751 equity shares of UOj- each at a premium of 'l:17.40 per
share aggregating to 'l:499,99,99,977.40 to Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited. Consequent
upon such issue, the paid-up share capital of the Company stands increased from
'l:1098,48,80,91Oj- to U280,96,98,420j-. There has been no change in the authorized share
capital of the Company.

B. Debt Management:

As on March 31, 2023, the Company had total outstanding debt of 'l:2312.63 Crore, a decrease
of 'l:365.31 Crore over the previous year. The decrease was achieved by raising additional equity.
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C. Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

Instrument Rating Agency Rating Rated Remarks
Amount

Commercial Paper Credit Analysis & CARE Al+
(Short term) Research Limlted IND Al+ 'l' 1200 Crore

Re-affirmed
India Rating & with stable
Research outlook

Credit Analysis &
CARE AA

Non-Convertible Debenture with stable 'l' 2100 Crore Re-affirmed
Research Limited

outlook

Short Term I Long Term
Credit Analysis & CAREAAI

Bank Facilities (Fund and
Research Limited

CARE A1+ 'l' 1300 Crore Re-affirmed
Non Fund Based) with stable

outlook

As per ratings released in the month ofApril 2023.

9. Depository System

Your Company's Equity Shares are available for dematerialization (Demat) through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The International Securities Identification Number (ISIN)
assigned to the Equity Shares of the Company under the Depository System is INE582L01016. In
case of any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent l.e, Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. Add: C-101, 247 Park, L. B. S. Marg, Vikhroli (W),
Mumbai 400 083 Phone: +91 22 4918 6270. As on March 31, 2023, 100% of the Equity Shares
of your Company were held in dematerialized form.

IO.Directors' Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial

auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internai financial controls over financial
reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant

board committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's

internal ftnanda 00"",,, were adequate and effectlve '""09 FY 2022-23. :8:=\...
uv .~
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Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) (fhe Act'), the Board of
Directors, to the best of its knowledge and ability, confirm that:

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

(v) they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

(vi) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

l1.Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company's composition of Board is an adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors including a Woman Director. In addition to provisions of the Act, the Board
governance quldellnes adopted by the Board, set out the role and responsibility of the Board,
composition of the Board and code of conduct.

In addition to above, the provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) ("Listing Reguiations") became
applicable to the Company with effect from September 7,2021 on a 'comply or explain' basisuntil
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI
PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023. As on March 31, 2023, your Company meets the
requirement of the Listing Regulations, with respect to Composition of its Board.

As on the date of the Boards' Report, the Board of your Company consists of followlnq Members:
~---.,

< ~oPMi>',

• Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN - 00120029) - Non-Executi~e Director, Chairman ;;?~'~'(.~-'\~"~'
• Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN - 05251670) - Managing Director & CEO ~. [Ai I"~

dl \mlJ(\n 1, J i:
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• Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar (DIN - 00021947)
• Mr. Kamlesh Parekh (DIN - 00059140)

• Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN - 06942241)

• Mr. Ankur Dalwani (DIN - 10091697)

- Independent Director
- Independent Director
- Independent Director

- Non-Executive Director

During the year under review, Mr. Nipun Aggarwal (DIN 08094159) and Mr. K. Venkataramanan
(DIN - 01728072) have resigned as Directors of the Company with effect from April 18, 2022 and
March 31, 2023, respectively, due to their pre-occupation. The Board had placed on record its
appreciation for their valuabie contribution and quldance, which they had provided during their
tenure as Directors of the Company.

The Board of Directors, at its Meeting held on February 10, 2023, on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC), reappointed Mr. Sanjay Dutt (DIN: 05251670),
as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer ("MD & CEO") of the Company, for a period of
five years with effect from April 1, 2023, subject to the approval of the Members. Further, the
Board upon the recommendation of NRC, had appointed Mr. Sudip Muliick (DIN 6942241) as
Additional Director as also Independent Director (for a period of 3 years) and Mr. Ankur Dalwani
(DIN 10091697) as Additional Director of the Company with effect from March 31, 2023 subject
to the approval of the Members.

As per the provisions of Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Requlatlons, Mr. Dutt, Mr. Mullick and
Mr. Dalwani shall hold the office till the next general meeting or three months from the date of
their respective appointments. The Company being high value debt listed entity, the Regulation
17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, is applicable to the Company on Comply and Explain basis till
March 31, 2024 and mandatory thereafter.

Further, at the Meeting of NRC held on May 25, 2023 and videCircular Resolution passed by the
Board dated May 29, 2023, the NRC and Board had respectively recommended the appointments
of Mr. Dutt, Mr. Mullick and Mr. Dalwani to the Shareholders.

Accordingly, the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Shareholders has been called and is
scheduled to be held on June 27, 2023 to consider and approve such appointments.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted
declarations that each of them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6)
of the Act along with Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations.
There has been no change in the circumstances affecting their status as independent directors of
the Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations, they have confirmed that they
are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated
that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 0
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Meeting (AGM) of the Company and being ellqlble, offers himself for re-appointment. A resolution
seeking his reappointment forms part of the Notice of the ensuing AGM.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees and reimbursement of
expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the Board/Committee of the
Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the
Company as on March 31, 2023 are Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (appointed with effect from April 011 2018 for a period of 5 years), Mr. Kirtikumar
Bandekar, Chief Financial Officer of the Company (appointed With effect from February 10, 2023)
and Mr. Ritesh Kamdar, Company Secretary of the Company (appointed with effect from May 08,
2019). Further, during the year under review, Mr. Khiroda Jena has resigned as Chief Financial
Officer of the Company effective from the closure of working hours of November 25, 2022.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 151 2022, Mrs. Sandhya
Kudtarkar and Mr. Kamlesh Parekh had been appointed as Independent Directors of the Company
for a period of 3 years commencing starting from December 24, 2021.

12.Number of Meetings of the Board

There were 5 (five) meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings

were held on May 28, 2022, June 13, 2022, August 101 20221 November 91 2022 and February
10, 2023. The details of the presence of Directors are given herein below:

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance

Mr. Banmali Aqrawala 5 out of 5
Mr. Saniav Dutt 5 out of 5 --
Mr. K. Venkataramanan* 4 out of 5
Mrs. Sandhva Kudtarkar 5 out of 5 --
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 50utof5
Mr. Nipun Aqqarwal** Not Applicable
Mr. sudto Mullick*** Not Applicable
Mr. Ankur Daiwani*** Not Aoolicable

* Resigned with effect from March 31, 2023
**Resigned with effect from April 18, 2022
***Appointed with effect from March 31, 2023

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENTCOMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573
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13.Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the
directors on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of
board processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of committee meetings, etc.

The above criteria are broadiy based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held to review the performance of Non­
Independent Directors; performance of the Board as a whole and performance of the Chairperson

of the Company, taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors. This was followed by Board Meeting and Nomination and Remuneration Committee
(NRC) Meeting, wherein the performance of the board, its committees, and individual directors

were also discussed. The performance of Independent Directors was evaluated by the entire
board, exciuding the Independent Director being evaluated.

14.Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee (NRC) consists of Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Chairman
of the Committee, Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and Mr. Banmali Agrawala, as its Members. The terms
of reference of the Committee for its operations, is inter-alia inciudes formulating the criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommending
to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees and do such other act as prescribed under Section 178 of the Act and
Regulation 19 read along with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The Committee
met 2 (two) times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on May 28,2022
and February 8, 2023. The details the attendance of Members are given herein below:

/ \;i~i::~~":)"',:~.
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Name of the Member NRC Meeting Attendance

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Chairman 2 out of 2
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 2 out of2
Mr. Banmali Agrawala 2 out of2 .
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The Company's policy on directors' appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at "Annexure AU and aiso available
on the website of the Company namely www.tatarealtv.in. The said policy had been modified by
the present NRC effective from May 28, 2022 to meet the additional requirement of Regulation
19 read along with Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, which were made applicable to the
Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on comply and explain basis until March 31, 2024
and on a mandatory basis thereafter.

1S.Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretariai auditors
and external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board
Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company's
internal financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. During the year under review, such controls were tested and no reportable material
weakness in the design or operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of the Company,
there exists an adequate internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company.

16.Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was consisting of Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson of the Committee,
Mr. Kamiesh Parekh and Mr. Sanjay Dutt, as its Members. With effect from April 6, 2023, Mr.
Sudip Mullick, Independent Director was inducted as member of the Committee. The terms of
reference of the Audit Committee was as prescribed under Section 177 of the Act and Regulation
18 read along with Part C of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. The Committee met 5 (five)
times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on May 28, 2022, June 13,
2022, August 10, 2022, November 9, 2022 and February 10, 2023. The details of the attendance
of Members as on March 31, 2023 is given herein below:

Name of the Member Audit Meeting Attendance

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson 5 out of 5
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 5 out of 5

Mr. Sanjay Dutt 5 out of 5

17. Statutory Auditors
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Number 101248W/W-100022) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of 5
years i.e. till the conclusion of the 48th AGM.

18.Auditor's Report and Secretarial Audit Report

There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by
Mis. B S R & Co. LLP r Statutory Auditors of the Company, in their Reports on the Financial
Statements of the Company for FY 2022-23 .

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors had appointed
Mis. Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP, a firm of Company Secretaries in Practice, to
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for FY 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report, in
the 'prescribed Form No. MR-3, is annexed as Annexure 'B'. There are no qualifications,
reservations or adverse remarks or disclaimers made by Mis. Bhatt & Associates Company
Secretaries LLP in their Secretarial Audit Report, on the Secretarial and other related records of
the Company, for FY 2022-23.

19.Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management (RM) Charter and Policy Documents. An
integrated Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) Charter & Policy has been developed with the
objective of establishing a common understanding and methodology for identifying, assessing,
responding, monitoring and reporting to provide management, the board of directors with the
assurance that key risks are being effectiveiy managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk Management
Steering Committee ('RMSC') comprises of MD & CEO and Functional Headsof the Company. The
charter and policies provide the overall framework for Risk Management process which includes
risk identification, assessment, evaiuation, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the
Apex Committee in the RM Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the
Organization. It is responsible for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the
Organization. They are charged with the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks
and also report about various initiatives to the Risk Management Committee (RMC) and other
stakeholders on a regular basis.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH 1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
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Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the executive
team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk identification
is a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required. All the risks are
evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking, high risk areas a.~re"..,.-_
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In compliance with the Listing Regulations, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on March
22, 2022, constituted Risk Management Committee with effect from April 01, 2022 consisting of
Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Chairman of the Committee, Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and Mr. Kamlesh Parekh,
as its Members. Owing to changes in the Board, i.e. the appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick (DIN:
06942241) asAdditional DirectorasalsoIndependent Director, the committeewas re-constituted
by Board with effect from April 6, 2023, which now consists of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Chairman of the
Committee, Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar and Mr. Sudip Mullick, as its Members.

20.Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition "Infrastructure Company" as provided by
the Act. Accordingly, the Company is exempted from the provisions of Section 186 of the Act
(except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

21. Related Party Transactions

In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions (Policy), to ensure due and proper compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Act. The said Policy also provides guidance for entering into transactions with related parties to
ensure that a proper procedure is defined and followed for approval/ratification and reporting
of transactions as applicable, between the Company and its related parties.

During the year under review, all contracts / arrangements / transactions entered into by the
Company during the financial year with related parties were in the ordinary course of business
and on an arm's length basis and did not attract the provisions of Section 188 (1) of the Act.
Given that all the transactions entered by the Company during the year under review were at
arm's length and in the ordinary course of business and that none of the transactions were
material in nature, the disclosure of related party transactions asrequired underSection 134(3)(h)
of the Act in Form No. AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for financial year 2022-23 and
hence does not form part of this report. Nevertheless, the Company has made disclosures of all
related party transactions as per notes to the audited financiai statements for the FY 2022-23.

Further, the said policyhad been modified by the Audit Committee with effect from May28, 2022
to meet the additional requirementof Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations, which were made
applicable to the Company with effect from September 7, 2021on complyand explain basis until
March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter. The RPT policy is available on the website
of the Company l.e, www.tatarealtv.in.

22.Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company hasformulated a CSR policy, mentioning its objective,CSR scope, activity schedule,
monitoring and reporting method. The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e.
www.tatarealtv.in_and annexed at "Annexure C (i)" of this report. 'o~;ETo;;-,
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In view of the losses (as per the calculation of net profit under Section 198 of the Act) incurred,
the Company was not required to spend any amount on CSR activities for the Financial Year 2022­
23. The annual report on CSR activities has been furnished in the prescribed format at
"Annexure C (ii)", of this report.

23. Annual Return

As per the requirements of Sections 92(3) and 134(3)(a) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder,
the annual return for FY 2022-23 in the prescribed Form No. MGT-7 shail also be placed on the
website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in.

24.Particulars of Employees

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs on February 19, 2021, had notified the amendments to the
Companies (Specification of definitions detaiis) Rules, 2014, pursuant to the which the Company
wiil not be considered as Listed Company as per the provisions of the Act read along with Rules
framed thereunder. Accordingly, the disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as
required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Ruie 5 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not be applicable to the Company.

25.Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that
such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

26. Deposits from Public

The Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as such, no amount on account of

principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

27.Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573
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28. Cost Auditors

During the year under review, your Board has appointed Mis. Vinod C. Subramaniam & Co.,
Practicing Cost Accountant (Firm registration No.: 102395) as Cost Auditors of the Company for

conducting cost audit for the FY 2022-23. Further, during the FY 2023-24, your Board has
reappointed the said Cost Auditor for conducting the cost audit of the Company for the FY 2023­
24 and accordingly, a resolution seeking ratification of the members for remuneration payable to

the Cost Auditors for FY 2023-24 is provided in the Notice convening the ensuing AGM.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms that
it has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub­
section (1) of section 148 of the Act for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

29.Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company's Operations in
Future

During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any
regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company's operation in
future.

30.Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of
the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date of the
report

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company

which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial

statements relates and the date of this report.

31.Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) ("Internal Complaints Committee") is in
place as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. There were no complaints relating to sexual harassment,
pending at the beginning of financial year. The Company has received one complaint during the
year, which was disposed-off by followlnq due process and none of the complaints are pending
as on the end of the Financial Year 2022-23.

32.Corporate Governance Report

The Corporate Governance Report, with the Practicing Company Secretaries' Certificate thereon,
for the year under review prepared in accordance with the Part C of Schedule V of Listing
Regulations, forms part of this Report as "Annexure E".

33.Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy ("the Policy"), under Section 177 of the
Act, with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the Company to approach
the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation. This policy is also
placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to create an
environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they see a problem.
It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether within or outside
the organization and makes provision for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee
in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the financial year 2022-23, no
employee of the Company was denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee. Further,
Whistle-blower complaints are dealt with by a due process of fully investigating the issues and
appropriate action being taken based on the enqulrv, The Board believes that there is no material
impact of any such open matter on March 31, 2023, in the financial statements of the Company.

34. General

During the year under review, no fraud has been reported by the Auditors to the Audit Committee
or the Board. There has been no change in the nature of business of the Company. There has
been no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,
2016. Further, there have been no details, which shall be required to be given as regard to
difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions along with the reasons

thereof, as no such events have occurred. EO"'~EL.!?'\,,<'
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Annexure A

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES

[Pursuant to Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 read along with
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations]

The remuneration policy of the company is designed to create a high performance culture
and is in alignment to the core values of Tata Group. This Policy sets out the guiding
principles for the Human Resources, Nomination and Remuneration Committee for
recommending to the Board the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel
and other employees of the Company.

The remuneration philosophy is aimed to provide market competitive remuneration to our
executives and employees, in order to attract and retain the most talented and qualified
individual to the company.

The remuneration policy recognises the size, scope and complexity of the company and the
role, the market standing, skills and experience, Company's capacity to pay in compliance to
the related regulatory compliance requirements.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act'') and Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("Listing Regulations''). In case of any inconsistency between the
provisions of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the
Company shall abide by the applicable law.

While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC'') has
considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act, which are as under:

"(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successfully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a
balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals"

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

A. Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non- executive
directors

(i) Independent directors ("ID") and non-independent non-executive directors
("NED'') may be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of
committees of which they may be members) and commission within regulatory
limits.

(II) Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and
commission will be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.

(iii) Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and
sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of
the Company (takinq into consideration the challenges faced by the Company
and its future growth imperatives).

(iv) Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as
required.

(v) The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended
by the NRC to the Board based on Company performance, profits, return to
investors, shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative
parameters as may be decided by the Board.

(vi) The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each
director based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by
various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and committee
meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by
directors other than in meetings.

In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any
director such fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the
director while performing his/her role as a director of the Company. This could
include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board /
Board committee meetings, general meetings, court convened meetings,
meetings with shareholders / creditors / management, site visits, induction and
training (organized by the Company for directors) and in obtaining professional
advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/her duties .
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B. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration
payable for services rendered by such director in any other capacity, unless:

(I) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
(ii) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the

practice of the profession.

C. Remuneration for Managing Director CMD"), Executive Directors CED") and Key
Management Personnel CKMP")

In accordance with the policy, the Managing Director, Executive Director, KMPs,
Senior Management and employees are paid fixed salary which includes basic saiary,
allowances, perquisites and other benefits. Remuneration also covers contribution
towards social security benefits / retirement benefits in accordance with statutory
provisions as applicable.

In addition to above, they may also earn annual incentive remuneration /
performance-linked incentive / annual performance linked bonus subject to
achievement of certain defined qualitative and quantitative performance criteria and
such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from time to time by the
NRC and the Board. The performance linked incentive is driven by the outcome of
the performance appraisal process and the performance of the Company.

Remuneration of MD/ED is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case
of any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders.

The NRC may recommend and provide MD/EDs such remuneration by way of
commission, calculated with reference to the net profits of the Company in a
particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall
ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the
MD/EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and
approved by the Board.

D~ Remuneration for other employees

The policy relating to employees would be as per the remuneration policy of the
company as approved by the Managing Director in consultation with the Head of HR
within the overall framework of above remuneration philosophy and quldellnes,

Exclusion

Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The remuneration for t~r;se:'~~-'~
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Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

ForTata Housing Development Company Limited

Sdj-
Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 05251670

~tN\AW~t ~~v~
Banmali Agrawa~)
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 16, 2023
Place: Tamil Nadu
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COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

Form No. MR·3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FORTHE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31$T MARCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and ruie No.9 of rne Companies (Appointment

andRemuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To.

The Members,

Tata Housing Development Company Limited.

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the

adherence to good corporate governance practice by Tata Housing Development Company Limited

(hereinafter cailed "the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a

reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my

opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers. minutes books, forms and returns filed and

other records maintained by the Company and also the Information provided by the company, its officers,

agents and authorized representatives during theconduct of secretarial aUdIt, we hereby report that Inour

opinion, the Company has, during the auditperiod covering the financial year ended on 31'1 March, 2023,

complied With the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that tht: Company has proper Board

processes and compliance mechanism in place to the extent, In t~e manner and SUbject to the reporting

made hereinafter:

We have examined the books. papers. minute books. forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by the Company, for the financial yearended on 31" March, 20.23, according to the provisions

of:

I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder

II. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act. 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder;

iiI. The Depositories Act. 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder -- Not

Applicable;

. ,,:;;<
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iv. Foreign Exchange Management Aot, 1999 and the rules and regubtions made thereunder to the

extent of Overseas Direct Investment. Foreign Direct Investment and External Commercial

Borrowings are not applicable;

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of

IndiaAct, 1992('SESI Act') ;.

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 • Not applicable;

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations,

2015;

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)

RegUlations, 2018- Not Applicable;

d) The secunues and Exchange Soard of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat

Equity) Regulations, 2021 " Not Applicable;

e) The Securities and ExcMnge Board of India (Issue and Listing or Non·Convertible Securities)

Regulations, 2021;

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue end Sh"re Transfer

Agents) RegUlations, 1993, regarding the Companles Act "rld dealing with client • Not

applicable:

0) The S~ouritie$ and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 .

Not appllcable;

h) The secunnes and Exchange Board of India (Buy Back of SeCUrities) Regulations, 2018 - Not

applicable:

vi. Further we report that, having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the Company and on

examination of the relevant documents, records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis and on

declaration by the officer in charge, the Company has complied with the Real Estate (Regulation

and Development) Act, 2016 and its RUles, reguiation, notification';, Orders and Circuiars eto.,

pertaining to lnfrastruciural development companies.
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Wehave examined compliances with applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India for General

Meetings and Board Meetings,

ii. TIle Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations iind Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015,

Further, the provisions relating to RegUlations 15 '" 27 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) became applicable to the High Value Debt Company

with effect from September 7, 2021 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2023 and on a

mandatory basis thereafter. However, SEBI In its board rneetlnq held on March 29, 2023 decided to

extend the 'comply or explain' for the High Value Debt Companies In respect of Corporate Governance

norms till March 31, 2024,The Company is in the process of taking turtner steps to comply with the

Corporate Governance norms as applicable untilMarch 31,2024.

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of tile Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above,

Wefurther report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company Is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Director,

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors, The changes in the composition of the Board of

Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out In compliance with tile

provisions of the Act.

Adequate notloe, agenda and detailed notes were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings

at leastseven days in advance or at shorter notice and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at

the meeting.

As per the minutes of the meetings duly recorded and signed by the Chairman, the decisions of the Board

were unanimous and no dissenting views have been recorded,

We have relied on the representatlon made by the Company and Its Officors for adequate systems and

.'processes in the company commensurate with its size & operation to monitor and ensure compliance with
applicable laws.
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Wefurther report thatduring the year under review, the Company has undertaken event I action having a

major bearing on the Company's affairs in pursuance of the above refErred laws, rules, regulations,

guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.

1. Appointment and resignation of Non-Executive Directors;

2. Regularization of Independent Directors;

3. Re-appointment of Statutory Auditors of the Company for a second term of 5 years;

4. Approval for issue and allotment of Non-Convertible Debentures on private placement basis;

6. Approvai for issue and allotment of equity shares on preferential besle/ Private Placement;

6. Appointment and resignation of ChiefFinancial Officer;

7. Re-appointment of Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer for a period of five years w.e.f.

01.04.2023 to 31.03,2026.

ForBhatt & Associates CompanySecretaries LLP

Place; Mumbal

Date: 18.05.2023

B Bhatt

Desi ated Partner

ACSNo.: 36181, COP No.: 13376

!JOIN: A03G181E:000293891

Peer review certificate no.: 2923/2023

This Report is to be read with our letter annexed as Appendix A, which farms integral partof this report.
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APPENDIX A

To,

The Members,

rata Howling Development Company Limited

Ourreport of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of tne rnanaqement of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our <l'udlt.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarlat records. We believe that the

processes and practices, we followed provide 1;\ reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts

of the company.

4. Where ever required, we nave obtained the Management rsprsssntsuon about the compliance of

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicsule laws, rules, regulations,

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination wa;;, limited to tile verification of

procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future Viability of the company norof the

efficacy or effectiveness with Which the management has conducted the affairs of the Oompany.

For Bhatt & Asaocletes company SecretariesLt.P

Place; Mumbai

Date: 18.05.2023 ACS No.: 3G181, COP No.: 13376

UDIN: A036181E000293891

Peer review certificate no.: 292312023
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ANNEXURE "C (i)"

1. PREAMBLE:
At TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED (''THDC'' or "the Company"), we are
committed to Tata Group's vision of Integrating environmental, social and ethical principles
into the core business, thereby improving the quality of life of the communities we serve and
enhancing long-term stakeholder value. At THDC, we are sensitive and concerned about the
communities and region we areoperating. Thus, believing that through sustainable measures,
we would actively contribute to the Social, Economic and Environmental Development of the
Community.

2. CSR VISION AND MISSION:
The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly
towards the betterment of the local communities it serves.
We believe in creating value for the community we work and empowering our stakeholders
by touching the lives of one lakh people by 202S. The said vision- mission is proposed to be
achieved by implementing CSR programs in the key areas of Livelihood and Skill development,
Healthcare, Environment protection, Social development, education and relief.
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3. DEFINITION - CSR POLICY:
This CSR Policy is a statement containing the approach and direction given by the Board of a
company, taking into account the recommendations of the CSR Committee, and includes
guiding principles for selection, implementation and monitoring of activities as well as
formulation of the annual action plan.

4. OBJECTIVES OF THE POLICY:
Define the operational framework and to provide a pathway for undertaking CSR
initiatives for the company.
The Policy sets out the rules that need to be adhered to while taking up and
implementing CSR activities.
To lay down effective quldellnes in carrying out CSR programs by aligning them to the
areas mentioned under the Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 and contribute efforts
towards meeting larger SDGs (Sustainable Development Goals) 2030.

The Company shall timely ensure appropriate utilization of contribution viz financial and
human resources to the benefit of the community at large.

5. CSRTHRUST AREAS AND FRAMEWORK:
The programs designed towards integrating wider perspectives of SDGs 2030 will reflect on
doing a responsible business and invest in Social good.
The CSR Framework developed for the next 3 years, focuses on the following areas of
intervention, which are in line with Schedule VII of Companies Act 2013 and beyond business

as usual.

LIVELIHOOD

(UnderSchedule 7,
point no. II and SDG I,

8, 10)

Enhancing skill
for
employability.
Supporting
entrepreneurship
development.
E.g. Upskilling and
reviving of Bamboo
crafts in West
Bengal, facilitating
social security
schemes to
construction and
migratory workers
by enabling their
registration under
Building and other
construction
workers (BOCW).

HEALTHCARE

(Under Schedule 7,
point no. 1 and SDG

3,6)

Designing and
implementing
awareness
campaigns around
sanitation and
hygienepractices.
Addressing vital
health issues in the
marginalized
communities.
E.g. Regular Health
awareness session
for Construction
labors and the
communities
around.

ENVIRONMENT
PROTECTION

(UnderSchedule 7, point
no. II and SDG 11, 13)

Focusing on projects
that have sustainable
long-term impact and
that promotes use of
renewable energy and
recyding.
Enhancing
biodiversity, natural
resource management
and mitigation of
climate change
impacts.
E.g. Water Body
Restoration in Rural
outskirts of Chennal
and Solid waste
Management project in
Bangalore-Rural.

EDUCATION

(UnderSchedule
7, point no. II

Promoting
Education)

Promoting
education,
benefiting the
marginalized
and
enhancing
their
capabilities
for improving
liVing
standards and
better quality
of life.
E.g
Scholarships
for glris.

SOCIAL
DEVELOPMENT AND

RELIEF
(UnderSchedule7,

point no. VII/XIland
Qualifying overall SDGs

afidSchfcfule VII)
Special projects to
be undertaken basis
immediate need
and thereby
fulfilling the
objectives of the
policy.
Engaging with
communities
affected by naturai
disasters, while
meaningfully
responding towards
strengthening their
resilience.
E.g. Covid relief
initiatives.
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6. COMPOSITION OFTHE CSRCOMMITTEE:
The Committee shall be constituted with following members only if the CSR expenditure
amount to be spent by a company exceeds fifty lakh rupees:
1) With minimum three directors of which at least one director shall be an Independent

Director from the Board of the Company; or
2) With minimum two directors from the Board of the Company, in case the company is not

required to appoint an independent director under sub-section (4) of section 149 of the
Companies Act 2013 ('the Act").

If the CSR committee is not required to be constituted by the Company as per provisions of
the Act, the Responsibility of CSR Committee as per the provisions of the Act, be discharged
by the Board of Directors of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per provisions of Section 135 of the Act read with the Companies
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (as amended), the CSR
Committee shall:
i. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which

shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company in the areas or subject
specified in Schedule VII;

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;
iii. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;
iv. To formulate and recommend to the Board an Annual Action Plan in pursuance of the CSR

policy, which shall include the following, namely:-
a) the list of CSR projects or programs that are approved to be undertaken in

areas or subjects specified in Schedule VII of the Act,
b) the manner of execution of such projects or programs,
c) the modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the

projects or programs,
d) monitoring and reporting mechanism for the projects or programs, and
e) details of need and impact assessment, if any, for the projects undertaken by

the company
v. Any other matter, which may be considered appropriate by the Committee for furtherance

of Company's CSR activities.

7. ADDITIONAL MANDATE:
i. Oversee the company's conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations

and its reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;
ii. Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;
iii. Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries (material

subsidiary" means a subsidiary whose income or net worth exceeds ten percent of the
consolidated income or net worth, respectively, of the Company and its subsidiaries in

the immediately preceding financial year). ~1r';~~)\

~ '1/. "./6. ~\»
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8. IMPLEMENTATION PROCEDUREI ANNUAL ACTION PLAN:
The CSR programs will be designed systematically with defined timelines, objectives and

deliverables. All the CSR initiatives will have well-defined KPls to measure impacts on target
groups.

Every year Company review the existing programs and will come out with Action Plan for

implementation of each of the CSR projects or programs, which were approved by the CSR
Committee.

The Company will collaborate with select NGO/ voluntary organization for the implementation
of the programs. The engagement with the partner will be based on thorough due diligence

process and assessing the credibility of the organization.

The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1" April to 31st March every
year, carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to time,

decide on the schedule.

The modalities of utilization of funds and implementation schedules for the projects or
programs:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of

the average net profits, made during the three immediately preceding financial years. The
average net profit shall be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the

Act.
However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer to undertake/spend

on CSR activities.

The Company shall implement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in form
of donation to a registered trust / society.

The Committee may from time to time recommend selecting and implementing any of the
CSR activities enumerated above and to encourage employees to voluntarily participate in
such activities toward society's betterment and overall well-being.

9. MONITORING AND REPORTING MECHANISM:
The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities,

either by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent
agency or as it may deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report,

containing details on implementation of the CSR actlvlties, to the CSR Committee of the Board.
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Details of Impact Assessment, if any, undertaken by the Company:

The Company may on its own or engage the services of professional/independent agency in
order to do the impactassessment of selected or applicable projects or programs on a periodic
basis, as may be required from time to time,

10. POLICY GUIDELINES AND REVIEW
This CSR Policy has been formulated as per prevailing provisions of the Act (as amended), the
Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 (asamended) and after taking
into considerations of Clarifications / FAQ issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA)
from time to time, However, if, dueto subsequent changes in the law, a particular part thereof
may become inconsistent with the law, in such case the provisions of the law will prevail.

This CSR policy document will be reviewed from time to time, Any changes, if necessary will
be approved by the CSR Committee of the Board,

ForTata Housing Development Company Limited

Sd/-
Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director & CEO
DIN: 05251670

~cvV\wvlA
Banmali Agrawal
Chairman C

DIN: 00120029

Date: June 16, 2023
Place: Tamil Nadu
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ANNEXURE "c (ii)"

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSRACTIVITIES

1. A brief outline of the Company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or

programs proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR

policy and projects or programs:

The C5R policy outlines the objectives, composition, C5R scope, activity schedule, monitoring and

reporting methods. The C5R policy can be viewed on the website of the Company www.tatarealtv.in.

2. The Compositionof the CSRCommittee:

* CSR Committee was dissolved with effect from June 29, 2021 pursuant to the provrsions of Section 135(9) of

the Companies Act, 2013.

51. No. Name of Director Designation / Number of Number of

(Identity of the Chairman) Nature of meetings of CSR meetings of C5R

Directorship Committee held Committee

during the year attended during

the year
- --

- - - - -
..

3. Web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

https://www.tatarealtv.in/investor-info

4. Impact assessment of CSRprojects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8

of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable

(attach the report):

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any C5R activities, during the

year under review.

S. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuanceof sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the

Companies(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required

for set off for the financial year, if any: NA

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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51. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off Amount required to be setoff

from preceding financial years for the financial year, if any(in

(in Rs.) Rs.)

- - - -

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) of the Act: Not applicable, as

Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198of the Companies

Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): The

Company was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year ended March

31, 2023, due to reasons mentioned in item 6 above.

(b) Surplus arising out of the CSRprojects or programmes or activities of the previous

financial years: N.A.

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: N.A.

(d) Total CSRobligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): N.A.

8. (a) CSRamount spent or unspent for the financial year: N.A.

Total Amount Unspent (in Rs.)

Amount Total Amount Amount transferred to any fund specified under

Spent for transferred to Schedule VII as per second proviso to section

the Unspent CSR 135(5).

Financial Account as per

Year. section 135(6).

(in Rs.)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of transfer

transfer the Fund

- - - - - -

(b) Details of CSRamount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: N.A.

(6)

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 40U\.\);:)::l-._.-"
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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SI. No Name of the Item from the Local area Location of the Project Amount

Project. list of (Yes/No). project.
duration.

allocated for

activities in State District the project (in

Scheduie VII Rs.)

to the Act.

- - - - - - - -

(8) (9) (10) (11)

Amountspent in the Amount transferred to Mode of Implementation - Mode of Implementation - Through

current financiai Unspent CSR Account Direct (Yes/No) Implementing Agency

Year for the project as per Name. CSR

(in Rs.), Section 13S(6) (in Rs.). registration

number

- - - - -

(c) Details of CSRamount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial

year: N.A.

(1) (2) (3) (4) (S) (6) (7) (8)

SI. No Name Item from Local area Location of the Amount Mode of Mode of Implementation -

of the the list of (Yes/No). project. spent implementati Through Implementing

Project. activities for the on - Agency

in project Direct

Schedule (in Rs.). (Yes/No)

VII to the

Act.

State District Name. CSR

registration

number

- - - - - - - - - -
_.

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: NA

(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: NA

(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): NA

(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: N.A.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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51. No. Particulars Amount(in Rs.)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company asper section 135(5) -

(Ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year -

(Iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(1)-(1)] -
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of -

the previous financial years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(Iii)-(iv)
._-

-
L_

9. Ca) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: N.A.

51. No Preceding Amount Amount Amount transferred to any Amount

Financial transferred spent in fund specified under remaining to

Year to Unspent the Schedule VII as per section be spent in

CSR Account reporting 135(6), if any. succeeding

under Financial Name Amount Date of financial

section 135 Year (in of the (in Rs) transfer years. (in

(6) (in Rs.) Rs.) Fund Rs.)

- - - - - - - -

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the

preceding financial year(s): N.A.
-

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)
-~

51. No Project Name of Financial Project Total Amount Cumulative Status of the

ID the Year in which duration amount spent on amount project -

Project the project allocated the spent at the Completed

was for the project in end of /Ongoing.

commenced. project the reporting

(in Rs.). reporting Financial

Financial Year. (in

Year (in Rs.)

Rs),

- - - - - - . - -
--

j)OEVEt

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the

asset so created or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year (asset-wise

details): N.A.

(a) Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s).

(b) Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital Asset

(c) Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital

asset is registered, their address etc.

(d) Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address

and location of the capital asset).

11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average

net profit as per section 135(5):

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198of

the Companies Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

~tvV\MNvl ~
Banmali Agraw~
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 16, 2023
Place: Tamil Nadu

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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Annexure D

THE CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE
EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign

Exchange Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has impact on
energy conservation.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

At Tata Housing, our mission goes beyond bulldlnq physical structures that become desirable
homes and workplaces. It is about leading with a purpose and acting responsibly, building

sustainably, and progressing collectively. Our ESG strategy is based on 5R sustainability approach
- Responsible Value Chain Governance, Resilient Structures, Replenish Nature, Reap Talent &
Respect Lives. Sustainability is an integral part of the Company's business philosophy. The Board

of Directors of the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for
conservation of energy. The Company has aiways endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for
conservation of energy.

The scale and complexity of operations require a considerable amount of energy. We incorporate
energy-saving interventions in the design, construction, and maintenance operations to reduce

our energy consumption and increase the share of renewable energy in the mix to limit our GHG
emissions. The construction industry is dependent on several inputs, and we lean on our supply

chain to partner with us in reducing our energy usage. We measure and monitor our carbon
footprint and take action to regulate and minimize it.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy -

Energy Meters • Smart energy meters are provided for all major equipment and
common areas.

• Smart BTU meters are also installed to monitor energy usage for the
HVAC.
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• Use of Solar PV Panels for common area loads.
Green Power • Exploring use of solar light tubes for THDC projects.

Initiatives

• All pumps greater than 3 HP have above 85% efficiency.

• Intelligent group controls in elevators to optimize energy use(DCS-
Destination Control System)

• Water level controllers to avoid overflows and water and energy
wastage.

• BEE star rated air conditioners.
Energy-efficient • EC Motors for AHUs.
Eqolprnent • Use of Hybrid Harmonic and Power Factor Correction devices to

ensure low harmonics and close to unity PF.

• Use of high efficacy LED lights (> 135 LumensjW).

• Use of low flow fittings to reduce water consumption.

• Exploring use of Heat Pumps to reduce power consumption (in club
houses, swimming pools)

Electric Vehicles • At least 10% of parking slots across all projects have charging

facilities for electric vehicles

Health and Safety • Project designs allow optimal use of natural air and light to reduce
daytime energy consumption.

• Well health safety rated buildings.

--
Low ioss • All projects have high efficiency transformers with low losses
Transformers conforming to ECBC norms.

Smart • Common area lights fitted with timers and other energy-saving

Automation devices with auto scheduling.

• Auto dimming lights in basement parking.

• Smart home automation in apartments optimizes the consumption
of electrical devices and analytics of usage.

• Command Centers for efficient energy usage analytics.

• Digital locks and 3 tier VDP for enhanced security.

Our employees use energy-saving electronic gadgets and commute using carpooling. At our

corporate office, we switch off 50% of our air conditioning plant for an hour every day during
lunchtime. Smart systems help automatically turn off lights in offices where employees leave by~__

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED vO...~r:LOI>1,o;
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 ~ '1.

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Murnbai - 400 03 ~ f!4i1/W ~.~
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: !hdcsec@tatareal!Y.JD "'<l ¢.l4/ i'

Website: www.tatarealty.in ....b- ~bl>
":t • '1111 '"
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6.30. The common areas and gardens in our projects have solar lights installed to increase our

usage of renewable power.

Use of maximum daylight - Use of maximum Day light in Offices and common areas by

providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction. Smart systems help automatically turn
off lights in offices where employees leave by 6.30 pm. The common areas and gardens in our
projects have solar lights instailed to increase our usage of renewabie power.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment's;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capitai investment on energy
conservation equipment. However, it is pertinent to note that the Company is into the business
of construction and development of residential projects and in the course of its development, the
expenditure is being incurred on the energy conservation equipment's, which are capital in nature

for such projects, however, the same being treated as inventory/product for the Company, hence

specific information has not been provided for each of the projects of the Company.

B. Technology Absorption

(I) Efforts made towards technology absorption and Benefits derived like product improvement,

cost reduction, product development or import substitution:

The Company has invested in various technologies from design to delivery to improve quality and

project timelines. Out of which the beiow technologies contribute to sustainability by minimizing
waste, optimizing energy/resource usage, reducing environmental impact, and promoting long­

term operational efficiency.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENTCOMPANY LIMITED

• Drone usage in Construction Monitoring: Drones monitor our construction progress,
identifying inefficiencies and potential areas for improvement resulting in the optimization

of construction resources and processes.
• QA checklist using Autodesk Build ensures that construction activities meet specific

quality standards and prevent errors and defects and avoids unnecessary material and
resource consumption.

• Design collaboration identifies clash detection and eliminates the need for rework.
• Our Command Centre monitor, control, and coordinate various systems and processes

allowlnq for efficient resource management, proactive maintenance, and effective incident

response. ,/ >~~~~:,;f~L",;~,;~"
/, (l-;::··,,.o<..·..~··<..,,l~~\

/.'!.::'r../ \",;1; \
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• The adoption of Cloud computing and SaaS improved energy efficiency, and
resource optimization, and reduced e-waste generation.

• Our Digital customer onboarding platform provides a sustainable alternative to
traditional, paper-based processes. It reduces paper waste and minimizes the need for

physical travel.

• HR digitization of the entire employee lifecycle from "hire to retire" including employee
awards and mental health and wellness and Digital Learning platforms which reduces the

usage of paper, prints, and travel requirements in the complete process Iifecycle.

• Digital signatures, Online Vendor Portal, and Management Dashboards eliminate
the need for physical paper documents, reducing paper waste, and promoting a paperless
workflow hence reducing carbon emissions by eliminating the need for physical
transportation of documents for signing.

• Remote construction monitoring reduces the need for frequent on-site visits,
minimizing travel-related carbon emissions, optimizing resource utilization and improving

project efficiency, and reducing environmental impact.

We have adopted Microsoft technologies like Teams and Office collaboration facilities which help

us to do virtual meetings, reduce paper waste, optimize processes, and promote sustainable work
practices. These facilities enhance productivity and reduce environmental impact by reducing

travel, minimum paper usage, and e-waste and energy.

(Ii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of
the financial year)-

Except as stated above, the Company has not imported any technology during the last three
years immediately preceding the FY 2022-23.

(iii) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2022­

23.

C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Foreign Exchange Earned: Nil

Foreign Exchange Spent: Rs,48,79,63,728f-*

* Includesexpenses incurred, acquisition offoreign investor's stake, investment made in the foreign
corporate bodies, etc.

~tvv\VV~ r
Banmali Agrawa
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: June 16, 2023
Place: Tamil Nadu

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealtv.in
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"Annexure En

Corporate
Governance Report

1. Company's Philosophy on Corporate Governance

Effective corporate governance practices constitute the strong foundation on which successful
commercial enterprises are built to last. The Company's philosophy on corporate governance
oversees business strategies and ensures fiscal accountability, ethical corporate behaviour and
fairness to all stakeholders comprising regulators, employees, customers, vendors, investors
and the society at large.

Strong leadership and effective corporate governance practices have been the Company's
hallmark inherited from the Tata culture and ethos. The Company has a strong legacy of fair,
transparent and ethical governance practices.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director and the Executive Directors. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct
for its non-executive directors which includes Code of Conduct for Independent Directors which
suitably incorporates the duties of independent directors as laid down in the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act"). The Company's corporate governance philosophy has been further
strengthened through the Tata Business Excellence Model, Tata Housing Development
Company Limited's Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code of
Corporate Disclosure Practices ("Insider Trading Code"),

To the extent possible, the Company had complied with the requirements stipulated under
Regulation 15 to 27 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations / Listing Regulations).
Pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023, the
applicability of the said regulations/provisions has extended the 'comply or explain' period for
high Value Debt Listed Entities in respect of Corporate Governance till March 31, 2024.

2. Board of Directors

i. At the end of March 31, 2023, the Company was having 6 Directors. Of the 6 Directors,
3 are Independent Directors, 2 are Non-Executive Directors and 1 is Executive Director.
The profilesof Directors is available at https:/Iwww.tatarealty.inLboard-of-directors. The
present strength ofthe Board meets the requirement of Regulation 17of the SEBI Listing
Regulations.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Offlce.- EBlock, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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ii. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than 10 public companies.
None of the Independent Directors serves as an independent director on more than 7

listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions in other public
companies as on March 31, 2023 have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors
is related to each other.

iii. Independent Directors are non-executive directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b)
of the SEBI Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act along with rules

framed thereunder. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of SEBI Listing Regulations, they have
confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstance or situation which exists or may

be reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their

duties. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the Board of
Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under
Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI Listing Regulations and that they are independent of

the management. Further, the Independent Directors have included their names in the

data bank of Independent Directors maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate
Affairs in terms of Section 150 of the Act, read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

iv. There were 5 Board Meetings held during the year under review and the gap between

two meetings did not exceed one hundred and twenty days. The said meetings were
held on May 28, 2022, June 13, 2022, August 10, 2022, November 9, 2022 and February

10, 2023. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

v. Web link of familiarization programmes imparted to independent directors:

https:/Iwww.tatarealty.in/investor-info

vi. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at Board
Meetings held during the year under review and at the last Annual General Meeting

("AGMn
) , name of other listed entities in which the Director is a director and the number

of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other
public limited companies as on the close of business hours of March 31, 2023 are given

herein below. Other directorships do not include directorships of private limited
companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act.

Further, none of them is a member of more than ten committees or chairman of more

than five committees across all the public companies in which he/she is a Director. For
the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, chairpersonship and
membership of the Audit Committee and Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has been

considered as on March 31, 2023, as per Regulation 26(1)(b) ofSEBI Listing Regulations.

TATA HOUS'NG aEVE"'''''NT COM.ANY UMrna t':~CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 iii ~
Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 0 "{/4I ~

Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in $ 8.4, i
Website: www.tatarea[tv..in ~" ....'i

';(• '01"\ )i



G
TATA

Name of Category Number Whether Number of Number of Directorship
the of Board attended Directorships in Committee positions in other listed
Director Meetings last AGM other Companies held in other entity
(DIN) attended held on Companies (Category of

during FY 15/09/2022 Directorship -
2022- All
2023 (Yes/No) professional)

Chairman Member Chairman Member

Mr. Banmali Non- s outot s Yes 2 5 2 2 The Tata Power
Agrawala Independent, Company
Designation: Non- Limited (Equity
Chairman Executive and Debt
DIN: Listed);
00120029 and

Tata Realty and
Infrastructure
Limited (Debt

- - - Listed)
Mr. Sanjay Non- Soutol5 No 1 6 0 3 Tata Realty and
Dutt Independent, Infrastructure
Designation: Executive Limited (Debt
MD& CEO Listed); and
05251670 Inlopark

Properties
Limited
(Debt Listed)

Mrs. Independent, s outot s Yes 1 9 4 8 Tata Realty and
Sandhya Non- Infrastructure
Shaiiesh Executive Limited (Debt
Kudtarkar Listed);
Designation: and
Independent Infopark
Director Properties
DIN: Limited
00021947 (Debt Listed)
Mr. Kamlesh Independent, 5 outol5 Yes 0 4 1 4 Inlopark
Mansukhial Non- Properties
Parekh Executive Limited(Debt
Designation: Listed)
Independent
Director
DIN:
00059140

(i-*Mr. Sudip Independent, Not Not Applicabie 2 0 2 Tata Reaity and
Mullick Non- Applicable Infrastructure
Designation: Executive Limited (Debt
Independent Listed)
Director
DIN -
06942241
*Mr. Ankur Non- Not Not Applicabie 0 1 0 0 Tata Realty and
Dalwani Independent, Applicable Infrastructure
Designation: Non- Limited (Debt
Director Executive Listed)
DIN -
10091697

~-

• Appointed witt: etted trom Ma,m 31, 2023 ~

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED it 4t ~
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vii. During FY 2022-23, to the extent possible, information as mentioned In Part A of
Schedule II of the SEBI Listing Regulations, has been placed before the Board for its

consideration.

viii. During FY 2022-23, l(one) meeting of the Independent Directors was held on May 28,

2022.

ix. The Board periodically reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the

Company.

x. Directors did not hold any equity shares of the Company as on March 31, 2023.
The Company has not issued any convertible instruments during the year under review.

xi. The Board has identified the following skills/expertise/ competencies fundamental for
the effective functioning of the Company which are currently available with the Board:

Mullick

ay Dutt
amlesh
Ankur

ay Dutt
amlesh
Ankur

e such
e
--::-,-:-1

ay Dutt

Skills Detailing of such skills Name of Directors, who hay
skillsjexpertisejcompetenc

Global Understanding, of global business Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. San]
Business dynamics, across various geographical and Mr. Ankur Dalwani

markets, industry verticals and regulatory
jurisdictions.

Strategy, Appreciation of long-term trends, Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. San]
Finance and strategic choices and experience in Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. K
Planning gUiding and leading management teams Parekh, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr.

to make decisions in uncertain Dalwani
environments.

Governance Experience in developing governance Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Mr. San]
practices, serving the best interests of all Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Mr. K
stakeholders, maintaining board and Parekh, Mr. Sudip Mullick and Mr.
management accountability, building Dalwani
long-term effective stakeholder
engagements and driving corporate
ethics and values.

Legal With expertise in compliance regulations Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Mr. Sudip
and dispute resolution mechanisms and Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar

xii. detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before
the expiry of his/her tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are
no other material reasons other than those provided: None

3. Committees of the Board

The Board has constituted Committees with specific terms of reference to focus on specific areas.
These include the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration Commiltee, the Risk

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED /'\,,:;[7;',:>.
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Management Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee. The Board of Directors and
the Committees also take decisions by Resolutions passed through circulation, which are noted by the
Board/respective Committees of the Board at their next meetings. The Minutes of meetings of all
Committees of the Board are circulated to the Board of Directors for noting.

(a) Audit Committee

Composition. Meetings and Attendance:

As on March 31, 2023, the Audit Committee consisted of Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson of the
Committee, Mr. Kamlesh Parekh and Mr. Sanjay Dutt, as its Members. With effect from April 6, 2023,
Mr. Sudip Mullick, Independent Director has been inducted to the Committee. The composition of the
Audit Committee is in line with the provisions of Section 177of the Act and the Reguiation 18 of the
SEBI Listing Regulations. All the Members have the ability to read and understand financial statements
and have relevant finance and / or audit experience.

The Committee met 5 (five) times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on May
28, 2022, June 13, 2022, August 10, 2022, November 9, 2022 and February 10, 2023. The details of
the attendance of Members are given herein below:

-
Name of the Member Attendance

Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson 5 out of 5
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh 5 out of 5 -

1--- Mr. Sanjay Dutt 5 out of 5
Mr. Sudip Mullick Not Applicable

Terms of reference of the Committee:

The terms of reference of the Committee is as per Section 177 of the Act and Regulation 18 read
along with PartCof Schedule II of the Listing Regulations.

The previous AGM of the Company was held on September 15, 2022 and was attended by
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, Chairperson and Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Member of the Audit Committee.

The Board has accepted all the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the year.
Besides the Members of the Committee, meetings of the Audit Committee are attended by the Chief
Financial Officer, the Company Secretary, the StatutoryAuditors, the Head - Internal Audit and other
persons, as the Committee may consider appropriate.

(b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee ("NRC")

Composition. Meetings and Attendance:
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The Committee met two (2) times during the year underreview. The said meetings were held on May
28, 2022 and February 8, 2023. The details the attendance of Members are given herein below:

-
Name of the Member Attendance

Mr. Kamlesh Parekh, Chairman 2 out of 2
Mrs. Sandhva Kudtarkar 2 out of2
Mr. Banmali Agrawala 2 out of2

The previous AGM of the Company was held on September 15, 2022 and was attended by
all the NRC Members.

Terms of reference of the Committee:

The terms of reference of the NRC is to formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive
attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy, relating to the
remuneration for the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees and do such other
acts as prescribed underSection 178of the Act and Regulation 19 read along with Part Dof Schedule
II of the Listing Regulations.

Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors:

The performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors is based on various factors which
includes participation and contribution by a director, commitment, effective deployment of knowledge
and expertise, integrity and maintenance of confidentiality and independence of behavior and
judgment.

(c) Risk Management Committee ("RMC")

Composition. Meetings and Attendance:

Ason March 31, 2023, the RMC consisted of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Kamlesh
Parekh and Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar, as its Members. With effect from April 6, 2023, Mr. Mullick was
inducted in the Committee in place of Mr. Kamlesh Parekh. The composition of the RMC is in linewith
Regulation 21 of the SEBI Listing Regulations.

The Committee met two (2) times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on
August 10, 2022 and January 20, 2023 and all the Members have attended the meeting.

Name of the Member Attendance
Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Chairman 2 out of 2
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar 2 out of 2
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh* 2 out of 2
Mr. Sudip Mullick* Not Applicable

* Mr. Mullick was Inducted In the Committee In place of Mr. Karnlesh Parekh With effect from April 6, 2023.
TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED ~~
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Terms of reference of the Committee:

The terms of reference of the RMC shall be as specified in Regulation 21 read along with Part D of
Schedule II of Listing Regulations including functions related to cyber security of the Company.

(d) Stakeholders Relationship Committee ("SRC"):

As on the date of this report, following is the composition of SRC:

Name of the Board member Designation in Com
Mr. Kamlesh Parekh Chairman
Mr. Sanjay Dutt Member

-
Mrs. Sandhya Kudtarkar Member

mittee
----I

The Committee met once during the year under review. The said meeting was held on January 20,
2023 and ail the Members have attended the meeting. During the financial year under review, the
Company has neither received any investorcomplaints nor any complaints received by the Company
are pending or remained unresolved for the year ended March 31, 2023. Further, Mr. Ritesh Kamdar,
Company Secretary of the Company has been designated as Compliance Officer of the Company.

Terms of reference of the Committee:

The terms of reference of the SRC shall be to specifically look into various aspects of interest of
shareholders, debenture holders and other securily holders and do such other acts as prescribed
under Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 20 read along with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing
Regulations.

4. Remuneration of Directors

a. Non-Executive Directors

The Company paid Sitting fees to the Non-Executive Directors ("NEDs") and Independent Directors
("IDs") for attending meetings of the Board andthe Committees of the Board. The details of the same
are, as under:

Name of the Director(s) Sitting Fees paid for attending Board and
___-::-:__-;-- +-Committee Meetings held during FY 2022-23

~1,40,000/-Mr. Banmali Agrawala
Designation: Chairman
DIN: 00120029

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
crN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- EBlock, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: ww\'!!,Jatarealty.in

Mr. Sandhya Shailesh Kudtarkar
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 00021947

~12,10,000/-
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Mr. Kamlesh Mansukhlal Parekh n2,10,000/-
Designation: Independent Director
DIN: 00059140
*Mr. Sudip Mullick Not Applicable
Designation: Independent Director
DIN - 06942241
*Mr. Ankur Dalwani Not Applicable
Designation: Director
DIN - 10091697

*Appointed with effect from March 31, 2023

The Remuneration Policy of the Companywhich, inter alia, lays down the criteria of making payments
to non-executive directors and executive directors is available on the website of Company at
https://www.tatarealj;yJn. None of the NEDs and IDs had any other pecuniary relationships or
transactions with the Company during the year under review, other than sitting fees and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the
Board/Committee of the Company.

b. Managing Director

Terms of Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director:

As per the approval of the shareholders, the Managmg DIrector's remuneration ISbemg paid by Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited (TRlL) and 60% ofsuch remuneration is being reimbursed by the Company to TRIL. The
above amount reflects the payment made by the Company to TRIL. E'l-

~" O,~
TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED ..,0'" 1/v(O~.

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573 [l; !It -;,
Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 40 3J 3 lJI!Jl8A./ ~

Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in j;~. .,.'Ii
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Period of appointment April 1, 2018 to March 31, 2023
Period of Re-aooointment Aoril 1 2023 to March 31 2028
Stock Options Nil
Fixed Component (a) il'2,97,34,027/-
Bonus/Incentive Remuneration for FY il'2,25,00,000/-
2022-23 paid in FY 2023-24 (b)
Perquisites and allowances (c) NIL
Retirement benefits (d) U3,21,315/-
Pension (e) Nil
Commission (f)

-
Nil

Salarv for FY 2022··23 (a+b+c+d+e+f) il'5,35,55,342/-
Notice Period and Severance Fees The services of the Managing Director may be

terminated earlier by either party giving the other Party
three months' notice of such termination or the
Company paying three months' remuneration and other
pro-rated incentive / commission (at the discretion of
the Board), in lieu of such notice.

There is no separate provision for payment of

'--- Severance fees.
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5. General Body Meetings

(a) Annual General Meeting (AGM)

Bombay House, 3,d Floor, 0 approve issuance of Non­
Meeting Room No. 301, Convertible Debentures on Private
Homi Mody Street, Fort, Placement basis
Mumbai 400 001

ppointment of Mr. Kamlesh Parekh
as an Independent Director

o approve issuance of Non­
Convertible Debentures on Private
Placement basis

o approve issuance of Equity
Shares to Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited on private
placement/preferential allotment
basis

Bombay House, 3,d Floor, ppointment of Mrs. Sandhya
Meeting Room No. 302, Kudtarkar as an Independent
Homi Mody Street, Fort, Director
Mumbai 400 001

Bombay House, 2nd Floor, Payment of Remuneration to Mr.
Meeting Room No. 201, Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director of
Homi Mody Street, Fort, the Company for the period April 1,
Mumbai 400 001 2021 to March 31, 2023; and

o approve issuance of Non­
Convertible Debentures on Private
Placement basis

28/09/2021 3:00
p.m.

15/09/2022 11.00
a.m.

2020-21

2021-22

(b) Extraordinary General Meeting:

2020-21 March 23, 1:45 p.m.
2021

Bombay House, 2nd Floor,
Meeting Room No. 202,
Homi Mody Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001

o approve issuance of Equity Shares
o Tata Realty and Infrastructure

Limited on private
placement/preferential allotment basis

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokll, Mumbai - 400
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarei'!!1YJn

Website: wW..l"lA<Jtarealt;YJ[l



G
TATA

2021-22 March 17, 12:00 Bombay House, 3rd Floor, To approve issuance of Equity Shares
2022 Noon Meeting Room No. 301, o Tata Realty and Infrastructure

Homi Mody Street, Fort, Limited on private
Mumbai 400 001 placement/preferential allotment basis

2023-24 ~une 27, 11:00 a.m. Bombay House, 2nd Floor, Proposed to be passed:
2023 Meeting Room No. 202,

TO approve reappointment of Mr.Homi Mody Street, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001 Sanjay Dutt as Managing Director

designated as Managing Director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company

Appointment of Mr. Sudip Mullick asan
Independent Director

(c) Whether any special resolution passed last year through postal ballot - details of voting

pattern - None.

(d) Person who conducted the postal ballot exercise - Not applicable.

(e) Whether any special resolution is proposed to be conducted through postal ballot - None.

(f) Procedure for postal ballot - Not applicable.

6. Means of Communication

The 'Investor Relations' section on the Company's website (www.tatq[~ill!lL.in) keeps the investors
updated on material developments in the Company by providing key and timely information such as
quarterly financial results, official news releases, Annual Reports, Contact details of persons
responsible for resolving investor grievances, etc. The debenture holders can also send in their
queries/complaints at the designated email addressatthdcsec@tatarealty.in. Financial Results are
normally published in Free Press Journal newspaper. During the year under review, there were no
presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts.

7. General shareholder information

(a) Annual General Meeting for FY2023

Date: Tuesday, July 25, 2023
Time: 11.00A.M.
Venue: Bombay House, 2nd Floor, Meeting Room No. 201,
Homi Mody Street, Fort, Mumbai 400 001

(b) FinancialYear: April 1,2022 to March 31, 2023

(c) Dividend Payment Date: Not Applicable

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- EBlock, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealtv,in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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(d) Listing on Stock Exchange and Listing Fees:

Name and Address of the Type of Securities Listed
Stock Exchange
BSE Limited Non-Convertible Debentures
P. J. Towers, Dalal Street,

Mumbai - 400 001 .._-_._--~

Annual Listing Fee as applicable has been paid.

(e) Stock Code: Not Applicable*

(f) Market Price data - high, low during each month in last financial year ­
Not Applicable*

(g) Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE Sensex,
CRISIL Index etc. - Not Applicable*

(h) In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors' report
shall explain the reason thereof. - Not Applicable

(i) Details of the Registrar and Transfer Agents of the Company are, given
below:

Re istrar and Transfer A ents
For Equity Shares and Non - Convertible Debentures issued on a
Private Placement basis
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd
CIN: U67190MH1999PTC118368
Mr. Ganesh Jadhav, AVP Depository Operation
C 101, 247 Park, L B S Marg, Vikhroli (West),
Mumbai - 400083; Phone: +91 02249186000
Fax: +91 022- 49186060; Website: .wV\iw.linkintime.co.in

(j) Share Transfer System:

All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form ason March 31, 2023 and are
freely transferable.

(k) Distribution of Equity shareholding as on March 31, 2023:
The Company is a closely held public limited company and a subsidiary of Tata Sons Private
Limited.

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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(I) Dematerialization of sharesand liquidity:
All the Equity shares of the Company are in dematerialized form as on March 31, 2023. Under
the Depository System, the International Securities Identification Number CISIN") allotted to
the Company's equity shares is INE582L01016.

(m) Outstanding Global depository receipts or American depository receipts or
warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact
on equity: Not Applicable

(n) Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: Not
Applicable

(0) Plant locations: - Not Applicable

(p) Address for correspondence:
Tata Housing Development Company Limited
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033

(q) List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions
thereto during the relevant financial year, for all debt instruments of such
entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal:
Details pertaining to Credit Ratings obtained by the Company are included in the
Directors' Report.

(r) Transfer of Unclaimed I Unpaid Amounts to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund:

During the year under review, no amount was due for transfer to Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

*The equitysharesof the Company are not listed on the stock exchanges and hence certain details
are not applicable to the Company.

8. Other Disclosures:
(a) disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict

with the interests of listed entity at large:

There were no material related party transactions during the year under review that have a
conflict with the interest of the Company.

(b) details of non-compliance by the listed entity, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity
by stock exchange(s) or the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital
markets, during the last three years: None
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(c) details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy, and affirmation that no
personnel has been denied access to the audit committee:

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy and has established the necessary vigil mechanism
for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical behaviour. No person has been
denied access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee as detailed in the Whistle Blower
Policy. The said policy has been uploaded on the website of the Company.

(d) details of compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory
requirements:

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBl (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) ("Listing Regulations'') became applicable to
the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March
31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBl (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with
SEBl PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023.The Company is in the process oftaking necessary
steps to comply with the requirements pertaining to the SEBl Listing Regulations which shall
be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024.

(e) web link where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed;

Following is the web link, where policy for determining 'material' subsidiaries is disclosed at
https:II'f'I'tlw.tatareaIn:. inDnvestor-Inf.Q.

(f) web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions;

Following is the web link, where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed
https:llwww.tatarealty.in/investor-info.

(g) disclosure of commodity price risks and commodity hedging activities: Not Applicable

(h) Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): As the Company being high value debt listed
entity and not an equity-listed entity, the Regulation 32 (7A) of the Listing Regulations is not
applicable to the Company.

(i) a certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of
the company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory
authority: The Companyhas obtained certificate from CompanySecretary in Practice that none
of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being
appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED ~o;.40
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or any such statutory authority. The same is enclosed at the end of this report and marked as
AnnexureL

U) where the board had not accepted any recommendation of any committee of the board which
is mandatorily required, in the relevant financial year, the same to be disclosed along with
reasons thereof: None

(k) total fees for all services paid by the listed entity and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis,
to the statutory auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the
statutory auditor is a part.

The particulars of payment of fees to Statutory Auditors is given below:

---"
Particulars Amount (~Crore)
Audit Fees

~---
0.65

In Other Capacity 0.12
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.09
Pavable to Auditors of Subsidiaries 1.38
Total 2.24*

* Includes payment made to component auditors.

(I) disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

a. numberof complaints filed during the financial year: 1

b. numberof complaints disposed of during the financial year: 1

c. number' of complaints pending as on end of the financial year: Nil

(m) disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of 'Loans and advancesin the nature
of loans to firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and
amount': Nil

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-66614452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in
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(n) Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of
incorporation and the name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors of
such subsidiaries:

During the FY 2022-23, following were the Material Subsidiaries of the Company:

*The above details arebased on theaudited financial statements of theCompany and Its subsldlarles ason March 31, 2022.
** based on unaudited financial statements of the subsidiary.

Name of the Material Date and Place Name and date of appointment of the
Subsidiary of Incorporation statutory auditors
Tata Value Homes Incorporated on BS R&Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Limited* 08/09/2009 at Reqistratlon No. 101248W/W - 100022)

Mumbai appointed as Statutory Auditors for a first
term of 5 years at the Annual General Meeting
(AGM) held on September 23, 2019 __

Promont Hilltop Private Incorporated on BS R&Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Limited* 24/09/2012 at Registration No. 101248W/W - 100022)

Mumbai reappointed as Statutory Auditors for a
second term of 5 years at the AGM held on
Seotember 16 2022

Sector 113 Gatevida Incorporated on BS R&Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Developers Private 13/12/2013 at Registration No. 101248W/W - 100022)
Limited** Delhi appointed as Statutory Auditors for a first

term of 5 years at the AGM held on
September 18, 2017. --

During the FY 2023-24, following are the Material Subsidiaries of the Company:

*The above details are based ontheaudited financial statements of theCompany and Its subsldlarles asonMarch 31, 2023.
** based on unaudited financial statements ofthe subsidiary.

Date and Place Name and date of appointment of the
--

Name of the
Material Subsidiary of Incorporation statutorv auditors __
Ardent Properties Incorporated on B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Private Limited* 05/03/2007 at Registration No. 101248WjW - 100022)

Mumbai appointed as Statutory Auditors for 5 years at

1----. .
the AGM held on Seotember 20, 2022

Promont Hilltop Incorporated on B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Private Limited* 24/09/2012 at Registration No. 101248W/W - 100022)

Mumbai reappointed as Statutory Auditors for a second
term of 5 years at the AGM held on September
16,2022

Sector 113 Gatevida Incorporated on B S R & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants (Firm
Developers Private 13/12/2013 at Registration No. 101248W/W - 100022)
Limited** Delhi appointed as Statutory Auditors for a first term

of 5 years at the AGM held on September 18,
2017.

. .
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9. Non-compliance of any requirement of corporate governance report of sub-paras
above, with reasons thereof shall be disclosed:

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (as amended) ("Listing Regulations") became applicable to the Company with effect
from September 7, 2021 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March 31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis
thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth
Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023.The Company
is in the process of taking necessary steps to comply with the requirements pertaining to other
regulations of the SEBI Listing Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April
1,2024.

10. The corporate governance report shall also disclose the extent to which the
discretionary requirements as specified in Part Eof Schedule II have been adopted:

i. The Company has separate post of Chairman and the Managing Director, such that
Chairman is a Non-Executive Director and not related to the Managing Director.

ll, The Internal Auditor of the Company directly reports to Audit Committee of the Company
on certain matters of the Company.

11. The disclosures of the compliance with corporate governance requirements
specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses(a) to (i) of Regulation 62(lA) of SEBI
Listing Regulations shall be made in the section on corporate governance of the
annual report:

The provisions relating to Regulations 15-27 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) ("Listing Regulations") became applicable to
the Company with effect from September 7, 2021 on a 'comply or explain' basis until March
31, 2024 and on a mandatory basis thereafter, pursuant to notification of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Fifth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 read with
SEBI PR No. 6/2023 dated March 29, 2023.The Company is in the process of taking necessary
steps to comply with the requirements pertaining to other regulations of the SEBI Listing
Regulations which shall be mandatorily applicable with effect from April 1, 2024.

The Company has provided the necessary explanation in the quarterly compliance report on
Corporate Governance submitted to the Stock Exchange under Regulation 27(2)(a) of SEBI
Listing Regulations for the quarters ended June 30, 2022, September 30, 2022, December 31,
2022 and March 31, 2023.

12. Declaration signed by the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company stating that the members of board of directors and senior management
personnel have affirmed compliance with the code of conduct of board of directors
and senior management.

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its employees including the Managing
Director. In addition, the Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Non-Executive

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Valtas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpakli, Mumbai - 4
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Directors and Independent Directors. These Codes are available on the Company's website
(yvww.tatarealty.in). All the Directors on the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the
Company have affirmed compliance with the respective Codes. A declaration signed by the
Managing Director to this effect is reproduced at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure II.

13. Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing Company secretaries
regarding compliance of conditions of corporate governance shall be annexed with
the directors' report.

The Company has obtained compliance certificate from the Practicing Company Secretaries on
corporate governance. The same is enclosed at the end of this report and marked as
Annexure IIL

14. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account I unclaimed suspense
account: Not Applicable

Date: June 16, 2023
Place: Tamil Nadu

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
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Arnosh Archapelll &, Asseciates
Practiclng Company Secretary
Moe: +919699019961
Em,1i1 Id --.!!I!!Q.sarshanapallv@gou,iLcom

CERTIFICAfE
(pursuant to Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To
The Members
Tata HousingDevelopment Company Limited
E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kudam Marg, Chichpokli, Mumbai • liDO 033

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the
Directors of Tata HOUSing Development Company Limited having CIN
li45300i"Ul 194n'LC0035'73 and having registered office at E Block, Voltas Premises, T B
Kadam Marg, Chichpokli, Mumbai - 400 033 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced
before me/us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with
Schedule V Para-C Sub clause IO(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company, we hereby certify that none of the
Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31 st
March, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of
companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any
such other Statutory Authority:

* Ceased to hold office of director with effect from 31/03/2023

..* Ceased to hold office of director with effect from 18/04/2022

"'the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

E··US, A-Wing, Flat No.II,Shrirang Society, Vrindavan, Thane (W) - 400GOI,

i



Amosh Archapetll 8~. Associates
Practicing Companv secretarv
MOB: +919699019961
Email ld -l!mo?arshan<m!!!~tlli.!&Qm

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board Is the

respol'lslblllty of the management of the Company. Our responsibility 15 to express an opinion on these

basl,(j on our verification. This certificate is neither an assuranee asto the futurl! viability of the company

nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

Company.

For illnosn Al'clli'lilelli & Associates

~
~Nv0\t .I ./ \

Amos. Archapelli

Practicing CompanySecretaries
COP: - 12945
Membership No: • 10064
Date: • OS'h June, 2023

Place: .. Thane
ODlN:- F010064E000470691

[,Hit, A,Wing, Flat No.4,Shrirang Soclety,Vrlndavan, Thane (WI·..400601.
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Annexure II

Declaration by the CEO on Code of Conduct as required by Schedule V of Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015

I, Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO of the Company hereby declare that all the members of
Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with Code of Conduct,
as applicable to them, in respect of the financial year 2022-23.

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director and CEO
DIN: 05251670

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 16, 2023

TATA HOUSING DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Regd. Office:- E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400 033
Tel. 022-6661 4444 Fax: 022-6661 4452 E-mail: thdcsec@tatarealty.in

Website: www.tatarealty.in



BHATT & ASS()CIATES A-n~. 'm.
COMPANY SECRETARIES LLP

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To,

The Members of

Tata Housing Development Company Limited,

E Block, Voltae Premises, T. 8. Kadam Marg,

Chinchpokll Mumbai - 400033.

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by rata Housing

Deveiopment Company Limited ('the Company') for the year ended March 31, 2023, as per

the relevant provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requtrements) Regulations, 2015 ("the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015") as

referred to in Regulation 15(1A)of the SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015for the periodfromApril

1, 2022to March31, 2023.

Further, the provisions relating to Regulations 15 - 27 of SEBI listing RegUlations, 2015 (as

amended) became applicable to the HighValueDebl Company with effect from September 7,

2021 on a 'comply or explain' basisuntil March31, 2023 andon a mandatory basis thereafter.

However, SEBi in Its board meeting held on March 29, 2023 decided to extend the 'comply or

explain' for the High Value Debt Companies in respect of Corporate Governance norms till

March 31, 2024.The Company is in the process of taking further steps to comply with the

Corporate Governance normsas applicable untilMarch 31, 2024.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Isthe responsibility of the Company's

management and our examination was limited to procedures and implementations thereof,

adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate

Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on tr18 financial statements of

the Company.

D/ 101, Lata Annexe, Above Axis Bank, W. E. Highway, Borivali (East), Murnbai - 400 066.
Mob. : 9867151081, 80979 85754 • Telefax: on 2846 1715

Email: rnail@aashishbhattin • W. : www.aashlshbhatt.ln



Bhatt & Associates Company Secretaries LLP

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to tne explanations given to

us, we certify that the Company is in the process of taking further steps to comply with the

Corporate Governance norms as applicable until March 31, 2024 as stipulated in the SE81

Listing Regulations, 2015.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future Viability of the

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness With which the manacemsnt has conducted the

affairs of the Company.

This Certificate is issued solely for the purposes of complying with ttle aforesaid Regulations

and may not be suitable or for any other purpose.

For Bhatt <1< Associates Company Secretaries LLP

Aashish ~~~h·:~~-:,yA""I'h
DN:on.Aa.h~fI K,ml"h Shao"
""IN,sloM."".,hlr.,

Kamlesh ~:~:I~~~'~~r-J9ru:102118Md1'"
4.i~.909""o,oo3B1d"",ba11,"

Bhatt ~~~i~~~'6~~'1~~i~'J
+00',0'

Place: Mumbai

Date: 09.06.2023

Aashlsh K. Bhatt

Designated Partner

Membership No.: 19639

UDIN: A019639E000472333

Peer review cert, 110.: 2959/2023

'.
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B S R &Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Gorepaon (East), Murnbai - 400063, India
Telephone: +91 (22) 62571000
Fax: +91 (22) 62571010

Indeoelldent AUditor's Reoort
To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limite(l

Raport on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We, have audit~d the sfandalone flnanclal statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited
(the "Company") whloh comprise the standalone balance sheetas at 31 March 2023, and the standalone
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), standalone staternent of changes in
equity and standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notesto the standalone
financial statements, inCluding a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information,

In our opinion ,and to the best of ourlnformation and acoording to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
("Act") in the mannerso required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accouhting principles
geherally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 Maroh 2023, and its loss and
other oomprehensive Income, changes in equity arid its cash flows for the yearended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audning (SAs) specified under
Seotion 143(10) of the Act Our resporisibllltles under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone FInancial statements seotion of bur report, We are
independent of the Companyin accordance with the Code of Ethics Issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India togetherwith the ethicalrequirements that are relevantto our audit of the standalone
financial statements under the provisions 01 the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in acoordance wifh these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, In our professional Judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period, Thesematters were addressed in the
contextof our audit of the standalone financial statements as awhole, and in forming our opinionthereon,
and we do not provide a separateopinionon thesematters,"

Going Concern assessment

See Note 1b to standalone financial statements

The key audit matter I matter was addressed In our audit

Registered omee:

B S R'& Co, (a parlne-rshlp nrmWith R.Qglslratlt;!~ No.BA61223) ccnvarted mto B S R & Co. LL? (a 141M Floor,CentralB Wingand NorthC Wing, Nesci! IT Park4, Neece
LimltodUabiHly Permershlp wlthLLf:'RegIstration No.AAB·1l111i) wllh etfeotfrcmoctober 14,2013 center, Western E~pr(lss Highway,Gategaon {Easl),MlImb'al· 400063
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B S R & 00. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
_.__._._-------.....,------_.__._----_...._-..

A$ lndlcated in the abovementioned note the
Company's debts repayable in the year ending
31 March 2023 and interest thereon aggregate
RS.1 ,704,13 crores. The Company has
projected cash outflows from operations in the
aforesaid period.
The Company's ability to continue as a going
concern is dependent upon its ability to
negotlate/ renegotiate its financing
arrangements with existing/prospective
ienders.
In view of the significance of the matter we
have identified the assessment of the going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

Revenue Recognition

See Note 16 to standalone financial statements

in assessing the going concern assumption used in
preparing the financial statements, our procedures
included the following:

Evaiuated the Company's assessment of the
cash flow requirements of the Company based
on budgets and forecasts of future cash flows
which were provided to us,

Compared the cash fiow forecast prepared in the
prior year including the underlying data and
assumptions used therein With the actual
amounts in the current year,

Read the credit ratings of the Company's
Instruments and ascertalned the maximum
borrowing amount available to the Company
based on the said ratings.

Examined the past history of the Company In
refinancing its borrowlnqs and term sheets from
prospective lenders to ascertain the availability
of financing to the Company,

Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertainties and
mitigation thereof.

-------_..~_--~--_.._-- ..__..._------_._~_----

The key audlt matter

Revenues from sale of residential units
represents the largest portion of the total
revenues of the Company.

In accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers, the
analysis of Whether these contracts
comprise of one or more performance
obligations, and whether the performance
obligations are satisfied OVeJ time or at a
point In time, are areas requlrinq critical
Judgement by the Company. Revenue is
recognised upon transfer of control of
residential and commercial units to
customers for an amount that reflects the
consideration which the Company expects
to receive In exchange for those units and
the customer has the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset.

How the matter was addressed In our audtt

Our audit procedures on Revenue recognition
included the following :-

Evaluate the Company's revenue recognition
accounting policies, their application to the
customer contracts vis a vis the requirements of
the applicable accountlnq standards;

Identification and evaluation of the design and
implementation of key controls over existence and
recording of revenue recognised for the projects
along with the testing of operating effectiveness
thereof;

Evaluating the criteria applied by the Company for
determining the point In time at which revenue is
recognised;

Conducting site visits during the year for selected
projects to understand the scope, nature and

Page 2 of 1S



B S R &Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Revenue is measured at the fair value of
the consideration receivedl accrued.
Revenue is adjusted for estimated cost
pending to be incurred by the Company for
the completion of the project,

The risk for revenue being overstated
represents a key audit matter dUG to the
flrranclal significance and geographical
spread of the Company's projects across
differentregions in India.

Considering the signlficahce of revenue to
the financial statements the same has
been considered as a key audit matter.

NRV of Inventories

See Note 7 to standalone financial statements

progress of the projects.

adequacy of the disclosures in the standalone
financial statements in respect of the judqrnents
taken in recognising revenue for residential and
commercial property units in accordance with Ind
AS 115.

----_._--_._-----------_._._- ....._-_._---_._-_.---_.
The kay audit matter

The Company's inventory comprise of ongoing
andcompleted real estateprojects, inventory of
the projects which have not yet commenced.
As at 31 March 2023, the carrying values of
inventories amounts to Rs. 2,161.04 crore.

Inventory may be held for long periods of lime
before sale making itvulnerable to reduction in
net realisable value (NRV). This could result in
an overstatement of the value of inventory
when the carrying value is higher than the
NRV.

Assessing NRV

NRV is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale and
estimated costs of compietion (in case of
construction work in- progress). The inventory
of finished goads and construction work-in­
progress is not written down below cost when
completed fiats! under-constrnction fiats!
properties are expected to be sold at or above
cost.

For NRV assessment, the estimated selling
price is determined for a phase, sometimes

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Ouraudltprocedures included the following:

Evaluate the Company's accounting policies for
inventory vis a vis the requirements of the
applicable accounting standards;

We evaluated the design and Implementation of
controls over determination of NRV of
Inventories including the process, meihodolcqy
end key assumptions on selling price, estimated
cost to complete the project and tested the
operating effectiveness thereof;

Evaluate the Company's judgement with regards
to application of write-down of Inventory unitsby
audltlnq the key estimates, data inputs and
assumptions adopted in the valuations.

Comparing the estimated constructlon costs to
complete each project with the Company's
updated budgets.

We have tested the NRVof the inventories to Its
carrying value in bookson samplebasis,
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

corrrprlslnq multiple units. The assessment and
appllcetlcn of write-down of inventory to NRV
are subject to significant judgement by the
Company.

As such inappropriate assumptions in these
judgements can impact the assessment of the
carryinq value of inventories.

Considering si9nlficance of the amount of
carrylnp value of Inventories in the financlal
statements and the involvement of significant
estirnatlon and judgement in such assessment
of NRV, the same has been considered as key
audit matter.

Investment in Subsidiaries and loans to
group oompanies

see Note 4a, 4b and 8(e) to standalone flnanclal statements

The key audit matter

The Company has significant investments in
and loan to its subsidiaries and joint ventures.
As at 31 March 2023. the carrying values of
Company's investment in Its subsidiaries and
joint ventures and loans amountsto Rs. 990.37
crores and Rs. 1,465.02 crores respectively.

Recoverabillty of Investments in
subsidiaries and Joint ventures

The Company's Investments In subsidiaries
and joint ventures are carried et cost less any
diminution in value. The Investments are
assessed for Impairment at each reporling
date. The impairment assessment Involves the
use of estimates and jUdgements. The
Identification of impairment event and the
determination of an Impairment charge also
require the application of signiflcanl judgement
by the Company. The judgement, In particular,
Is with respect to the timing, quantity and
estimation of projected cash flows of the real
estate projects In these unde.riying entities.

In view of the significance of these investments
and above, we consider valuation/ Impainnent

-".__._._----------
How the matter was addressed in our audit

-_._-~---_._----"

Our procedures in assessing the management's
judgement for the impairment assessment included,
lntsralia, the following:

We assessed the Company's valuation
methodology applied In determining the
impairment if any of the Investments and loans;

Evaluate the design and implementation and
tested the operating effectiveness of controls
over the Company's process of assessment of
Impairment and approval of forecasts.

We obtained and readthe valuations used by the
management (inciudlng by external valuer
where available) for determining the fair value
(recoverable amount) of its Investments and
loans;

We tested the falr value of the Investment and
loans given as mentioned in the valuation report
to the crurylnq value in books;

Made inquiries with management to understand
key drivers of the cash flow forecasts, discount
rates etc;

Invoived our valuation specialist to evaluate the
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

rata Housing Development Company Limited

of
Investments In subsldiaries and joint ventures
to be a key audlt matter.

Recoverability of loans to subsldlarles and
joint ventures

Due to the nature of the business In the real
estate industry. the Company Is exposed to
heightened risk In respect of the recoverabillty
of the loans granted to the aforementioned
parties, In addition to nature of business, there
Is also slqniflcant judgment involved eSto the
recoverabluty of the working capital, This
depends on property developments projects
being completed over the time period specified
In agreement".
We have Identified measurement of loans to
subsidiaries and joint ventures as key audit
matter because recoverablllty assessment
involves companys significant judgement and
estimate.

Other Information

assumptions used by the rnanaqement
specialists. We reed the disclosures made In the
financial statements regarding such
Investments;

Testing the assumptions and understending the
forecasted cash flows of subsldlaries and joint
ventures based on our knowledge of the
Company and the markets in which they
operate;

Assessing the comparabllty ot the forecasts with
historical lnformatlon:

Assessing the net worth of subsldires and Joint
ventures on th$ basis of latest available financial
statements;

Assessing the controls for grant of new
loans/flnanclal lnstrurnents and sighting th$
Board approvals obtained. W$ have tested
Company's assessment 0/ the recoverablnty of
the loans/financial instruments, which Includes
cash flow projections over the duration of the
loans. These projections are based on
underlying property development appraisals;

Analysing the possible Indications of lrnpalnnent
and understanding Company's assessment of
those indications;

• Tracing loans advanced / repaid during the year
to bank statement;

Obtaining Independent confirmations to assess
completeness and existence of loans and
advMcesglven to SUbsidiaries and joint
ventures as on 31 March 2023;

We read the disclosures made In the financial
statements regarding such Investments and
loans given.

The Company's Manaqernent and Board of Directors are responsible for the other Information. The other
information comprises the Information included In the Company's directors' report, but does not Include
the financial statements and audltor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responslblllty Is to read the other
Information and, In doing so, consider whether the other information Is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there Is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.
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B S R & Co. LLP

Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated In Section
134(5)of theAct with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that givea true
and fair view of the state of affairs, loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generallY accepted in India,including
the lndlan Accounting Standards (lndAS) specified underSection 133of theAct.Thisresponsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordancewith the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accoullt1ng pollcles; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and design,implementatlon and maintenance of adequate
lnternal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors areresponsible
for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a ~oing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and ~sing the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
eitherintends to liquidate the Company Or to ceaseoparations, or hasno realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors i$also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whetherthe standalone financial statements as
a whole arefree frommaterial misstatement, whether dueto fraud orerror, and to Issue an auditor's report
that lncludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high levelof assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted In accordance With SAs will always detect a material misstatement When it exists.
Misstatements canarisefromfraud or errorandareconsidered material If, individually or in theaggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these standalone financial statements.

As part ofan audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.We also:

identify andassess therisksof material misstatement ofthe standalone financial statements, whether
dueto fraud or error, designandperform auditprocedures responsive tothose risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient andappropriate to provide a basis for ouropinion. The riskof not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud Is higherthanfor one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery. intentional omissions, misrepresentations, orthe override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. UnderSection 143(3)(i) of the Act, we arealso responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate Internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in placeandthe operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and r.elated disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude onthe appropriateness of thoManagement and Board of Directors useofthe going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of standalone financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty sxlsts related to events or conditions thatmaycast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention In our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if SUCil disclosures are inadequate. to modify
ouropinion. Ourconclusions are based on the auditevidence obtained up to the dateof our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions maycause the Company tocease to continue as a going
concern,
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements.
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a mannerIhat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with thosecharged withgovernance regarding, among othermatters, the plannedscope
andtiming of the auditandsignificant auditfindings., including anysignificant deficiencies in infernal control
that we identifyduringbur audit.

We also provide those charged With governance With a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding' independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those mattersthat
were of mostsignificanceIn the audit of the standalone financial statements of the currentperlodand are
therefore the key auditmatters. We describe these matters in our auditor'sreportunlesslaw or regulation
precludespublicdisclosure about the matteror When, in extremely rarecircumstances, we determine that
a mattershould not be communicated in our reportbecausethe adverse consequences of doing sowould
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and RegUlatory Requirements

1. As required by th~ Companies (AUditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Governmentof lndla in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act,we give in tile "Annexure N a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4of the Order, to the extentapplicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, we reportthat:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b. In our opinion, proper books of accountas required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c. The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive Income), the standalone statement of changes in equity and the standalone
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Reportare in agreement with the books of account.

d. in Our opinion, the aforesald standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
underSection 133of the Act.

e. Onthe basisof thewrittenrepresentations received fromthedirectors as on31 March 2023taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March2023
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2)of the Act.

. f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financlal controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company andthe operatinq effectiveness of suchcontrols, referto our separate
Report In "Annexure B".

B. With respectto the other matters to be. included in the Auditor's Reportin accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companles (Auditand Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the bestof our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

a. The Companyhas disclosed the impactof pending litigations asat 31 March2023 on Its financial
position in its standalone financial statements - Refer Note 27 to the standalone financial
statements.

b. The Company did not have any long-term contracts lncludlnq derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses.

c. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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Independent Auditor's Report (Continued)

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

d (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note39 to the standalone financial statements. nofunds havebeen advanced or
loanedor invested (eitherfrom borrowed funds or share premium or any othersources orkind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(les), Including foreign entities
("Intermediaries"), with the linderstanding, whether recorded in wriling or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall directlyor indirectly lend or invest In other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company ("Uitimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, securityor the like on behalfof the UltimateBeneficiaries.

(ii) The management has representeo that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosedin tile Note 39 to the standalone financial statements, no funds have been received by
the Company from any personts)atehtity(ies), Including foreign entities("Funding Parties"), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or
indirectly, landor invest In otherpersons or entities identified in anymannerwhatsoever byor on
behaltaltha Funding P~rties ("Ultim~te Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the
like On behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ill) Based011 theaucltprocedures performed thathave beenconsidered reasonable andappropriate
in the clrcumstances. nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representatlons under sub-clause (i) and (i1) of Rule 11 (e), as provided under (I) and (II) above,
contain any material rnlsstaternent.

e. The Company has neitherdeclared nor paid any dividend duringthe year,

f. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Company
only with effaot from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Cornpanles (AUdit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014is not applicable.

C,. With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor's Reportunder Section 197(16) of the Act:

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid
by theCompanyto its directorsduringthe current year is Inaccordance with the provisions of Section
197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit iald down under
Sedron 197 of the AQt. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under
Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented upon by us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

Farhad Barn]i

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDiN:23105234BGXDX08228
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showlnq f~1I particulars, includinq quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plantand Equipment.

(B) The Company hasmaintained properrecords showing full partlculars of intangible assets.

(I) (b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a reg~lar programme of physical verification
of its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plantandequipment are Verified in
a phased manner over a period of three years. In accordance with this proqramrne, certain
property, plant and squtpment were vetifled during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of
physical verlfication Is reasonable having regard to the sizeof the Company and the nature of
its assets. No discrepancies werenoticed on such verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the COmpany, the title deedsof immovable properties (other than immovable
properties Where the Company Is the lessee and the leases agreements are d~ly executed In
favour of the lessee) disclosed In the standalone financial statements are held In the name of
the Company, exceptfor the follOWing Which are not held in the name of the Company:

(d)

._-,------
Description Gross Held In the Whether Period held. Reason
of property carrying name of promoter, indicate for not

value (Rs. in director or range, being
crores] their relative where held in

or employee appropriate the
name of

the
compan
v, Also
indicate

if in
dispute

-- --
Office Space 2.27 DR. (Miss) No 28years The
at EruchshaW Avlmay Company
BUilding Sohrab is In the
Mumbal Hakim process

of
registerin
g the title
deeds in
the
Company
's name.
Thereare
no
disputes.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
ofthe records of theCompany, theCompany hasnotrevalued ItsProperty, PlantandEquipment
(Including Rightof Useassets) or Intangible assets or bothduring the year.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Housing Development Company limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(e) According to the information and explanatlons given to us and on the basisof our examination
of the records of the Cornpany, there are no proceedings initiated or pending aqainst the
Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benarnl Property
Transactions Act, 1988and rules made thereunder.

(a) The inventory, except construction work in proqress has been physically verified by the
management during tile year. The requirement of paragraph 3(iI)(a) of the Order are not
applicable to construction work in progress. In our opinion, the frequency of suchverification is
reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by management Were appropriate, No
discrepancies were noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records
that were more than 100/0 In the aggregate of each class otlnventory.

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
excess of five crore rupees, In aggregate, from banks or financial Institutions on the basis of
security of current assets, In our opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the
Company with such banks or financial Institutions are in agreement with the books of account
of the Company.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to us and the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has made investments In companies and limited
liability partnership and has not made any Investments in firms or any other parties. The
Company has granted loans and provided guarantees to companies duringthe year, in respect
of which the requisite Information Is as below. The Company has not provided security and
advances in the nature of loans to companies during the year. Further, the Company has not
provided any guarantee or security. granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans,
secured or unsecured, to firms, limited liabilitypartnership or anyotherparties duringthe year,

(a) Based on the audit procedures Carried on by us and as per the lnformation and explanations
givento Us the Company has provided loansand stoodguarantee to any other entity as below:

(Rs. in crores)

Psrtlculare Guarantees Security Loans Advances in
nature of loans

--~_..
Aggregate amountduring
the year
Subsidiaries'
Jointventures" 225.92 Nil 221.42 Nil
Assooiates' Nil Nil 11.87 Nil
Others Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nil Nil Nil
-- -_.

"
--

Baiance outstanding as
at balance sheet date
Subsidiaries'
Jointventures' 380.37 Nil 1,817,38 Nil
Associates' Nil Nil 1,145.51 Nil
Others' Nil Nil Nil Nil

Nil Nii Nil Nil
~-

'As per the Companies Act, 2013

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, In our opinion the Investments made, guarantees provided duringthe yearand
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

the terms and conditions for the grant of loans during the year are, prima facie. not prejudicial
to the Interest of the Company.

(c) Accordinq to the information and explanatlons glveh to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in the case of loans given. in our opinion the schedule for
repayment of principal and payment of Interest havenot beenstipulated andaccordingly we are
unable to comment on whether the repayments or receipts are regular, Further, the Company
has not given anyadvance in the nature of loanto any partyduring the year,

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us andon the basisof our examination
of the records of the Company, in case of loans given, the schedule for repayment of principal
and payment of Interest have not been stipulated and accordingly we are unable to comment
on the amountoverdue for more than ninetydays.

(e) According to the Information and explanations given to us andon the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in case of loans given, the schedule for repayment of principal
and payment of Interest have not been stipUlated and accordingly we are unable to comment
whether the loan or advance in the natureof loan9ranted failing dueduring theyear has been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to
sameparties.

(f) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basisof our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has not wanted any loans or
advances In the natureof loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any termsor
period of repayment except for the following loans or advances In the nature of loans to its
Promoters and related parties as defined in Clause (76) of Section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the Act"):.

(Rs. in crores)

100%

233.29

233.29

Related PartiesPromoters

_____ _ •...J

--_.._----.,--------

in our opinion andaccording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions Of Section 185 of the Act in respect of loans covered by the said
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Ali Parties

-- - -
Aggregate of
loans/advances In
natureof loan
. Repayable on
demand (A) .
- Agreement does
notspecifyany terms
or period of
Repayment (B) 233.29

• _______• __" __,H

Total (A+B) 233.29
..

Percentage of
loans/advances in 100%
nature of loan to the
totai loans

-- --
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

section. According to the lntorrnauon and explanation giv~n to us, the provlslons of section 18(3
of the Act in respect of th~ loan given, gu~rant~e given or securities provided are notappllcable
to the Company, since it Is covered as a Company engaged in business of providing
Infrastructur~1 tacllltles, According to the lmormatlon and explanation giVen to us, the Company
has complied With the provision of secton 186 of the Act in respect of the Investment made
duringtheyear,

(v) In our oplnlon anc accordlnq to the information and explanatlcns given to us, as at 31 March
2023theCompany hasadvances ~ggreg~ting to Rs. 0.10 crores. M~nagement hasrepresented
that these ar~ from customers againstpurchase of resldentlal units but~r~ not adjusted aqalnst
the respective customer and the reconclliatlon of the same and necessary ~cljusting entries to
be recorded in the books of account is in process. Except, for these amounts on Which we are
unable to comment pending the completlon of the aforesaid reconclllatlon, the Company has
complied with theprovisions of Sections 73 to 76 or other relevant provlslons of theComparties
Act, 2013 and the rules framed thereunder where appllcable and the directives issued by the
Reserve Bankof [ndla as applicable, with regard to deposits or amounts Whicl1 are deemed to
bedeposits. As informed to us, therehavebeen no proceedings beforetheCornpany LawBoard
or National company LawTribunal or Reserve Bankof India or any court 91' anyothertribunal
in this matterand no orderhas been passed by anyof the aforesatd authorities in this regard.

(Vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company pursuant to the
rules prescribed by the Central Government for maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1)of the Act in respect of Its construction industry and are of the oplnion that prima facie,
the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained, However, we have not
carried out a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine Whether these are
accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) The Company does not have liability in respect of Service tax, Duty ot excise, Sales tax end
Value addsc tax during the year since effective 1 July 2017, fhese statutory dues has been
subsumed into GST.

According to the information and explanations given to US and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted I accrued in ihe books of
account in respect ot undisputed statutory dues including Goods and servlce Tax, Provident
Fund, Employe~s state insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues havabeen ragularly deposited by the Company with the appropriate authorities.

According to the Information and explanations given to us and onthe basis of our examlnatton
of the records ofth,e Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods andService
Tax, Provident Fund, Employees state Insurance, income-Tax, Duty of Customs 01' Cess or
other statutory dues Were in arrears as at 31 March 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable, except <IS mentioned below:

N<lme of Nature of Amount Period to Due date Dateof Remarks
the the dues (Rs. In which the payment ,if any

statvte erores) amount
relates

_. _._---
Provident Provident 0.16 Relates to On or " Due to
Fund Fund FY 22-23 before15th procedur

of the 81 Issues,
following Provident
month fund

deducted
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ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

-- ----- ----
of Nature of Amount Period 10 Due date Daleof Remarks

Ihe dues (Rs.ln which Ihe payment ,If any
Ie croros) amount

relates
-- _. -

but not
deposited

_._-
ent Provident 0.04 Relates to On or - Due to

Fund FY 21-22 before15th procedur
of the al issues,
following Provident
month fund

deducted
but not
deposited

Nama
the

statu

Provld
fund

(b) According to Ihe information and explanations given 10 us andon Ihe basisof our examination
of the records of the Company, statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax, Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, Duty of Customs or Cess or other statutory
dues which havenot been deposited on account of any dispute areas follows:

--
nt (Rs. Period to Forum Remarks

rores) which the where , if any
amount dispute Is
relales pending

.._----
AY 2012-13 High Court

--_ .._ ..

AY 2015-16 High COurt

._-- ------
AY 2016-17 Commissions

r (Appeal)

AY 2017-18 Cornrnlsslone
r (Appeal)

AY 2018"19 Cornrnlaslone
r (Appeal)

2010-11 to CESTAT
2012·13 (Appeal)

-----
2010-2015 CESTAT
2016·2017 (Appeal)

-----

u

Page 13of 1El

----------
Name of the Nature of Amo

statute Ihe dues In c

f--

income Tax Tax and 0.25
Interest

-
income Tax Tax and 4,18

Interest

Income Tax Tax and 1,68
Interest

-- _._-
Income Tax Tax and 1,26

Inlerest
------1--

Income Tax Tax and 0.98
Interest

The Finance Penally 0.32
Act, 1994

-
The Finance Tax 0,01
Act, 1994

-- -_._----
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-------- ---
Nameof the Nature of Amount (Rs. Period to Forum Remarks

statute the dues in crores) which the where ,II any
amount dispute is
relates pending

2017-2018
---- --1------

The Finance Tax 0.04 2010-2015 CESTAT
Act, 1994 (Appeal)

--- t--.. .._. ----

The Finance Tax 1.21 2010-2015 CESTAT
Act, 1994 2015 - July (Appeal)
(Note-1 ) 2017

------
The Finance Tax 3.28 2010·2015 CESTAT
Act, 1994 2015 .. July (Appeal)
(Note-t) 2017

------
The Finance Tax 4.98 Oct12- Cornmlsslone
Act, 1994 June17 r

--------
CGSTAct Tax 2.95 2020-21 Commisslone

r- Appeal
1-" ..

Haryana VAT Tax 3.87 2014·15 to Commissione
2016·17 r- Appeal

- --
Note-t: NetofRs.1.13 crorespaid.

(Viii) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basisof ourexamination
of the records of the Company, the Company hasnotsurrendered or disclosed anytransactions,
prevlously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(lx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basisof our examination
of the racords of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans and
borrowing or in the paymentof interestthereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations givento us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any
bankor financial institution or government or government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the Company
hasnot obtained any term loansduringthe year, Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(c) of theOrder is not
applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examlnatlon of the
balance sheet of the Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been
used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
standalone financial statements of the Company, we reportthatthe Company hasnot taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
associates or joint ventures as defined underthe Act,

(f) According to the information and explanations givento us and procedures performed by us, we
reportthat the Companyhas not raised loansduringthe year on thepiedgeof securities held in
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Financial
Statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

its subsldlaries. joint ventures or associate companies (as defined under the Act),

(x) (a) The Company has not ralsed any moneys by way of initial public offer or further pubtic offer
(including debtinstruments). Accordingly. clause 3(x)(a) ofthe Order Isnot applicable.

(g) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of tha records of tha Company, the Company has made private placement of equity shares
during the year. In our opinion, in respectof private placement of equity shares made during the
year, the Company hasdulycomplied with therequirements of Section 42 andSection 62of the
Act. The proceeds from Issue of equityshares have been used lor the purposes for which the
lunds wereraised,

(xi) (a) Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the
information and explanations given to \IS, no fraud by the Company or on the Company has
been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

(b) According to the Information and explanations given to us, no report undersub-section (12) of
Section 143of the Act has been flied by the auditors In Form ADT-4 as prescribed underRule
13 of the Companies (Audit andAuditors) RUles, 2014with the Oentral Government.

(0) Wehavetaken Intoconsideration thewhistle blowercomplaints received bytheCompany during
the yearwhiledetermining the nature. timing and extent of our auditprocedures.

(xll) According to theInformation and explanations given tous,theCompany isnota Nidhi Company,
Accordingly, clause 3(Xii) of the OrderIs notapplicable.

(xlil) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the transactions
with related parties are in compliance with Section 177and 188 of the Act. where applicable,
andthe details of the related party transactions havebeen disclosed In thestandalone financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(XiV) (a) Based on information andexplanations provided to us andourauditprocedures, in ouropinion,
the Company has an Internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) We have considered the Internal audit reports Of the Company Issued till date for the period
underaudit.

(xv) In our optnlon and according to the information and explanations giVen to us. the Company has
notentered intoanynon-cash transaotlorrs withItsdirectors or persons connected to Itsdirectors
and hence, provisions of Section 192of the.Act are not appllc~ble to the Company.

(XVi) (a) TheCompany is not requlred to be registered underSection 46-IAof the Reserve Bankof india
Act, 1934. Accordingly. clause 3(xvl)(a) of the Order Is not applicable.

(b) TheCompany is not required to be registered underSection 45-IAof the Reserve Bankof India
Act, 1934.Accordingly, clause 3(xvl)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is not a Cor" Investment Company (CIC) as defined In the regulations made by
the Reserve Bankof India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c.) of the Orderis not applicable.

(d) Accolding to the Information and explanations provided to us, the Group (asper the provisions
of the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) has morethan one CIC
as part of the Group. The Group has five CIOs which are registered with the Reserve Bankof
india andone elC whichis. not required to be registered with the Reserve Bankof India,

(xvli) The Company has not incurred cash losses In the current and in the Immediately preceding
financial year,

(XViii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause
3(xvlii) of the Orderis not applicable,
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Hnanclal
Statements of rata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

(xlx) We draw attention to Note 1(b) to the standalone financial statements which explains that the
Company has incurred losses in current yearand previous yearandhasaccumulated losses as
at 31 March 2023, Further, the Company's current assets exceed its current llabiltles as at 31
March 2023 by Rs. 182,24 crore. On the basis of the above and according to the information
andexplanations given to us, on the basisof the financial ratios, ageing and expected datesof
reallsatlon of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the standalonefinaneiai statements, ourknowiedge of theBoard of Directors and
management plansand based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
existsas on the dateot the auditreport thatthe Company is notcapable ofmeeting its liabilities
existing at the dateof balance sheetas and when theyfall due within a period of oneyear from
the balance sheet.date, We,however, statethatthis is not anassurance as tothe future viability
of the Company, We further state that our reporting is based onthe facts up to the date of the
audit reportand we neithergive any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due
within a period of oneyear fromthe balance sheetdate,will get discharged by the Company as
andwhen they fall due .

(xx) Inouropinion andaccording tothe information andexpianatlons givento us,thereis nounspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses 3(xx)(a) and3(xx)(b) of the Orderare not applicable,

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chariered Accountem«

Firm's Registration No,:101248W/W-100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

~~
Farhad Bam]1

Pariner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAi UDIN:23105234BGXDX08228
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B S R & Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone financial
statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone
financial statements under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143of the Act

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(g) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controis with reference to financial statements of Tata Housing
Development Companylimited ("the Company") as of 31 March2023 Inconjunction Wltll our auditof the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, In all material respects, adequate Internal financial controls witl1
reference to financial statements and such Internal financial controls were operating effectively as at
31 March2023, based on the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essentlal components of Internal control stated ln the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the "GUidance Note").

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Il'lternal Financial Controls

The Company's Management and the Boardof Directors are responslble for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of Internal control stated in the
Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficientconduct of
Itsbusiness, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as requiredunder the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company's Internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance With the Guidance Note
and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the
Guldahce Note require thatwe complywith ethical requirements and plan and perform Ille audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to flnanclal
statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively In ,all material
respects.

Our audit involves perforrnlnq procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controis with reference to financial .statementa included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The proceduresselectee depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of tile risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficientand appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's Internal financial controlswith reference to financial statements.

Page 1:' of 1e.



B S R &Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the standalone financial
statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financiailltatements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financlal statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes In accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's Internal financial controls with reference to flnancialstatements Include those
policiesandprocedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting princlples, and that receipts and
expenditures Of the company are beingmadeonly in accordance with authorisations of management and
directorsof the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, ordisposition of the company's assetsthat could have a material effect
On tile standalone financial statements.

Inherent limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal flnanclal controls with reference to financial statements,
including thepossibility of collusionor impropermanagement overrideof controls, meterial misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internel
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internel financial controls with reference to financial statements may become Inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degreeof compliance with the policies or procedures maydeteriorate.

For B S R & Co. lLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.:1 01248WIW-1 00022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

Farhad Bamji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDX08228
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet
as at 31 March 2023

('f in crores)
Particulars Note

No 31 Man'h 20B 31 March 2022

CU''I'<:m1 Assets
(a) Inventories 7
(b) Financial assets

i. Investments 8(a)
ii.Trade receivables 8(b)
iii. Cash and cash equivalents S(c)
iv, Bank balances other jhan (iii) above Sed)
v. Loans 8(e)
vi. Other financial assets 3(t)

[c] Other current assets 9
Total Curl'llllt Assets
Total Assets

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets

(a) Properly, Plant and Equipment 3(a)
(b) Rlghtof'use asset 3(1)
(e) Intangibleasset 3(b)
(d) Intangible Assets under development 3(c)
(e) Financial assets

r. Investments 4(a)
il. Loans 4(b)
iii. OtherfinMcialassets 4{c)

(I) Other tax assets (net) 6 (c)
(g) Deferred tex assets (net) 6 (d)
(h) Other non-current assets 5

Total Non-Current Assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital 10
(b) Ojher equity II

Total Equity

LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities

(a) Financialliabilities
i. Borrowings 12{a)
ii. Lease liabilities
iii. Trade payablea

It tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 12(b)

iv. Other financialliabilities 12(c)
Total Non-Current Liabilities

4,85 6,50

8.73 11.38
5.74 5.21
0.47 2.79

990.37 1.056,68
1,417,76 1,596.01

0.16
58.46 115,60

6.42 8,55
8,39 55,83

2,501.35 2,858.55

2,161.04 2.385.02

0.24 0.24
51.85 67.63

144,28 154.28
8.05 0,01

47.26 52.44
88.97 90,69

46.07 82,77
2,547.76 2,833,08
5,04U1 5 691.63

1,280,97 1,098.49
778.70 944.24

2,059,67 2042,73

608.50 755,07
9.36 11.34

5.52 5.77
0,54 0.54

623.92 772.72

1,704.13 1,922.87
2,03 1,84

646.50
7.28

254.42
43.27

2876.18
3,648.90

----~

473.69
59.62
66.64
59.41

2,365,52
2,989.44
5.049.11

D(c)
14
15

D(a)

B(b)

Cunen! Liabilities
(a) Pinencialliabilities

i. Borrowings
it. Lease liabilities
iii, Trade payebles

a, total outstllllding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b. total outstanding dues of creditors other thlUl micro enterprises and small enterprises

iv, Other financinlliubilines
(It) Other currentliabilities
(c) Provisions

Total Current Liabilities
Tolal Uabililies

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes I to 43 ere an integral part of the standalone financial statements

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm'sRegistration No: 1'I1248W/w-l00022

~
Fnrhad Bnmji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

For and 011 behalf orthe Board ofDireclors of
Tat" Housing Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300.MH1942PLC003573

\ LU:t

Sanjay Dutt
MalJagilJg Direclor& C.E.O

DIN No: 05251670==r;r: ..
Ritesh Kllmdnr

CvmpanySecretary
Membership No: A20154

Place: Mumhai
Date: 18 May 2023 Date: 18.May 2023



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Standalone Statement of profit and loss
for the year ended 31 March2023

Particulars

INCOME
Revenue from Operations

Other Income
Total Income

(~in crores)

Note For the year ended Fortheyear
ended

No 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

16 381.32 494.23
17 365.75 348.19

747.07 842.42

Impairment of Loans given and investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures 23

EXPENSES
Cost ofMaterials Consumed
Changes in inventories of Finished goods and project work-in-progress

Employee Benefits Expense

Finance Costs
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

Other Expenses

Total Expenses

Profit before Impairment of Loans given and investment in subeldiartes
and joint ventures

Loss before tax

Tax expense:
Current tax

Deferred tax Charge

Loss for the year

Othcr Comprehensive Income/(Loss)

Items that will not be rcclasslfled to proflt or loss:
Rerueesurements of post-employment benefit obligations

Income tax on the above

Other Comprehensive (Loss)lProfit for tlte year, net of tax

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year

Earnings per share:
Basic and diluted earnings per share (face value on 10/-each) (In ~)

IS,

ISb

19
20
21
22

6 (a)

30

25

20,71 69.49
220,09 269.16

61.54 64.24
176,01 255.67

8.84 6.42
175.38 98.02

662.57 763.00

84.50 79.42

557.40 83.72

(472.90) (430)

10.10

2.14 4,02
12.24 4,02

(485.14) (8.32)

2.09 (137)
0.34

2.09 (1.03)

(483.05) (9.35)

(4.06) (0.09)

Summary of significant accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes 1 to 43 are an integral part of the standalone financial statements

ForBSR&Co,LLP

Chartered accountants
Finn's Registration No: 101248W!W·100022

For and on behalf of rhe Board cr Dlrectors of
Tarn Housing Development Company Limited

eIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

~MANV~\~,:~~I:J
DIN: 0012002~

Date: 18 May 2023

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director & C.E.O

DIN No: 05251670

~
~

Compan), Sucre/my

Membership No: AZOl54



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Standalone Cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars
Year Ended

31 March 2023

(~in crores)

Year Ended

31 March 2022

B

A.

B.

Cash flow from Operating Activities

Loss before tax

Adjustments for:-

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss !(Profit) on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations

Contingencies Costs

Impairment of Loans given and investment in subsidiaries and joint
ventures

Impairment of advances and receivables

Impact ofNRV on inventory

Interest Income on financial assets at amortised cost

Interest 011Income Tax refund

Dividend Income from investments measured at fair value through profit and loss

Gain on sale of current investments
Guarantee Commission

Finance Costs

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for changes in working capital'­

(Increase) in trade receivables

Decrease in Inventories

Decrease in Other financial assets, OdIeI' assets (current & non-current)

(Decrease) in trade payables, Other financial liabilities, Other liabilities and
provisions

Cash generated from Operating Activities
Income Taxes(Paid)lRefund (net)

Net Cash (used in)! generated from Operatlng Activities A

Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including Intangible Assets
Under Development)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Investments in subsidiaries and joint venture (net)
Loans granted

Repayment of Loans granted

Net proceeds from sale of investments-mutual funds

Guarantee Comnusaion

Fixed Deposits made

Interest received

Dividend received

Net Cash generated from Investing Activities

(472,90)

8,84
0,08

(15.06)

19.59

557.40

57.27

1.11
(333.73)

(5.14)

(0.01)

(0.69)

(0.92)

175.06

(9.10)

(191.12)
222,87

45,37

(119,46)

(51.44)

52.17

0.73

(2.82)

(38,39)

(332.15)

364.12

0.69
0,92

(8.20)

47.27
0.01

31.45

(4.30)

6.42

(0.08)
(3.56)

5.86

83.72

0.93

(337.13)

(3.00)
(0.01)

(0.90)
254,91

2.86

(112.91)

278.11

1.83

(79.28)

90.61
(18.79)

71.82

(5.98)

0.19

(21.25)
(633.48)

829.11

0.90

196.45

0.01

365.95

500.00

911.06
(1,233.60)

(309.30)

50.00
(100.00)

(0.53)

(249.70)
(432.04)

500.00

1,750.00

(2,350.00)

324.32

(1.81)

____":(2'i64:c.6~9) ~~~

____-'("'42"'.1"1.8) ----=='-c

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from issue of Share Capital (including Securities Premium)

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowinga

Proceeds frOIU IRepayment of working capital borrowings (net)

inter Corporate Deposits accepted
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid

Repayment of lease liability

Interest paid

Net Cash used in Financing Activities

c.

Net (decrease)!incrcase in Cash and Cash Eqnivalents (A) + (B) + (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of'the year

(10.00)

154.28

144.28

144.28

5.73

148.55
154,28

154.28

144.28 154.28



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Standalone Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2023

Notes:

(i) The above standalone Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard

(Ind AS) 7 ~ "Statement of Cash Flows",

(ii) Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with IND AS 7

Opening Balances

Long-team bon-owings
Short-term borrowings

Changes as per Statement of Cash Flow
Long-term borrowings

Short-term borrowings

Non cash changes

AccruedInterest

Closing Balances

Long-termbon-owings
Short-term borrowings

ForDSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants

Finn's Registration No: IOI248W/W·100022

(t in crores)
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

755.07 1,317.46

1,922.87 2,037.11

(146.57) (562.39)

(129.11) (119.45)

(89.63) 5.21

608.50 755.07

1,704.13 1,922.87

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Housing Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Furbad Bamji
Partner

Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

~tW\W~~'IiA~w-J-
Direcforgl'~ah\
DIN: 00120029

ID~m,
ChiefFinancial Officer

DIN: 10097434

Date: 18 May 2023

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Dtrector & CE.G

DIN No: 05251670

~
Ri:tcsh Kamdar

Company Secretary

Membership No: A20154



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Standalone statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 March 2023

A) Equity Share Capital
(if in CI'OI'eS)

Particulars Amounts

Balance as at I April 2021 915,34

Changes in equityshare capital due to prior period errors

Restated balance as at 1 April 2021 915.34
Changesin equity share capital during the year 183,15

Balnnce lISat 31 MardI 2022 1,098.49

Changes in equityshare capital dueto prior period errors

Restated balance as at I April 2022 1,098.49

Changes in equityshare capital during the year 182.48

Balance as at 31 March 2023 1,280.97

B) Other Equity
(~in croresj

Reserves and surplusPartlculnrs

Securities premium Gencl'nl
reserve

Total Comprehensive Income

Retained Total
earnings

TotalOlher
Equity

Balance IUat I April 2021 2,095.87 23.41 (1,482.55) (1,482.55) 636.73

Loss for the year (8.32) (8.32) (8.32)

Other comprehensiveloss for the year (net of taxes) (1.03) (L03) (1.03)

Securitypremium 011 issue of share capital during the year 316.85 316,85

Bal>\nrcas lit 31 March 2022 2,412.72 23.41 (1,491.90) (1,49t.90) 944.24

Balance as at 1 Aprll2022 2,412.72 23.41 (1,491.90) (1,491.90) 944.24

Loss for the year (485.14) (485.14) (485,14)

Other comprehensiveIncome for the year (net of taxes] 2.09 2,09 2,09

Securitypremium on issue of share capital during the year 317,52 317,52

Blllnnrc lISat 31 March 2023 2,730.24 23.41 (1,974.95) (1,974.9S) 778.70

The accompanying notes 1 to 43 arcan integral part of the standalonefinancial statements

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's RegistrationNo: 101248WffiQ00022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Housing Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300:MH1942PLC003573

Farhad Bamjl
Partner
Membership No: [05234

Place:Mumbai
Date: 18 May 2023

~VVIJ\JV~~~g,,~\;~~
Director lwat)
DIN: 00120029

Date: 18May 2023

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director & C.E.O

DIN No: 05251670

~---~esh Kamdar
Company Secretary

MembershipNo: A20154



Tata Housing Deveiopment Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

('I' in crores)

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

a. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
b. the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
c. the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company applies 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case ofloans and bon-owings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bon-owings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the Standalone
statement ofprofit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transactions costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the Standalone statement of
profit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled
or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different tenus, or the tenus of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the Standalone
statement ofprofit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
.<:,~~~~c~aJ.>~ssetsand financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
\'';f~~is.a..Slwently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to

cf;k.J<;I.~·iit~!<ij<thell!- o~ a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
l\~;;:~;:>\':::~\, '; j\

-I< \",,!••~qili.t?1n~~iments
q ..!~g,1fit~~(:: . ents are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue".
'h>-·...:> S~% x.\} Et 0",

''''rod Aee,c>: Y~-":~"
,::.--~ 0" \.0
-. "" \"2-..... "~\
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

('{ in crores)

i. Property, plant and equipment

Recognition & Measurement
Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalised borrowing
costs, less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises:

its purchase price, includes non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates.
any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

If significant parts ofan item ofproperty, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) ofproperty, plant and equipment. Any gain or loss
on disposal of an item ofproperty, plant and equipment is recognised in profit or loss.

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at
costs, comprising of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest.

Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefit associated
with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Disposals or retirement
Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recoguised
in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

j. Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual value

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method using the useful life as follows'
Assets Useful life --
Buildings 60 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Electrical Fittings 10 years
Motor Vehicles 8 years
Cellular Phones 2.5 vears

~.

Leasehold improvements are amortised over lease ofthe estimated useful life ofthe asset or the lease period.
The Lease period where the Company is lessee includes the periods where the Company has the unilateral
right to renew the lease and intends to do.

/,~c;J;:h\):,~~timated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
/.::~;;s::~~p§~iiiJ:Reriod, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.II: ?~ c':J'";):~:;;<:; \~

(( (~( %;'~:i;:ca~italJwd}k-in Progress

\~~);~;r;;~~~:::'. '::, " .;'>,/
'« //1,,,, "'),'\ ./.'
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Company is reflected as a distinct item in Capital Work­
in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment.

I. Intangible assets

Intangible assets purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Company amortises cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

m. Impairment ofproperty, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts of property, plant & equipment and intangible assets are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indications exists, the recover able amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An impairment loss is recoguised in the standalone Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recoguised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

n. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction proj ect / assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying construction project /
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project / capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
ofconstruction project / assets. Capitalisation ofborrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement
ofProfit and Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying construction
project! assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project / asset is an asset that necessarily takes
substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real estate properties
developed by the Company.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project / assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

o. Provisions and Contingencies

/ <'-p~~~s~are recoguised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
.f.,::>.. '. a palltey t, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate

(
'ci'/,,, ~an..•...b.e.'t,iili.; of the amount of the obligation. ~

\ ,;.""".,.,•. i ,,,,\ y\JHOP0

~:~~~~~~W) ik1~:~a'1'\ '%2~
~~t0rGd ~ef7 ~ L .;
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

p. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Company's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical benefits and
ex-directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, the effect ofthe changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset,
is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected innnediately in the retained earnings and not reclassified to
profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the standalone Statement of Profit or Loss in the
period of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to
the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This cost is
recognised as employee benefit expense in the standalone statement ofprofit and loss.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Company's contributions to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and employee's state
insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The Company is liable for
contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest
declared by the Central Govermnent under the Employees' Provident Fund Scheme, 1952 and
recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

/'f'JiV. ,Othe,rLong-term employee benefit obligations

f;;;;::['.·.'..·.· ·~.&•.'..· h...•..•......e.";Com.pany's oblig~tion towards other long term emplo~ee benefits in .theform .of comp~nsat.ed.
I ("I",' absences and long service awards are based on actuary valuation, The valuation is earned out usmg the
f.., ( ",,:','Fi6ject Unit Credit Method as per Iud AS 19 to determine the Present Value ofBenefit Obligations and
\ (>\:"'·,~;:,;;~~~~tel\lt!!~.Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost. 'i..\j't70~
'!.,.j "'V''''''''''.'.'''G'/.'';'/i ~<;)~~«'\
'~~~t;~iZS~i{~;?/' I M\JMB!'\ ;~I

~ tv );;
~b:J •.?/...~......-"
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

iii. Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service
are recognized in respect ofemployees' services up to the end ofthe reporting period and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

q. Dividends to eguity shareholders
Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the shareholders have the right to receive the dividend which in the case of interim
dividends are when these are declared by the Board of Directors of the Company and when these are
approved in the Annual General Meeting of the Company in any other case.

r. Segment Reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Company. The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Managing
Director & CEO of the Company.

s. Foreign Currency Transactions
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resnlting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation ofmonetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in standalone Statement ofProfit and Loss.

t. Operating cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle
determined in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III ofthe Companies Act, 2013.
The operating cycle of the Company is determined to be 12 months.

u. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions
and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period ofthe revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

a) Critical Judgements

ill the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following
judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial

,.-=""'",statements:

«-;~.:~,:~:,,'.',:,;;f~r,~::>,iscount rate used to determine the carrying amount
c- I \: .>,,:~< '"t ,-. \ Ii tici!" v";;<"" ,c'" ... olga IOn:

:~~



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.

ii. Contingences and commitments:
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other
claims against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of
crystallising or are very difficult to quantify reliably, the Company treats them as contingent
liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial
statements. Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal
proceedings, the Company does not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on fmancial
position or profitability.

iii. Classification of entities as subsidiaries and joint ventures:

A. Entities as subsidiaries with 50% voting rights

The management has concluded that the Company controls Technopolis Knowledge Park
Limited (TKPL), even though it holds only 50% of the voting rights of this subsidiary.
This is because the Company has control of composition of the Board of Directors of TKPL.
The Shareholder's agreement grants the right ofcasting vote to the chairman ofBoard, appointed
by the Company. This gives the Company the ability to direct relevant activities of TKPL
proving that the Company has control over TKPL.

B. Classification of joint ventures

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the
parties to the joint arrangement and the Company itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint
arrangement have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.
Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Company.
1. Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly known as Lemon Tree Land &

Developers Private Limited)
2. Kolkata-one Excelton Private Limited
3. Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP
4. One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP

The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by
one unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither ofthe parties have the practical
ability to direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent of both
parties. Hence the management has concluded that the Company does not have unilateral control
over these entities.

b) Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the

.""",::,::~::'."!m:ying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

1. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets (Refer note 4(a),4(b), 5,
8(b), 8(e), 8(t) & 9):
The Company makes impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets based
on an assessment of the recoverability, The identification of doubtful debts requires use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value ofthe other receivables and advances and impairment
expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed.

II. Valuation of deferred tax assets (refer note 6)
The Company review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting
period.

iii. Provision for customer compensation (refer not 32)
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect ofdelay
in handing over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial
year. Management makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and
taking into consideration past experiences.

iv, Net realisable value of inventory (refer note 7)
Management makes an estimate of the net realisable value of inventory based on expected
realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences/valuation reports.
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

3 (a) Property, plant and equipment
(tin oro"")

Building.
L.,,,.hold Infunn"liun

Tot011PARTICULARS (... rorfuolnuteii&
Impruv"",onl.

Mutor v.hld., om•• Equipment Om•• F1Irnltur. Toohnulugy EI•• trJ""IFlttlng.

"" Hor~..n ...

Yonl"colled 31 Mord,202J

G"". •• rl')"lng OJnullJll

B"J,nouas at 1 April2022 6.32 3.90 0,90 2.42 1.80 5.91 0.06 2UI

Addit;on.. 0.47 OM 0,42 1.\3

Dispo'al' 0.85 o.n O,lO 0,24 0.51 2,22

a"luo•• '" ot 31 Mor :t023 jAI (',32 3.05 0.59 2059 1.80 ~,82 0.06 20.23

Aecmnul"t.d d.p",ciution

Bolunc.os fil1April 2022 4,24 1.82 0.77 1.95 1.36 4,61 "00 i-r.at
D'p",.i"ti<llleXpt'll"_' duringthe yo" 0,10 l.ll 0,04 0.36 0.20 0,89 2,70

Di,pu"l, 0,85 0,28 0.29 0.23 0,49 0,00 2,14
n"lno« n, llt 31 MBr202J [BI 4.34 2.6S 6.53 2.02 1.33 5.61 0,06 15.l8

Noloarrylng an,ounl a' al31 Mllr202J [A_H] 1.9S 6.97 0,08 0.57 6.4(, 6.81 0.00 4.85

Yeor ended JI Mal"C1o 2022

Gro" onrl)'htg "mount
Bolunooa, .ll April 2021 c.rz 2.42 U7 2,3J 1.97 5.85 0,06 20.J2
Addition' 1.48 0,24 O,OJ 0,85 2M)
Di'po"l, DA7 0,]:> 11.2] 0.80 1.63
Balan« a, "I JIl\fun:h 2022 je] 6.12 3,90 0.90 2.42 1.80 5.91 0.06 21.29
Aecumlllalc,t deprcd"tion
B.l.tl.eo,,,t I Apri12021 4,13 U6 1.13 1.9.1 lAO 4.83 0.0:> ta.sa
Depreelollon .~p."'.' during 0", .yO"' o.u 0.46 G,07 0,16 0,14 0.54 G.DI ]A~

Dbpo,ab OA3 0.14 O,IH 0.76 1.51
Bnlonce n, "t31 Mnr<h 2622 lDl 4.24 1.82 0,77 1.95 i.36 4.61 0.06 14,80

Nel c""'Ying "mount '" "t31 M"r<h 2022 IC-DJ 2.08 1,08 O,t:> 0,48 0,42 1.18 (O.OU) 6.50

Note:

(i) Buildings include cost of 10 shares of ~ 50 each ill a Co-operative Housing Society ~ 500/- (As at 31 March 2022 '!" 500/_) !\J1d the cost of 400 shares of '!"IO each in Prebhadcvi Properties and Trading Co ud, ~

4,000/- (As at 31 March 2022 H,OOO/-).

(ii) Buildings include 2338 sq. ft. super built up area [Deemed Cast ~ 1.30 crores (As at 31 March 2022 '!" 1,30 crore~)l on the 4th floor in the building known as Eruchshaw Building, Mumbai by virtue of Agreement
dated 23 November 1999 dilly executed between the Owner and the Company. TI,e conveyance deed is yel to be executed in the name of the Company, however. the Company IS in possession of this area !\J1d is
paying the requisite maintenance charges to the owner

---
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continned)
as at 31 March 2023

3 (b) Intangible assets

Particulars

Year ended 31 Mar 2023

Gross carrying amount
Balanceas at 1 April 2022
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at 31 Mar 2023 fA]

Accumulated amortfzaticn
Balanceas at 1 April 2022
Depreciation& Amortizationexpensesduring the year
Disposals
Balance as at 31 Mar 2023 (B]

Net carrying amount as at 31 Mar 2023 fA.B\

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount
Balanceas at 1 April 2021
Additions
Balance as at 31 March, 2022!C]
Accumulated amortization
Balanceas at 1 April, 2021
Amortizationexpensesduringthe year
Balance as at 31 March 2022 IDj

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022IC~D]

3 (c) Intangible assets under Development

Particulars

Year ended 31 Mar 2023

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2022
Additions
Transfer to assets
Balance as at 31 1\'Iar2023 fAI

Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amouut
Balance as at 1 April 2021
Additions
Transfer to assets
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 (B]

(f in crores)

Computer software

19.74
4.01
3.63

20.12

14.53
3.48
3.63

14.38

5.74

16.89
2,85

19.74

11.42
3.11

14.53

5.21

Intangible assets
under development

2.79
0.38
2.70
0,47

2.26
1.81
1.28
2.79



Tata Housing Development Compauy Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

Note 3 (d ): Intangible assets under development

3.1 (a) Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March 2023
(f in crores)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in Intangibleassets under developmentfor a period of Total

Less than 1year 1~2Years 2·3 Years More than 3
Years

i, Projects in progress 0.35 0,12 - - 0.47

ii. Projects temporarilysuspended -

3.1 (b) Intangible assets under development ageing schedule as on 31 March 2022
(f in crores)

Sr. No. Particulars Amount in Intangibleassets under developmentfor a period of Total

Less than 1 year 1·2Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years

I, Projects in progress 1.81 0.28 0.70 - 2,79

ii. Projects temporarily suspended - -

Note 3 (e): Immovable properties not held in the name of the Company
(f in crores)

Whether title deed
holder is a

Relevant line
promoter,

Property
Reason for not

item in the
Description of item of Gross carrying Title deeds held Director,

held since
being held in the

Balance Sheet
properties value in the name of Relative of

date
name of

promoter/Dlrecter, company
employee of
promoter/Director

Property, plant Buildings-Office Space at 2.27 Dr. (Miss) No 29-Jun-94 The Company is
and equipment Eruchshaw Building, Mumbai Avimay Sohrab in the

Hakim process of
registering the
title deeds in the
Company's name.
There
are 110 disputes.
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

3 (f) Right of use asset

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2023

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 Apri12022
Additions
Balance as at 31 March 2023 rAJ

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April, 2022
Depreciation expenses during the year
Balance as at 31 March 2023 [D]

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 [C-D]

Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April 2021
Additions
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [C]

Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at 1 April, 2021
Depreciation expenses during the year
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [C]

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [C~D]

({ in crores)

Right to use asset

14.25

14.25

2.86
2.66
5.52

8.73

6.80
7.45

14.25

1.04
1.82
2.86

11.39
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
ae al31 March 2023

Particulars

4 (a) Investments - Non-current

Asat
31 March 2023

(II"In crotes)
As at

31 March 2022

(Al Fully paid-up unquoted equity instruments
(i) In ~ubsidinry companies measured at cost less impairment (Refer Note 37)

Concept Developer& Leasing Limited (formerlyknown as Concept Marketingand Advertising
Limited)
5,000 (As at 31 March 2022 : 5,000) Equity Sharesof~ 100!. each

Tata Value HomesLimited
800,000,000 (As at 31 March 2022 ' 800,000,000)Equity Shares of ~ 10/- each
Less:Prevision for impairment

ApexRealty PrivateLimited
6,500 (As at 31 March 2022: 6,500) Equity Shares of MaldivianRuflyaa 10/- each

KridayRealty Private Limited
10,000(As at 31 March 2022 : 10,000)Equity Shares of~ 10/- each
Less: Provision for impairment

Promont Hillside Private Limited
10,000(As at 31 March 2022: 10,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/. each
Less:Provision for impairment

World-OneDevelopment CompanyPte. Limited
2,474,421 (As at 31 March 2022: 2,474,421) EquityShares of SOD 1/. each
Less:Provision [or impairment

TechnopolisKnowledge Park Limited
1,810,000(As at 31 March2022 : 1,810,000)Equity Shares oH 10/- each
Less: Provision for impairment

SynergizersSustainable Foundation
ISO (As at 31 March 2022 : 150)Equity Shares of~ 10/. each

0.88 0.88

800.00 800.00

(33J.1JO) (120.11)

t},06 0.06

0.01 0.01

(0,01) (0,01)

0.01 0,01

(0.01) (0.01)

10.90 10.90

(10.90) (10.90)

1,81 1.81

(1,81) (L8I)

PrincetonInfrastructurePrivate Limited
2,547,550 (As at 31 March 2022 : 2,547,550)Equity Shares ofZ 10/. each
Less:Provision for Impairment

Promont HilltopPrivate Limited
4,500,000 (As at 31 March 2022' 4,500,000) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each

ArdentProperties Private Limited (w.e.f 17 June 2022)**
536,841 (As at31 March 2022 : Nil ) Equity Shares oH lOt·each

Smart Value Homes (New Project) LLP

30.08

(30.08)

95.44

77,88

30,08

(30.08)

95.44

(ii) In joint ventures measured at cost less impainnCllt
ArdentPropertiesPrivate Limited U

Nil (As at 31 March 2022 : 99,200) Equity Shares o[~ 10/- each
Less: Provision for impairment

Sector113 GatevidaDevelopers Private Limited (fonnerly known as Lemon Tree Land
& Developers Private Limited)
12,750(As at 31 March 2022 12,750)Equity Shares of{ 10/- each
Less:Provision for impainnent

Kolkata-OncExcelton PrivateLimited
5,100 (As at 31 March 2022 : 5,100) Equity Shares of~ 10/- each

OneBangalcre Luxury Projects LLP

0.01

(0.01)

0.01

158,02

40.90

(40.90)

0.01

(0,01)

0.01

159.22



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone fillallchll stetemenn {Continued)

as at 31 March 1013

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

(II:in ereres)
Asat

31 March 2022

4 (a) Inveatments > Non-current (Contil/llcd)

(ii) In [oint veutmes mensnred at cost less impairment (Refer Note 37)

Sohna City LLP

Less: Provision for impairment

131.39
(29.68)

128,79

(71.35)

(8) Fully paid-up unquoted Debt lllstruments

(i) In others - at Fail' Value through Profit aud loss (Refer Note 37)

Ardent Properties Private Limited

13,368,421 (As at 31 March 2022: 13,368,421) Series A Compulsorily Convertible

Debentures of~IO/. each carry a coupon of 16.7% with tenure of 15 years

48,345,864 (As at 31 March 2022: 48,345,864) Series B & C Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures ofn 0/- each carry a coupon of 16.7% with tenure of30 years

18,255,601 (As at 31 March 2022: 18,255,601) Series D Compulsorily Convertible
Debentures of~l 0/- each carry a coupon of 0.00001 % with tenure of30 years

(C) In Preference Shares (partly paid-up) - at amortised cost

Ornate Housing Private Limited

200,000 (As at 31 March 2022 : 200,000) 11% Redeemable, Cumulative, Non-participating,
Non-convertiblePreference Shores of~ 101_ each, ~ 2.50/- each paid-up

8.46 6.44

76.09 48,84

4,77 8.41

0.05 0.05

990,:n 1056.68

*+ During the year, the Company has acquired additional stake in "Ardent Properties Private Limited" consequent to which it has become a

fully owned subsidiary w.e.f17June2022

1,331.86
(275,18)

1 056,68

1,395.87

:===j(4~O~5~.5tO) :===~~:jf:99037

Aggregate amount of quoted investments and market value thereof

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount ofimpairment

Amount below ~ 50,000 are denoted by "".

Impairmcllt testing:
Each investment held at cost is recognised as a separate CGV.
The recoverable mnolmt of the CGUs was based on its value in use, determined by disco\mting the futurecash flows to be generated from the

continuing use of the CGV

The cash flow projections included specific estimates for the iife ufthe projectranging from three to five years,

Tab Value Homes Limited

The carrying amount of the CGU was determined to be higher than its recoverable amount ofINR 467 crores unci an impairment loss ofINR
213 crcres during 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: INR Nil crorea) was recognised

The key assumptions used in thc estimation of the recuverable amount are set out as below. The values assigned to the key assumptions
represent management's assessment of sales collection and inflow from exit projects, relevant expenditure, estimated tax liability and interest

cost.

(Inpercent) As at As at

3 J March2023 31 March 2022

Discount rote 18.10 17,50

Tenninal value growth rote 2.GO 2,00

The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the cost of equity and after considering business risk premium

Following the impainnent loss recognised in the CGD, the recoverable amount was equal to the carrying amount. Therefore, ooy adverse
movement in a key assumption would load to further impairment.

Promenr Hilltop Private Limited

The carrying amount of the CGU was determined to be lower thM its recoverable amount ofINR 154 crores and accordingly, no impairment
loss was recognised, (31 March 2022: INR Nii crores)

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out as below, The values assigned to the key assumptions
represent management's assessment of sales collection and inflow from exit projects, relevMI expenditure. estilnated tax liability and interest

cost.

(In percent) As at As at

3 i March 2023 31 March 2022

Discount rate 13.00 13,00

As at

31 March 2022
71.20

As 'I!
31 March 2023

26.20

The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the cost ofequity and after considering business risk premium

The foHowing table shows the amount by which the assumptions would need to change for the estimated recoverable amount to be equal to

,.""".O""""~,tl!O
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Nates to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

Pm'liculars Asat

31 March 2023

(f in crores)
As at

31 March 2022

Ardent Properties Private Limited

TIle carrying amount of the eGU was determined 10be lower than its recoverable amount of1NR 48, 10 crores and accordingly, impairment
loss recognised earlier ofINR 40.90 crores was reversed. (31 March 2022: 1NR Nll orores). During the year, occupancy certificate for this
project has been received and accordingly, impairment loss is reversed

The key assumptions used in the estimation of the recoverable amount are set out as below, The values assigned to the key assumptions

represent management's assessment of sales collection and inflow from exit projects, relevant expenditure, estimated tax liability and interest
cost

(In percent) Asa!

31 March 2023
k"

31 March 2022

Discount rate 18,00

k"
31 March 2022
N.A

Asat

3 I March 2023

18.69

The discount rate was a post-tax measure estimated based on the cost ofequity and after considering business risk premium

The following table shows the amount by which the assumption wouldneed 10change individually for the estimated recoverable amount to be
equal to the carrying amount

(In percent)

Discount rate

Sohnll City LLP

Tbe recoverable amount of this eGU was based on the market value of land. The value of the land has been assessed based on comparison

withsimilar properties that have actually been sold in an arm-length transaction or are offered for sale in ihe subject micro-market. Approval
costs and cousnucnons costs were added to the land comparable value, The carrying amount of the CGU was determined to be lower than its
recoverable amount of INR 151 crcrca and accordingly, impairment loss earlier recognised to the tune of 1NR 41.67 crcres was reversed (3 I
March 2022: INR Nil orores).

4 (b) Loans - Non-current

(unsecured, considered good)

Inter_Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 3 I ,2 & note 8(e)

Interest income receivable (refer note 31.2 & note 8(e)

1,369,57

48.19

1,555,81

40.20

1,066.54
(1,066,54)

1,496,87

___",11",4,," ,..',.,.' ) ---=="'-

(unsecured, considered douhtful)

Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 3 1.2 & note 8(e))

Less: Provision for Impairment

1,417.76 1,596,01

4 (c) Other finandal assets - Nen-eurreur
Balance with bank in fixed deposits, with maturity beyond 12 months 0.16

0,16

Otber non-current assets
(\lllsecured, considered good)

Deposit with Government Authorities

Security Deposits

Advance for projects

(unsecured, considered good)

Advance for projects

0.13

1.08

7,t8

O,D
1.08

54,62

(unsecured, considered doubtful)

Advance for projects

Less: Provision for Impairment

68,63

(68,63)

8,39

30.87

(30.87)

55.83



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

Particulars

6 Income tax

[a] Income tax expense
Current tax
Currenttax on profitsfor theyear
Adjustmentsfor current tax of prior periods
Total current tax expense/(credit)

Deferred Tax (including MAT credit)

Decrease in deferredtax assets
Total deferred tax expense
Income tax expense

As at
31 March 2023'

10,10

10.10

2,13
2,13

12,23

(f in crores)

Asat
31 March 2022

4.02
4.02
4.02

(b) The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at statutory income tax rate to income tax
expense reported in statement of profit and loss is as follows:
Lossbeforetax
Statutory income tax rate
Expected incometax expense
Differences due to:

Expenses not deductiblefor tax purposes (CSR Expenses)
Notional Income from House Property not provided in books
DTA not created on carry forward loss
DTA not created on current year impairment provisions
Others
Total income tax expense

(c) Income tax assets
• Tax deducted at source [net of provisions ~ 94.97 crores (As at 31 March 2022
~ 87.87 crares)]

Particulars

(472.90) (430)
25,17% 25.17%

(119.03) (1.08)

1.02 0.20
2,83 (0.92)

140.30 18.15
(22.98) (1233)
12,23 4.02

58.46 115.60

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(d) Deferred Tax Assets (net)
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Deferred income tax assets
Difference between book balance and tax balance of Properly, plant and equipment
Impact ofInd AS 115

Provision for employees benefits expenses
Total deferred tax assets

Deferred income tax liabilities
Difference in method of computation of profit between books and tax
Interest included in Inventories
Other items
Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets I (liabilities) (net)

2.15
2.46
1$1
6.42

6.42

2,35

6.23

(0.03)
8.55

8.55



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

6 Income tax (Continued)

(,j Movements in deferred tax assets
MATcl'edit Property, plant Ind AS 115 Defined benefit

entitlement and equipment obligation

At 1 A\Jril2021 2.30 10.30 (0.37)

{Charged)/credited

• to profit or loss 0,05 (4.07)

- to other comprehensive income 0,34

At 31l\'Ial'ch 2022 2,35 6.23 (0,03)

(Clmrgedj/credited

- to profit or loss (0.20) (3.77) 1.84

• to othercomprehensive income

At 31 Mllrch 2023 2.15 2.46 1.81

Impairment
Provisions

(~ in crores)
Total

12.23

(4.02)

0.34

8.55

(2,13)

6.42



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 MW'ch2(J23

Particulars

7 Inventories

(finCI'(II'eS)

As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March2022

ConstructionMaterials
Finished Goods
Constructionwork-in-progress

5.36
222,81

1,932.87
2.161.04

5,68
324,69

2.054.65
2385.Q2

Nates:
7.1 Disclosure with respect to inventorieswhichare expected to be recoveredafter more than twelvemonthsnre not providedas it is practicallynot feasibleto disclose

the sameconsidering the nature of the industryin whichthe Companyoperates

7.2 TIlecost of'inventories recognisedusan e;;:pense during the year in respect of continuingoperationswas ~ 240,8 crotes (for the year ended 31 March2022
324,28 crores)

7.3 Refernote 12(a)and 13(a) inrespect of above mentionedinventoryunderlien

7.4 Duringthe year, the Complllly hus written d01,',ll inventoriesto the extent on 1,II crores (3\ March2022 : ~ 0,g3 crcres)

Particulars

8 (a) Investments - current

(f in crores)

As at As at
3\ March 2023 3\ March2022

Investments in Mutual Funds -uuqueted _at Fair Value Through Profit
and Loss
204,042,259Units (As at 31 March2022 : 204,042.259Units) ofBirla Sun Life- Short
Term Fund- MonthlyDividend - RegularPlan -Payoutoff 10 each

0.24 0.24

8 (b) Trade receivables
0.24 0.24

Unsecured, consideredgood (refernote 31.2)

Creditimpaired
Less- Loss allowance

51.85

16.93
06.93)

67.63

51.85 67,63

Particulars Outstandi for fbllowi ertodsfrom due date of transactionus on 31-03-2023
Less thnn6 c mcuths -1 l-z ycnrs 2-3 years More then 3 years TotuJ
months year

(a) Trade Receivables consideredgood , Secured;
(Il)Trade Receivables consideredgood - Unsecured; 18.96 9.64 12.78 5.57 4,90 51.85
(c) Trade Receivables whichhave £ignilicanl Increasein
CreditRisk; ,md
(d) Trade Receivables _credit impaired
(e) TrudeReceivables consideredDo\\btful • Unsecured:

Particulars Outstandin for fullowin enods from due date oftrnnsaction nson 31-03-2022
Less thllll6 6 montts -t 1-2yeatS 2-3 years More thnn 3 years Totnl
months y"

(a) TradeReceivables consideredgood _Secured:
(b) Trade Receivables consideredgood - Unsecured; 28.06 14,11 5.88 1.31 18.27 67.63
(c) Trade Receivables whichhave ii!,'ll1flcllllt increosein
(d) Trade Receivnbles « credit impaired
(0) Trade Receivable.g consideredDoltbtful- Unsecured;

8 (c) Cash lind cash equivalents

Balanceswith Banks- in CurrentAcco\mts#
Depositswith originalmaturityofless than 3 months

Includesbalanceswith bunks- in RERA specified accounts,whichshallbe used only for specified purposesus dejlned under
RealEstate (RegulationnndDCI'elop'nenl) Act, 2016.

13.83 24.11
130.45 130.17
144.28 154,28

3.11 6.85



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

8 (d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(f In eroresj
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 Mnrch2022

Depositswith originalmaturitybetween3 to 12 months
Earmarked CurrentAccounts

8.04
0.01 0,01

8.05 O,OJ

8 (e) Lonna ~ current
(unsecured,consideredgood)
Inter-CorporateDeposits to related parties (refer note 3\,2 & note 4(b))

(unsecured,considereddoubtful)
tnter-corpomte Depositswith Others (refer note 31,2 & note 4(b))
Less:Loss allowance

47.26

1.16
(1.16)

52.44

[9.24
(19.24)

Detailsofloens or advancesrepayableon demand/whereno terms mentioned
47.26 52.44

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 Mnreh 2022
8,.

Particulars Amount of % to the lotal Amount of % ro the total
Nu, loans IAdv Loam and loans IAdv Loam and

outstanding Advances outstanding Advauces

('J Promoters
(8) Directors
(oj KMP,

~:) RelatedParties 2,914.63 100% 2,662.55 100%
e) Others

Totallolms Non Current 2,914.63 100% 2662,55 100%
(0) Promolers
(b) Directors
(0) KMP,
(d) RelatedParties 48.42 100% 52.44 100%
(,) Others 0%

Totalloans CuIT(!nt 48.42 100% 52,44 100%

8(Q Other financial assets • current
(unsecured.consideredgood)
Advancesrecoverablefrom related parties (refer note 31,2) 45.87 49,93
Advancesrecoverablefrom others 2&04 2M,54
Depositwith others 12.48 12,22
Reimbllisuble expensesfrom related purties(refer note 31,2) 2.08

(unsecured,considereddoubtfi.J1)
Contractuallyreimbursable expenses 10,31 10.31
LeS5: Provisionfor impllirment (10.31) (10.31)

Advancesrecoverable!reimbursable expenses fromrelutedparties 2.58
Less:Provisionfor impllirmenl (2.58)

88.97 !/0.69

9 Other current assets
(unsecured,consideredgood)
Advancefor projects 27.58 44,13
Depositwith others 0,0'1 0.08

Prepaidexpenses 0.97 21.50
Balanceswith governmentauthoril1es 17.44 17.06

(unsecured,considereddoubtful)
Advancefor projects 3.50 3.50
USB: Provisionfur impmrment (3,50) (3,50)

46.07 82,77



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at 3J March 2023

Particulars

10 Equity Share Capital

Authorised
2000,000,000 (As at 31 March 2022 : 2,000,000,000) Ordinary Shares of <' 10/" each

Issued, Subscribed lind fully Paid-up
1,280,969,842 (As at 31 March 2022: 1,098,488,091) Ordinary Shares on 10!· each

As at
31 March 2023

2,000,00

1,280.97

l.280.97

(~in crcres)
As at

31 March 2022

2,000.00

1,098.49

1 098.49

10.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstanding at the beginning lind at Ihe end of the Year:

l.'''rtleul"r~ A. "t 31 Mllr<b 2023 A. "I 31 Mor~h 2022

NumberOf ~ In oror•• Numl>erOf ,inewf'"
Sh"... Shure.

At theBeginningof fullYe" I,098,4aS,1I91 1,098.49 915,337,908 915.34

J~.uod during the ye,r "n' rights bu"i, 182,4Bl,751 182..48 183,150,183 18:1.15

Oul,lllmUng llt til. Eml of tile Y""r 1,280,%9,~42 1,280.97 lmS,4K8,091 l,09S.49

to,2 Rights, preferences lind restrictions attached to equity shares: The ordinery shares rank pari·passu, having voting rights and are subject to
preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the
Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their sbarehcldings, in the event of liquidation. Each shareholder is entitled to

one vote per share held The Dividend proposed by Board of Directors is subject to the approval of shareholder's in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting

10.3 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash, issues as bonus shares and I or shares bought back during the immediately preceding 5 year~ - None

lOA Shares held by Holding Company and its subsidiary:

729,867,398 (As at 3 I March 2022 729,867,398) [including 98 shares held jointly] Ordinary shares are held by the Holding Company, Tata Sons

Private Limited.
550,817,119 (As at 3 I March 2022 368,335,368) Ordinary Shares are held by Tata Really & Infrastructure Limited, a Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private

Limited
284,338 (A~ at 31 March 2022 : 284,338) Ordinary Shares are held by Tata Industries Limited, a Subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited

10.5 Details ufOrdinal'y Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% or Ordlnary Shares in the Company:

Partlo,~a" A, lIt 31M"ro1l20lJ As «n Maffih2022

T"t" SonsPrivale Limit.d

(OrdinllJYSh,re,;on 10""oil)

To!"Realty & InfrnstruclureLimited

10.6 Details of Shares held by promoters as at 31 March 2023

NmnhcrOf
Sh"ro.•

729,867,398

550,817,11'1

% Holding

56.98%

~J,IJII%

Numb<rOr
Sh,res

% Holding

66.44%

3353%

Promoter name
Sh"re.•held 11,. promoter.•al 31.03.2023 SIl"t'<" hold h,. promote" lIt 31.03.2022

% Ch"ug" during th. )'e"r
No. of Sh"ro. % ortol"l,h"ro. No.ofSh"re, % oftollll.h"ro'

1',1. S~n, Prj"..to Limiled 729.861.398 %.9WV. 729.8157.398 66A4% _9.'17%

1'"1. Re.1ty & lnfro,tll.leture Limited 550.817.1 19 43.00% 368.335.368 33.53% 947%

T"lo Indu.trie, Limiled 284,338 0,02% 284,338 0.03% 000%

Total 1,2lI0,9GS,N5S 100.00% 1,0~N,4N7,104 InO.OO%

Details of Shares hcld by promoters As at 31 March 2022

Prom"t.r "am.
Sh"re, ""ld h)' promotor, "t 3\.(l3.2022

No.ofSharo. % "ftut.] ,h.""
Share.' held I,.v promot....t 31.03.2021

No.ofSh.,... %oflot.!.h"",.
% C]"",gc during tho ye"r

T.!" S""" PrivaleLimited

Ta!. Really& h,fr",lrltolureLimilccl

To!" Indu,iri"" LimilOO

Tota]

72'i,867,198 6644% 729,867.398 79,74%

368,335,36& 3353% 185,185,185 2023%

284,338 0,03% 284,338 0,03%

1,09S,487,104 100.00% 915,336,921 100.00%

-13.29%

1330%

.Q,Ol%



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as at Bl March 2023

Parflculars

11 Other Equity

i Securities Premium
ii GeneralReserve

iii Retainedearnings
iv Other comprehensive income

i Securities Premium
As per last BalanceSheet
Add:Premiumon sharesissuedduringthe year

Closing Balance

U General Reserve

iii Retained earnings
As per last BalanceSheet
Add: (Loss) for the year
Closing Balance

iv Other comprehensive income
Employee benefit cbligatiuns
Openingbalance
Add I (Less)
Other comprehensive income'(loas) arisingfrom remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations, net of tax

Closing balance

As at
31 March 2023

2,730.24
23.41

(1,977.19)
2.24

778.70

2,412.72
317.52

2,730.24

23.41

(1,492.05)
(485.14)

(1,977.19)

0.15

2.09

2.24

778.70

('I' in crores)
As at

31 March 2022

2,412.72
23.41

(1,492.05)
0,15

944,24

2,095.87
316.85

2.412.72

23.41

(1,483.73)
(8.32)

(1,492.os)

1.18

(1.03)

0.15

944,23

Nature and purpose of reserves
1 Securities premium account

Securities premium account represents the premium on issue of shares. The account is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the CompaniesAct,
2013.

ll General reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purpose. As the general reserve is created by
transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

iii Retained earnings

Retained earnings arc the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, debenture redemption reserve, dividends
or other distributions paid to shareholders
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as al31 March 2023

12 (a) Borrowings- Non-current
(1'1"<1'01''')

socu"d_.'.mOl·tI,.d'"''''
(.) D,b,n"' ...'· N""_CIll....,t1bl. R.d'<l".blo(",r..'"e,.11.1 bol"",)

5000 (A"t) 1 M"eh 2022 , 5MO), 5,75% (P,Y 8,00 % )- D,h,ul'"'' on 1,000.000 ,,01

(Du" for l~d'J\lpliun 0' 06 Folml.ry 202J j". fillh, 'nd oflh,... y"", fro," tho ".to of
;""0)(,0["0'>1< 12.l(.)bolow)

SMO (A. ,t II M"eh l02l; SMO), 9·10 %_ D,b""",,.. off 1.000.000 ",h

(D". for «d,mpl;'""o 1~ M.y2023 1.0.,t th••nd ofth,., )'i'",from th, "filoof;"uo)

2000 (A, 'Ill M.,.,h l022, 2OUO), 0.10 %_ Dob.ol", .. ef~ 1.000.000 <finh

(0"" fo' rcd.mptloo on 19 Moy202l i,e.•t 11,0 ""ofth,oo l"o" from tk.d....f;"".)

(b) D.b.nt"" .. _Non-CIM,,...,ibl. Rodoom'hl'

6000 lA, 0' II Matoh.0.2,0).8,4& % _D"b,ulllrul off 1.000.000 ",,"h

(Du< fo,"domp'lou OIL 29 J,u 2026 l.o,fil Iho""dOf'h"'l",,,ftumth'dn'. ofi""o)

A,o,

J1 Mm'Ch202J

Lon~_t<rn' l"u''''n'
,""'ul'ld•• of

I01l(_'.,md.h',

SOU.DO

200.00

600,00

A",
II M,,,,h2022

Lon~-"nn C"nC1lI
momritie,o(]"ng­

t.rnld,bt,

500,00

500.00

200,00

(0) Interestaccrued butnotdue on borrowings

12.1 Detailsof securityprovidedinrespectofll1eS~cur~d Debentures:

600,00

8,;0

8.5~

60UO

700.l>O

70n,t10

1!W.OO

55.07

5S,07

755.07

500,OU

5~U_OO

Security for Item Nos.1 to 3 of 12 (oj above: (AlsoRefer Not~ 37)
First Charge 011 lonna end odl'!Ulc~s to subsidiElJies. Non-C<UTcnl Invcsnnents, lnl~resl nccruedon Loons with relatedparties(excluding
thosechargedin favorofbnnks).presentandfulure.

12.2 Interestratebaabe~n res~l far N,C,D, ofRs. 500 crorcswhichis due fol'r"d~mptioll on 06thFebrumy2023fromR.6% p.e. to

5.75% p.a. (w,e.£, 23 March2022)
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Notes to Standalone financialstatements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

Particulars

12 (b) TradePayables~ Non-current

Trade payables due to Micro Enterprises and Medium Enterprises (Refer Note No. 34)
Trade payables other than acceptances due to other than Micro Enterprises and Medium
Enterprises

For ageing of the above balance, refer note 13(b)

12 (e) Otherfinancialliabilities- Non-current

Securityand other deposits payable

'" at
31 March 2023

5.52

5,52

0.54

0.54

(~in crcres)
Asat

31 March 2022

5.77

5.77

0.54

0.54



rata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
as a/ J I March 2023

Particulars

13 (e) Current Borrowings

Secured - at amortised cost
Loans repayableon demand from bllllks(inoludescashcredits,workingcapital Mmand
Ioensand short-tenn loans) [refernotes 13,2]

Unsecured- at amo.1ised rost
Loans repayableon demandfrom banks (refer notes 13,1)

Commercialpapers (rerernote 13.3)
Less:unexpireddiscount

Secured _at amortised cost
Currentmaturitiesoflong-tenn debts (refer note 12 (a))
Interestnccruedon borrowings

(ii!:in eeores)
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March2022

375.16 186,15

374,95 239.64

200,00 900.00
(2.2ll

197.79 900.00

700.00 500.IlO
56.23 97.1l8

1,704.13 1,922.87
Notes:

13.1 The interest rate for uDseeured loan repayableon demand from bank, short tenlllonn from others are rangingfrom 5.45 % p.a. to 7.70 % p.a. (for
the yearended 31 Murch2022: 5,25% p.a to 9.10% p,n,)

13.2 ii!: 375,\6 croros (As at 31 March 2022 <e' 185.68 crores) are secured by part passu hypothecation of construction materials, book debts, current
assets and money receivables,both present and Mure (Also, refer1I0te37). Further, there is negative lien on the Premisessituatedat Mumbaifor
credit facility £i'om a bank ofRs, 44,02 crores (As at 31 March 2022 '{ 1.58 crores), TI,e interest rate is rangingfrom 7,6%p.n, to R%p.a. (for the
yenrended 31 March 2022: 5.50%p.a. to 7,RO%p.a.),

13.3 The Companyhal outstanding Commercial Papersaggregatingface wine ofii!: 200 crores {net proceeds '{ 196,35crores) [As at 31 March 2022:
900 crcres (net proceeds '{ 867.52 crorcs)]. The CommercialPaperscurryinterest@7,75%p.n(Asat31 March 2022 4.40% p.a to 5,50% p.a) &
ere repayablewithin a period of91ldays from the date of allotment.

13,4 Quarterlyreturnsor staterneursof current assets filed with banksare in agreementwith the books crecccnnc of the Company.

13 (b) Trade Payables

Trade payablesdne to Micro Enterprisesl1Ild Small Enterprises(refernote no. 34)
Tradopayablesother than acceptancesdue to othorthan Micro Enterprisesand Small Enterprises 473,69 646,50

Trade Payables Ageiug as nn 31 March 2023 (cul"l'entand non cnrrent)

473.69 646,50

S". No. Particulars Outstandingfor the followingperiod fromthe due dete ofpayrnent Total

Not due Less than I I· 2 Years 2-3Yem~ Morethan 3 Years
year

A. Ulldi~]luted

(i) MSME
(li) Others 27.87 417.75 \1,80 4,20 17,59 479.21

B. DilJluted
(i) MSME
(ii) Others

Trnde Payables Ageing as on 31 Murch 2022

S,..No. Particulars Outstandin forthe following eriod from the due date of a mont Total
Not dnc Less than 1 i -zveas 2· 3 Years Morc than S Years

Y'~

A. Undisputed
(i) MSME
(ii) Others 605,58 28,71l 9.54 U5 7.30 652.27

B. Disputed
(i) MSME
(ii)Others
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
asat st Murch 2023

Particulars

13 (c) Other financial llabilitles

(it' in crores)
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Employee relatedpayables
Securily;mdotherdepositspayable
E;mlcst moneydeposits
Payable to societies
Otherpayablcstojoint developers ofproperties

14 Other Current Liabilities

0,62

6,37
0.03
9,38

43.22
59.62

0,55
6,66

0.07

7,28

Advance receivedaguinstsale offlats/units(refernote35)
Statuto!")' duespayable

• Providentfbud
• Professional TEl>'

-Goods and servicetax
• Taxdeductedat source
• LabcurCess

15 Provisions

P"ovisionfor EmployeeBenefit!
Gmtulty(rorernote30)
Compensated absences(refernoto30)

Provisionfor COlltingellcie~ Costs(refernote 32)

55.78 246.38

0,54 0.23
0,01

8,06 7.81

1.12

1.13
66,64 254.42

4.12 6.39
3,17 4.34

52,12 32.54

59.41 43.27



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31March2023

Particulars

16 Revenue from Operations
Sale of properties

Sale of services
- Project ManagementFees and MarketingCharges

Other operating revenues
- Incomefrom ancillaryservices

17 Other Income

(a) Interest Income
Interest incomeon financial assets at amortisedcost
Interest on delayedcollectionsfrom customers

Dividend Incomefrominvestments

(e) Other non-operating income
GuaranteeCommission
Interest on Income-taxrefund
ProvisionWritten Back
Sundrybalances written back
MiscellaneousIncome

(d) Other gains
Gain on sale of current investments
Net Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment
Net Gain on Foreign CurrencyTransactions and Translations

18a Cost of material consumed

Construction,Material and Labour
Financecosts

ISb Changes in inventories of finished goods and project work-in-progress
Opening

FinishedGoods
Constructionwork-in-progress

Add/(Less)Impact ofNRV on inventory

Closing

FinishedGoods
Construction work-in-progress

Less:JD share and provisionreversals

19 Employee Benefits Expenses

Salaries
Contributionto Gratuity,Provident and Other Funds
Steff Welfare Expenses

For the year ended
31 March2023

334.51

39.80

7.01

381.32

20,71

20,71

324.69
2,054.65

(1.11)

(222,81)
(1,932.87)

(2.46)
220,09

54.63
2,93

4.61
62.17
(0.63)

61.54

(~in crures)
For the Year Ended

31 March 2022

471.03

15.91

7.29

494.23

69,49

69.49

478.63
2,179.75

(O,93)

(324.69)
(2,054,65)

(8,95)
269.16

59,85

4.11
2.67

66.63
(2.39)

6424
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
forthe year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

20 Finance Costs

Interest and finance charges on financialliabilities not at fairvalue
through profitor loss
- Interest on Borrowings
• Intereston LeaseLiabilities

For the year ended
31 March 2023

175.06
0.95

176.01

(~in crores)
FortheYearEnded

31 March 2022

254,91

0.76
255,67

Netet The capitalisationrate used to determinethe amountof borrowing costs to be capitalisedis the weightedaverageinterestrate applicableto the
Company's generalborrowingswhich is 6.88%(for theyear ended 31 March2022: 7.45%)

21 Depreciation nml Amortisation Expense

Depreciationon property,plant and equipment 2.70 1.48

AmortisationofIntangible Assets 3.48 3.11
Depreciationof Rightof use assets 2.66 1.82

8,84 6.42

22 Other Expenses

ProfessionalFees 28,30 18.42

TravellingExpenses 1.91 0.82

Rent 2,80 3.37

Repairs AndMaintenance
• Others 21.00 22.72

ElectricityExpenses 1.25 1.53

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 0.08

Insurance 1.66 1.58

Rates illldTaxes 0.28 0,04

Directors'SittingFees to independent& non-executiveDirectors 0.26 0,23

Payable tu Statutory Auditors
As auditor:
-Audit Fees 0.65 0,55

III Other CalJacity
- CertificationFees 0.12

• Others 0,11

- Reimbursementof Expenses 0.09 0,01

Loss allowanceon advancesand receivables 57.27

Impact ofNRV on inventory 1.11 0,93

Provisionfor contingenciescost 19.59 5.86

Expenditureon CorporateSocial Responsibility 1.02 0,78

Customercompensationcosts 5.80 8,45

Other Expenses 20.95 J3,22

SellingExpenses
-Brokerage 3.82 JO.36

-Advertising& others 7.43 9.04

175.39 98.02

23 Impairment of loans given and investment in subsidiaries and joint ventures

Impairmentloss on Loans given and investments(Net of Reversai)
Loans given ElIld investmentswritten off
Loss on fair valueofinvestments

561.81

(4.41)

557.40

77.71

40.80

(34,79)

83.72
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24 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

The following table shows thecarryingamountsand fairvaluesofflnancial assets and financialliabilities, including their levelsin the fair valuehierarchy.

('{ in orore,)

Cllrrying lLmOliol a, at 31 March 2023 FlIirValue

FVTPI, Amortised cost Total Levell Lcwl2 LIT<IJ Total

Current Non-current Current Non-current Current Non-cUI"rent

Financinland'
i. Invc,hnenl,• Preference Slulres 0.05 0.05 o.ns 0.05
- Subsidiary
• CompulsorilyConvertible 89.32 89.32 89.32 89.32
Debenture,

- Mutualfunds 0.24 0,24 0,24 0.24
ii. Trode receivable, 51,&5 51,35 '11.85 51.85
iii. Cosh undcoshequivalents 144,2& 144,28 144.28 144,28
iv, Bankbalancesother thlillcosh K,05 ~,O5 8.05 8,05
andcashequivalent<

v, woos 47.26 1,417,76 47.26 1,417.76 1,465,02 1,465,02
vi, Otherfmmlcial assets 8~.97 0,16 8~.97 0.16 89.13 89,13

Tutnl finnndni assets 0.24 89.32 340.41 1,417.97 3411.65 1,507.29 0.24 1,554.39 293.31 1,l147.94

Finnnd,tllinbilities
LBorrowings 1,704.13 60g,50 1.704.13 608.50 2,312.63 2,3\2.63
ii, Tradepayable. 473.69 5,52 473.69 5,52 479,21 479.21

I~ii. Olherfimmcio1linbilitJes 59.62 0.54 59.62 0,54 60.16 60.16
Total tlnnnclalllnbilltles 2,237.44 614.56 2,237.44 614.56 2,852.00 2,852.011

(~in erores)

ConyingnmOlll\! M al31 March2022 FairV"lne

FVTPL Amortisedcost Total Levell Level2 Lovel3 Totol

Current Non_current Current Non.currenl Current Non-currenl

Financial assob

i. Investments _PreferenceShores 0,05 0,05 0.05 0,05

- SubsidiOlJ'

• Compul,oril)'Convel'lible 63.69 63,69 63,69 63,6'.1
Debelltures

- Mutualfunds 0,24 0,24 0.24 0.24

ii.Trude,."oelv"bIe, 67.63 67,63 67.63 67.63

iii. Cmill undcash equivnlent, 154.28 154.28 154,28 154.28

iY.lhnk balmlce" otl",r IlIllll cash 0,01 0.01 0,01 0,01
undcashequivulents

v. Loan, 52.44 1,596,01 52.44 l,596.01 1,648,-\5 1,648,45

vi. Glherfinllllcial ",sel, 90.69 90.69 90.69 90,69

Total financl~l a,"ct. (J,24 63,69 365,05 1,596,06 365.29 1,659,75 0,24 1,712,19 312,61 2,025,04

FinancillllinbiHtic!

i, Borrowings 1,922.87 755.Q7 1,922.87 755.07 2,677.94 2,671.94

ii.Tradepayables 646.50 5.77 646,50 ),77 652.27 652,27

iii.Otllerflll"1\cia1liubilities 7.28 0.54 7.28 0.54 7.82 7,82

Tnt"l finandnlliabilitie, 2,576,65 761.33 2,576.65 761.38 3,338.03 3,333,03
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Filii' value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determiningthe fair values of the financial instruments that are (II) recognised and measuredat fair value
and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements.To provide an indication about the reliabilityof the inputsused
in determiningfair value, the Company has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. An explanationof each
levelfollows underneath the table.

Assets and linbihtles which are measured lit amortised cost:

TIlefair value of financial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuationtechnique,
TIlehierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurements)and lowest priority to unobservable
inputs (level 3 measurements),The categories used are as follows:

Levell: Levell hierarchy includesfinancial instrumentsmeasured usingquoted prices.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivatives)is determinedusing
valuationtechniques which maximizethe use of observablemarket data and rely as little as possible on entity-specificestimates.Consideringthat all significant inputs
requiredto fair value such instrumentsare observable, these are included in level 2,

Level 3: If one or more of the significantinputs is not based on observablemarket data, the instrumentis includedin level 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents and other
bank balances, current trade payables and current borrowingsare considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-termnature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amountsare equal to the fair values.

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable Inputs

The followingtable shows the valuation techniquesused in measuring Level 2 and Level3 fair values for financial instrumentsmeasured at fair value in the statement
offlnancial position as well as the significantunobservableinputs used.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Type

Illwstments in unlisted corllorale
debt Instruments.

Compulsorily Convertible
Debenlmesof ArdentProperties
PrivateLimited

Vnln~tion t~~hnique

Discounted cash new Mdho,l ,For the purpose ofv"lue oflba equi()'holders
of the Companybnsedon free cnshflows availablefrom oper~tions uudertllken
b)'1110 Compnny, DiscountedCoshFlow (DCF) Methodhas been adopled.
Free onshflows to equityin the explioitforec"st period "nd those in perpetuity
nrediscoMtodby Cost of Equity("Key'), Ke is 1110 approprinternteof discount
(0 e~lculate presenlvnlueo[ [nlurocosh flews for "nll\ing(heequity ,h"res of
the Comp"ny osit considersdsk nudexpected return 10the equil)'slockhelders

Significant
unchservahle inputs

Not npplic"b1e

Illtor-relatillmhipbetween
significantunobservableInputs nml fair value

measurement

Not QpplieQble
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25 Earnings Per Share

Pnrriculars

Loss nfterTnx· (it"in crol'es)

Number of Ordinlll')'.hares

WeighwdnvcmgenumberofOrdinnry share' onl,jEUlding during

Weightednvemg. numberof Ordinnry,ho"" for dilutedEPS

B~,ic .omings per share pf'! 10 "nch • ('t)

Dilllted aamingsper ,lHlre on 10each _('t)

FaceVnluePerShore" ('t)

26 Operating segments

For the Year
Ended

31 Murch 2023

(485.14)

1,280,969,842

1,195,478,392

1,195,478,392

(UG)

(4.Il6)

10

For theYcnr
Ended

31 March2022

(3.32)

1,093,488,091

917,545,746

917,545,746

(0.09)

(0.09)

10

TIleCompanyis engaged only in the business of development of property and related activities in India, It has no other reportable segments in terms of Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 108 on Segment Reporting specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 ("the 2013 Act")

27 Contingent liabilities and Commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities
(a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by owners and customers of certain properties constructed/developed by the

Company amountingto 'l' 22.62 crores (As at 31 March 2022 'l' 7.18 crores) (inclusive of interest) against which the Company has made counterclaims of Nil crores
(As at 31 March 2022 'l'Nil crores). The Company based on past experience does not anticipate any material liability to devolve on it as a result thereof.

Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect ofthe above matters are uncertain as it depends on the final outcome ofthe matters
involved.

(b) Corporate Guarantees given to banks by the Company on behalf of subsidiaries: 'l' 380.36 crores (As at 31 March 2022 'l' 'l' 330.74 crores),

(c) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of demand raised by Service Tax Department of 'l' Nil crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~ 24,08, net
on 0.65 crores paid under protest), VAT department of ~ Nil crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~ 29,58 crores) and OST department of ~ 2.95 crores (As at 31 March
2022 '!'Nil)

(d) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of demand raised by Income tax department of ~ 11.71 crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~ 11.71
crores )

(ii) Commitments
(a) Estimated nmccnt ofcontmcts remaining 10be executed on capital account and not provided for: Tangible assets" ~ Nil crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~ Nil crores)

and for Intangible assets ~ Nil crores (As at 31 March 2022 'l' 0.27 crcres)

(b) Comminnent towards uncalled portion on partly paid 11% Redeemable, Cumulative, Non-participating, Non-convertible Preference Shares of Om ate Housing Private
Ltd ("Ornate") amounting to '!'0.15 crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~ 0.15 crores). The Company is committed to this amount only in the event of Om ate winning the
bid for a project.
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28 Financial risk management

The Company'sbusinessactivitiesexpose it to a varietyof financial risks, namelyliquidityrisk, marketrisks and creditrisk. The Company's
senior management has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The
Company has constituted a Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies,The Company'srisk management policiesare establishedto identify and analysethe risks faced by the Company, to set
appropriate risk limitsand controlsandto monitorrisks and adherenceto limits, Risk management policiesand systemsare reviewedregularly
to reflectchangesin marketconditionsand theCompany's activities,

The Risk Management Committee of the Company is supported by the Finance department that provides assurance that the Company's
financialrisk activitiesare governedby appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in
accordance with theCompany's policiesand risk objectives, The Financedepartment activities are designed to:
- protectthe Company's financialresultsand positionfrom financialrisks
- maintainmarketrisks withinacceptableparameters, while optimisingreturns;and
• protectthe Company'sfinancialinvestments, whilemaximising returns.

A) Mnnagement of liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will face in meeting its obligations associated with its financial liabilities. The Company's
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufflclentfunds to meet its liabilitieswhen due without incurringunacceptable
losses, In doingthis, management considersboth normalandstressedconditions,

Maturities of financialliabilities(currentand non current)
The followingtable showsthe maturityanalysisof the Company's flnnucialIiabilitiee based on contractually agreedundiscounted cash flows
as at the Balancesheet date:

(tin crurc.)

A. 0131 March2023 Carrying Amount Leu Ihan I ycar 1-3Yoa" J-5 Ycur. Total

BOll'mvings 2,312,63 1,704.13 608,50 2,312,63

Trndep"Y.b1e, 479,21 445,62 16.00 t7,59 479.22

Lea""Liabilitic5 1139 2,03 2.31 7,05 11.39

Olherllobllltie, 6().16 59,62 0.54 60,16

(tlnuoro,)

A••t 31 Murch lUll C,mylug Amount Lc"thLln 1yeur 1-3Yon1"' 3·5Ye'l"li Totol

Bon1lwlngs 2,677.94 1,962,29 829.39 2,"191.67

Trnd, p.y.hle< 652.27 646.50 5,77 652.27

Lel".Li,bllitie' lJ.18 1.34 '.00 9,34 13.18

Oth,'!" Iinbilitics 7,82 7,28 0,54 H2

BJ Management of market risk

The Company'ssize and operationsresult in it beingexposedto the followingmarketrisks that arisefrom its use of financialinstruments:
• interestrate risk
• currencyrisk
The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments The objectiveof the Company's
management of marketrisk is to maintainthis risk within acceptableparameters, while optimising returns. The Company'sexposure to, and
management of, theserisks is explainedbelow:

Particular.

Flxod r"1o In,lrum.nb

Dcbonlure,_N<m_COIl\'C111ble Rodecm'hlc

Commerci,l!,"pc,""

WorkingCopil"lDemandloanfromBonks

1'"t"1

Variuble-r.te I....truu'.nt.

l.oon' rCp"l'obl.on demandfromhonk.<

ToM

"'"31 Mu«h 2023

1,300,00
200.00

750.1l

2,250.11

"'''31 M'11lh2022

1,200,00
900,00

420,73

2,520.73

5.06

5,06
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28 Financial risk management (Continued)

B) Management of market risk (COlllilllli!/Q

POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK MANAGEMENTPOLICY SENSl1'lVITYTO RISK

(I) Inle..,j rllte rbk

Int.",,! role risk i~ thorisk thnt the future o.~h f1nw,of II The ComPIH')'" ,tr,tegy i, (0 mitig,to intere,! As flIl.,tim,tion of the ,ppmX;!!llIlo imp""l oftite int.... ,t rolerisk,
fill.nd~\ in,trum.tll ",;11 fluc(uolebno"u"" or chotlge, in rute riskby on'1Jring"prop<rmixnfbolT<}Wjllgs wid, Te'pool to ll'Ul1lcial ;n,tnl",eL1I', the Compall)" 1",. culculnlod
morketinlorn,!rotes, ot ti,. imp"olof, 0,25% ciulngein inl<l'est rote". 1l.25% p.', <wor,,","
Tho CompAny is m,inly .xp",~d 10intere,t mte ri,k due to il~"d and vorioble interest rote. in intor",t on afore,"id loons will redllee int"""t o~r<'n'" by ~ 0.00
it, vOIi.ble int"",.\ roto bon'owings, The inte""t rnle ri,k e""",,sfor the yeareruled 31 Murch 2D23.
uri"", dll< to ILntertolntie, nbellt the fut'lre merket intere,t The Compony', inltro't n\le ri,k i" monitoroo
rate"ftho,"lnv"'t1nent,. by the tl',n,gemc1lt.rul Ire."ur;· te,m Gn n 0,25% p", deor""'" in int"r",t Oll afm'e,.id loan, will redl"'"

m,,"thly b.,is. Mnnogement on,l)',e, the inlere,t C':lpon'0 by ~ O,DO c!,Qre,for lim\l\ciolyeor ended 3t March
The Compl\l\Y'. thed ro(o bon'owings ore oarried 01 Company" intere,t rote exposure Oll. dynnmic 2023
amorti,ed "001. They aro therefore llot ,ubject tll int'''''1 basis, Vorious ,.,enulio, um ,lmui.ted, laking
rale li.k .~ defined in Ind AS 107. since neither tho into con,ideralion refmanoillg, rellewal of A 0,25% incre.,e in inl~r",t rote, would have led to an eqllol but
e,rrying Olll<Jllllt nor the fulur" c~~h now. will f1uctuote exi,ling p",ilioll' .nd allen,"tive finoncing oppn-ito oflee!

'"'COli'" ofo cJmngeinmod",tiuMe'trawa ,,,U!'Ce~ E,,,ed Ollthe:resceillll'io" the CO"!"1\)'
calculate" the imp,o! on pr"nt .nd 10," oj' a

As ot 31 M.reh 20ll. bOiTOWillgs 'mounlod tll ~ Nil defllled inter""t rule .hin. lb" ,ce",rios Ul'e run
erore, la,.t 31 Muroh 2022: ~ 4,59 cr<>re") i" .~posed to onty f'>r Iiabiliti.. that !'ep!'e,ent the m,jor
inte",'l r.te risk inlcro,l.be.ri1lg position" The .imutotion i.

done Oll " =\1I1y b".i. to verify th.t th"
"",ximlUu potenti"llo", i, within the Umits '"I
hy "",nagemenl

(it) Currollcy rl~k

The Curnpal\Y undertake, lr.n""oli,nl~ dtnamin"ted in The COmp"llrh" nol hedged 011)' <Jf it, ",,<to or A. Oll.,.timunoll of the ~ppr""hnale imp.ot of the o"rrene)' riik,
i\lreign c",,,,mcle, which i, m,h:dy ru""iv"ble, from it, li"bilitie, ""p"y'"lu in. foreign CUlT''''"l', b.ing wilh ""poet to limm"i"1 i!lstnunent;;,!he Complln)' h" "uloll1ute<1
sub,idi,rie, b".oo in M.IJivcs £\lid Sing_pore; r,,"eivoble, from illl,,,ll,idinrie. tho lmp,,"t"fa 5%"honge inoummcie,.
oon,eqll"lltly,e,~P""'''". to"'lch,mge l"utef!ueleuti"ns...-i,o Follmvillgt"ble detail, frc Comp.ny~ ,cmilivity to. 5% illc~e.""

"lid deorea"" in ~ ,guin,t the rci"V""lforeign oun'enoies.

Th. e"plls"re to currency ri,k duc tll fordgll oummcyIran~"Olio",;

P~ttlcll1"t. ForulgnCurl"Onoy(FC) A.~! 31 MIltoh2U2J A, ot :JI Moroh 2022

AmounllnFC (t incrol'c,) AmmUlt in FC (~in cr"",')

Receiv.bl.,

Rcc"i,,~ble.

scm
MW

1(J2.411

4,987,576

(J,63

2M

102.41l

4,987,576

U,57

2,4D

SOD~ ~illgupore $. MVR ~ Maldivion Ruliy"', USD ~ U,liled Stote, DolI.r

Sensitivity analysis (only for major currencies)
(finorUl'c.)

Effocl Oilprnnt "flor tax and tob,]
oquily

Forthe ye.. endcd

MW

Inerease in"'ldllmge mte by5%

Deer,,,o in c~cl1.nge ,.ateby 5%

SOD

lncre,,~ in exch"ng" rate br 5%

Doore". in exch"ngor'te by 5%

31 Maroh 2023 31 March2022

U.13 0.12

(U,13) (O.t2)

nus urn
(0.03) (0,01)

A positive number above indicates an increase in the profit or total equity where the ~ weakens 5% against the relevant currency. For n 5%
strengthening of the <:' against the relevant currency. there would be a comparable impact on the profit or total equity, and the balances below
would be negative

Credit risk is the risk of financial los. 10 the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations, and arises principally Ircm the Company's receivables from customers, investments in debt securities, loans given to related
parties and project deposits.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credlt exposure.
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28 Financial risk management {Continued]
Trade Receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore
substantially eliminatingthe Company'screditrisk in this respect

The Company's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of
varyingsizes and typeswith numerous differentcustomercategories in a largenumberofgeographical markets.

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of p.'ovisions):

Period Upto1 Yenr More than 1 year Total

As at March 31, 2023 28,60 40.18 68,78

As at March 31, 2022 42,17 25,46 67,63

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made for the receivables:

particulars Asat As at
'31 March 2023 '31 March 2022

Opening bnhmce

Providedduring the year 16.93

Closing balance 16.93

There are no significant changes in the gross carryingamounts of trade receivables.
Increases in credit-impaired balances by INR 16,93 croree (31 March 2022: INR Nil) resulted in increases in impairment allowances ofINR

16.93 crores (31 March 2022: INR Nil), This is on account of change in the customer credit profile

Investment in Securities, Loans to Related Parties and Project Deposits
The Company has investments in compulsorily convertible debentures, loans to related parties and project deposits The settlement of such
lnstrumenta is linked to the completion of the respective underlying projects.Such Financial Assets are not impaired, other than provided for

in note 4(a), 4(b) & 8(e) as on the reporting date.

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made in Investment & LOQUS to related Partks:

Particulars Asat As at
'31 March 2023 '3I Marcil2022

Opening ballUlce 1,360.96 1,281,44

Provided during the your 561.81 79.52

Less: Provision writtcn off 19.24

Closing balance 1,903,53 1,360.96

Cash and Bank balances
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Company's treasurydepartment in accordance with the Company's policy

The Company's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March 20'23 and 31 March 2022 are the carrying value of each class of'financlal
assets as disclosed in notes 4(a), 4(b) and 8(a) to 8(1).

29 Capital Management
The Company manages Its capital to ensure that the Company will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to

stakeholders through optimisation of debt and equity balance

The Company's fisk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Company on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the
committee considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.

The Company monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity, For the purposes ofthc Company's capital
management, the Company considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital
Total equity as shown in the Balance Sheet includes General reserve, Retainedearnings, Share capital, Securities premium, Net debt includes
current debt plus non-current debt less cash and bank balances.

Long·term fJmruwing,

Currctltmotunl;e"of long.termdebt,

cu,,.o,,1 bOlluwings

InterestAocruedonBorrowing,

Toillidebl

Tol"1 Equily

~"",;-"~-::"',cJ'Not dobt10eqnllyroll" (Nn.offim.,)

at M"J"<l, 21123

600.00

700.00

9H.9lI

64.73

2,312.63

2,059.67

1.12

31 Morch2022

700.00

500,00

1.325,7g

152,15

2,677.94

2.042.73

1.)1
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30 Employee Benefits

A Defined benefit plans:
(i) Gratuity (funded)

The Company makes annual contributions to the Tata Housing Development Company Limited Employees'
Comprehensive GratuityScheme,which in [11m has investedin IIgroup gratuitycum life insurancepolicyof Tata AIG Life
Insurance Company. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in
employment or on termination of employment as per Company's Gratuity Scheme Vesting occurs on completion of five
years.

Balance sheet amount
1lt crcecs

Particulars Gratnit)·

Present valueof Fair valueof Nctllmouut
obligation plan assets

1 A]lri12012 3,46 (2.07) 6.39

Current,er"ic" cost 0.74 0.74

lnlereslexpensel(incomc) 0.51 (0.13) 0.39

Adjustment 10theopening bulance

Tolul amount recognisedIn prulit and loss 1.25 (0.13) 1.13

Remeasurements -
Relurnall plan assets,ol<Cluding amounlincludedin interest (OM) (0.00)

""pense/{income)
(Guin) I LossfromchllIlge in finMcialassumplions (2,09) (2,09)

Experionco (gElins)llossos

Tutul amount recognisedIn other ecmprchensivc lneomc (2,09) (0.00) (2,09)

El11ployer contributiollS

Benefilpa)monts (1.30) (1.30)

31 Mllrch 21123 6.32 (2.20) 4.12

Pnrtleu[ars Gratuity

Present value of Fnlr value of Net amonnt
obligation Illan ~sset~

1 A(lri12021 7.23 (OAO) 6.82

Curren!ser"lcecost (J.SS 0.83

Intoresto"pensol(incmno) 0042 (0.02) 0040

PostService Cost (1.54) (1.54)

Total ~mu"nt rccugnised in profit and loss 1.31 (1.56) (0,26)

RC111cnsuremcnts

Returnon plan assots,cxcludiug amountincludedin interest (0,11) (0,11)

a~ponsol(income)

(Gain) / Loss from chongain fmnncinl assumptlons 1,47 1.47

E"pencllco(gains)ilo.se.

Tot~l umount rccognilcd in othcr ccmprehcnalvc income 1.47 (0,11) 1.37

Employercontributions

BenefitpU)1ncnls (1.55) (1.55)

31 March 2022 8,46 (2.07) 6.38
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)
The net liabilitydisclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows:

Gralni!)'

31 March 2023
Presentvalueof fundedobligations
Fairvalueofplanassets
Defidt
31 March 2022
Present v~lue offllnded oblig"tions

fair vah'eofplanus,el,
Deridt

6.32

(Un)

U2

8,46
(2,07)

6.39

l\hjOl' category of plan assets for Gratuity fund are as follows:

The Company has invested entire amount of plan assets in insurance fund.

Inlure,' Managed Flllld Detailed Pattern % rnvegtcd

Government Securities
EquityShareof Listed Companies
Olher Approyed Seourities (GB)

ReverseRepos'
Bonds!debentures

As at
31 March 2023

56.82%
0.00%
9.75%
4.69%

28.74%
100.00%

ASal
31 March2()22

60.96%
O,O()%

1ll.91%
5,38%

77,25%

Risk exposure
Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to a number of risks, the most significantof which ere detailed
below

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if plan assets underperformthis
yield, this willcreate a deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securitieswith high grades and in
government securities.These are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to
minimiserisk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increasein the value of the
plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy

The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life of the member, so increases in life expectancy
win result in an increase in the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher
sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

SalaryRisk
The present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants As
such, an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability

The Company ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liabilitymatching (ALM) framework that
has been developed to achieve long-term investmentsthat are in line with the obligationsunder the employeebenefit plans.
Within this framework, the Company's ALM objective is to match assets to the benefit obligations by investing in long­
term fixed interest securities with maturities that match the benefit payments as they fall due and in the appropriate
currency.

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2024 are ~ 4,67 crs.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 3 years (2022 - 7 years)

Gratuity

31 March 2623 31 MQroh 2022

l.82
1.63
1.34
l.OS

LOs
4.45

1.90

1.37
1.15
0.85

0.74
2.22
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

D Defined contribution plans:
(~in crares)

Benefit(Contribution to)

Provident F\md

Superannuation Fund

Tutnl

For tile Yenr
Ended

31 Mnfch 2023

l.311

0.25

1.55

For the Ye",.
Ended

31 March l022

2,04

0,27

2.31

(i) Superannuation fund
The Companyhas superannuationscheme administratedby Lie, in which the Companycontributes 15% on basic salary
The payments to defined contributionretirement benefit schemefor eligibleemployees in the form of superannuationfund
are charged as an expense as they fall due, Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemesas the Company
does not carry any further obligations,apart from the contributionsmade.

(U) Provident fund
The Company also has certain defined benefit plans. Contributions are made to Tata Housing provident fund trust for
employeesat the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations.The Company is liablefor contributionsand any deficiency
compared to interest computed based on the rate of interest declared by the Central Government under the Employees'
ProvidentFund Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined

The Trustees of the Fund are required by law and by its trust deed to act in the interest of the Fund and of all relevant
stakeholders in the scheme, The Trustees of the Fund are responsible for the investmentpolicy withregard to the assets of
the Fund

The Company's contributionspaid I payable during the year towards Provident Fund and SuperannuationFund are charged
to the Statement of Profit and Loss or debited to the project costs every year These funds and the schemes thereunder are
recognised by the Income-taxauthoritiesand administeredby trusts

C Compensated absences

The leave obligationscover the Company's liabilityfor sick and earned leave. The leave obligation is computedby actuary
who gives a bifurcation for current and non-current.

II) Changes in Present Value of Obligation:
(I/'la eroresj

Partlculari

Present Vulne ofObligation ai nt thabeginning
InterestCo,!

Service COit

Bonefit, Paid
Actuarial(Gain) I Los' onobligations

Past Service Cost

Pre,entValue orObligation u'nl the l>JId

Compeu,nled nb,enccs

Forthe Year For theYear
Ended Ended

31 Mnnb 2023 31 Mcrcb 2022

4.34 4.89

0.59 0.23

11.26 0,41

(0.66) (O,Sl)

(1.37) (0.43)

3.l7 4.34
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

C Compensated absences (CoNtinued)

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the year:
(~in croren

Pnrliclllnr~ Compensatedabsences

For/beYenr I'or the Year
Ende.! Ended

31 March 2023 31 March2022

CmTellllinbility

Non·Current liability

Pre,ent Vnluc ofObligatioD as lit tile end

c) Expenses Recognised during the year:

3.17

3.17

4.34

4.34

(f in erores)

Particulars

InterestCost

Service Cost

Act\lUriol Loss {(Gain)recognised

PastServiceCosl

E~IIC"SCS Recognised during the year

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity
The significantactuarialassumptionswereas follows

Cernpensatcdabsences

For the YeM For the Yeor
Ended Ended

31 March 2023 31 M~rch 2022

0,59 0.28

0.26 0,41

(1.37) (0,43)

(0.52) 0.26

Particulan

Gratuitl'

Discount rate

Rate of return on pion assets

Sowry grOWtll rate

Rotiremontago

MortalityRate Dllringemplo)'lllent

MortalityRatoMer omployment

Maximum gm!uitypaYllble per person

Compensatedabsences
Di,counting Rute

R.etil'(llIlentAge

Future SalaryRiso

MortalityT"ble

WithdrawalRates

Asal
31 March 2(/23

1.25%

8.00%

60 year.'

Illdiall A'SIlrl:11 Lives Mortality
(2012_14)

Indian Assured Livcs Mortall!)'
(2012-14)

Unlimited

7.25%

60 years

8.00%

Indian Assured Live!Mortality
{2012.14j

25.00%

A,at
31 Maroh2022

6,10%

9,00%

60 veers

IndillflA..ured LivesMortality(2012

14)
IndianAssured LivesMortaHty(2012

14)

Unlimited

6.10%

60 years

9,00%

IndianAssU«:dLivesMort"lity (2012
14)

20.00%
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
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30 Employee Benefits (Continued)

D Significant estimates: Actuarial assumptions and sensitivity (Continued)
Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase
and rate of employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes

ofthe respectiveassumptionsOCCUlTing at the end of the reportingperiod, while holding all other assumptions constant

Graluil~'

P'lrtieu]ars

Projeoted benefitobligclionon ourrentassumption,

DeltaeITeet of +l%ohangein rateof discounting

Oakaeffectof .1% ohonge inretecfdiscounting

Ddla cITeot of +1%ohElllge ill rate(Ifsalaryillcrc.,c

Deltae!Teel of -1% changein rete ofsularyincJ"<:nie

Dellaeffectof+1% changein rateof employeeturnover

Dellaeffeelof _1%chongein roleofomployee(urnover

31 March 2023

6.32
0.22

(O.20)

(O.!!»

0.22

1I.llJ

O.ol

31 March20n

8.44

(0,35)

0,38

0.37

(0,34)

(0,05)

0,05

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as
it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be

correlated, Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied

in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in theBalance Sheet.
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31March 2023

31 Related Party Transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS-24) specified under Section 133 of' the Companies Act, 2013 and the
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows

31.1 List of Related Parties and Relationsbips

Sr. No, RelatedParly

Parcnl, Hol,ling Company and Ultimate HoldIng Compan)'

Tata SOliS PrivateLimited

SubsIdiaries (induiling step down sllbsidlnlies)
2 COllcept Developers & LeasingLimited(folJIlerly knownas Concept Marketing andAdvertisIng LImited)
J TalaValue Homes Umi~d
4 Apex Really Private Limited

5 Krida)'Really Private Limited

6 THDC Management Services Limited (forrru:rlyknow" ns TIlDC Facility MmmgelllOnl Limited)

7 Promo"l Hillside Pri,'ate Limited

8 World-QneDevclopmenl COnlpall,V Pte, Limited

9 World-Qne (Sri Lanka)Projects Pie. Limited

10 One Colomboprojccl (prlvule) Limited

11 Smnrl Value Homes (Boislll) Private Limited

12 HLT Reside11CY Private Litnitod
13 North Bembay RealEstnlePrivote Limited

14 S)'III,rgizersSostainable Foundation

15 Te<:hnopollsKnowledge Pork Limited

16 Priooe(DnIlIfrns(mcturcpriVl1t~ Limited

17 Smart Value Homes (PcellyuProjeot) Privute Limited

18 Promo)ltHilltop Private Limited

19 ArdentProperties P,;vote Limited (w.e.f 17 June 2022)
20 HL Promolers Private Lhnlled

Joint Vontnrc! (IndUdlng slop down Joint Ventures)

2t Arvlndand Smart ValueHomes LLP

22 SohuaCity LLP

23 Sector 113 G.tevida Developers Privole Limited (formerly known os Lemon Tree LlllId& Developers Privnle Lhnited)

24 OneBongalore LnxlIryPrI1iectsLLP

25 Kolkota_OneExcelloll Private Limitod

26 Smart Value Homes (Now Pmj~ct) LLP

27 ArrlcntPrcpcnics Private Lilllit~d (till 16 June :l022)

28 Lnnkart Builders Privale Limit~d

Fellow Sub.'idlarics

I Infiniti Retail Limited

2 Tata AIG GCllerallnSllralLce COlllpanyLlmiled

3 Tata COllsullallg' Services LImited

4 Tota Realty and Infrastructnre Limited

5 Arrow lnfrac.,talc PrivateLimited

6 Eeofirst Servkes Limlled

7 Intcruationallnfrabuild Pyl. Ltd

8 TRIL ilIfopark Limited

9 Gm£aQIlRcattecll Limited

10 Tala Communications Limiled

11 Tatn Teleservi"'" Limilod

12 Tala TeleHervlcesOvlahamshlm)Limited

13 T"taMedicol & DlagllOslicLtd

14 Tala AlALife IlLSllranee Co. Limited

15 'rataE1eotronic?v1 ltd

16 Dmg SluYllat!! R<prcss Ways Pvl lid

17 The Tot. Power Compal1yLilluted

18 TATA IMG Hcallhcarc SOlutionsPvt Ltd

A~soetatos ofl'anmt Comllan,·

19 Tala Coffee Ltd

20 VoHas Limiled

21 Tata 1l11,incss Support Services Limited

22 The Imlionllotels Compnny Limiled

2l Tali Global Bevemg~j Limited

24 Titan COmpl1lly Limited

:l5 COlllleqlBusiness Soilltions LiJnited

Joint V~nture.or Pa,,,nl COmlHll1Y

26 Tata Play Liuuted (elll"licrknownasTala Sky Limited)

Employee TI1I,I, where Ihero is slgnlflcant Influonco

27 Tat. HousingDevelopmelrt Compal1Y LId -Employc'Os ProvidclrtFund

28 Tata HOllsingDowiopmclIl Complll1yLtd -Employees GrOJlpSllp~r Allllnation

29 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd· Employe<s Comprehensive GmtllilyTnl.St



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2023

31.2R~lated Porty Transaction~

tin crores

Sr. No. Party Name Nature ofTransaction For yenrended For year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

1 Concept Developers & Lensing Limited 0) Income
(Subllidiary) InterestIncome onLoanandInterCorporate Deposits O.oJ 0,01

b) Expenses

cj Otber Transactions
E~pel1ses hteurred on behulfofRelnted Party 0.08 0,10

d) OutstandingBalancesReceivnble.
InterCorporalc Depo.it Paid 0.10 0.10
Advance 0.18

e) OutstandingBnlancesPayable
SundryCreditors (n.lO)

2 TotoRealty & Infrastructure Limited 0) Income
(Fellow Subsidiary) OtherIncome i.46 2.68

b}Expense~
Professional Fees(Deputation Charge~j 1,45 4.22
InsuTtlnee

c) Other Transactions
EquityCapitnl issued 182,48 500,00
SharePremium 317,52

d) OutstandiugBalances Receivables
Advance 0,57 2,89

e) OutstandingBalance. Payable
SundrvCreditors 0.48 0.27

3 Kriday Really PrivateLunited a) Income
(Subsidiary) InterestIneome on L<;>rul andInterCorporate Deposits 11.59 10.01

b) OtherTrnnsacliOIlS
LoanGiven 19,38 13.95
Loru' Repaid 1.60 3.42
Expenses incurred OIl behalfofRelatedParty 0,00 0041

c) OutstandillgBalancesReceivables
Interestaccrued butnotdue 66,55 55.08
InterCorporate Deposit 138,75 12l.00
Arlv!Ulce 0,33

d) Ontslanding BalancesPayable
SundryCreditors (0.32)

4 S)ner~iers Sustainable Foundation aJ Expen.es
(Subsidiary) Expenses forCSR 0.97 0,79

5 nIDC Management Services Limited n) Income
(Subsidiary) Interest Income onLOM andInterC<;>rpomte Deposits 0.09 0,09

b) Other Transactions
LoanGiven 1.00

c) OntstandingBalancesReceivables
Interestaccrued butnotdue 0.16 0,09
InterCorporate Deposit l.00 1.00
Receivable . .
Advance 1.11

d) Outstanding BalancesI'ayable
Sundr)" Creditors 0,01 0.01

6 Sectoril3 Gatcvida Developers Private Limited a) Income
(JointVentlrre) InterestIncome on LoannndInrerCorporale Depo.its 155,~6 162.23

SaleofPMC 3,06 0.72
Saleof Branding Fcc 9.n 5.07

b) Other Trallsaction.
LoanGiven 16.35 59.79
LoanRepaid 15S.00 127.0n
Expenses ulcrrrred on behalfof Related Party 0.00 0.09

c) OutstandingBalancesReceivable
Snnd,)" Dcbtors 5.73 lUn
Interestaacme<! but!lotduc 690.22 537,93
InterComomte Deoosn 291.54 433.19

. iii
l

::':::>"
!;~f· ,in

\)Vi .,ftJ,
'~

\i{i~:ili::i::
::i'
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0
"):



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone flnanclal statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2023

31.2 Related Party Trausactlcns
I~ill creres)

Sr. No. Party Name Nature ef Transactlen For year ended Fur yelll'ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

d}Outstanding BalancesPayable
SundryCreditors 0,09

7 Princeton infrastructure PrivateLimited a) Income
(S\lbsidiory) InterestIncomeonLUMand InterCorporateDeposits 13,50 14,34

Expensesincurredon behalfof Relat.ed Party 0,42

b) Other Trallsllctiuns
LoanGiven 2,75 34,90

c) Outstanding Receivable
SundryDebtors 0,28
Interestaccruedbutnotdue 26.34 12.'H
InterCorporateDeposit 141.99 161.24

d) Olltstalldillg Payable
Sund!)'Creditors 0.28

" ApelL RealtyPrivateLimited n) Income
(Subsidiary) InterestIncomeon LoanandInterCorporateDeposits 10,10 10.\0

b) Outstandillg Receivable
Interestaccruedbutnotduo 56.63 47.53
InterCorporateDeposit 86.40 86,40
SundryDebtors 2.64 2,40

9 PremontHilltop Private Limited a) Income
(Subsidiary) InterestIncomeon LoanandInterCorporateDeposits 1,41

Saleof Development Rights
Int.reston PMC
Purchaseofmaterial 0.27

b) Othu Tl'ansadions
LoanGiven 47.95
LoanRepuid 64.97
Expensesincurredon bchalfof RcletcdParty 0.01 1.68
Expensesincurredby RelatedPartyon our behalf 2.10

0)Outstanding Receivable
InterCorpor~te Deposit
Sund!)'DcbtQr~ 0.00 0,70

c) Outstandillg Payable
SundryCreditor 0,27

to KolkataQneElLcolton PrivateLimited a) Income
(JointVenturo) InterestIncomeon Loanand Intel' Corporate Deposits 9,27 11l.55

Brandingfees 6.78 3,22
PMC 1.00

b) Other T"allSllctions
LmmRepaid 15,30 9.77
Expensesincurredon behelf'ofRelatedParty 0,46 0.46
Expensesillenrredby RelatedPartyonOUI' behalf

c) Outstanding Receivable
Interestaccruedbut IlOt due 52,46 43.24
InterCorporateDepo~it 63.09 78.39
Advance 0,07

d) OutstHn(]ingPayable
SundryCreditors 27.96 0,45

11 ArdentPropertiesPrivateLimited n) Income
(Subsidiary w.e,[ 17June2(22)
(JointVenturetin 16June2022) InterestIncomeon Loanand InterCorporntc Deposits 6.18 7,29

InterestIncomeon CCD 2l.32 18,94
Saleof BrandingPee 4.53 3.36
SaleofPMC 5.89 0,89

b) Other Transactions
LoanGiven 36.50
ElLoenses incurredon behnlfof ReIElled Partv 0.23



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for Iheyear elided31 March 2023

31.2 Related Party Transactions
(~in crores)

Sr. No. Party Name Nature ofTransaction For year ended For year ended
31 March 2023 31 Mat'ch2022

12 Sobnn CityLLP
(Jointvcetcre)

13 Lendkart BuildersPriv~tc Limited
(JointVenture)

14 TataValueHomesLimited
(Snbsidimy)

15

c) Outstanding Receivable
SundryDebtors
InterestneeDled blltnotdue
InterCorporate Deposit
AdviUlCC

d) Outstanding Pnyable
SundryCreditors

0) Income
InterestIncome on PEIrthers LLP

b) Other Transactions
Investment mudcLLP

c) Outstanding Receivnble
Slmdr)' Debtors
Interestneemedbulnotdue
Advance

d) Outstanding Pa.l'able
SundryCreditors

0) Income
InterestIncome onLoanandInterCorporate Deposits

b) Other Transactions
LoanGiven
LoanRepaid

0) Outstanding Receivable
InterCorpoJaoo Deposit
IInterestaccrued blltnotdue

10)Income
IInterestIncome onLoanandInterCorpornle Deposits

b) Other Transactions
LoanGiven
LoanRepaid
Expenses incnm'don behalfof RelatedPlirty
Expenses incurredby Related Party on ourbehalf

0) Outstanding Re~ivable

InterCorporate Deposit
lntercstaccruedbutnotdue
Advance

d) Outstlmding Payablll
SundryCreditors

a) IllCOme

0.89
80.11
14.85
0.03

~,05

2,60

1.43
48.19

0.04

0.00

0.68

0.00

24,55

215.40
38.20

1.51

350.20
26.24

1.65

3.63
77.33
50.85

(0.26)

7.87

0,53

1.43
40,20

(O,M)

2,75

24.18
33.50

0.68
0.00

2.18

291.25
118,25

0,03

173,00
i,96

(0,97)

SmnrtValueHomes(PccnyaProject) Pri,'atcLimited
(Subsidiary) InterestIncome onLoanandInterCorp0l'nte Deposita

11) Other Transactions
LoanGiven
LoanRepaid
Expenses incurred on behalfof Related Party
Expenses incurredon behaIfus

e) Outstanding Recetvable
InterCorporate Deposit
Interestaccrued buLnotdue
Advance

2,[16

14,50
36,00
0,08

14,37
16,74
1.52

9,<)7

134,20
246,53

1.13

36.37
14.88

1.44

16 HLTResidency PrivateLimited
(Subsidiary)

17 OneBangIare LuxuryPr\liectLLP
(JointVenture)

n) Inceme
InterestIncome onLoanandIntel' Corporate Deposits

b) Other Transactions
LoanGiven
LonnRepaid
ExpsPaidon behalfofHLT

c) Olltitauding BalancesReceivables
InterCOlpomle Deposit
SundyCreditors
lnterestaccrued bntnot dne

a) Income
Saleof Branding Fee

b) Other Transactions
InvesbnentmadeLLP

14,00

2.02
12,83

O.Oi

153.40

54.53

6.34

1.20

14.99

6.35
11.75
1.67

i64.2J
(1.67)
40.65



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
/01' th~ year ended 31 March 2023

31,2 Related Pal'ly Transactions
(i!' in ereres)

s-. No. Party Nnme Nature ofTransaction For year ended Foryearended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

18 PromontHillside Privatelimited a) Income
[Subsidiary) InterestIncome on LOI\II andInterCorpomre Deposits 33,99 50,60

b}Other Trananctions
LaanGiven 6.30 9,10
LaanRepoid 192,82

c) Outstanding BalancesReceiyables
InterCorpor~te Deposit 378.89 372,59
Interestaccrued hut notdue 33.90 0,08

I' HLPromoters PrivateLimiled a) Other Transactions
(JointVenture) Expensesincurredon bchalfof'Relntcd Party 0.01 0,01

Saleof material 0.17

bl Outstanding BalancesReceivables
Advnnee Recoverable 0.05 0.05
SundryDebtors 0.17

c) Onl1ltanding BalancesPayable
SundryCreditors

20 aile Colombo Projcct(Private) Limited a) Income
(Subsidiary) Guerentee Commission 0,92 0.90

bl Outstanding BalancesReceivables
Advancerecoverable 16,09 1.89

c) Outstanding BalancesPayable
SundrvCreditors

21 Snwt V~l\le Homes(BOISAR) PrivateLimited a) InC<lll1~

(Subsidiary) InterestIncome onLoUD andInterCorporate Deposits 6.38 5.84

h) OtherTrnnsactions
LoanGiven 8,84 16,18
loan Repcid 7.00 3,00
Expensesincurred on behalfofRelatedParty

c) Outstanding BalancesReceivables
InterCorporate IJ<,posit 73.99 72.15
Interestaccruedb\ltnotdue 21.98 15.74

22 Technopolis Knowledge PurkLimitcd a}Other Transactions
(Subsidiary) Expenses incurredon bchalfof Related Pnrty . .

b) Outstanding BalancesReceivables
Advance 0.05

c) Outstandiug BalancesPayable
SundryCreditors (0.05)

23 WurldOneDevelopment Co.PteLimited a) Income
(Snbsidimy) InterestIncome onLoanandIuterCorporate Deposits

bl Other Transactions
LoanGiven

c) Outstanding BalancesReceivable,
Interestaccrued butnotdue 10,91)

InterCorporate Deposit 159.31 134.44
SundryDebtors 0.63 0,57

24 SmnrtVuIue Homes(NewProject) LLP a) Ontstanding BnlancesPayable
(JointVenture) SundryCreditors 0,15 0.15

25 TitanCompany Limited a) Expenses
(Associate of ParentCOlnpany) SellingExpenses 0.24 0.11

b) Outstanding BalaacesReceivables
Advance (I.0J (0.03)

26 TatllAlG Geneml lrumr~llee Company Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Insurance Premium paid 0.09 l.OR

b) Other Transaction
ClaimReceived 0.00 0.13

c) Outstanding BalancesReceivables
CD Balance 0,00 0.07
Prepaid .

~1~!~i~r l~\
--

16 ~'~\{"

•(~j?~fII ~Co
:::0
0
0:
s:



Tata HousingDevelopment Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2023

31.2RelatedParty Transactions
m crcres

Sr. No. Party Name Nature cf Transaetion For year ended Fo"year ended
31 March 2023 31March 2022

27 TamConsultancy Services Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Professloual Fees 5.40 5.82

bl Other Transaction
Purchase of'Iutangiblcs Assets 0.03 0.31

c) OutstandingBalancesPayable
SundryCreditors 1.43 0.26

27 TateTcleserviee Limited n) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Adminisrtetive andOibcrExpenses 0,17 0.14

b) OutstnndingBalancesPayable
Sund 'Creditors 0.02 0.04

29 TalaElectronics PrivateLimited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiury) Administrative andOlherExpenses .

30 TataMedicalandDiagnostics Limited 0) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiury) Administrntive andOtherExpenses .

31 TataTeleserviccs Mabamshtra Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Administrative andOlherEl.'Penses 0,21 0.11

b) OutstandingBalaucesPayable
Sundry Creditors 0,01 0,01

32 TalaCommunications Limited a) Expeuses
(Fellow Subsidiury) Repairs andMaintenance.Other~ 4,57 6.]()

b}OutstandingBalancesPayable
SundtyCreditors 0.05 \.01

33 TataAlALifeInsurance Co.Limited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Insurance PrCJ1limn paid 0,16 0.21

b) OutstandingBalancesPayable
SundrvCreditors 0.37

34 TheIndian Hotels Company Limited a) Expenses
(Associate of'PerentCnlnpuny) Administrative andOd,erExpenses 0,39 0.23

b) Ont,tauding BnlancesPayable
Sundry Creditors 0.04 0.00

35 volresLimited aJ Expenses
(Associate nfPurentCompany) Repairs andMaintenance - Others 0,66 0./3

Rent 2.87 2.76

b) Outstanding ualances Receivable
Deposits 1.27 1.27

b) Ontstanding BalancesPayable
SundtyCreditors 0.00 0.04

36 TataSonsPrivalcLimited a) Expellses
(Holding Company) Profe~~iounJ Fee~ 0,01 0.01

Expenses incurred by Related PartyOll cor behalf 0,22 0.56

b) OutstandingBalance, Receivable
Advance 45.07 44,53

b) OutstandingBalancesPayable
Sundry Creditors 0.01



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

31.2 Related Party Trnnsactions
I~ in crores)

Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction For year ended For year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

37 Infulity RetailLimited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) SeHull; Expenses 0.03 0.15

b) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors 0.00

38 DurgShivnsth Expressway.; a) Finance costs
(Fellow Subsidiary) InterestExpen.se on InterCorporate Deposits 0.82

b) Outstanding BalancesPayable
SundrvCreditors

39 ArrowInfrnestate PrivateLimited a) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) Renl 1.09 1.07

b) Outstanding Balances Receivable
SecurityDeposit 0.31 0,31

c) Outstanding Balances Payable
S~)l-;~~Creditors 0,10 0.28

40 GurgecnRcaltcchLimited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsid1my) Rent 0,22 0.15

b) Ontstanding Balances Receivable
SecurityDeposit 0.06 0.06

c) Outstanding BalancesPayable
Suudr)" Creditors 0,03 0.03

41 TATA CoffeeLimited a) Expenses
(Associate of ParentCompany) lnterestExpenseon InterCorporale Deposits 0.74

b) OlherTransactjon
LoanTaken 30,01)
LoanRepaid 60,00

b) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors

42 Ecofrrst ServicesLimited a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Receiving ofServices 0.05

b) Ontstanding BalancesPayable
Sundlj'Creditors 0.05

43 TATAiMG Hcalthcarc SolutionsPvtLtd a) Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary!) Receivingof Services 0,03

b) Income
Rent Income 0,32

b) Outstanding BalancesReceivahle
SundryDebtors 0.21

c) Outstanding BnlnncesPayable
Sundlj'Creditors

44 TheTutuPowerCompany Ltd aj Income
(Fellow Subsidiary) ProjectManagement Consultancy 4.47

b) Outstanding BalancesPayable
Sundlj'Creditors

45 DirectorB Dircr/or Sitting F"'j
S.Santhallllkrishnan 0.06
SuohetaShah 0.06
DileopChoksi 0,06
Bnnmali Agrawnla 0,01 0,01
S~ndh}'a Kudtarkar 0.12 0,02
NipnnAggarw"1 0,01
Kamceh Parekh 0,12 0,01

D.not.. figm..", b.l"" H..5C,OOU



Tata Housing Development CompanyLimited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
[01' IheyeaI'ended 31 MUl'Ch 2023

32 Provision for customer compensation and contingencies for customers claim

Provision is made for eSlimatedcompensation cl~irns to be p~id to cuslomer~ in respecl of delay in hllJlding over possessionof flats. Thcsc
claims are expected to be set~cd in fue next financial yell!", Ma[logemenl makes f1l\ eSlimateof fue provision based 011 expecled time len for
de!ivcl1' and takUlg intu con~iderotion puslexperiences.

(l'lnOl'o,,,j

A.ot ill ,I
31 M"ch2023 Jl MM,h 2U<2

P",ni.lnnfor Cnntlng,,,d,, rot
,,,,tomor> <blrn

A"t M"
31M""h20ZJ 31M,,,,h2022

P,ovI.lon ont.t,n~f"g " ot tb. b.gil"rlllg 0r,h, y<ot

AJd;AJdl,joo''''p""';,lo,,.

L,,,:Utiii,,lion

l'rovi,ionoul,t,n,li"g ...lth"ndofth'l"'.,(,xpoot,dtob,i"'LL"""witbi" "
y.,M)

33 Expenditure on Corporate SodRI Responsibility

5,80

HO
~.45

8.4l

12.54

19.'9

;2,11

26.('S

>.36

J2j4

10 In ","0'"

A11\""nt,'oq"i"d to ho ,p,nt " po<s"~",, 13; of tho Act

Fot tho Yo" End.d for 'h, Y"otEnJ,d
31 M"ch2[12j 31 MMoh2U<2

Amo"nt p,iM,p,nt d",lns tho y." ,,'"

(;)Con,'ru'liu"I'<qui,j'lonol"<LYU.""1

(ii)O"p"'l'",o,,,lh,,th".Ci),oov,

A",ou"tJ~t to b, pRI,1;

(i)COLlSlruction,l"qLlI,jlionofony",,1

(iilO"pu'p,,,,,oth,,th,n(i).oov,

Tot.l

1.02

U2

(1.18

o,n

(b) D01ails ofrelated parlyfrmlSQclions" s,o,.ergiZ0r:'l Sustainable FoundQ(]on (a Section 25 compeny incorporated underthe Ccmpll11ioi Act. 1956
conlrolledbylhe Company)
Contributionsdtlring the yell!" ended 31 March 2023: ~ 0,97 crore" (31 MElI'Ch 2022: ~ 0.78 crores)
P<I)'lIble as at 31 Murch 2023 - ~ Nil crores(a, at 31 Morch2022: ~ Nil crore,)

34 Micro, Small lind Medinm Enterprises

B~,ed on llle infoUllolion nvnilnble ",ilh the ComplUlY, the balance due10micro and smailontcrprises as defmed under the Micro, Small lUld
Medium Enterprises Devclopmont(MSMED) Act, 2006is ~ Nil (31 Morch 2022:~ Nil) f1l\d no iuterest h~s been paidor is payable durltlg the
year under the term,of the MSMED Acl, 2006, The inf",mQlionprovided by IheComp""y hos bee" relied UpOll by lhe auditors

P."U,,,Io,,

•. Amou,," po}~blo 10,u~l'li", "nd,,, M8MED(,,,ppli,rs) " 0031 M,,,10202]

l',inol",,1
1"I,r<,'ou,'II","o"

10, P'~I"'"'' ",od. ,,, '''pplim b,y"'," tho 'PI,oi""," <loy d"rlns ,ho ~•• [

P,i,,,I!,,,1

fnt,,,,,tdllotlLOfOon

" Amoull'"flo""''' duo,n" p,'yo!>l. f"L' ",t"y In I',~,u"nl (whi,h h,,,, boo"I'oid h"I\><}ulld Ib, .ppoint,d <loy d"Ling'ho ;~a[)

b"'wil!lOLL[O,lolillglh,i""Lc,tLlud,,MSMED

35 IND AS 115 - Revenue front Contracts witb Customers

n) Significontc],lIlIges io contract liubilitie,balances are nsfollows:

C""tl·",U"btlltv

AI'h,",,~i",,;nfof'h,ropo,tillgIl<'LioJ

ClUn"loliv,"t,lt_up .olju,lm,nls ,£footingconlm,lliol>ili'y

AtItl< 'nJ or 'h. ",pOtring pert",!

b) Re~olldlin1ion of "evenue reeogni~etl in 1heStatement of Profit nnrlLO!i

r"ticul."

.'1.,,1 A",
31 M"ch 20ll 31 M,,,,h2022

AA" A,ut

31 M."h2G23 l\ Mu",h2f122

24G,3i 261HI

(190M) (1423)

~';.7~ 2Q6,3i

31 M.roh2D2l JI M.",h2f122

334.5t 475,14

(4,lI)
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

36 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act

The details of loans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 of tile Act read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 are as follows:

A. Details of investments made by the Company as on 31 Marcil 2023 (including investments made in the previous year)
(~in emres)

Investment in equity shares

Name of the entity

ConceptDeveloper & Leasing Limited

Tata Value Homes Limited

ApexRealtyPrivateLimited

ArdentPropertiasPrivateLimited

KridayRealty Private Limited

Promont Hillside Private Limited

Promont Hilltop Private Limited

Sector 113 GatevidaDevelopers Private Limited

World-One Development CompanyPte, Limited

Kolkata-OneExcelton Private Limited

SyaergizersSustainableFoundation

Princeton InfrastructurePrivate Limited

'" a
31 March 20t3

0,8g

800,00

0,06

77.88

O.ot
0.01

95.44

OM
10.91)

O.ot

30.08

1,015,28

During the year

36,98

36,98

A<
31 Mllrch2022

0,88

800,00

0,06

40.90

0.01

0.01

95.44

0,01

10,90

0,01

30.08

978.30

Investment in Preference Shares
Name ef the entity

Ornate Housing Private Limited

Investment in Other Non-current investments
Name of the enfity

One Bangalore Luxury Prujects LLP

Sohna CityLLP

Investment in Comnulsorilv Convertible Debentures

(:t'in emres)

Asat During theyear A<
31 Ma"th 2023 31 Mnrch 2022

0,05 0,05

(:t'in ereres)

As at During theyear A<
31 Mal"th 2023 31 March 2022

158,02 (1.20) 159,22

131.39 2,60 128,79

289.41 1.40 288,01

(i{ in c,'ores)

Name of the entity

Ardent PropertiesPrivate Limited

As at
31 Mal"ch2023

79,99

During the year A<
31 March 2022

79,99



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

36 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act (Continued)

The details ofloans, guarantees and investments under Section 186 ofthe Act read with the Companies (Meetings ofBoard and its

Powers) Rules, 2014 are as follows:

B. Details of leans given by the Company arc as follows:
(~in crams)

A~ fit Loallgivenduring
31 Mnrch 2023 the year

Name of the entity (refer note 1)

StandardFarms Private Limited *
Premont HillsidePrivateLimited

Kriday Really Private Limited

PrincetonInfrastructurePrivateLimited

Tata Value Homes Limited

Sector 113 GatevidaDevelopersPrivate Limited

ArdentPropertiesPrivateLimited

ApexRealty PrivateLimited

World-OneDevelopmentCompanyPte. Limited"

HL T ResidencyPrivate Limited

SmartValue home (Boisar) Private Limited

Kclkata-OneExceltonPrivateLimited

Smart Value home (Peenya Project) PrivateLimited

THDC ManagementServices Limited

ConceptDevelopers& Leasing Limited

LandkartBuilders PrivateLimited

Rate ofintereBt
(p.R.)

18%

9%

9%

9%

9%

18%

9%

12%/10.65%

9%

9%

9%

12%

9%

9%

9%

9%

378.89

138.75

141.99

350.20

291.54

14.85

86.40

144.54

153.40

73,99

63.09

14.87

1.00

0.10

1,853.63

6.30

19.38

2.75

215.40

16,35

36.50

10.10

2.02

8.84

14.50

332.14

Loan refunded
during the year

1.60

22.00

38.20

158.00

72,50

12.83

7.00

15,30

36.00

0.68

364.11

"31 March2022

14.22

372,59

120.97

161.24

173.00

433.19

50.85

86.40

134.44

164.21

72,15

78.39

36.37

1.00

0.10

0,68

l,S99.81

Note 1:
Purpose of utilization ofloan given to the entities - Genera! purpose loan
'"Provision against the said leD of~ 14.22 crores was written off during the year.
** Excludes foreign exchange gain of~ 14.77 crores on restatement of balance as at year end.

C. Details of Corporate Guarantee given by the Company are as follows
(~ill ercres)

Name of the entity

One colomboProjectPrivateLimited (US$ 46.3 MIl, As at 31
March 2022: US$ 48.3 Mn)

As at
31 Much 2023

380

380

During the year

so

Ac
31 March 2022

330

330



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2023

37 Assets pledged as Security

The carryingamountsof financial and non-financial assets pledgedas securityfor non-currentand current borrowings are disclosedbelow:

Particulars Refer As lit "'"'Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(A) CUI'rent

Flnnncilllllssels

First charge

Trade receivables 8(b) 51.85 67.63

Cashandcashequivalents 8(c) 154.28

Bank balances other than above S(d) 0,01

Loans See) 47,26 52,44

Otherfinancial assets '(Q 47.95 90,69

Non-flnanclal assees

First charge

Inventories 7 2,161.04 2,385,02

Total Cllneot assets pledged as security 2,308.10 2,750.07

(8) Non-current

Financial1l8sets

First charge

Investments 4(a) 990.37 1,056.68

Loans 4{b) 1,417.76 1,596.01

Total non-currents assets pledged 9Ssecurity 2,408.13 2,652.69

Total assets pledged as security 4,716.23 5,402.76
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
{pr Iheye"r ,,,,w3/ Mareh 2023

(tine,...... )

Sr, No. Il'"'~.'~n'" Foomuln 31 Mn,'<h,20lJ J\ ~Jo,'<h,21122
% ,h,ng<" ",np,1'od t. R,,,,,,k

pr",,~lngl"'r

(0) Cu,ro.IR'I;" C.",.IA,,,"/Curnnl 1.08 0,99 " llolo ,,,,n,,;n,llOrtl,,m

Linbilil;., bun~wi"~, ,,,d o,h" '''''',,'
ii'biHli"

'") D,bl.Eq"ilyR,lio No"_,,,,,ont bulrtlwhl.ll' + 1.12 1,31 ·14% DU'lo,I,,,,,,,lnoo"owing,
C"",,,'bormwi,,g,.IN,t,

(0) D,b' So",i" Cov",ng, Ro'io Pmfil ,nor In' ,.d b,fore 0.34 O.lS _12% 0.""" in iongl<rlTI d,l>l
fin'"'' <0''', P'p",;,,;o","d po)',,,o'
Amort;"lion"",llo"on"l,
offixndn""t,I(Gro"P;n,,,co
eo".Prinoip,ll"l',,,,,tof
lon~ 10"" d'),l d"nns Ih<
p,riod)

'"J ROlLIn' onEq"ityRn,;o !'rot\\nnor,,, I'" pr.f, (0,24) o.
divi~,n~if,uy! Avorog,Nol

(0) I"v,nl",,,l,,mo"',, "'Ii" COGS ,,,.1,1., I Ayo"g, O.lS O.2~ ·10% D,,, 10<l,,,,,,,I"t.,00,or
lnvonlo

(Q Tmo' R,,,,iv,bl,, tur""v" 'otio N,tCredil~'I" IAv,,"-lI' 6.3a 5.lG .;0

" u,

'" TIlLI.i,pnl"'blo,tumovnrmlio N,tC"dilpu"h,,, IA",,,'.go O.W 0.10 _64% Du,to<l,or"";nc,,,dito,"
T,,",Pmhl.

(0) N,I"pil.llUrnovormLi" N'ISal" IWorkinsCapilai 2,09 (11.41)1 ·llS% DLI'IOI"',it<vonol,LI,,-<nl

""I,
(I) N'I profitrotio I'rofirnnor'nxIN'ISnl" (Ul)1 (0.0,) 745~04

Dll,lo"npni,m,n'tnk".
J\lrlnglh,;~orooi"vo'l,"oo"

ondilllor,mpornl,d'po,H,

m Rolumon Copit,1cmploj<d EBITI C,pil,1 Emplo;~d (0,14) D.l2 _217% DLlololmp,;,m,nll.k,,,
d"ri"gtlo,;~"o,im'''tm,n''

,n~ illioroorr"""" d,p,,,;,.

(k) R,t'," "" i""",,.,,l (M""l"luoof'LI",nl
im'"lm,nl,tonoofp,rioJ_
M"bltvolu,of,",,,,1
invo",,,,,o'ot'h'b<si"";nso{
p,rio<l}-n,t""hflow,IMork<t
V.hlOO[""",,';",~,ILll<nlnl

'h,b,gintUngofporiod

J9 Ex<'pt" o;,elo,,";n 'ho iIlbl, b,low, no fund, I,.", 1>". mh~Jl"d or 10",0 or i",~,t,d (,HIl" nom b""o",,J nmd'"r."." p"m;LL"OI'nnyoth" '0"""or kiuo off"od,) by Ib, Comp,ny10or;n ,ny olhor
t'<",on(.) "on'it)'(i,), ;"dLl~;'~ fu,,;gn on'iti" C·lolorm,o;"i.,"), wi'h 'ho ""d"",,,o;,,!!. whdhor "<,,,mOll i. wL'iH"g or 011""",,,, Ih'l 'ir' I"Mm,dinry ,hnll. di"'otly", i"di"o<ly 1,,<1Of in"",1 in olhor
I"',>on, or 'nlili" iti<,",ir.<~I" ."y "lo",,"r "hot""",, b~ or on bol",l[ofth, C"mp<Ln)" ("'UIl;""", BO"LOfLC;.ri,,") or pr"Yio, nJl}' g,,,,,nt,,. ""rily or I]" Ii~, on Oon,lfoftl", Ullin'",o B,odl,i,ri,,'

For tho yo," ."~,,lll AI'l'd, 2~2J' (I ... In cro=)

Dote of 'Typo of In""l'nont Amounl Nom'of Dnto "ffU,lh,r Typo of Inl'o<lmoni A'nounl N.m,of
noco;plby Inler"wdl"ty ,dv"nco~by n.n"fid"ty

lhoComp'"y Co,. Int ..m.<ll,,')' Co,.
Co,. 10 Ulllm.l,
Benofid"ry Co,

JQ-M.,-.2.1 10l<,,'C"~\onl'.D'p,,";t 2,Q2 UI.TR<';~",")" 31>-M,l_2J illtorCorpornt,P,p<J,;, 2.02 fILI'",,,o""
Pri,,'o LilTIil,~ Pri""t,Lim;l,d

,1-F'l>-lJ ILL'<o'Co'P"nl" D'po,lt 1O.W W"dd-Ono 23_F'1>-23 InlorCorp""",D<p<l~' 10.10 'Wodo_On,(SL"i
D,,,,,lop""eo' 1..."&)1",*'"
C"LlljlOnyPI" Plo,Li",;I'~ ,n~

Limh,d [ulth<r,o
'O"'Colombo
Pn1"'(Privtl")

~-or th. y'" ,n~,d 31 M",h 20n,

D",o of T)'pe "fl"ro'IOl'n,
Re'elplb)'

tlloCompL'lny

Amonnl N"moof Dntooflurthor Typ, of Im·o,(m,nl AmDunt N.uueof
lntormodl.ry "d,..n<e~by BonofirlOl'Y

Co,. Inlormodl.ry '"'
CO'.toUlt;mn'o
non'ficlnr;,C",

3,10 HL'1'R<,;Jo,"j' 27_A"~'21 1nl"Cerpom"D<p<l,il 3,10 HL1'mmo""
Pri;,.'ol.;mil'~ I'rivoL<I.;mi"J

3,25 HL'1'R,,;donov 20-S<p-21 Inl''''C"",,",,,, D<rosi' 3.25 HLProm"""
l"i"OloLimi"d l'de".Limit,d
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40 IND AS 1I6 Disclosure:

Company as a Lessor:
The Company has no assets that are given out on lease and hence has no there is no impact in the current financialyear,

Company liS IILessee:

A) Breakdown or lease expenses

Pnrnculars
Short-termIea'e expen,e

Low vallie lea,e expense

Total lease expense

B) Maturity analysis
Pnrticull1rs

31 Ml,rch 2023

31 Morch 2023
2.80

2,80

Less than
I )'ear

(t In erures)

31 Ml1reh 2022
3,37

3,37

Between 1 and 2 years 2 and 5 years

('fin eronl)

Ovcr 5 years Weigltted average
erreceve Interest

rlltc%

Repaymentof lenselinbllilies

Intorcslon leaseliabilitic5

Tollll

31 March 2022

Lellie liabilities

RepElY'ncnl oflc"sc Ii"bilitie,

Intere,t on JeElS.li"bilitles

Total

2,03 2Jl 6,32 0,73

0,78 0,63 0,79 0.02

2.81 2.94 7.11 0.75

1.84 2,00 4.13 5.16

0,96 0.81 1.33 0.12

2,80 2.81 5.51 5,28

7,84%

7,84%

7.84%

7,84%

41 Otlter Statutory Information

i) TI,e Compm'Y doe. not have "nJ"Benamlproperty, where alIyproeoedinghas been initiatedorpcnding againsttho Compnnyfor holdingany Bonamiproperly

ii) The Compmlydoe. nol have Elll)" trmlSllctions with companies,truck off.

iii) The Companydocs nol hovonnyeharge, or .'ati.f"ctionwhichis yet to be regi,tered withROC beyondthe ,tahltoryperlod

iv) TlIo Companyhas not tradedor invesledin Cryplocurrencyor Vfrlual Currencyduring the Clnllllcial year.

v) TlleCompanydocs nol have an)"slIchtrllns"ctionwhlollIs not l'ecordedin the books ofaeen""l' that h~s been surrendel'ed or di,olo,ed a, incomeduringthe year in the tax
asse.,menl, under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (,uch ElB, ,earol, cr ,~rveyor ,,"yother relevanlprovi,Ionsof the IncomeTnxAcl, 19(1).
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Notes to Standalone financial statements (Continued)
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42 Subsequent events
There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date.

43 Previous period figures have been regrouped! reclassified wherever necessary, to confirm to current period's classification in order to comply with the
requirements ofthe amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

In termsof our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W!W-100022

Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tnta Housing Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

~ tA &: ~...ur
.;~,\~~,:' ~V~ Snnjay Dun

Director {) Managing Director
DIN: 00120029 DlNNo: 05251670

.>
'" Company Secretary

Membership No: A20154

Place: Murnbai
Date: 18 May 2023 Date: 18 May 2023



B S R & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

14th Floor, Central B Wing and North C Wing,
Nesco IT Park 4, Nesco Center,
Western Express Highway,
Goregaon (East), Mumbal ~ 400063, India
Telephone: +91 (22) 6257 1000
Fax: +91 (22) 6257 1010

Independent Auditor'S Report
To the Members of Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tata Housing Development Company limited
(hereinafter referred to as the "Holding Company") and its subsidiaries (Holding Company and. Its
subsidiaries together referred to as 'the Group"), its joint ventures, which comprise the consolideted
balance sheet as at 31 March 2023, and the consolidated statement of profit and Ie)SS (including other
comprehensive income), consolidated statement of changes In equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, end notes to the consolidated financial statements, Including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as "the
consolidated financial statements"),

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate audited consolidated financial statements
of such subsldlarles and Joint ventures as were audited by the other auditors the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("Acf') In the manner so
required and give a true and fair view In conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted ln
India, of tha consolidated state of affairs of the Group and Its joint ventures as at 31 March 2023, of its
consolidated loss and other comprehensive loss, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash
flows for theyear then ended,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) speclfled under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further desorlbsd in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statementssectioh of our report, We are
Independent of the Group and Its joint ventures in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fu[filled our
other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence
obtained by us aiong with the consideration of reports of the other auditor(s) referred to in paragraph (a)
and (b) ofthe "Other Matters" section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Malters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional jUdgment and based on the consideration of
reports of other auditors on separate financlal statements of components audited by them, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the currant period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consoUdated financial statements as a Whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of Key Audit Matter:

Registered Office:

B S R& Co. (£I parltlt!l'llhlp IIWlWilhRaglsln'lllon No. BA61223) converted tntcB S R & Co.LLP (a 141il Floor,cennsr8 Wing and NorthC WJn~, Nescorr Park4, NosC(l
UmnedLlabmw pertnersh'p with lLP Reglstrallon No,MB-81Blj wllh errecifromOctober 14,2013 Cenler,WaslemI::xpress Highway, Garegaon (Easl),Ml,lmbal ~ 400063
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Key Audit Malter reported in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company

60lhg Concern as~essnrent ,See Nole 1 (~I of Consolidate!! "inanclal Statemehts •

The key audit matter------_.._---
How the matter was addressed in our audit

._-+--------_._---_._-------
As indicated in the abovementioned note the
Holding Company'sdebts repayable in theyear
ended 31 March 2023 and interest thereon
aggregate RsJ,704.13 crores. The Holding
Company has projected cash outflows from
operations in the aforesaid period.

The Hoiding Company's abiiity to continueas a
going concern is dependent upon its ability to
negotiate/ renegotiate its financing
arrangements with eXisting/prospective
lenders.

In View of the signiftcance of the matter, we
have identified the assessment of the going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

In assessing the going concern assumption used in
preparing the financial statements, our procedures
included the following:

Evaluated the Holding Company's assessment
of the cash flow requirements of the Holding
Company based on budgets and forecasts of
future cash fiows which ware provided to us.

Comparedthe cash flow forecast prepared In the
prior year Including the underlying data and
assumptions used therein with the actual
amounts in the current year.

Read the credit ratings of the Holding
Company's instruments and ascertained the
maximum borrowing amount available to the
Holding Company based on the said ratings.

Examined the past history of the Holding
Company In refinancing Its borroWings and term
sheets from prospective lenders, raising funds to
ascertain the availability of financing to the
Holding Company.

• Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
flnenclal statements relating to uncertalntlesand
mitigation thereof.

• c

R!lvenue Recognition· See Note 16 of Gonsolidatnd I;jnancial Statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in out' audit____--._.._._ ._c· _

--------

tPage 2 of 11,

Identification and evaluation of the deSign and
implementation of key controls over existence
and recording of revenue reoognised for the
projects along with the testing of operating
effeotlvenessthereo~

Evaluating the oriteria applied by the Holding

Out' audit procedures on Revenue recognition
included the following:

Evaluate the Holding Company's revenue
recognition accounting policies, their application
to the customer contracts vis a vis the
requirements of the applicable accounting
standards;

Revenues from sale of residential units
represents the largest portion of the total
revenues of the Holding Company.

In acoordance wlth Ind AS 115 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, the analysis of
whether these contracts comprise of one or
more performanceobligations, and whether the
performance obligations are satisfied over time •
or at a point In time, are areas requiring critical
jUdgement by the Holding Company. Revenue
is recognised upon transfer of control of
residential and commercial units to customers
for an amount that reflects the oonslderatlon •which the Holding Company expects to reoeive
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--' ._--_._-----

Revenue Is measured at the fair value.of the
consideration received! accrued. Revenue Is
adjusted for estimated cost pending to be •
Incurred by the Holding Company for the
completion of the project,

In exchange for those units and the customer
has the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset.

The risk for revenue being overstated
represents a key audit matter due to the
financial significance and geographical spread
of the Holding company's projeots across
different regions ln India.

•

Company for determining the point In time at
which revenue Is recognised;

Conducting slte visits during the year for
seleoted projects to understand the scope,
nature and progress of the projects

Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in
the standaloneflnanclal statementsin respectof
the judgments taken in recognising revenue for
residential and commercial property units in
accordancewith Ind AS 115.

Considering the signlficanoe of revenue to the
financial statements the same has been
considered as a key audit matter.

,
Net realisable value (NRV) of Inventories· See Note 8 of Consolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit
--------_..._---

Page 3 of 1f, 1

We have tested the NRV of the inventories to its
carrying value in books on sample basis.

Our audit proceduresIncludedthe following:

Evaluate the Holding Company's accounting
policies for inventory vis a vis the requirements
of the applicable accountingstandards;

• We evaluated the design and implementation of
controls over determination of NRV of
Inventories including the process, methodology
and key assumptionson seiling price, estimated
cost to complete the project and tested the
operatingeffectivenessthereof;

Evaluatethe HoldingCompany'sjudgementWith
regardsto applioation of wrile-down of Inventory
units by auditing the key estimates, data inputs
and assumptionsadopted in the valuations.

Comparing the estimated construction costs to
complete each project with the Holding
Company'supdated budgets.

The Holding Company's Inventory comprise of
ongoing and completed real estate projects,
Inventory of the projects which have not yet
commenced,As at at March2023, the carrying
values of inventories amounts to Rs. 2,161
crores,

In'ientory may be held for long periods of tlrne
before sale making It vulnerable to reduction in
net realisable value (NRV). This could result in
an overstatement of the value of inventory
when the carrying value is higher than the
NRV.

Assessing NRV

NRV is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs necessary to make the sale and
estimated .costs of completion (in case of

•construction work In- progress). The inventory
of finished goods and construction work-in­
progress is not written down below cost when
completed flats! under-constrnetlon flats!
properties are expected to be sold at or above
cost.
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For NRV assessment, the estimated selling
price is determined for a phase, sometimes
comprising multiple units. The assessment and
application of write-down of Inventory to NRV
are subject to significant judgement by the
Holding Company.

As such Inappropriate assumptions In these
JUdgements cen impact tha assessment of the
carrying value of inventories.

Considering significance of the amount of
carrying Value of inventories in the financial
statements and the Involvement of significant
estimation and Judgement in such assessment
of NRV, the same has been considered as key
audit matter.

__-1.. ..

Key' Audit Matter reported in the standalone Ind AS financial statements of Tata Value Homes
Limited (TVHL), a wholly owned subsidiary of Holding Company

Going Concern assessment - See Note 1 (til of Consolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter

As indicated in the abovementioned note, the
TVHL has projected cash outfiows from
operations in the aforesaid period. The TVHL's
ability to continue as a .going concern is
dependent upon Its ability to negotlatel
renegotiate Its financing arrangements with
existinglprospective lenders.

In view of the significance of the matter, we
have identified the assessment of the going
concern assumption as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

In assessing the going concern assumption used in
preparing the financial statements, our procedures
included the following;

EValuated the TVHL's assessment of the cash
flow requirements of the TVHL based on
budqets and forecasts of future cash flows which
were provided to us.

Comparedthe cash flow forecast preparedin the
prior year including the underlying data and
assumptions used therein with the actual
amounts in the current year.

Read the credit ratings of the TVHL's
instruments and ascertained the maximum.
borrowing amount available to the TVHL based
on the said ratings.

Examined the past history of the TVHL in
refinancing Its borrowings and term sheets from
prospective lenders, raising funds to ascertain
the availability of financing to the TVHL.

• Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
financial statements relating to uncertaintiesand
mitigation thereof.

Page 4 of 1~
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Revellue RecQgnltion • See Note 22 of Ci:lr1solidatedFinancial statements '

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Identification and evaluation of the design and
Implementation of key controls over existence
ano recording of revenue recognised for the
projects along with the testing of operating
effectivenessthereof;

Ervaluating the criteria applied by the TVHL for
determiningthe point in time at which revenueIs
recognised;

Conducting site visits during the year for
selected projects to understand the scope,
nature and progress of the projects;

Considering the adequacy of the disclosures in
the standalonefinancialstatementsIn respect of
the judgments taken In recognising revenue for
residentlai and commercial property units In
accordance with Ind AS 115.

Out audit procedures on Revenue recognition
includedthe following:

Evaluate the TVHL's revenue recognition
accounting policies, their application to the
customer contractsvis a vis the requirementsof
the applicable accountlnqstandards;

Revenue from sale of residential units
represents the largest portion of the total
revenue of the TVHL.

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of th<l
conslderatlon received/ accrued, R<lvenue is
adjusted for estimated cost pendlnq to be
incurred by th<l TVHL M the completlon of the
project.

in accordance with Ind AS 115 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, the analysis of
whether these contracts comprise of one or
moreperformanceobligations,andWhether the •
performanceobligations are satisfied over time
or at a point In time, are areas requiring critical
judgement by the TVHL. Revenue Is
recognised upon transfer of control of
resldentlal andcornmsrclal units to customers
for an amount that reflects the conslderatlon
which the TVHL expects to receiveIn exchange
for tnose units and the customer has the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of •
the asset.

The risk fat revenue being overstated in an
Incorrect period represents a key audit matter
due to the financial significance and
g<lographical spread of the TVHL's projects
across different regions in India.

Gonsidering the significance of revenue to the
financial statements the same has been
considered as a key audit matter,
--------

Net realisable Value (NRV) of InventQries ·l;ee Note 8 of COhsolidated Financial Statements

The key audit matter
-------------,

How the matter was addressed in our audit
-------------------
Our eudlt proceduresincludedthe following:The TVHL's inventory compriseof ongoing and

completed real estate projects, inventoryofthe
projects which have not yet commenced.As at
31 March 2023, the carrying values of
inventoriesamounts to Rs. 193.59 crores.

Inventory may be held for long periods of time

• Evaluate the TVHL's accounting policies for
inventory vis a vis the requirements of the
applicable accountingstandards:

We evaluated the design end implementationof
controls over determination of NRV of

Page 5 of 1{,
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beforesale making It vulnerable to reduction in
net realisable value (NRV). Thiscould result in
an overstatement of the value of inventory
when the carrying value Is higher than the
NRV.

Assessing NRV

NRV is the estimated selling price In the
ordinary course of business, less estimated •
costs necessary to make the sale and
estimated costs of completion (in case of
construction work In- progress). The inventory
of finished goods and construction work-In­
progress is not written down below cost when
completed flatsl under-construction flatsl
properties are expected to be sold at or above
cos!.

For NRV assessment, the estimated selling
price Is determined for a phase, sometimes
comprising multipleunits.The assessment and
application of write-down of inventory to NRV
are subject to significant jUdgement by the
TVHL.

As such inappropriate assumptions in these
jUdgements can impact the assessment of the
carrying valueof Inventories.

Considering significance of the amount of
carrying value of inventories in the financial
statements and the involvement of significant
estimation and judgement In suchassessment
of NRV, the samehas been considered as key
audit matter.

inventories including the process, methodoloqy
and key assumptions on sellingprice, estimated
cost to complete the project and tested the
operating effectiveness thereof;

Evaluate the TVHL's judgementWith regards to
application of write-down of Inventory units by
auditing the key estimates, data Inputs and
assumptions adopted in the valuations.

Comparing the estimated construction costs to
complete each projectWith the THVL'supdated
budgets.

We havetested the NRVof the inventories to Its
carrying value in bookson samplebasis.

. ._.•..... .•_.--L _

Other Information

The Holding Company's Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the intorrnatlon Included In the Holding Company's annual report, but
does not Include the financial statements and auditor's reportsthereon. The Holding Company's annual
report Is expected to be made available to us after the dateof this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements doesnot coverthe other information andWe will not
express any form of assuranceconclusion thereon.

In connection with our auditof the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility Is to readthe other
Information identified above when it becomes available and, In doing so, consider Whether the> other
Information is materially inconsistent with the> consolidated financlai statements orourknowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiallymisstated.

Whenwe readthe Holding Company's annualreport, if we conclude that there is a material mlsetatement
therein, we are required to communicate the matterto those charged with governance and takenecessary
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actions, applicable underthe applicable laws and regulations,

Management's and Board of Directorl;'!Deslghated Partners' Responsibilities for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The Hoiding CompanY's Management and Soard of Directors are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated financial statements in termof the requirements of the Act that give
a trueandfair view of the consolidated state of affairs, consoildated profil/ lossand othercomprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes Inequity and consolidated cashfiowsof the Group Including
joint ventures In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, InclUding the
Indian Accounting Standards (IndAS)specified underSection 133oftheAct.Therespective Management
and Soard of Directors of the companiesI Designated Partners of the Limited liability Partnerships LLPs
included in the Group andthe respective Manaqernent and Board of Directors/Oeslqnated Partners of Its
joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of each company/LLP and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; the. selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
jUdgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
malntenanoe of adequate lntemalflnanctal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error, which havabeen used for the purposeofpreparationof the
consolidated financial statamants by the Management and Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respecdve Management and Board of Directors of
the Companies/ Designated Partners of the LLPs included in the Group andthe respactlve Managemant
and Board of DirectorS/Daslgnated Partners of its joint ventures are responslble for assessing the ability
of each company/Ll.P to continue as a goingconcern, disciasing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unlass the respective Board of
Directors/Designated Partners eitherintends to liquldate tha Company/LLP or to-cease operations, or has
no realistic alternatlva but to do so.

The respective Board of Diractors of the Companies/ Deslgnatad Partners of the Lt.Ps included in the
Groupandthe respectlva Management and Board of Directors/Dasignatad Partners, of its joint ventures
are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of each company/LLP.

Auditor's Responsibilities fer the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material mlsstatement, whetherdue to fraud or error, and to lssue an auditor's
reportthat includesouropinion. Reasonable assurance Isa highlevelof assurance, but isnota guarant",,,
that an auditconducted in accordance withSAswill always detecta material misstatement whenIt extsts.
Misstatements canarisefromfraudor errorandareconsidered material If, individually or in theaggragate,
they could reasonably ba expected to influence tha economic dacisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidatad financial statements.

As partof an audit in accordance With SAs, we exerclse professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout tha audit.We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether dUE> to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basisfor our opinion. The riskof
notdetacting a material misstatemant resulting fromfraud is higher than for oneresulting from error,
as fraud may Involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or tha override of
internal control.

• Obtain an understandlnq of internal control relevant to tha audit in order to designauditprocedures
thatara appropriate in the circumstances. UnderSection 143(3)(i) of the Act,we are alsoresponsible
for expresslnp our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls with
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reference to financial statements in place and the opereting effectiveness of suchcontrols.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.

Conclude onthe appropriateness of theManagement andBoardofDirectors useof the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty existsrelated to events or conditions thatmaycast
significant doubton the appropriateness of thisassumption. If weconclude thata material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw allention in our auditor's report to the related dlsclcsures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if Such disclosures are Inadequate, to rnodi!}' our opinion. Ow'
conclusions are basedon the auditevidence obtained up to the dateof our auditor's report. However,
futureevents or conditions may causethe Groupand ItsJoint venture to cease to continue as a going
concern.

• Evaluate the OVerall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
inclUding thedisclosures, andwhetherthe consolidated financial statements represent theunderlying
transactions and events In a mannerthat achieves fair presentation.

• Obtain .ufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of such entities or
business activities withlri the Group and itsJointventure to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit
of the financial statements of such entitlesIncluded in the consolidated financial statements of which
Wlil am the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the oonsolidated financial
statements, Which have been audited by other audltors, such other auditors remain responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely
responsible for our auditopinion. Our responsibilities in this regard arefurtherdescribed in paragraph
(a) and (b) of the section titled "OtherMailers" in this audit report.

We communicate with those Charged wIth governance of the Holding Company and such other entities
included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding,
among other mailers, the pjannad scope and liming of the audit and significant audit firidings, inclUding
any significantdeficiencies in Internal control that we identifyduringour audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that We have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relatlonshlps and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the mailers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current periodand
are therefore the key .,udll matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a mailer shouldnot be communicated in our reportbecause the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the publicinterestbenefitsof such communication.

Page80flb
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'Other Maller(s) , '

a. We did not audit the financial statements of 11 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets (before consolidation adlusfrnents) of Rs. 1,215orasat 31 March 2023, total revenues (before
consolidation adjustments) of Rs.60 cr and net cash inflows (before consolidation adjustments)
amounting to REL18 cr for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial
statements. The consolidated financial statements also Include the Group's share of net loss (and
other comprehensive Income) of Rs, 24 cr for the year ended 31 March 2023, In respect of 4 Joint
ventures, Whose flnanclal statements havenot been audited by us. These financial statements have
beenaudited by otherauditor whose reports havebeenfurnished to us by the Management and our
opinion all the consolidated financial statements, in so faras It relates to theamounts anddisclosures
Included in respect of thesesubsidiaries andjoint ventures, andour report In termsof sub-section (3)
ofSection 143of theAct, in sofar as it relates to theaforesaid subsidiaries andjoint ventures Isbased
solelyon the reports of the otherauditor.

b. OuropinionOn the consolidated financial statements, arid our report on OtherLegaland Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified In respectof this matterwith respect to our reliance onthe work
doneandthe report of the otherauditor,

a. The financial statements of 2 subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflects total assets (before
consolidation adjustments) Of RS.272 or as at 31 March 2023, total revenues (before consolidation
adjustments) of RS.3 or and net cash outflows (before consolidation adlustmsnts) amounting to Rs.
19 or for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, have
not been audited eitherby us or by other auditor. The consolidated financial statements aiso include
the Group's shareof net loss (andothercomprehensive lnoorne) of Rs. 118cr for theyearended 31
March 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of 2 joint venture,
whose financial statements havenotbeenaudited byus or by otherauditor. Theseunaudited financial
statements have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, inso far asit relates to the amounts anddisclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries and joint venture, and our report in termsof sub-section (3) of Section 143of the Act in
so far as It relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries andjoint venture, Is based solelyon such unaudited
financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by
the Management, thesefinancial statements are notmaterial to the Group.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our reporton OtherLegal and RegUlatory
Requirements below, isnot modified in respectof this matterwith respect to the finencial statements
certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order") issued by the Central
Govemment of India In termsof Section 143(11) of theAct,we give in the 'Annexure A" a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2 A. As required by Section 143(3)of the Act, basedon our audit and on the consideration of reports of
the other auditors on separate/consolidated financial statements of such SUbsidiaries and joint .
ventures as were audited by otherauditors, as notedin the "OtherMatters" paragraph, we report, to
the extentapplicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliefwere necessaryfor the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements.

b. Inour opinion, properbooksof accountas required by lawrelating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books and the report/reports of the otheraudltorts).
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c. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other
cornprehsnslve Income), the consolidated statement of changes In equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the reievant books of
account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

d. In our oplnlon, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Section 133 of the Act.

e. On the basis of the written representations recaived from the directors of the Holding Company
as on 31 March 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the
reports of tha statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies and Joint venture companies
incorporated In India, none of the directors 01the Group companies and joint venture companies
incorporated in India Is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director in
terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and joint venture companies
incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report
In "Annexure B",

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and AUditors)RUles, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our Informationand
according to the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other
auditors on separate audited financial statements of the subsldlarles and Jointventures, as noted in
tha "Other Matters" paragraph:

a. The consolidated financial statements disclose the Impact of pending litigations as at
31 March 2023 on the consolidated financial position of the Group and its joint ventures. Refer
Note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

b. The Group and its joint ventures did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts during the year ended ~1 March 2023.

c. There are no amounts which are required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company or its SUbsidiary companies and Joint venture
companies incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2023.

d (i) The respective management of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, and joint
venture companies incorporated In India whose flnanolal statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies, and Joint
venture companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 42 to the consolidated financiai statements, no funds have been advanced
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind
of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India to or in any other person(s) or entlty(ies), including foreign
entitles ("Intermediaries"), with the understanding, whether recorded In writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entUiesIdentified In
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such SUbsidiary
companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(ii) The respective management of the HOlding Company and its subsidiary companies, and Joint
venture companies incorporated in India Whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiary companies, and Joint
venture companies respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the Note 42 to the consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received
by the Holding Company or any of such SUbsidiary companies and joint venture companies
incorporated in India from any person(s) or entlty(les), including foreign entities ("Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding
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Company oranyof suchsubsidiary companies and joint venture companies incorporated in India
shall directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances performed by usand that performed by the auditors of the subsidiary companies
andjoint venture companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been aUdited
under the Act, nothing has come to ouror otherauditors notice that has caused us or the other
auditors to believe that the representations undersub-clause (i)and(iI)of Rule 11 (e),as provided
under(I) and(il) above, contain any materlal misstatement.

a. The Holding Companyand its subsidiary companies, and joint venture companies lncorporated
in indiahaveneither declared nor paid anydividend dunng the year.

f. As proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the Holding
Company oranyof such subsldlary companies and jointventure companies incorporated in India
only with effect from 1 April 2023, reporting under Rule 11 (g) of the Companles (Audit and
Auditors) RUles, 2014 is not appflcable.

C. With respect to thematterto be inciuded in theAuditor's Report underSection 197(16) of the Act:

Inouroplnion andaccordlnq to thelnforrnatton andexplanations givento usandbased onthereports
of the statutory auditors of such SUbsidiary companies andjoint venture companies incorporated in
India Which were not audited by us, the remuneration paid durihg the currentyear by the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies endjoint venture companies to its directors is In accordance
with the provisions of secuon 197of the ACt. The remuneration pald to any director by the Holding
company and its subsidiary companies andjoint venture companies Is not in excess of the limit laid
downunderSection 197of the Act, TheMinistry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed otherdetails
underSection 197(16) of the Act which are required to be commented uponby us.

For B S R & Co. LLP

Charlered Accountanfs

Firm's Registration No.:101248WIW-100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

~-0
Farhad Bamji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDXR8511
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B S R & Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements
ofTata Housing Development Company Limited for the year ended 31 M.arch 2023

(Referred to In paragraph 1 under 'Report on OtherLegal and Regulatory Requirements' section
of our report of evandate)

(xxi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, tilers are no
quallflcatlons or adverse remarks by the respective auditors In the Companies (Auditor's
Report) Order, 202Q reports of the companies Incorporated in India and Included in the
consolidated financial statements.
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B S R& Co. LLP

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor's Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the
year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

For B S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration NO.:101248W/w·100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May2023

\

.J\J\$:V.A
Farhad Barnji

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDXR8511
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B S R& Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023

Report on the Internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolldated
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143of the Act

(Referred to In paragraph 2(A)(f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements' section of our report of evendate)

Opinion

In conjunetibn with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Tata Houslnq Development
Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as "theHolding Company") as of and for the year ended
31 March2023, we have audited the lnternal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Holding Company and such companies incorporated In India under the Act Which are its subsidlary
companies, andJoint venture companies, as of that date.

In our opinion and basedon the consideration of reports of the otheraudltors on Internalfinancial controls
with reference to financial statements. of subsidiary companles, and joint venture compenles, as were
audited by the other auditors, the Holding Company and such companies incorporated in Indiawhich are
its subsidiary companies, and Joint venters cornpanles, have, in all material respects, adequate internal
financial controls with referenceto financialstatements and suchinternalfinancial controlswereoperating
effectively as at 31 March2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by such companies/the Holding Company considering the essential
components of such internalcontrols stated in the Guidance Noteon Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over FinancialReporting Issuedby the Instituteof Chartered Accountants of India(the "Guidance Note").

Management's and Board of Directors' Responsibilities for Internell'inanciel Controls

The respective Company's Management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial COntrols based on the Internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the respective company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financlai controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of Its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibllity is to express an opinion on the internal finencial controls with reference to financial
____statementsbased on-our aUdit.-We-conductedouraudlt in-accordance With-the Guidance Note and-the ­

Standardson Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10)of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit
of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note requirethat we complywith ethicalrequirements and planendperformthe audit to obtalnreasonable
assuranceaboutwhetheradequateinternal financialcontrols with reference to financialstatements were
established and maintained and if such controlsoperated effectively in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the Internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on tI,e auditor's judgement, including the
assessmentof the risks of material misstatementof the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

Page 1~of 1l\



B S R& Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Webelieve that theauditevidence We have obtained andtheauditevidence obtained bytheotherauditors
of the relevant subsidiary companies andjoint venture companies in terms of their reports referred to in
the OtherMatters paragraph below, is aufflolent and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls wilh Reference10 Financial Statements

A company's internal flnanciai controls with reference to financial statements is a process deSigned to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies andprocedures that (1)pertafn to thE> maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are baing madeonly in accordance with authorisations of rnanaqernent and
directors of the company: and (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assetsthat could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitatiolls of Internal Financial ControlS wIth Referenceto Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations' of Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
Including the possibility of COllusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
Internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes In conditions, or that the degree of oompliance with the policies or procedures maydeteriorate.

Other Matter

Ouraforesaid report underSection 143(3)(1) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements Insofaras It relates to 8 SUbsidiary
companies, and 3 joint venture companies, which are companies incorporated in India,is based on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of suchcompanies incorporated In India.

The internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as It relates to 2 subsidiary
company, and 2 joint Ventura company, which are companies incorporated in India and Included in these
consolidated financiai statements, havenot been audited eitharby us or by otherauditors. In our opinion
and according to the Information and explanations given to us by the Management, such unaudited
subsidiary companies, andJoint venture companies are not material to the Holding Company.



B S R & Co. LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report on the consolidated financial
statements of Tata Housing Development Company Limited for the year
ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

Ouropinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

ForB S R & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm'sRegistration No.:101248WIW-100022

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18 May 2023

J\N\0
Farhad Bamjl

Partner

Membership No.: 105234

ICAI UDIN:23105234BGXDXR8511
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Consolidated Balance Sheet
!I!lat31 Marcll2023

(<:iucmI'l'S)

l'artitutar'

ASSETS

Nnu-Cul"l'eut A'Seti
(a) Pmp~lty, plontulIdeqlupment

(b) Riglrt to use asset
(0) Goodwill on ccnscljdenon
(d) Intangible assets
(e) lntmlgihle Assets \mdcrdev.iopment
(Q Investments in Joint Ventn",s
(g) FillullOiaIassets

i, Investments

li.Lanns
Iii, Otherfinnncial assets

(g) In<XllllC tax asset(net)

(1I) Deferred t"Xass~t.!! (IICt)
(i) Otilo,rlloll-culTCnl assets

Total Non-Current Asset'

C"lT~1l1Asset,
(a) Illventeries
(b) Fillal\eialass~ts

i. Investments
H.Tllld~ receivables
iii, Cash andcash eqlliv"lent'
iv.BankbA1,ncesother then (Hi)above

v, Lonn'
vi.Dthcr flmncinlnssets

(e) Ot!lcrentJellt""ets
Total Cnrrent Asset~

TlltatA'sels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(") Equity shere cnpitnl
(b) Othcreqluly

Equity attributable to 'hareholders of the Parent
(c) Non ContmlIlllgIllterest

Total Equity

LiahUltles

Non-Current Llahilltie,

(a) Finm\ciallinbililies
I, Borrowings

n. L~aso lleblllties
ill. Tradopa]'abl.s

a. Tolal olltstanding dues of micro and 'mall cntctprises
b, Totol outs(allding dues of credito,", other than micro and smail enterprL'es

Iv. Other Onanclo11iabililies
(e) Olhcr lloll-cnm:ntliabililics

(b) Defem:d tu~ liabilities (l1et)
Tolal Non-Current Liahllllics

Current L1ahilllles
(al Ffuancialliabllhtes

l. Bon<lwings

ii. LeilSeliabilities
iii. Trade payables

a. TOlaloUlswndlngducs ofmicro ami SlIllIll ~nl"ll'rises

b. Totrtl oulsloru;;ngdues of creditors other than nucIDand small enterprises
Iv. OUrerfillanoiaillabillties

(b) Otbcr cnrrcnt Habflittes

(0) P!""~sions

(d) Incomo tax liabilitie' (net)
Total Current Liahilities

Totul Liahllltf~s

Tlltal Equity and Liahilities

Sunmmry of ,igllifioal\l nOO<lllnth'll policies
Tho accompanying not~, I 1048 are "11 IIlt~gral pert of tin: consolidated fiMl101uI statements

In (eTIIlS of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Charterod Aecountuut.!!

FIml" Registration No: 10124RW/W·lOU022

Forbad Bamji
Partner

Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai

Dal.: 18th May 2023

Nolo
N.

3 (a)

'OJ
3(0)

4 (a)

'.J
5(a)

'.J
5(c)
5(d)

7 (a)
7(b),

9(u)

'.J
9(0)
9(d)

9{~)

0,"
W

lira)
1I(b)

Il(e)

12(a)

42(B)

12(11)
12(0)

ia
7(b)

nee
<l2(B)

13(b)

13(0)

W

"7 (a)

Place: Mumbai
Dnto: 18tllMity 2023

As at As ut
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

8.08 9.98
8.72 11.39

41.76 38.24
12.22 1l.70
0.47 2,19

2?1.55 249,28

OM 63.75
1,061.98 1,227.32

2.17 3,76
92.83 06,39
50.36 36,15
12.75 54.76

1,562.93 1,845.71

4,1153.75 4.208,57

0.24 0,24
96.53 166.79

257.oI 219.99
93.62 96.39
6.24 36.38

9U,43 127,7fj

84.18 112,79
4,682.1lU 4,968.91

6,144.93 6,814.62

1,280.97 1,098,49
(97.78) 2.97

1,183.19 1,101.46
(lO.93) (29.81)

1,152,26 1,071.65

1,342.00 1,492.19
9.36 11.34

14.13 9,46
1.19 1.07

35.16
48.40 4&,40

1,450.24 1.562.46

1,873.29 2,260.53
2.03 1.84

722.93 786.98
801A3 719,80

187.25 346,76
52.52 62.50

2.98 2.10
3,642.43 4180.5i
5,UJ/2.67 5,742.97

6,244,93 6,814,62

}'or and on behnlf of the Board of blrcclon<
Tala lIouslng nevelopment Company Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

-tj, =Y::>u.tt
San,jay but!

MWJ<,ging Director& CEO
DIN No: 05251670

=::7t::::""cc-~
l0l~--.l .>
~

ComponySeerelory
M~mbersbip No, A20154



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(iit' in crores)

EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed
Changesin inventories of Construction Material, Finished goods and project work-in-progress 18

Revenue from Operations 16

Other Income
-Gain relating to acquisition of a subsidiary
-Other Income 17

Total Income

Employee Benefits Expenses 19
Finance Costs 20
Depreciation and Amortisation Expense 21
Other Expenses 22

Total Expenses

Pardeulnrs

Loss before Ilnlloirment of Loans given and investments in joint ventures and Share of
net loss of Joint Venture

Impairment ofLoillls given lIlld investments injoint ventures

Loss Share of net loss of Joint Venture and Tax

Shure of loss of joint ventures

Loss befo"':lTax

Taxexpe1lse
Current tax
Deferred tax charge

Lossaftm'tll:l

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss):
Items that wlll be reclassified to profit or loss:
Exchange differences in translating the financial statement offoreign operations

Items tllat will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Remeasureuients of post-employment benefit obligations
Income tax relating to these items

Other Comprehensive Income for the year, 1Ietof tax
Total Comprehel1iivc Loss fOI" the year

Lou for the yeal' athibutable to:
Owners ofthe Parent
Non-controlling interests

Other Comprehensive Income I (Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent

Non-controlling interests

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings 111'1'Ordinary share:
Basicanddiluted eumings per share (face value of~ 10!· each) (In~)

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes 1 to 48 are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No: 101248W!W-I00022

FadmdBamji
Partner

Membership No 105234

Place: Mumbai
Dale: !8thMay2023

Nofe

No

23

7 (a)

27

Place: Mumbai
Date: 18th May 2023

Year Ended Year Ended
31 March 2023 31 Mnrch2022

1,428.61 811.05

4,93 126.37

230.44 234,00

1,663.98 /.,171.42

113,43 469,69

1,113.17 136,02

85.67 86.93

244.86 305.73

9.31 6.81

369.65 311.74

1,936.09 1,316.92

(272.11) (l45.50)

(41.50) (14.16)

(230.61) (131.34)

(167.00) (99.78)

(397.61) (231.12)

12.16 (0.27)

0.26 24.53

12.42 24.26

(410,03) (255.38)

(5.74) 64.81

2.09 (UO)
0,05 0,40

(3.60) 63,51

(413.63) (191.87)

(411.79) (252,39)

1.76 (2,99)

(410.03) (255.38)

(6.48) 62.76

2.88 0.75
1360\ 6351

(418.27) (l89.63)
4,64 (2.24)

(413,63) (191.87)

(3.44) (2.75\

For and 011 behalf ofthc Board ofDirectol"S

Tara Housing Development Company Limited
CIN:U45300MHI942PLC003573



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for theperiod ended31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

Parfieulars

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities
Lossbeforetax
Adjustments £01':-
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Profit on sale of Property, plant and equipment
Sundry Balances Written-back
Net nnrealiaed Loss all Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations
Gain on fair valueof illvestment
Gainrelatingto acquisition of a subsidiary
Goodwillwrittenoff
Impairment for advances and receivables
Impairment of Loans given and investment in Joint Ventures
Provision for diminution in value of investments
Interest Income
Dividend Income from investments measured at fair value through profit and loss
Gain on sale of current investments
Impact ofNRV on inventory
Provision for contingencies cost
Finance Costs
Operating (Loss)/Profit before Working Capital Changes

Adjustments for changes in working capitalt­
(Increase) in trade receivables
Decrease in Inventories
Decrease in Other financial assets,Other non-current assets and other currentassets
(Decrease) in trade payahles, Other financial liabilities, Other liabilities and provisions
Cash generated from Operating Activities
Income Taxes (Paid)/Refund (net)
Net Cash from Operating Activities A

B. Cash flow from Investing Activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (including Intangible Assets Under Development)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Sales/(Purchase) of Investments
Proceeds on Sale of current investments
Loans granted to Joint ventures
Repayment received of Loans granted
Fixed Deposit
Interest received
Dividend received
Net Cash generated / (used in) Investing Activities B

C. Cash Flow (rum Financing Activities
Proceeds from tssuse of Share Capital
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of borrowings
Repayment of working capital borrowings (net)
Inter Corporate Deposits accepted
Inter Corporate Deposits repaid
Repayment of principal portion of lease liability
Interest paid
Net Cash (used in)/generated Financing Activities C

Net increase / (decrease) in Cash lind Cash Equivalents (A) + (8) + (C)

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve on consolidation
Add Acquisition of Subsidiary
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(230.61) (131.34)

9.31 6.81
0.08 (0.07)

(17,99) 0.15
0.07 114.90

(34.79)
(4.93) (126.37)
29.71
42.64 (0.36)

(41.50) 17.33
3.30

(200.56) (227.48)
(0.01) (0.01)
(0.69)

136.49 40.65
(2.32) 6.85

243.91 304.97
(36.40) (25.46)

(54.40) (167.52)
1,115.42 329,42

41.43 274,80
(951.70) (182.93)

114.34 228,31

38.05 (25,73)

152.39 202.58

(2.77) (6.27)
0.00 0.20

(64.98) (21.72)
0.69

(213.90) (97,34)

173.98 388.01
3.16 (20.84)

152.39 64.76
0.01 0.01

48.59 306.81

500.00 500.00
1,679.86 1,235.66

(2,557.23) (1,418.46)

411.72 (530.35)

50.00
0.03 (100.02)

(0.86) (0.55)
(317.97) (306.65)
(284.45) (570.37)

(83.47) (60.98)

219.99 209.61
(5.74) 64.81

126.23 6.55
257.01 219.99

257.01 219.99



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the period ended31 March 2023

Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)
for theperiod ended31March 2023

(t"in crores)

Notes:

(i) The accompanying notes 1 to 48 are an integral part ofthe consolidated financial statements.

(ii) The above Statement of'Cash Flows has been prepared under 'Indirect Method' as set out in the Accounting Standard (INO AS) 7"" Statement of Cash
Flows to.

Debt reconciliation statement in accordance with INDAS 7

Opening Balances

Long term borrowings

Short Term Borrowings

Changes as per Statement of Cash Flows

Long term borrowings
Short Term Borrowings

Non cash changes
Changes from ncquisrion of subsidiary

Accrued Interest

Closing Balances
Long term borrowings
Short Term Borrowings

In terms of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP

Chartered Accountants

Finn's Registration No: 101248W/W-I00022

}\f"t''''1J''....J'
Farhad Bamji
Partner
Membership No: 105234

Place: Murnbai
Date: 18t11 May 2023

31 March 2023 31 Marcil 2022

1,492.19 1,808.50

2,260.53 2,423.05

(150.19) (597.86)

(315.43) (165.31)

281.55

(71.81) 2.79

1,342.00 1,492.19

1,873.29 2,260.53

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirect'ors
Tata Honsing Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Director& CEO

DIN No: 05251670

~~
c- __"Ritesh Kamdar

CompanySecretary
Membership No. A20154

Place: Mumbni

Date: Igth May 2023
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

(~ in crores)

Background

Tata Housing Development Company Limited ("the Parent"), its subsidiaries (collectively called as the
"Group") and joint ventures has main interest in development of real estate. The Group and its joint ventures
are one of the first corporate players in India in the real estate sector. Since 1984, it has constructed various
prestigious residential buildings/complexes, luxury residences, commercial complexes and integrated
townships. The Group and its joint ventures develop real estate and key activities of the Group and its joint
ventures include identification ofland, project conceptualising and designing, development, management and
marketing.

1. Basis of Preparation

a. Statement of Compliance with Ind AS

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The accounting policies
followed in the preparation of these financials statements are the same as those of the previous year.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board ofDirectors of the Company on 18th May
2023

b. Going Concern

i. As at 31 March 2023, the Holding Company's short-term borrowings comprising commercial paper
and non-convertible debentures ('NCD") (including current maturities oflong term borrowings) aggregate
Rs 897.79 crores. In addition, the Holding Company has working capital loans of Rs 750.11 crores. The
Holding Company's net current assets aggregate Rs 182.24 crores. The current assets of the Holding
Company aggregate to Rs 2,547.76 crores and include inventories ofRs 2,161.04 crores which due to their
nature may be realizable in periods beyond 1 year. Management has forecasted the future cash flows on the
basis of significant assumptions as per the available information. These forecasted future cash flows indicate
that the cash flows from its operations may not be adequate for meeting its funding requirements including
repayment of borrowings due in the next one year from the date of approval of the financial results. Thus,
the Holding Company's ability to meet its obligations depends on generation of adequate funds from
operations, continued and additional funding from the lenders/ markets including the possibility of
refinancing of borrowing facilities. The Management is confident, based on discussions with prospective
lenders, past history of the ability to refinance borrowings and strong credit rating enjoyed by Holding
Company's existing facilities, that its plans for generation of funds (including borrowings) are feasible and
will be adequate for the Holding Company to meet its obligations as and when they fall due. Accordingly,
the audited financial results of the Holding Company included in this consolidated financial results are
prepared on a going concern basis.

ii. As at 31 March 2023, Tata Value Homes Limited ( "TVHL"), a wholly owned subsidiary's has
working capital loans ofRs 100 crores. The Company's net current liabilities aggregate Rs 514.42 crores.
The current assets ofthe Company aggregate to Rs 285.25 crores and include inventories ofRs 193.58 crores

....,s.:::wlITii1'rd. e to their nature may be realizable in periods beyond 1 year .. Management has forecasted the future
il;;,.S:b~sl'dl~""S< n the basis of significant assumptions as per the available information. These forecasted future

i0::;/\,,'~a~*' flOij~ dicate that the cash flows from its operations may not be adequate for meeting its funding
if cii \:';:'f~<]'~1:e~ \~ ncluding repayment ofborrowings due in the next one year from the date of approval of the
II .J,. '\6.:1.\~.i\I,"S:i~i.. .~f. ents. Thus, the TVHL's ability to meet its obligations depends on generation of adeq t5'E'vF:',
\-,.". \"1~'\";~:y,:;-_:~,.;.;~:",,,,· /2,:/ ~(;j /--<!~(j/)"-~
~,c' ..."." ,.olf! 0' .\""
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Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

(~ in crores)

funds from operations, continued and additional funding from the lenders/ markets including the possibility
of refinancing ofborrowing facilities, The Management is confident, based on discussions with prospective
lenders, past history of the ability to refinance borrowings and strong credit rating enjoyed by TVHL's
existing facilities, that its plans for generation of funds (including borrowings) are feasible and will be
adequate for the TVHL to meet its obligations as and when they fall due, Accordingly, the fmancial
statements ofthe TVHL for the year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on the basis that the Company
is a going concern,

c. Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention,
except for certain items that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies,

d. Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

L Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Parent and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the Parent and its subsidiaries, Control is achieved when the
Parent:

• has power over the investee;
• is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
• has the ability to use its power to affect its returns,

The Parent reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above,

When the Parent has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally, The Parent considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Parent's voting rights in an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

• the size of the Parent's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

• potential voting rights held by the Parent, other vote holders or other parties;
• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

• any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Parent has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders' meetings,

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Parent obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Parent loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss from the date the
Parent gains control until the date when the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary,

Profit or loss and each component ofother comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Parent
/~!,!"::1a:!JJ! non-controlling interests, Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners

(;:;'?.f,~h~~B, and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having
,( <:/:a,41lj)j'cit1Jlf e. The Group and its joint ventures present the non-controlling interest in the Consolidatedl / ~alan8e"Sh\;et ithin equity, separately from the equity of the Group and its joint ventures as owners, The

UL,i~~~,S~~,th~' oup and its joint venture's share in the net worth of the subsidiary on the date of CO~~~QlfLU~;"

\;~::~i\' "';.<;;<0 :!ft-----<\i'~

,::~~;'",., ,- ,"" ~')' %}:!:d~
'-Itr,f__~~



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

« in crores)

acquired is treated as goodwill while a deficit is considered as a capital reserve on the consolidated fmancial
statement.

On disposal ofthe subsidiary, attributable amount on goodwill is included in the determination of the profit
or loss and recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

Impairment loss, if any, to the extent the carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is charged off to
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss as it arises and is not reversed. For impairment testing,
goodwill is allocated to Cash Generating Unit (CGD).

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated in full on consolidation.

ii. Investments injoint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decision about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are incorporated in these consolidated fmancial
statement using equity method of accounting. Under the equity method of accounting, the investment in a
joint venture is initially recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group and its joint venture's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Dividends received or receivable from a joint venture reduces
the carrying amount ofthe investment. When the Group and its joint venture's share ofajoint venture exceed
Group and its joint venture's interest in the joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in
substance, form part ofthe Group and its joint venture's net investment in the joint venture), the Group and
its joint ventures discontinue recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group and its joint ventures have incurred legal or constructive obligation or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.

The Group and its joint ventures discontinue the use of equity method from the date when the investment
ceases to be ajoint venture.

When a Group and its joint ventures entity transact with a joint venture of the Group and its joint ventures,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the joint venture are recognised in the consolidated
financial statemeuts only to the extent of interest in the joint venture that are not related to the Group and its
joint ventures.

e. Critical estimates and judgements

The preparation ofthe consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the consolidated financial statements and

.;;.: ' c:;:'.'oth."~.;:J;,.~orted amounts of th~ revenues and expenses for the years presented. ~he estimates and associated
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The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical Judgements
In the process of applying the Group and its joint venture's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

i. Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Group and its joint venture's defined benefit.
obligation:

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated, the management considers the interest rates
ofgovermnent bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies ofthe post-employment benefit obligation.

ii. Contingences and commitments
In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigations and other claims against
the Group and its joint ventures. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, the Group and its joint ventures treat them as contingent liabilities. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the consolidated financial statements.
Although there can be no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group and its
joint ventures do not expect them to have a materially adverse impact on financial position or profitability.

iii. Consolidation decisions and classification ofjoint ventures

A. Consolidation of entities as subsidiaries with 50% voting rights

The management has concluded that the Group and its joint ventures control Technopolis Knowledge
Park Limited (TIG'L), even though it holds only 50% of the voting rights of this subsidiary.
This is because the Group and its joint ventures have control of composition of the Board of Directors
of TKPL. The Shareholder's agreement grants the right of casting vote to the chairman of Board,
appointed by the Parent. This gives the Group and its joint ventures the ability to direct relevant activities
of TKPL proving that the Group and its joint ventures have control over TKPL.

B._Classification of joint ventures

The below entities are limited liability entities whose legal form confers separation between the parties
to the joint arrangement and the Group and its joint ventures itself. Furthermore, there is no contractual
arrangement or any other facts and circumstances that indicate that the parties to the joint arrangement
have rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

Accordingly, these entities are classified as joint ventures of the Group.

I. Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private Limited (formerly known as Lemon Tree Land &
Developers Private Limited)

2. Kolkata-one Excelton Private Limited
(/"':~~:Nf~motersPrivate Limited (upto 17/10/2022)

/c /;~',.•.I.;qp."¢',:~ll~."alore Luxury Projects LLP
ii ") 5,.-,;SQbria;Ci, LLP

ii,'::.,> ':~ ,',,<..,,] \, -t') \

: " ,6; A\'vin~ 84~ Smart Value Homes LLP
',' I 7, ,J:;andklart, uilders Pvt. Ltd.

\,,\ 8. i;\fae~! .~' operties Private Limited (upto 14/06/2022)
\~~;;'.~~.",.'"'"""•.,,"" .'r',-,.•..__ ._'~ 'I'-. ..(\>:?
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The assessment of control is made since the remaining share in the respective entities is held by one
unrelated partner. Also, that in case of these entities, neither of the parties have the practical ability to
direct the relevant activities unilaterally as relevant activities require consent ofboth parties. Hence the
management has concluded that the Group and its joint ventures do not have unilateral control over
these entities.

f. Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

i. Goodwill impairment
Goodwill is tested for impairment on an annual basis and whenever there is an indication that the recoverable
amount of a cash generating unit is less than its carrying amount based on a number of factors including
operating results, business plans, future cash flows and economic conditions. The recoverable amount of
cash generating units is determined based on higher of value-in-use and fair value less cost to sell. The
goodwill impairment test is performed at the level of the cash-generating unit or groups of cash-generating
units which are benefitting from the synergies of the acquisition and which represent the lowest level at
which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.
Market related information and estimates are used to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions
on which management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated long term
growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take
into account past experience and represent management's best estimate about future developments.

ii. Impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets
The Group and its joint ventures make impairment for doubtful recoverable, advances and financial assets
based on an assessment of the recoverability. The identification of doubtful debts requires use ofjudgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying value of the other receivables and advances and impairment expenses in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

iii. Valuation of deferred tax assets
The Group and its joint ventures review the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each
reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained under note 2(t).

iv. Provision for customer compensation
Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay in handing
over possession of flats. These claims are expected to be settled in the next financial year. Management
makes an estimate of the provision based on expected time of delivery and taking into consideration past
experiences.

v. Impairment loss of inventory
Provision is made for estimated Impairment loss of inventory. Management makes an estimate of the
provision based on expected realisation from inventory taking into consideration past experiences.

2. Significant accounting policies

f,.<:;;tQ::~~~~~~~'des a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation ofthe consolidated
!j~, .' fit)ftllf"ll\1 .~ta:t) ents. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unle~_._.
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a. Segment Reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ("CODM") of the Group and its joint ventures. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the
Managing Director & CEO of the Parent Group.

b. Foreign Currency Transactions

i. Functional and presentation currency

Items included in financial statements of each of the Group and its joint venture's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ("functional
currency"). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Jndian Rupee (JNR), which is the
functional and presentation currency of the Parent. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
crores, unless otherwise indicated.

ii. Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss. A
monetary item for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future is
considered as a part ofthe entity's net investment in that foreign operation.

For the preparation of the consolidated fmancial statements:

a) Assets and liabilities of foreign operations, together with goodwill and fair value adjustments
assumed on acquisition thereof, are translated at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting period
end;

b) Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period;
when exchange rates fluctuate significantly the rates prevailing on the transaction date are used
instead.

Differences arising on such translation are accumulated in foreign currency translation reserve and
attributed to non-controlling interests proportionately.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group and its joint ventures are reclassified to the
Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss. In relation to a partial disposal, that does not result in losing
control over the subsidiary, the proportionate exchange differences accumulated in equity is reclassified
to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.
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The Group recognises revenue when it determines the satisfaction ofperformance obligations at a point in time
and subsequently over time when the Group has enforceable right for payment for performance completed to
date. Revenue is recognised upon transfer ofcontrol ofpromised products to customer in an amount that reflects
the transaction price i.e. consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts. Contract
assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there is unconditional right
to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual terms.

Contract Liabilities are recognised when there is billing in excess of revenue and advance received from
customers..

i. Revenue from real estate development projects
The Group enters into contracts with customers to sell property that are either completed or under
development.
In arrangements for sale ofproperties, the Group has applied the gnidance in IND AS 115, on "Revenue
from contracts with customers", by applying the revenue recognition criteria for each distinct
performance obligation. The arrangements with customers generally meet the criteria for considering
sale of properties as distinct performance obligations. For allocating the transaction price, the Group
has measured the revenue in respect of each performance obligation of a contract at its relative
standalone selling price. The price that is regnlarly charged for an item when sold separately is the best
evidence of its standalone selling price. The transaction price is also adjusted for the effects of the time
value of money if the contract includes a significant financing component. Any consideration payable
to the customer is adjusted to the transaction price, unless it is a payment for a distinct product or
service from the customer.

The sale of completed property constitutes a single performance obligation and the Group recognizes
revenue when the same has been satisfied.

Group recognise revenue when the below mentioned conditions get satisfied;

occupancy certificate for the project is received by the Group
possession is either taken by the customer or offer letter for possession along with the invoice
for the full amount of consideration is issued to the customer
substantial consideration has been received and the Group is reasonably certain that the
remaining consideration will flow to the entity.
there are no legal claims! complains been made by the customer

The Group considers whether there are promises in the contract that are separate performance
obligations or are to be delivered even after completing the aforesaid conditions and to which a portion
of the transaction price needs to be allocated and if so the Group allocates the attributable transaction
price and as control is deemed to have passed to the customer recognizes revenue over time as the
related obligations are satisfied.

For contracts relating to the sale ofproperty under development, the Group is responsible for the overall
management of the project and identifies various goods and services to be provided. The Group accounts
for these items as a single performance obligation because it provides a significant service of integrating

~-:;:::,,!hfl.~,",ds and services (the inputs) into the completed property (the combined output) which the customer
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The Group enters into Project Management fees and marketing fees agreements. Accounting for income
from such projects, measured at transaction price, and recognised on accrual basis as per the terms of the
agreement.

iii. Income from ancillary services

Income from ancillary services are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms of
agreement/allotment letters.

d. Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and its joint
ventures and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and its joint ventures and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

e. Construction Costs
Construction costs comprise project costs incurred to enable the Company to complete its performance
obligations. These include cost ofland and cost of development rights, construction and development costs,
borrowings costs incurred and also include cost of development of common facilities and amenities.

These costs are allocated to each unit ofsale (residential or commercial) on a systematic basis as construction
progress and are expensed when the related revenue in respect of the unit is recognised.

Pending recognition of revenue, the costs are accumulated and disclosed as construction work in
progress/Finished goods within inventory.

f. Income tax

Current tax:
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable profit for the year.

Taxable profit differs from 'profit before tax' as reported in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
because of items of income or expenses that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The current tax is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:
Deferred tax is recognised 011 temporary differences between the carrying amounts of the assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profits. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
,?-b:i::¥j9.~~ be used. The .existence ofunused tax losses is strong evidence th~t ~hl1'e taxable profit m,ay
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part ofthe deferred tax
asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement ofdeferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group and its joint ventures expect, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current tax and deferred tax are recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, except when
they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
current tax and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic
benefits in the form of adjustment to the future current tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is
reasonable certainty of it being set off against regular tax payable within the stipulated statutory period.
MAT credit is reviewed at each balance sheet date and the carrying amount ofMAT credit is written down
to the extent there is no longer reasonable certainty to the effect that the Group and its joint ventures will
pay regular tax during such specified period.

g. Leases - as a lessee
The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified assets, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the
lease and (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

As a lessee, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct
costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of- use asset or the end of the lease term. The
estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same basis as those of property and
equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and
adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

L~'jls,,"~~~!~ included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the fixed payments, including
..Jii 's4b'st~heeJi~4 payments; The lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
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The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises the lease
payments associated with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term. The
Company applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic
environment with a similar end date

h. Impairment ofproperty, plant & equipment and intangible assets

The carrying amounts ofproperty, plant & equipment and intangible assets or Cash Generating Unit (CGU)
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any indication that those assets / CGU
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indications exist, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

An irnpainnent loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss wherever the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is higher of the asset's fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using appropriate discount factor. When there is an indication that an
impairment loss recognised for the asset in earlier accounting periods no longer exists or may have
decreased such reversal of impairment loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

i. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose ofpresentation in the Consolidated Statement ofCash Flows, Cash comprises cash on hand
and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of
three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value, and banle
overdrafts. Bank overdraft and cash credit are disclosed under current borrowings in financials liability in
the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

j. Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue represents excess of revenne recognised on 'Percentage of Completion Method' over
actual bills raised. Unbilled revenue is recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. .

k. Inventories

Inventories comprises of cost of construction material, finished residential or commercial properties and
costs of projects under construction/development (construction work-in-progress). Inventories are valued
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of construction material is determined on a weighted
average basis.

Cost of project includes, cost of land / cost of development rights, construction and development cost,
overheads related to project and justifiable borrowing costs which are incurred directly in relation to a
project or which are apportioned to a project.
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through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the basis of its business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement
The Group and its joint ventures recognise financial assets when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, the financial assets are classified in three categories:

• Debt instruments at amortised cost
• Debt instruments at fair value through profit or loss
• Equity investments

Debt iustruments at amortised cost
A 'debt instrument' is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a. The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and

b. Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the
Consolidated statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
Consolidated statement ofprofit and loss.

Debt instruments at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Debt instruments included in the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category are measured at fair value
with all changes recognised in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

Equity investmeuts
All equity investments other than investment in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associate are measured at fair
value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity
instruments, the Group and its joint ventures decide to classify the same either as at fair value tluough other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI) or FVTPL. The Group and its joint ventures make such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group and its joint ventures decide to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value
changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI). There
is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to the Consolidated statement ofprofit and loss, even on sale of such
investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised
in the Consolidated statement ofprofit and loss.

Dere,~o~~~ib~'[;~',:~
A ~J.J;iancifij'~8set (ot;\\I),ere applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognised when:

i!1I:.i\he,1:i~hlsl9 ~eil~ive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

\'"b/,!,\, the"~,'.,Qr,,"",?\l,g, j);ll"a~",~, j?u:t ventures have tran~ferred substantially all the risks and rewards ofthe ~sset, or
\~..\~he,..~9~p·1);{W s joint ventures have neither transferred nor retained substantially all the nsks and
\~~1"~~_aJi~toi't~, sset, but has transferred control of the asset. ;:-;~

-_,'-"';;"',' lPr.:-p'{f:~'\\.y \)Y.,.\}C-O/l:---'

~~~ (r:~~\
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Notes forming part of the consolidated fmancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

(~ in crores)

Impairment of financial assets
The Group and its joint ventures apply 'simplified approach' measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt
securities, deposits, and bank balance.

b. Trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Group and its joint ventures to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime expected credit loss at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

m. Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification
The Group and its joint ventures classify all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognised.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and transactions
costs. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the consolidated statement ofprofit and loss.

Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and
loss.

Offsetting of financial instrnments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle them
on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Equity Instruments
Equity instruments are recognised at the value of the proceeds, net of direct costs of the capital issue.

n. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment
loss, if any.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

« incrores)

Office Equipment
Computers
Furniture and Fixtures
Electrical Fittings
Motor Vehicles
Cellular Phones

Leasehold improvements are amortised over the primary period of lease.

5 years
3 years
10 years
10 years
8 years

2.5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end ofeach reporting
period, with the effect of any change in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Any gains or losses arising on the disposals or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss.

p. illtangible assets

Computer software purchased is stated at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Amortisation methods and periods
The Group and its joint ventures amortise cost of software over a period of 3 years on a straight-line basis.

q. Capital Work-in Progress

Capital expenditure on assets not owned by the Group and its joint ventures are reflected as a distinct item
in Capital Work-in Progress till the period of completion and thereafter in the Property, plant and equipment

r. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs include interest, other costs incurred and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest cost. Borrowing costs,
allocated to and utilised for qualifying construction project I assets, pertaining to the period from
commencement of activities relating to construction I development of the qualifying construction project I
assets up to the date of substantial completion of project I capitalisation of such asset are added to the cost
of construction project I assets. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the
Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss dnring extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying construction project I assets is interrupted. A qualifying construction project I asset is an asset
that necessarily takes substantial time or more to get ready for its intended use or sale and includes the real
estate properties developed by the Group and its joint ventures.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowing pending their expenditure on
qualifying construction project I assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in Indian Rupees)

('< in crores)

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end ofthe reporting period, taking into account tile risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from
a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

A disclosure for a contingent liability is made when there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
that may, but probably will not require an outflow ofresources embodying economic benefits or the amount
of such obligation cannot be measured reliably. When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation
in respect ofwhich likelihood ofoutflow ofresources embodying economic benefits is remote, no provision
or disclosure is made.
Contingent assets are not disclosed in the financial statements unless an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

t. Employee benefits

i. Post-employment obligations

The Group and its joint ventures operate the following post-employment schemes:

(a) Defined benefit plan

The Group and its joint venture's obligation towards gratuity to employees, post-retirement medical
benefits and ex-directors pension obligations is determined using the Projected Unit Credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement, comprising
actuarial gains and losses, tile effect ofthe changes to the asset ceiling and the return on plan asset,
is reflected immediately in the Consolidated Balance Sheet with a charge or credit recognised in
other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognised in other
comprehensive income is reflected immediately in tile retained earnings and not reclassified to profit
or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the Consolidated Statement ofProfit and Loss in the period
of a plan amendment. The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value ofplan assets. This cost is recognised as
employee benefit expense in the Consolidated Statement and Profit and Loss.

(b) Defined contribution plan

The Group and its joint ventures's contribution to Provident fund, Superannuation Fund and
employee's state insurance scheme are considered as defined contribution plans. The Group and its
joint ventures are liable for contributions and any deficiency compared to interest computed based
on the rate of interest declared by the Central Goverrnnent under the Employees' Provident Fund
Scheme, 1952 and recognises, if any, as an expense in the year it is determined. The contributions
are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to tile extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

ii. Other Long-term employee benefit obligations

.",;";;'''''''·'Fhe. Group and its joint venture's obligation towards other long term employee benefits in the form of

l.t,.-'.'.:'.::.'.:. ::..: - ~.!q.~~~sated abs~nces a~d long service awards are based on actuary v~luation. The valuation is carried
II. 'l.Y}'!;: ', 9,llt\l'lif:W the Project Unit Credit Method as per Ind AS 19 to deterrrune the Present Value of Benefit

(.: ,'"i';..F:i:i~~!,j"~~ns and the related Current Service Cost and, where applicable, Past Service Cost. ~~2E.lo;,~\.

\:> (1~1~~~~~/ t0~u~~~I);:~)
.'"",. ;~;~,~':',,~.~~,., _;.:.. \. (V ) OJ
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Currency in lndian Rupees)

(~ in crores)

iii. Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the
arnounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.

u. Dividends to equity shareholders

Dividend to equity shareholders is recognised as a liability and deducted from shareholders' equity, in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the equity shareholders in the general meeting.

v.Operating cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current based on operating cycle determined
in accordance with the guidance as set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. The operating
cycle of the Group and its joint ventures are determined to be 12 months.
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- \' M' .. v.~o,

Particulars Buildings Leasehold MotorVebicies Office Equipments Office Furniture Infonnation Electrical Fittings Total
{refer footnotes ii & illl Improvements TcclmulGgy HlIrdware

Year ended 31 March. 2023

Gross carrying amount

BaJance as at I April, 2022 9.46 4.20 0.91 3.43 n, 7.18 0.10 27.68

Additions 0.46 0.'" 0.5] 122

Disposals Lll 0.36 0.37 0.35 0.56 0.00 2.75

Effi:ctsof foreignexchange - 0.D3 0.00 0,00 0.01 0.01 0.06

Conversion ofJoint Venture to subsidiary - -
Balance as at 31 Man:h, 2023 [A] 9.4G a.rz 0.56 3.53 2.2, 7.14 0.10 U."

AttUIllulated depreciation

Balance as at I April, 2022 4.65 2.11 0.79 2.75 184 5.47 0.07 17.69

Deprecialion expenses during the year 0.16 1.11 0.04 0.45 0.24 1.16 0.01 3.18

Disposals - 1.11 0.32 0.35 0.34 0.54 0.00 '.6'
Effects offoreign exchange (0.03) (0.00) (0.04) (0.01) (0.02) (0.10)

Conversion ofsubsidiary to Joint Venture -
Balance as at 31 Mardi, 2023 lB] 4$1 >." 0.51 '''' 1.13 6.<>7 0.08 18.11

Net carrying amount as at31 Man:h, 2023 [A~BI 4.65 '-", 0.05 0.71 uss 1.07 0.01 8.08

Year ended 31 March, 2022

Gross canyiDg amount

Balance as at I April, 2021 9.46 2.72 1.38 3.34 2.53 6." 0.11 26.36

Additions L48 - 0.31 0.03 1.14 - 2.96

Disposals 0.47 0.22 021 LOO 0.01 1.91

Effects offoreign exchange - - (0.06) (0.04) (0.03) - (0.13)

Comien:ion of subsidimy to Join! Venture 0.07 0.07 0." 0-"0

Balance as at 31 March, 2022 IC] 9.46 '20 031 3.43 aa 7.18 0.10 27.68

Acmmulated depreciation and impainnent

Balance as at I April, 2021 4.47 ].65 1.15 2.73 L81 5.49 0.07 17.37

Depreciatiou e<peDSeS during the year 0.18 0.46 0.07 0,21 0.19 0.77 0.01 1.89

Disposals - 0.43 0.20 0.18 0.96 0.01 1.78

Effects offoreign exclmnge (0,04) (0.03) (0.02) (0.09)

Conversion ofsubsidiary to Joint Venture - - 0.05 0.06 0.20 0.31

Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [DJ 4.65 W 0.79 2.75 L84 ,.., 0.07 17.69

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [C-D] 4.81 >'09 0.13 0.68 0.55 1.71 0.03 9.98

3 (a) Property, plant and equipment
Tansible assets

i$
=;:;:;~"'"

~
~0;c:\. ,.".0j \':::~\0

(*.\ ~ ){~)
\ 0\ /i).J
~~~,,~:,-;(~~;I
~

Notes· .<~:;:-=,:~."~

(i)~~;J~;~1~;~~\':~~eson' 50 each in a Co-operative Housing Society \! 500/~ (As at 31 March, 2022, \! 500/-) and the cost of400 shares on' 10 each in Prabhadevi Properties and Trading Co Ltd. \! 4,000/- (As at 31 March,

.f~~,,~~?9.I:(>i""'; ';).1 ~ \\
,';' ,~,/,.,;c':,:-, ,~::",,;: \ 'ff \\t{ii) ~ild~gjU?dU~'2338sq. ':ft. ~,per built up area [Deemed Cost ~ 1.30 cr~res (As at 31 March,.2022 e 1.30 crores.j] on the 4th floor in the b~~ding kno,,:n as ~chshawB~din~,Murnbai b~ .virtue.of Agreement dated 23 November
\~~29\duly e~e.qite.~·Rk:~~ Ptl&q-wner and the Parent. The conveyance deed IS yet to be executed ill the name of the Parent, however, the Parent IS 10 possession ofthis area and IS paying the requisite mamtenance charges to the Parent.

\~~~i~~~fi~?Y
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

3 (b) Right to use asset

Particulars Right to use asset

Year ended 31 March 2023
Gross carrying amount
Balanceas at 1 April, 2022 14.24
Additions -
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 [A] 14.24

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 2.85
Amortisation expenses during the year 2.67
Balance as at 31 March, 2023 IB] 5.52

Net carrying amount as at 31 March, 2023 [A~B] 8.72

Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount
Deemedcost as at 1 April, 2021 6.79
Additions 7.45
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [C] 14.24

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at I April, 2021 1.03
Amortisation expenses during the year 1.82
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [D] 2.85

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [CwD] 11.39

3 (c) Goodwill on conslidation

Particulars

Carrying amount as at 1 April
Additions
Impairment
Balance as at 31 March

Year ended 31
March 2023

38.24
33.23

(29.71)
41.76

Yearended31 March
2022

4.96
33.28

38.24
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

as at 31 March2023

(~ in crores)

The recoverable amounts of the aboveCGU's have been assessed usinga value-in-use model. Valuein use is
generally calculated as the net present value of the projected post-tax cash flows plus a terminal value of the
cash generating unit to which the goodwill is allocated. Initially a post-tax discount rate is applied to
calculate the net presentvalueof tilepost-taxcash flows

The Goodwill amountof'! 33.23 croreshas been createdduringthe year. This has beentestedfor impairment
and Rs. 29.71 croreshas beenwrittenoff.

4 (a) Intangible assets

Particulars Computer software

Year ended 31 March 2023
Gross carrying amount
Balanceas at 1April, 2022 26.23
Additions 4.01
Disposals (3.63)

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 [A] 26.60

Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April, 2022 14.52
Amortisation expenses during the year 3048
Disposals (3.63)

Balance as at 31 March, 2023 [B] 14.38

Net carrying amount as at 31 March, 2023 [A-B} 12.22

Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross carrying amount
Deemed cost as at 1 April, 2021 23.36
Additions 2.87
Disposals .
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 (C] 26.23

Accumulated amortisation and impairment
Balance as at 1 April, 2021 llAl
Amortisation expenses during the year 3.ll
Disposals .
Balance as at 31 March, 2022 [D] 14.52

Net carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 [C-D] 11.70
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2023

('I: in crores}

4 (b) Intangible assets under Development

Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2023
Gross cnrrylng amount
Balance as at 1 April, 2022

Additions

Transfer to assets

Balance as at31 March, 2023 [AJ

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross carrying amount
Balance as at 1 April2021
Additions
Transfer to assets
Bnlnnce us at31 Murch, 2022 [B]

4 (e) Intangible assets under Development ageing

Intangible assets
nuder

Development

2.79

1.32

(3.64)

0.47

2.26

l.SI
(1,28)

2,79

Particulars As lit 31 March 2023 As lit 31 March
2022

Intangible nssers under Development
(a) Projects in process

Less than 1 year 0.35 1.81

1-2 years 0,12 0,28

2-3 years 0.70
More than 3 years
(b) Prciects temnorarily suspended

Less than I year
]-2 years

2-3 years
More then 3 years -
Total 0,47 2,79

4 (d) Immovable properties not held in the name of the company

Whether title deed holder

Title deeds held in the
is II promoter Director,

Property held
Reason for not

SrNo. Description of item of properties Gross carrying value Relative of promoterZ being held in the
name of

Director, employee of
since date

name of company
prcmcter/Dlrectcr

1 Eruchshnw Building 2.27 Avimay Sohrab Hakim No 29-Jun·94 The Company is in
the process of
registering the
title deeds in the
Company's name.
There are no
disputes.
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5 Financial assets

5(a) Investments in Joint Ventures - NOD-CUlTent

Investmenr ln equity instruments _ Unquotcd

In Joint Ventures measured at cost less impairment (carrying amount determined using the equity
method of accounting) {for movement refer note 39}

Sector 113 Gatevida DevelopersPrivate Limited (formerlyknown as Lemon Tree Land
& DevelopersPrivate Limited)

12,750 (As at 31 March, 2022: 12,750) Equity Shares on" 10/· each

Ardent Properties Private Limited **
99,200 (As at 31 March, 2022 : 99,200) Equity Shares on' 101·each

Less: Provision for diminution

Kolkata-OneExceltonPrivate Limited
5,100 (As at 31 March, 2022: 5,100) Equity Shares of;f 10/· each

HL Promoters Private Limited ..
4,080,000 (As at 31st March 2022: 4,080,000) Equity Shares of no each

SAS RealtechLLP **

Land Kart Builders Private Limited
10,410 (As at 31st March 2022: 10,410) equity shares oH 10 each

As at
31 March 2023

As a!
31 March 2022

3,95

Capital Contribution
Sohna City LLP
Less Provision for impairment

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP
Less Provision for impairment

Smart Value Homes New Project LLP

One Bangalore LUXUlY Projects LLP

83.16 86.20
(34.14)

59.59 59.63
(25.85) (24.85)

154.65 158.49

271.55 249.28
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(~ in crores)

5(b) Investments - Non-current (unquoted)

(A) In Preference Shares (IJartly paid-up). at amortised cost
Ornate Housing Private Limited
200,000 (As at 31 March, 2022: 200,000) 11% Redeemable, Cumulative, Non-participating, Non­
convertible Preference Shares oH 10/· each, ~ 2.50/- each paid-up

(D) In others- at Fair Value through l'rofit and loss
Ardent Properties Private Limited
13,368,421 (As at 31 March, 2022: 13,368,421) Series A Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10!·
each carry a coupon of 16.7% with tenure of 15 years

48,345,864 (As at 31 March, 2022: 48,345,864) Series B & C Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of Rs.
10/· each cony a coupouof 16.7% with tenure of30 years

Aggregate amount of quoted Investments and market value thereof
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount ofimpainnent on fair valuation in CCD of Ardent Properties Pvt Ltd through profit and
loss

Asat
31 March 2023

0.05

0.05

0.05

As at
31 March 2022

0.05

59,60

4.10

63.75

138.23

74.48

** During the year the company had acquired the additional shares of Ardent Properties Private Limited & HL Promoters Private Limited and 100% shares
ofSAS RealtechLLP and had become the wholly owned subsidiary.

5(c) Loans - Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 32)

Less: Provision for Impairment

1,151.56

(89.58)

106198

1,383.45

(156.13)

122732

A.< " As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars Amount of loans I% to the total Amount ofloans I % to the total
IAdvancc Loans and IAdvance outstanding Loans and

outstanding Advances Advances

Promoters - -
Directors - - -
KMP, - - -
Related Parties 1,061.98 100% 1,227.32 100%
Others - - - -

Total 1,061.98 100% 1,227.32 100%

5(d) Other fmaueial assets - Non-current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Security Deposits
Balances with Banks in fixed deposit, with maturity beyond 12 months

6 Other lion-current assets

(Unsecured, considered good)
Advance for projects
Deposit with Government Authorities

Deposit with Others

(Unsecured, considered dobtful)
Advance for projects

,::::::::',c""""':::;':L",,: Provision for Impainnenr

1.40
0.77

2.17

7.16
0.50
1,08

68.65
(68.65)

4.01

12.75

2.60
Ll6

3,76

54,62

0.14

30.87
(30.87)

54.76
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7 (a) Income tax asset(net)/Deferrcd tax assets (net)

I''''''"'"''
1(.) IMom. tox.~p.n,e
Curr.nl tox

emrent tn~ on profit, f'" U,. ye.,

Adj".lm""i. for oun','tIit.~ ofpri., period,

[b) Doforrod T.~

D,c,en'o / (In", •• ,.) in dorefr"u tox "'010

MAT <:redit (utili",d)/ ,.vor"d

D'ore.,o in deferred lex Ii.biliti",

ToM deferred tax ..p.n'.

In,omolox.,pen..

Ip·rll'u1"~

I(b) Tho ",.onolli.lIon of.dimotod lneon,.I., expon...Ilndi.n ,lotulory lncomo t.~ t.lola Inoome I,,~ .'pon•• roporl.d In sl.l"""nt "fprofit '.d 10,,10 ,I> rollo,,""

(Lo,")Il'1'afith'fore l.x

St,lutoryill,omot!lXrat.

Expect.d inoom' tcx "~pen'o

Differollca,du, w;
T.~ oil«'j on Sh.re ofnel profii of]oin! vontu,a, O"""lUlt,dtilru,ing equity method

Expon,", 1101d.ductib1. for l.x purpO"" (CSRExp,,,,..)

Nati011allucomeft-mll HilU""Ptuporty110i provide'llin boob

DTAnot e,e"ted an "'IT)' rOm'ard1""

DTA nat o,,,,t,d an OUIT."t }".' imp,im",nl p,o"isi"",

MAT C"dit of eorli" y•• ' ""'e",d

DTAnot oroai,'<1 en Gomau oonvor'ion of.TVto Sub,idi,,'J

Inter"l 00,1 ",pila1i,ou 10 projcoi, in.luded in Co,10[,,1..

Oth.rs

ToM Ineom.lo'0'P0n"

Porli,ul.",

(,)In'"'lOtn~li.bmti..

Op.nlng hoI",""
Add: Cun.nt t!lX p'J'lIblofor Iboyo.r

Le" Adju'hn.nt, fur OllIT""t lax ofp'ior p,dod.

Lo": T..~e, peid

Clo,ing ".I,n<o

(<I) Income t.~ "",I,

Opening ba1,nco

Add: On. AOCOUllI ofco""",,ieu of Joinl venlor" lo Sub'idi.')'

Add: T"~e, paid in odv",,"', ".1 "rprovision during tho YO"'

Lo": Adju,lment, for "UITent",x ofp,lor period,

I.... : Rd\lnd roe"iv,d

Tolnl

Aut A,ot

31 Mlu-,h 2023 31 M.reh 2022

'"' O.OJ

lU.13 (0,]0)

12,16 (0,27)

0.04 1I.3J

.~ lJ.18

(0.02) 0.02

0.26 24.5]

12.42 24.26

A,.I A,ol

31 M.",h2023 31 M.rch 2022

(230.61) (13U4)

2.;.17% 25,17%

(58.04) (33,06)

I.02 nzo
10.10 (O,S7)

0.15 38,71

41.44 IS,15

13.13

(1.24) (]I.SI)

19.00 19.7;

12.42 24.26

A,.I A'ot

31 M.rd, 20n 31 M"r,h 2022

2.10 2,21

0.99 O,OJ

(0,14)

O.Ll

2,98 2,10

A,.l A! "I

31 Mnrd,20n 31 M.r"h 2022

136,39 101>.18

8.09 ;.]J

5.50 24.72

0.00 (0.16)

57.14

92.83 13G,]9



7(b) Income tax asset(net)lDeferred tax assets (net) (continued)

Pnrtio"I." A"I A''ll
31 M.rd, ZHZ3 31 M.,.d,Z022

(d) Defe,.,.ed Tax A"ol. ("ot)

Tho bOlo"""<omprill""temporw")'dilT.. 'on,o, "t~jbul"bl" to;

Doforrod lntomo t.x ."et,

MAT orodil "ntill.m'nl (0,33) (0,09)

Dilf.",,,,« bel,,~OIloookbaum"o ,nd I,x hlllnn,,, of fixed .."t, 17,95 18,21

Corry rO,.WIlJ"d bu,in"..' 10""" ""d d<lp,.eci'tio" 36,22 Z4,37

Provision ro, omplor'o b.n,fil, ""pOIl,e' H9 0,45

Ot\lorit"". (0,37) (O,SS)

Sh're ofproJlI of joint vontures (5,70) (S,70)

Totol dofen.d tU"".t, 50,36 %.35

Dofened lnoonlOlull,bUllle,
~

Diff,rOlloein melhod of .0mpUIa"Oll"fproJlI bel\'~0l1 bIlok, <I"dInx

Tol.1 deferr,d tuli,billti.,

Dororrod I.x Assel' (noO 50.36 %.35

Porlioulo .. A.ol A.ol

31 MOl'<hZ023 31 M.rcb2022

(o) D.f.,rod T.. lI,bllltio. (nel)

Tho bolon.. o<>1"pr;,e, I,mpo,a!y differences "llribuUlblotu

Dot,rred ioeo",e In•• ,,<1,

MATcreditenlitl.mont 0,24 0,24

Tot,1 doforrod Inx ",ot. 0,24 0,24

Doforrod Ineomo lox li"bUlIio,

Di!fol'ennoin one\hadof e<l1npulal;on of profil belw... n book. ond t." 0,54 0,54

Olli. 48,l(I 48,)0

ToM deto,.,.,d IOlllnblliti.. 4M4 48.64

neferred I.. UnbmU" (nel) 48,40 48.40

(I) M,vement. in d,rerred t".li"bialJo, Provl.lon. 0111" Dofined benefil MATerodlt PropOl"!)", pl'''1 TOllo"" Sh..roofprotlt Dur,,.emeln lnter"lln<!uded ToM
it,m, obUgaUo" entillo",e"t .nd 'qulp",enl ofjoinlvo.lur" melbodof I"Io,'onlo,.lo,

oompulatlon of
proD! botw«n
bool" und I.,

All April 2021 (0,25) 0,53 0,28

ChBIgedJ(oredil,d)

_ 10Stutementofprofil and 10'" O.m 0,02 0,03

- 10 "Ii"" oompr.h,n,iv" income
• On AoCOlllll or nOllVorsioo of roinl "''Itt",e to 48,)0 48,10
Subsidiary
AI31 Morolt 20U 48,10 (0,24) 0.54 48.40

Chnrgod/(crodilcd)

_10 8Meme"t Dfprofit ond 10'"

- 10olher comp"h",oi"" i"cD",e
• On Aocou11l "rCOllVer"ion "r r"int v'J\tnro to
Sub.!;diary

AI31 M'r<h 2023 48,10 (0,24) 0.54 4~.40

Sh.,e "I'profit DlU,ru",e in Inlo,e,1 i",h,ded Tutn!
ofJolut \"Onluro. nleibod or in 1",'enlo,l"

c"mput.Uon Of
profil between
bo"l" ""dlllx

(g) Muvomenlo In dofor"d lox ."et, Provl,lon, oth,r nefinnd bon'fil MAT <ru,lIt Prop' I'll', pl••1 TOllo"e,
itom' obligation o"tillemonl ond equlpmenl

AI 1 April 2021 (0.75) 006 13,09 2,52 28.44

(ChorijodY·l'o<HI.d U.45 0,05 Z,g9

- to StOlomenlofpmfil and 10"' (0.82) O.m (1318) 12.80 (4,07)

- 10othor compnm,n,ivo ineomo 0.07 0,33

- effect, offuleignc.;<oh,ngo 0.16

Al II Moroh 2022 (0,89) 045 (0,U9) 18.21 24.37

{Ch.rg'dycl'edil'd

0" AC"<JlU,t of eOllvor,ion<lr Jolnl ""nlUl'"t<> Suh,id; 0.09 0.15 13.38

- 10St.I"",.,,1 01'prolil and 10'" (0,08) 2.UO (0,24) (0.40) (1.53)

_10olhe, oomprohcn,ivc ;ntome 0.05 000

- otl"ect,of fOleignexchange 0.60

AI 31 M.roh 2023 (0.37) Z.~9 (0.33) 17.95 36,22

~

13,55

(1925)

(5.70)

(5.70)

56,91

3.39

(24.51)

"~
0.i6

36.35

13,62

(0,26)

0,05

0,60

50,36

The Company has not created Deferred Tnx Assets on the carried forward loss. These tax losses are available fur set off against future taxable profits over next 8 years



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as a/31 March 2023

('t in crores)

8 Inventories {refernotes8.1, 8.2,8.3, 8.4& 8,S}
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisablevalue)

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

ConstructionMaterials
Finished Goods
Constructionwork-in-progress

15.76 10.55
728.69 761.83

3,309.30 3,436.19

4.053.75 4208.57

Notes:

8.1 Disclosure with respect to inventories which are expected 10be recovered after more than twelve months are not provided as it is practicallynot feasibleto
disclose the same considering the nature of the industry in which the Group operates.

8.2 Construction work-in-progress represents materials at site and uubilled costs on the projects. Based on projections and estimates by the management of the
Group of the expected revenues and costs to completion, there are no provision for losses to completion and! or write off of costs carried to inventories,
other than already provided.. In the opinion of the management, the net realisable value of the construction work-in-progress will not be lower than the
costs so included therein,

8.3 TIlecost ofinventories recognised as an expense during tile year was ~ 1,226.60 crores(for the year ended 31 March, 2022 '!' 605.71 crores)

8.4 Refer note 36 in respect of above mentioned inventoryunder lien

8.5 During the period the company has written down inventories to tile extent on 136.49crores(for the year ended 31 March 2022 : '!'40.65 crores)

As at
31 March 2023

9(a) Investments ~ current

As at
31 March 2022

Investments in Mutual Funds -unquoted ~ at Fail' Value Through Prcflt and Loss
204,042,259 Units (As at 31 Marolt, 2022: 204,042.259 Units) of'Birla Sun Life ~ Short Term Fund - Monthly
Dividend> Regular Plan -Payouron' 10 each (refer note 27)

9(b) Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good ~ [refernote 30]

Unsecured, considered Doubtful
Less:Provision for impairment

0.24

0.24

96.53

1.77
(1.77)

96.53

0.24

0.24

166,79

0.28
(0,28)

166.79

Particulars Outstanding for following perleds from dUI! dahl of transcation as on 31·03·2023 Total

(a)Trade Receivables considered good
~ Secured;

(b) Trade Receivables considered good
- Unsecured;

(c) Trade Receivables which have
significantincrease in Credit Risk; and
(d) Trade Receivables- credit
impaired.

(e) Trade Receivables considered
Doubtful- Usecured;

Total

Less than 6
months

45.63

45.63

6 months - 1
Years

15.45

15.45

1-2 Years

15.78

15.78

2·3 Years

15.93

15.93

More than 3 Years

3.73

3.73

96.53

96.53



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

Particulars O\ltstnllding for following periodsfromdue date oftrallscation as on 31-03-2022 Total
Less than 6 6 months - 1 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3 Years

months Years

(a) Trade Receivables considered good
- Secured;
(b) Trade Receivables considered good

31.21 21.67 35.57 34,67 43.67 166.79
- Unsecured;

(e) Trade Receivables which have - - -significant increase in Credit Risk; and

(d) Trade Receivables- credit - -impaired,

(e) Trade Receivables considered - - 0.28 0.28
Doubtful- Usecured;

Total 31.21 21.67 35.57 34.67 43.95 J67.07

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

9(c) Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with Banks - in Current Accounts #
Cheques on Hand
Cash on Hand
Deposits with original maturity of'Iess than 3 months

80.36

0.03
176.62

78.42
2.28
0.05

139.24

257.01 219.99

# Includes balances with banks - in RERA specified accounts, which shall be used only for specified purposes as
defined under Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.

9(d) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

4.90 13.99

Deposits with original maturity between 3 10 12 months
Earmarked Current Accounts
Earmarked Deposit Accounts

10.70

82.92

5.84
1.25

89.30

93.62 96.39

9(e) Loans - current
(Unsecured, considered good)

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits to related parties (refer note 32)

Less: Provision for impairment
6.24 36.38

Loans and Inter-Corporate Deposits with others
Less: Provision for impairment

6.24 36.38
19.24

(19.24)

6.24 36.38

r----------------
As at 31 March 2023 Asat31 March 2022

100%36.38

Amount ofloans % to the total
/Advance outstanding Loans and

Advances

100%6.24

AmonntofLoans % to the total
IAdvance Loans and

_~aDding Advances_+ L_-":c::"""'-_~

Particulars

Promoters

Directors

KMP,

Related Parties

Others

Total 6.24 100% 36,38 100%



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at Bl March 2023

('{in crores)

9(1) Other financial assets - current

As at

31 March 2023

As at

31 March 2022

(unsecured, considered good)

Advance recoverable from related parties (refer note 32)

Advances recoverable fromothers
UnbilledRevenue
Interestaccrued
Depositwith others

(unsecured, considered doubtful)

Contractually reimbursable expenses

Less: Provision for impairment

45.86 44.93
28,77 28.84

1.97 2.01

39.12

13,83 12.86

10.87 ic.ar
(lo.s!) (10.31)

90.43 127.76

10 Otlter Current Assets

(unsecured,consideredgood)
Advance for projects 50.33 60.31

Deposit with others 0.08 0.08

Mobilisation Advance

Prepaid expenses 3.72 27.60

Balances with government authorities 30.05 24.80

(unsecured, considered doubtful)

Advance for projects 51.43 49.35

Less: Provision for impairment (51.43) (49.35)

84.18 112.79



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
CIS lit 31March 2023

(~in crores)

11 Equity share capital and other equity

11(a) Equity share capital

Particulars

Authorj~ed

2,000,000,000(As at 31 MIIf~h 2022 2,000,000,000)OrdinarySharesof ~ 10/-each

Issued,Subscribed and fullyPaid-up

1,280,969,842(As at31 Merch2022: 1,098,488,091)OrdinerySharesof~ WI-each

Anal

31 Mm'ch 2023

2,000.00

1,280.97

1,280.97

Asnt

31 March 2022

2,000,00

1,098.49

1,098.49

11.1 Reconciliation of number of Ordinary Shares and amount Outstandjng at the beginning and at the end of the Year:

Particulars Asat 31 Manh 2023 As at 31 March2022

Number Of Shares ~ in (fores NnmberOfShnrcs '{incrcres

AttheBeginning of thoYear 1,098,488,091 1,098.49 915,337,908 915,34
Issued during the YOl1t 182,481,751 182.48 /83,150,183 183.15

Ouhtandingnt theEnd ofthe Year 1,280,969,842 1,280,97 /,098,438,091 1,098.49

11.2 The Ordinary Shares rank pari-passu, having voting rights and are subject to preferences and restrictions as per Companies Act, 2013. The
shareholders of Ordinary shares are eligible to receive the remaining assets ofthe Parent after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to
their shareholdings, at the event of'Iiquidation.

11.3 Details of shares issued otherwise than for cash, Issues as bonus shares and I or shares bought back during the immediately preceding 5 veers- None.

11.4 Shares held by Parent and its subsidiary:

729,867,398 (As at 31 March 2022 : 729,867,398) [including 98 shares held jointly] Ordinary shares are held by tile Holding Company, Tara Sons
Private Limited.
550,817,119 (As at 31 March 2022 : 368,335,368) Ordinary Shares arc held by Tatu Realty & Infrastructure Limited, a Subsidiary ofTata Sons Private
Limited.
284,338 (As at 31 March 2022 : 284,338) Ordinary Shares are held by Tala Industries Limited, a Subsidiary ofTata Sons Private Limited.

11.5 Details of Ordinary Shares held by Shareholders holding more than 5% of Ordinary Shares in tlte Parent:

Particulars Asat31Marcil2023 Asat31Murch 2022

Number Df Shnres % Holding Number OfShares %Holding

TalaSons Limited (Ordinary Shures on: 10each) 729,867,398 56.98% 729.867,398 66.44%

Tata Rea1ty& Infra<lfmctllreLimited (Ordinmy SlwesoH 10cach) 550,817,119 43.0lJ% 368,335,368 33,53%

11.6 Details of Shares held by promoters at the end oftbe year:

Asat 31March2023
Class ofshares No.ofsharesat the Change duringthe No,ofsharesat the % ofTotalShares % change duringthe

Promotername beginning nftheyear year endoftheyear >'''

Tuta Sons Limited Eqllity Sheree 729,867,398 729.867,398 56,98% .9,47%

Tum Realty & Infrastruculre Limited Equity Shares 368,335,368 182,481,751 550,817,119 43,00% 9.47%
Tata Industries Limited EquityShares 284,338 284,338 0,02% 0.00%

Tutnl 1,098,487,1114 1,280.968,855 101l.O0%

Asat31MlIl"ch 2022

Promoter name
Class ofshares No.of sh3res Mthe Change during the No, ofsharesutlheend %orroer ShrlIes %change during the

be innir of" '" '''- of theveer yem

TetaSons Limited Equity Shares 729,867,398 729.867,398 66.44% .13,30";'

Equity Shares /85,185,185 183,150,183 368,335,368 33.53% 13.30%

Equity Shares 284,338 284,338 0.03% ·0.01%

915,336,921 1,098,487,104 100.00%



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(<'in crores)

11 Equity share capital and other equity (Continued)

l1(b) Other equity

Particulars

S~c\ITjlies Premimn

General Reserve

Retained ellJ!lings

Cupitul Redemption Rese!"',"\)

Cupitll! Reserve

Foreign Curren,,)' TrRrnlnliou Reserve

CorpusFund

Particulars

SecuritiesPremium

Opening balance

Add:PremiumonsharesissuedduringUte year

ClosingBalance

General Reserve

Opening b~lmwe

Add:TransferfromSurplusin theConsolidated Statement of ProfitandLoss

ClosingBnlance

Capital Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve

(Less)fAdd; Tl'ansfur to Rel~incd camings

ClosingBalance

Retained earnings

Opening bihlllce

Less:Lossfor theyear

(Less):Otheroolllplchensive incorne/(kl5s) for theyear

Add:TransferfromC~pit"l Redemption Reserve

ClosingBalance

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve on consolidation

Opening balance

Addf(Lcss): Effectofforeign oxchungc rateveriaticns duringtheyear

ClosingBalance

COI'pns Fnnd

Opening balmc.

Add;TnmsferfromSurplusin the Consolidated Statcmcntofi'rolit andLoss

ClosingBalance

Nature and purpose ct reserves

As a! As at
n March 2023 Jl March 2(122

2,730.24 2,412,72

23.41 23.41

(2,915.67) (2,506,02)

5.28 5,28

57.50 6(,,12

1.46 1,46

(97,7S) 2.97

Asat As at
31 MardL 2023 31 March 2022

2,412.72 2,095.87

317.52 316.85

2,730.24 2,412.72

23.41 23.41

23.41 23.41

5.28 5.22

0.02

------- (002)

(2,506.02) (1,252,35)

(411.79) (252.39)

2.14 (1.30)

0.Q2

(2,915,67) (2,506.02)

66.12 2.06

(8.62) 64.06

57.50 66.12

1.46 1,46

1.46 1.46

(97.78) 2.97

(i) Securities premium

Securities premium represents the premium on issue of shares. The account is utilised in accordance with the provisions ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

(0) Debenture redemption reserve (DRR)

The Parent is required to create DRR out of the profits which is available for payments of dividend tor the purpose of redemption of debentures nntil
such debentures are redeemed.



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notesforming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

11 Equity share capital and other equity (Continued)

11(b) Other equity (Continued)

Nature and JlUI'I1ose of reserves (Continlled)

(iii) Oenerat reserve

The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purpose. As the general reserve is created by
transfer from one component of equity to another and is not an item of other comprehensive income, items included in the general reserve will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.

(iv) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

Exchange difference arising Oil translation of the foreign operation are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate reserve
for equity. The cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the investment is disposed off.

(v) Retained earnings

Retained earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date, less any transfers to general reserve, debenture redemption reserve, dividends or
other distributions paid to shareholders.

(vi) Capital Redemption Reserve

Capital Redemption Reserve is created out of profit on redemption of capital.

(vii) Corpus Fund

Corpus 'Fund is a fund generated and kept for the existence and sustenance of the organisation, it pertains to one of the subsidiary registered under
section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(ix) Capital Reserve

The Capital Reserve represent the excess of identifiable assets and liabilities over the consideration paidlreceived or vice -a-vcrsa on account of
acquisticn of Joint Venture

l1(c) Non Controlling Interest

Partkulars As at As At

31 MardI 2023 31 March 2022

Ba10nce atthebeginningof the year (29.81) (26.07)

Movements

Shureof profitI (loss) 1.76 (2.99)

Shareof adler comprehensive income (2.88) (0.75)

B~iEU1ee at theend oflOO year (30.93) (29.81)



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as a/31 March 2023

(e in crores)

12(a) Borrowings

Particulars As lit

31 March 2023

Altai'

31 March 2022

Secured - at amertised cost:

(a) Debentures

(b) TennLoanfromBanks

Unsecured- at amortised cost:

(a) Debentures

Interest accrued but no!dueon borrowings

1,027,34

278.02

36.64

1,342.00

Current maturities uf
long-term debts

742.50

742.50

LOllg_tum

870,00

260,47

299.76

61.96

1,492.19

Current maturltles of
long-term debts

500.00

195.00

695.00

12.1 Security and terms of repayment in respect of the above borrowings are detailed in note 34 and 36 to the consolidated financial statements



rata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31 March 2023

(e m crates)

Particulars

12(b) Trade PayabIes - Non-current

i) Total outstandingdues of micro and smallenterprises(refer note43)
Ii)Total outstandingdues of creditorsotherthan microand smallenterprises
iii) Retentionmoneypayable

(TradePayableAgegingRefer note 13 (b)

12(c) Other financialliabilites - Non-current

Securityand other deposits payable

13 Other nun-current liabilities

Advance fromcustomers

As at
31 March 2023

14.13

14.13

1.19

1.19

35.16

35.16

As at
31 March 2022

0,05

9,41

9.46

1.07

1.07



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
as at 31March 2023

(t in crores)

AI at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March2022

13(11) Current berrcwlngs

Secured - at amOl1ised cost
Lo!lJ1S repayableOildemandfrom banks(includes cashcredits,workingcapItaldemand loans
andshort-termleans)
[Note: Securitydlclosure in respectof the securedborrowingsare
detailedin note 33 and3G to theconsolidatedfinancial statements]

475.81 198,15

Unsecured- lit amortised cost
Loansrepayable on demandfrombanks
Inter CorporateDepositsfrom relatedparties (refernote 32)
Ccmmercinl papers

Currentmaturities of'Iong-termdebts(refernotes 12(a)and 33)
Interestaccruedon borrowings

314.30 239.64
10.51 10.48

200.00 1,000,00

142.50 695,00
7o.t7 116.66

1,813.29 2260.53

Notes: 13{a)1

Securityundtermsof repayment in respectof the aboveborrowingsare detailedin note 33 end 36 to the conscliduted finuncial statements

As at
31 March 2023 "'"31 March2022

13(b) Trade Pnynbles

i) Total outs1unding duesof microendsmall enterprises (refernote 44)
Il)Total outstandingdues of creditorsother thanmicro endsmallenterprises
iii)Retentionmoniespayable

680.94
41.99

744,76
42,22

722,93 786.98
Note: The averagecreditperiodon purchaseof goodsMd servicesare wi1hin 60 days,The
trade paycblesare non-interesthearing
Trllde Pllyable ageing analysis

Outstandln as on 31 Murch 2023
Particulars Outstanding for the foll{lwin Ilerilld from the duc date ef pa '0' Total

Not due Less than I 1·2 Years 2.3Yean More than 3 Years
veal'

Undisputed
(i) Micro,Smalland Medium 0,33 0.33
Enterprises
(ii) Others 75,85 600.57 20.74 12.94 26.42 736.52

Disputed
(i)Micro, SmallundMedium
Enterprises
(ii) Others 0,20 0,01 0.21

ontstandm as {In31 March 2022
.---- TMa~Particulars Outstanding for the foll{lw;n euod frllln uie due date {If '0'

Nottlue Less than I 1·2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Years

'"Undisputed
(i) Micro, Smalland Medium
Enterprises
(ii) Others 602,88 101.12 44.52 4,07 43,85 796.44

Disputed
(i) Micro,Smalland Medium
Enterprises
(Ii) Others



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
asm 31 Mafch 2023

('{in crores)

13(c) Other fiullncialliabiliUes

Payabletojoint venturecompanies
Employees relatedpnynbles
Earnest moneydeposits
Securityundother depositspayable
Payable to societies

14 Other Current Liabilities

Revenuereceivedinadvance(Unearnedrevenue)
Statutorydues payable (PF,PT, ESIC, Withholding tax and GST)

15 Provisions

Asal
31 Mardi 2023

683.45
1.60
0,04

20.59
lI5.75

801.43

167.55
ll1.70

187.25

A",
31 Murch 2022

626.41
1.29

0.14
20,13

71.83
719.80

325.41
21.35

346.76

ProvisIon for Employ0l' Benefits
Gratuity (refernote31)
Compensated absences (refernote 31)

Provisionfor Contingencies Cosls (refernote 44)
Provisionfur customercompensation

4.89 7.19
4.76 5,83

42.71 49.23
0.16 0,25

52.52 62.50



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
forthe year ended 31 March 2023

(~in crorea)

16 Revenue from Operations

Saleof properties
Sale ofservices

- Project & society management and marketing charges

Other operating revenues
~ Other incomefrom customers

17 Other Income

Fo!' the Period Ended
31 March 2023

1,358.15

43.36

27.10

1,428.61

For the Year Ended
31 March 2022

776,21

19.91

14,93

811.05

(II) Interest Income
Interest income on financialassets lit amortisedcost
Interest on delayed collections from customers

Interest on CCD

(b) Dividend Income from investments measured at fair value through profit and lass

(0) Other lion-operating income

Interest on Income-taxrefund
Scrap Sales
Sundry Balances & Provisions Written-back

Miscellaneous Income

(d) Other gains/(Iosscs)

Gainon sale of current investments

Net Gain on sale of Property, plant and equipment

Net Guin on Foreign Currency Transactions and Translations (net)

18 Changes in inventories uffinishcd good~ lind project work-ill-progress

Opening
Construction Materials

Finished Goods

Construction work-in-progress

Add/(Less) Impact of NRV on inventory

On Account of Acquistion

Closing

Construction Materials

Finished Goods

Construction work-in-progress

19 Employee Benefits Expense

191.55 205.52
4.84 3.02

4.17 18.94
20o.s6 227.48

0.01 0,01

5.20 3.07
0,60 0.52

17.99 (0.15)

5.47 3.00

29.26 6.44

0.69

(0.08) 0.Q7

0.61 0.67

230.44 234.00

10.55 10.60

761.S3 680.46

3,436.19 3,187,79

(136.49) (40,65)

1,094.84 506.39

(15.76) (10.55)

(728.69) (761.83)

(3,309.30) (3,436,19)

I,ll3.17 136.02

Salaries

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

Staff Welfare Expenses

82.61

4.19

4.83

91.63

5.96

84,56

5.08

2.90

92.54

5,61
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20 Finance Cost

Period Ended
31 March 2023

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Interest and finance charges on financial liabilitiesnot at fair value
through profit or loss
• Interest on Borrowings
- Interest on Leased Liability

Less: Apportionment to constructionwork ill progress

246.16 309,44
0.95 0.76

247.11 310.20
2.25 4,47

244.86 305,73

Note: TIlecapitalisationrate used to determinethe amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is the weightedeverage interest rate applicableto the
Group's generalborrowings which is 6.68 % p.a. (for the year ended 31 March 2022: 7,45%)

21 Depreciationand Amortisation Expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisationof Intangible Assets
Amortisationof Right of use assets

22 Other Expenses

ProfessionalFees
TravellingExpenses
Rent
Repairs and Maintenance
- others
ElectricityExpenses
Advertisement
Insurance
Rates and Taxes
Directors'SittingFees
Payable to Statntory Auditors
AgAuditor
-AuditFees
IIIOther Capacity
_CertificationPees
_In Other Capacity
- Reimbursementof Expenses
Payable to Auditors of Subsidiaries
Net Loss on Foreign CurrencyTransactions and Trunslatlons
Goodwill writtenoff
Expenditureon Corporate Social Responsibility
Customercompensationcosts
Administrativeand Other Expenses
Sel6l1gExpenses
-Brokerage
-Advertising&others
Provision for contingenciescost
Impairmentfor advances and receivables
Impact ofNRV on inventory

23 Impairment of loans glvenand investment in joint ventures

Impairment loss on Loans given and investmentsin joint ventures (Net of Reversal)
(refer note 24 (c))
Loans given and investments writted off (refernote 24 (c))
Loss on fair value of investments

3,16

3.48
2,67

9.31

32.68

2.42

3.02

33.09
2.43

0,S8
2.26
0.53
0.26

0.65

0.12

0.09
1.38
0.07

29.71
2.96

5.89
25.59

10.57
38.30

40.56
136.49
369.65

(41.50)

(41,SO)

1.88
3,11

1.82
6,81

22.53

1.17
3.63

38.20
1.79
0.77

2.84
0.09
0.29

0.55

O.ll
0,01

1.01
114,90

1,60

8.57

26,62

17.86

21.70
6.85

40.65
311.74

3.30

17.33

(34,79)

114.161
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24 Financial risk management

The Group's businessactivitiesexposeit to a varietyof financial risks, namelyliquidityrisk, marketrisks and creditrisk. The Group'sseniormanagement has
the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework. The Group has constituted a Risk Management
Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Group'srisk management policies.The Group'srisk management policiesare establishedto
identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor11Sks and adherenceto limits, Risk management
policiesand systemsare reviewedregularlyto reflectchangesin marketconditions and the Group'sactivities,

The Risk ManagementCommitteeof the Groupis supportedby the Finance department that provides assurance that the Group's financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policiesand procedures and that financial risksare identified,measured and managed in accordance with the Group'spoliciesand risk
objectives, TheFinancedepartmentactivities are designedto:
• protectthe Group'sfinancialresults and positionfrom financial risks
- maintainmarketriskswithin acceptableparameters, whileoptimisingreturns; and
- protectthe Group's financialinvestments, while maximising returns.

A) Management of liquidity risk

Liquidityrisk is the risk that the Groupwill face in meetingits obligations associatedwith its financialIlabilities. The Group's approachto managingliquidity
is to ensure that it will have sufficientfunds to meet its liabilities when due withoutincurringunacceptable losses, In doing this, management considers both
normal and stressedconditions.

Maturitiesof financialliabilities
The followingtable shows the maturity analysisof the Group'sfinancial liabilitiesbased on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows as at the Balance
sheet date:

A. at 31 M.teh 2023 Carting Amount I.e" than 1 ye.r 1-3Yonro 3_5Ye.", Tol..:J

Borrowing, 3,215.29 l,lm.29 1,342,011 3,215.29

Tradepayabte, 737.06 722,93 14.13 737.06

LeoseLibilitie, 11.39 2.03 2.31 7.05 n.39

Other liabiliti., 802.1,2 801.43 r.t9 802.62

A••131 Mnreh2022 Caning Amount I.e.. than 1 yenr 1-3 Yon... 3_5 Vea", Tot.l

Borrowing., 3.752,72 2,254.34 1.453,16 176,83 3,8H4.33

rmde puyuble. 7%.44 786,9H 9.46 7%.44

LenseLibilirl"" 13,13 1.34 2.00 934 13,13

OtherlinbllIli"" 720.87 719,8{) 1.07 720,87

B) Management of market risk

The Group's size and operations result in it beingexposedto the followingmarketrisks that arisefrom its use of financialinstruments:
• interestrate risk
• currencyrisk
The aboverisks may affectthe Group's incomeand expenses, or the value ofits financial instruments. The objectiveof theGroup's management of marketrisk
is to maintainthis risk withinacceptableparameters, while optimisingreturns. The Group's exposureto, and management of, these risksis explained below:

Partleuh...

FtIed tat" In'ltumo,,ta
Debentures- Non-C"n,~rliblc Red""umbte
Short tonllloan fromniher"

IntorCorpt>r'leDo!",sit,

C<>nttl\Cl'cial poper,

1''''11loanfrombo"ks
WorkingCapital Demundloanfrom Banks

YchicI.lo'lllI

Tutal

Variable-ratc l""trwn.nt,

Lo.ns ,~""y.hle on d.Rlond from b.nb

Total

A.at Ai at

31 M.t<:h2023 31 Mateh2022

1,769.114 1,864.76

10.50 10.50

200.00 1,000.00

278.02 260,46

850.11 42073

J,HlllA7 3,556.<15

17.63

17.63
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24 Financial risk management (Continued)

B) Management of market risk (Continl/ed)

POTENTIAL IMPACT OFRfSJ{ MANAGEMENT POLICY SENSITIVITY TO RISK

(I) Inl1\rcd rntc rl,k

Interest r,t. risk i. the ri,k lhot the future co.hflow, TI,. Oruup'~ slrntcID' is to mitigate interest rOlcri.k by e","ring"
of • rUlanelol in,trument will flU"IU.t~ boo"u$O or propO!' mix of borrowingsot
chunge, in marklltjnlere~t rOlc~. f,,,eel"nd vari.ble inl<.'l'e,i r.les
The Group is to.lnly ""po,ed to intere,t rate ri.k TI,e Grmlp's intt.'re,t rat< ri,k is mmn!",.d by the mon.gem.1l1 "lid

duu to ii' vori"ble intcfe,t mle bOl1"winlJ5. The Ireo''"T tOOIll <>" n monthly h"I,_ Men,gemellt ,"01y.", the
lnt",estratel'iskari,esduetouncert.inlie••boutlhe OrO\'p's inl"l",t rale exposure OJI a dyn,mic b•• is, VoriOl1'
Ml1!'e m"l'ket intel'•• trut. ofth",e in"""lffi"nl'. ,c"".rios ",'. ,imnl.t.d, I.king int<l oon,ideratilln refin"ucil\g,

rene",.l of "xi.ting pooition, and alternative flllllIlcing ,ource,.
111" Oronp'$ fixed r.le borrowing. '''' corri"d .t B.,ed 011 th""" scenarios, 1MGroup calcnl.les tile imp.cl on profil
01OO,1i,od co,t. They fire th"",fol'e not suhject to .mllo" of 0 dcrllled intercst mte shift, The ,eemrios ore run ,mly
ioterest mte risk os ,",lined in lnd AS W7, .in"" for liabililic" liult repre,ent the nmjor inleresl-b •• ring position'
ne.ith"l'thecorryingoroount ncr the future ea.h fiow, The simulation i, done on • monlhly b•• ia 1<1 vodfy th.t the
willfluetu,le becnu,c of 0 chango in market int"...1 maximum potenli.ll"", i. within tho limil. ,et by m"""g~~nent

rnt.,.

kJ n" e,tim.lion of the .ppro~im"t" inlpad of the intere,t roteri.k.
with ""pOOL to finaudal i""truments, the Group Iuls c.leulated the
impact of u 0,25% change in interest r.lcs, 0,25% p.c.doc",,.. io

inter""l Oll ~jilre"oid 10"'" would reduce illtc"''''1expe""e by '( NIL
orme, till' t'"onci.lyenr ende<:l31 Moroh, 2023

0,25% I'~, deereo"" in inle""t on of"""oid 10'''' would roduco
illto""'l o~pen,. by ~ NIL c""",,, for fmonel.1 yeoI'cndod 31 Moreh,
2023

A 0,25% increo", in illtcre~t r.t", would hove led to .n "'IU.1 bUI
opposite eiIeol,

A, 01Morch 31, 2023, bolTowings amoulltod t<l~
NIL (as .1 31 M."'h, 2022 ~ 532 crorc,) is
eX!",scd to intere"t ralc ri,k

(Ii) Cnrfonryl'lol,

The Group un<k>rt,ke. lr~n~"dinn~ denom!noted in TI,C (JrlRlP hn. not hedged any <If it~ u,,.t~ orliobilities repoynble

foreign c\IITencie~: eOJ"equenllr, "~P""Ul'" to in. foreign cllrronc")'.
exchange ",te flucluations ori.e

kJ on ""timLllionof the ap!'mximol. impnot of the "un"Cncyrisk, with
"'speC!to linsncinl instrumenl., Iho Orm'!' lias c.lenlated the imp""t

of a 5% "bongoin oum",oie~.

The carryingamounts of the Group's foreigncurrencydenominated monetary assetsand monetaryliabilitiesat the end of the reportingperiodareasfollows'

L1~bmtie,' A..d.

A,a! A, 81 A,a! A. at

31Mar<:h2023 31 March 2022 31Mal'ch202J 31 M'l'eh2022

30.12 17.10 '"~
43.15

299.86 1.048,99 7.61 63.23

MVR

LKR

MVR~M"IJivi"nR<lfi)' •• , LKR = SriLaok"n Rupee, USD~ US Dollars,
SGD ~ Sing"port: Don.r.

Foreign Curreno)' (Fq

Sensitivity Analysis
The Groupis mainlyexposedto the currencyofMVR& LICK
Belowis the Group'ssensitivityto a 5% increaseand decreasein ~ againstthe relevantforeigncurrencies.

Paftlcul." For tho l'ear ended Iluf lho )'earonded
3t MafOh 2023 31 March20U

jncrc~"" in CJ<Chnnge rate by 5% impaot on profit before tax - MVR

Deer"""" in cxclulnge rate by 5%, impact OJ! pl'ofit hel'on: l.x - MVR

(0.19) UO

0,t9 (UO)

lncre,,,, inexchonge r,te b)' 5%, imp"et on profit before t.x - LKR

Th.><:J'e""" in exch,nge rot. by 5%, imp""l on pmfit before to~ _LKR

14.61 49.29

(14.61) (49.29)

A positivenumberaboveindicatesan increasein the profit or total equitywhere the'!:weakens5% againstthe relevantcurrency- For a 5% etrengthning of the '!:
againstthe relevantcurrency,there wouldbe a comparableimpacton the profitor totalequity, and the balancesbelowwouldbe negative.
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24 Financial risk management (Continued)

C) Management of credit risk

Creditrisk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customeror counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractualobligations, and arises
principally fromthe Group'sreceivablesfrom customers, investments in debt securities,loansgivento relatedpartiesand projectdeposits,

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by requiring customers to pay advances through progress billings before transfer of ownership, therefore substantially
eliminating the Group's credit risk in this respect.

The Group's credit risk with regard to trade receivable has a high degree of risk diversification, due to the large number of projects of varying sizes and types
with numerous different customer categories in a large number of geographical markets.

The ageing analysis (Ifthe receivables (gross of provisions):

Period Uptnl YeRI' More than 1 Total
year

Asat M&ch31, 2023 61,09 35.44 96.53

Asat March31, 2022 52,88 113.91 166,79
--

The following table summarjzes the changes in the provisions made for the receivllbles:

Pnrticulal's ASRt "'.
'31 Mal'ch 2023 '31 Maroh 2022

Openingbalance 0,28 0,64

Provided/(reversed)during the year 1.49 (0.36)

Closing balance 1.77 0,28

Investment in Debt Securities, Loans to Related Pllrties aod Project Deposits
The Group has investments in compulsorily convertible debentures I optionally convertible debentures, loans to related parties and project deposits. The
settlement of such instruments is linkedto the completion of the respective underlying projects. Such Financial Assets are not impaired as on the reporting date

The following table summarizes the changes in the provisions made ill Investment & Leans to related Parties:

Particulars "'.. "'"''31 March 2023 '31 March 2022

Openingbalance 234.36 213,73

Providedduring the year (118.93) 20.63

Closing balance 115.43 234.36

Cash lind Bani. balances
Credit risk from cash and bank balances is managed by the Group's treasurydepartment in accordance with the Group's policy.

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 March, 2023 and 2022 is the carrying value of each class offinanciai assets as disclosed in notes 5(b),
5(d) and 9(a) to 9(1).

25 Capital Management

Risll~ management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will be able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to stakeholders through
optimisation of debt and equity balance.

The Group's risk management committee reviews the capital structure of the Group on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the committee considers the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital

The Group monitors capital using Debt-Equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity. For the purposes of the Group's capital management, the Group
considers the following components of its Balance Sheet to be managed capital:
Total equity as shown in the Balance Sheet includes General reserve, Retained earnings, Share capital, Security premium. Net debt includes current debt plus
non-current debt lesscash and bank balances

Long-tel,nBorrowing,

CurrentlI\Iltw-ities oflons-term debt'

Currentborrowing,

InterestAct'rtwd"" Bmrowing"

Tot"ldebl

TotalEqllity

Net d.bl to equity r~llo (No. of lime.)

31 Marrh202J

1,347.86

700.00

t,060.61

106.lIl

3,215.2l1

t,152.26
2.79

31Maroh20n

1,430,22

695.00

1,448.87

i78.62

3,752.72

i,07t.65

3.50



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part oftbe consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

26 Fair value measurements

Financial instruments by category

ClIlTyillgnm~Ul1t liSat 31 Mnl'c!l2023 FnirVnlue

FVfPL Amortisedcost Totnl Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total

Current NOll- Current NOll. Current Non-
current current current

Financialassets

L ill\'eslmenls • Preference Shm-es O.os 0.05 0,05 0,05

- Compulsory convertible Debentures

- M\ltUru funds 0,24 0.24 0.24 0.24

Ii,Tr~de receivables 96,53 96.53 96,53 96.53

m.LoElJ1' 6.24 1,061.98 6.24 1,061.98 1,068,22 1,068.22

iii. Cashandcashequivalents 257.01 257.01 257.01 257.01

iv,Bnnkbntnnces odICI' ihancashIlI1d cashequivalents 93.62 93.62 93.62 93.62

v. Otherfinancial assets 90.43 2.17 9M3 2.17 92,60 92.60

Tolal finandalossm 0.24 543.83 1,064.20 544.07 1,064.20 0.24 1,068.27 539.76 1,608.27

Financialliabilities

i. Borrowings 1,873,29 1,342.00 1,873.29 1,342.00 3,215,29 3,215.29

Ii.Tradepayable. 722.93 14.13 722,93 14,13 737,lJ6 737.06

Ii Otherfinancialliabilites 801.43 i.19 201.43 1.l9 802,62 802.62

Total financi~lliabi[ities 3,397.65 1,357.32 3,397.65 1,357.32 4,754.97 4,754.97

Carrying amount as at 31 Mnr~h 2022 FairVlllue

FVTPL Amortisedcost Total Levell Level2 Level3 Tolal

Current Non- Curnnt Non_ Current Non_
~urrent current current

Fmancialassecs

i. Investments - Preference Shares 0.05 0,05 0,05 0,05

- Compulsory convertible Debentures 63.70 63.70 63.70 63,70

- Mutualfllnds 0.24 0.24 0,24 0.24

li.Tradereceiv~bles 166.79 166,79 166.79 166.79

iii.Loans 36,38 1,227,32 36,38 1,227.32 1,263,70 1,263,70

iii, Cashandcashequivalents 219.99 219.99 219,99 219.99

iv.B~nk balances otherdl~l1 cashandCll.<h equivalents 96.39 %,39 96.39 96,39

v.Olherfinancial asses 127.76 3,76 127,76 3.76 131.52 131.52

Total financialassets 0.24 63.70 647.31 1,23L13 647.55 1,294.83 0.24 1,327.45 614.69 1,942.38
-

Financialliabilities

I. BOITOW;IJgS 1,448.87 1,492,19 1,448,87 1,492.19 2,941.06 2,941.06

ii.Tr~de parables 786,98 9,46 786,98 9.46 7%.44 796.44

iii, Otherfinancial Iillbililes 719.80 1.07 719.80 1.07 720.87 720.87

Total flnaneinlliabilities 2,955.65 1,502.72 2,955,65 1,502,72 4,458.37 4,458,37

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at
fair value and (b) measured at amortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under the
accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

The fair value of'flnancial instruments as referred to in note above have been classified into three categories depending on the inputs used in the valuation
technique. The hierarachy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active market for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurements) and lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The categories used are as follows:

Levell: Levell hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices.

Level 2: TIle fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-specific estimates.
Considering that all significant inputs required to fair value such instruments are observable, these are included in level 2.
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26 Fair value measurements (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Contil/lled)

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based 011 observable market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables, inter corporate deposits, current investments, contractually reimbursable expenses, cash and cash equivalents
and other bank balances, current trade payables and current borrowings are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short-term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,

Valuation techniques and significant unobservable inputs

The following table shows the valuation techniques used in measuring Level 2 and Level 3 fair values for financial instruments measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position as well as the significant unobservable inputs used.

Financial instrnments measured at fair value

Type

Inveshnents in unlisted tOl'porMe debt instruments:

Compulsorily Convertible DelJ.enlures ofArdent
Properties Priv~te Limited

Valuationte~hnlque

Distonnted ensh now Method: For lite purpose of value 0[ the
equityholdersof the Company based all freecash flow. available
fromoper-lions undertaken by litecompany, Discounted CashFlow
(DCF)Method hasbeenadopted.

Freecru;llflaws to equityin the e,~piicjt forecast period andthosein
perpetuity ore diseoullled by Cost of Equity ('Ke'), Ke is the
appropriate rateof discount to calculate presentvalueof futurecilSh
flowsfor veining the ~quity sharesof the company as it considers
risk;mdexpected retnmtotheequitystockholders

Slgnlflcant
unobservableinpnts

Not applicable

Inter-relationship
between

significantunobservable
inputs and fair value

measurement

Notapplicable
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27 Earnings Pel"Share

Pa'11culors

Lo," for thoy,ar .llribulabl" to ",,,,et, of thoPore.l • (! in cr.".,)
Numborof Ordinary,1""0'

Weighted """,ogonumber"rOrdin''l' ,har., <llUslllnJing Judng the yeo,

Woight,d.vcragonumbor"fOrdin"lJ' ,1\0,.. fordiMed EPS

l'(~"l bu,;o ".,ning, por,h"re ollfibuu,bl. IIIthe ol'din'I)' ,1",,01101dOl" .fthe POl'en! of t 10 ""ell- ~)

Totaldiluted•• ming' por shoreollrib"lohl. to the ol<Jin.l}' ,horoholdcr,o[tho P.rnd of ! 10 ..oh.(~)

FocoV.lu" Per Shore-({)

28 Segment information

For 0'0 Yoo,.Ended
31 Moreh 2023

(411.79)

1,280,969,842

1,195,478,l9Z

1,195,478,392

(3.44)

(3.44)

in

Fm tit. Y.". End.. !
31 March 2021

(252.39)

1,098,488,091

917,~45,74G

917,545,746

(2,75)

(2,75)

to

The strategic steering committee, consistingof the Managing Director & CEO is the Parent's chief operating decision-maker.Management has determined the
operatingsegments based on the informationreviewedby the strategic steering committeefor the purposes of allocatingresourcesand assessing performance

Presently, the Group is engaged in only one segment viz 'Real estate and allied activities' and as such there is no separate reportable segment as per Ind AS
108 'OperatingSegments'.

The Group has operations withinIndia lIS well as outside India.The Geographical Segment is consideredas secondaryformat for reporting and is identified by
taking into account the location of customers, size and risks prevailing in the market, internal organisational structure and the internal management reporting
system.

Revenuo !rom Edo... "1Cmtomor.

For thoy."r ended 31 For Ihc ycoron,lcd 31
M"...h 2023 Mn...h 20n

Particulars

lnd;a

Oui,iddndia

Total

*Non-current assetsother than financial assets IUJd deferred tax assets

1,661.t6

2082

1,663.98

1,159,14
12,2s

1,171.42

A,nl
31 M....h2023

134089
0.18

135.07

A.at
31Mafch 2022

226,83

0,18

227.Q1

Information about major customers

No single customercontributed 10%or more to the Group's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of tlre consolidated Ilnanclal statements (Continued)
for the veal' ended 31 March 2023

(~in crores}

29 Contingent liabilities and commitments

(i) Contingent liabilities

(a) Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts in respect of suits filed by owners and customers of certain properties constructed/developed by the
Group amounting to '?: 26.89 crores (As at 3] March, 2022 ::; 10.63 crores) (inclusive of interest) against which the Group has made counter claims of::; Nil
(As at 31 March, 2022 ~ Nil). The Group based on past experience does not anticipate any material liability to devolve on it as II result thereof.

Future ultimate outflow of resources embodying economic benefits in respect of the matter stated above is uncertain as it depends on the final outcome of
the matters involved.

(b) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of demand raised by Service Tax Depratment of ii!: 3.65 crores (net of ii!: 0,65 cr paid
under protest) (As at 31 March 2022 {24,08), VAT department on'6.54 crores (As at 31 March 2022 ii!: 29.58 crores) and GST department cn 7,98 crores
(As at Sf March 2022 {Nil)

(c) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts in respect of demand raised by Income tax department of { 28.30 crores (As at 31 March 2022 ~

11.71 crores)

(d) Bank Guarantee has been given as Security depositsfor issuance of Non-convertible debentures, in favour of"BSE Limited" for an amount of {Nil. crores
(As at 31 March 2022 <0,02 crores)

(e) Bank guarantee has been issued for an amount of <1.85 croresin favour of "Chennei Metropolitan Development Authority" , towards Security Deposit for
construction ofBuilding at one of the project of the Company (As at 31 March 2022 ii!: 1.85 crores).

(f) Appeal was filed by the company with JC appeal claim against the company not acknowledged as debts in respect of demand raised by the commercial tax
department ofRs. 5.92 crores (as at 31st March 2022 Rs. 5,92 crores). Blink guarantee has been given to the department amounting to Rs. 5.50 crcres

(ii) Commitments

(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account lind not provided for: Tangible essee • {Nil (As at 31 March, 2022 ~ Nil crores]
and for Intangible assets- '{NIL (As at 31 March, 2022 '( 0.27 crores)

(b) Commitment towards uncalled portion on partly paid II% Redeemable, Cumulative, Non-participating, Non-convertible Preference Shares of Ornate
Housing Private Ltd ("Ornate") amounting to {0.15 crores (As at 31 March, 2022 '{ 0,15 crores). The Group is committed to this amount only in the event
of Ornate WInningthe bid for a project.

(c) The Subsidimy Company had entered into agreement with Apollo Teleheelth Services Private Limited("Apo!lo") on 26 February 2014 for delivery of health
care and related services to residents of "The Senior Living Project" (Riva). In accordance with the agreement the services to be rendered by Apollo to the
Subsidiary Company shall commence from March 2017 with an extcmion of six months grace period or the actual date of possession as handed over to the
residents for n period of 5 years. As per the agreement the Subsidiary Compay would provide Apollo infrastructure of 500 Square feet covered space,
furniture, electricity, water necessary for them to provide these services. For these health cereservices the Subsisdiary Company is required to pay Apollo a
total of {6,38 crores which includes {0,26 cmres 1!3 reimbursement of capital expenses incurred by them six months before the commencement of services
as well as <6,12 crores in equal installements every quarter for 20 quarters starting from 3 months prior to the date of commencement of services. The
Subsidiary Company has paid '{ 0.40 crores as advance against this project. This advance is non-refundable unless there is breach of contract by Apollo. As
on the balance sheet date unadjusted advance is '( 0.22 crores.

30 IND AS 115 a Revenue from Contracts with Customers

a) Significllnt changes in rentract lillbilities balances Ill'e as follows

PMUc"Jars

Cgnhnolll.hJJJty

At ti,. boginningoflh. ,.,portingp"riod

At Ih••nd .flh•••porting pnJo'l

b) Rcconcililltion of revenue recognised in tile Statement of Profit a"d Loss

Parlloularo

Contr"otprice of tllO n:V<mUO '.""glli,ed

C.,lom", in,ent!volbcoeJir.ldi,oounl,

A,at

31 Marcil 2U23

324.81

(t57.26)

A.a!

31 M.t<:h 2023

1,4U3,1l

(44,96)

1,358.15

A,ot

31M.",h2Ct22

294.33

30.48

324,8J

"'''31 Mo,oh2022

780,37

(4.16)

776.21



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31March 2023

(~ in crores)

31 Employee Benefits

A Defined benefit plans:

(i) Gratuity (funded)

The Group makes annual contributions to the Tara Housing Development Company Limited Employees' Comprehensive
Gratuity Scheme, which in tum has invested in a group gratuity cum life insurance policy of Tata AlG Life Insurance
Company. The scheme provides for lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death while in employment or
on termination of employmentas per Company's GratuityScheme. VestingOOOIU'$ on completionof fiveyeats,

Balance sheet amount

Particulars Gratuity

Pl'llSent valueof Fair value of plan Net amount
obligation a,sets

1 April, 2021 9.35 (1.96) 7.39

Currentscrvi""cosl 1.03 1.03

Interestel<pensel(income} 0.49 (0.(7) 0.42

Adjustmcnt to ~lC openingbalance (1.62) (1,62)

PastServiceCost

Total amount recognisediu profit lind loss 1.52 (1.69) (0.17)

Rcmcasurements

Rctnnl011 plan assets,excluding lUllount included in interest (0,09) (0.09)
expeusel(ineome)

(Gein) !Loss fromcltnngc in demographic assumption, (0,06) (0.06)

(Gain) f UJSs from C!L:U1ge in financial assumptions 1.57 1.57

Experience (gmns)llosscs 0,18 0.18

TQtalamount recognisedin Qthercomprehensivcincome 1.69 (0,09) 1.60

Employer contributions

Benefitpayments (1.87) (1.87)

Liability IAssetsof EntityCeasedto be subsidiary 0.24 0,24

31 March, 2022 10.93 (3.74) 7,19

~-
Particulars Gratuity

Prescnt vllh,cof Fair v~luc or plnn Net nmount
obligation 3!SctS

1 ApliI,2022 10,93 (3,74) 7.19

Currentservicecost 1.02 (0.05) 0.97

Intcrcstcxpcnsellincome) 0.80 (0,23) 0,57

Investment Income (0.03) (0.03)

Adjuslment to theopeningbalunce 0.D9 (0.06) O.Q3

PustServiceCcst

TQtalnmounl ~rognised in profit and IQSS 1.91 (0.37) 1.54

Remcasurcmcnts

ReturnOllplan ussets,excluding amountincluded illintcre,sl (0.00) 0,04 0,04
expensel(inoome)
(Gain) /Loss fromcbangcin demogrnphic nssllmpliOllll (0.O6) (0.06)

(Gain) /Loss fromcll."ll1ge infilllUlciaJ ussumplions (1.76) (1.76)

E"..perienee(gainsj/losaes IlO6 006

Total amount recQgniscd in Qlbercomprehensiveincome (1.76) 0.04 (1.72)

Employer contributions

BenefitpayrnOllts (2.31) 0.20 (2.1I)

LiabilitylAsset01'acqllistiOll of subsidiary

31March, 2023 8.76 (3.87) 4.89



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of tile consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

('<! in crores)

31 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plansr (Continuetf)

Balance sheet amount (Continucd)

The netliability disclosed above relates to funded and unfunded plans are as follows'

Particulars

31 March, 2022

PresentvalueotflmdcdobligntiOlIS

Fairvalueofplanassets

Deficil

31 t\hrch,2023

PresentvalueofflmdedoblignliOllS

FnirVlIl\le ofplnn assels

Deficit

Major category of plan assets for Gratuity fund are as follows:

The Group has invested entire amount of plan assets in insurance fund.

Insurer Mnnllged Fund Detaitcl] Pattern

I. TATAAlA MANAGED FUND
Government Securities

Corporate Bonds

OtherApproved Securities (G8)

Reverse Rcpos'

Bonds!debentures

n.KOTAK GRATUITYGROUPPLAN(few subsidiariesof the
Group)
GroupBondFlmd

Gratuity

10.93

(3,74)

---~~

8.76

(3.87)

4.89

% Invested

As at 31 March As at 31 Mar(h
2023 2022

56.82% 57,01%

0.00% 17J8%

9.75% 24.18%

4.69% 1.63%

28.74%

100.00% 100.00%

100.00% WO.OO%

Risk exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Group is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed

below:

Asset volatility

The plan liabilities are calculated using a discount rate set with reference to bond yields; if'plaa assets underperfbrm this
yield, this will create 11deficit. Most of the plan asset investments is in fixed income securities with high grades and in
government securities. These are subject to interest rate risk and the fund manages interest rate risk with derivatives to
minimise risk to an acceptable level.

Changes in bond yields

A decrease in bond yields will increase plan liabilities, although this will be partially offset by an increase in the value of
the plans' bond holdings.

Life expectancy

The pension and medical plan obligations are to provide benefits for the life ofthe member, so increases in life expectancy
will result in an increase in the plans' liabilities. This is particularly significant where inflationary increases result in higher

sensitivity to changes in life expectancy.

Salary Risk

TIle Present value of the defined benefit liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participant. As
such, an increase in salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

""'::::;:;::~;::::"'::U\~,:R~ent ensures that the investment positions are managed within an asset-liability matching (ALM) framework that has

;..--'~ \ LP, bee~)fe~~loped to achieve long-term investments that are ill line with the obligations under the employee benefit plans,

/( 'l ··;:·"-"'·Wlt:hi~t~s~{rame"':"~rk,tl~e Parent:s. ALM objective is to match assets to the benefit obliga~onsby illws,ting in long-term

~ "'} .:;:',}:" fix,d"',t'I!~~"Unh"with matunnes that match the benefit payments as they fill! due and m tho appropriate currency.

t~w
~~Char\':'..~.~i'"
--~.-



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crorea)

31 Employee Benefits (Continued)

A Defined benefit plans: (Continued)

Defined benefit Liability and employer contribution

Expected contribution to post employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 31 2023 are ~ 5,81 crores.

The weighted average duration ofthe defined benefit obligation is 7 years (2016 - 4 years)

Meturityanalysis of Pr~i""led benefitobligation: fronlthefund:

Gratuity

31M~r~h 2023 31 March 2022

1stfollowing year

2ndfullowing: year

3rd following year

4th following year

5th following yen!

Sumof yeels 6 1010

B Defined contribution plans:

Benefit (Centributlou tc)

ProvidentFund

Superanfl'lalion Flmd

Total

For the Y~ar
Ended

31 Mal'ch 2023

2.21

0.21

2.54

2.69

2.17

1.65

1.41

1.04

3.05

For the Year
Ended

31 Mar~h 2022

2,15

0,29

2,44

2.04

1.83

1.52

1.20

1.22

5,28

(i) Superannuaricn fund

The company has superannuation scheme administrated by LIC, in which the company contributes 15% on basic salary.
The payments to defined contribution retirement benefit scheme for eligible employees in the form of superannuation fund
are charged as an expense as they falldue. Such benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Company
does not cany any further obligations, apart from the contributions made.

(il) Provident fund and superannaarion fund

The Parent also has certain defined contribution plans. Contributions are made to Tara Housing provident fund trust for
employees at the rate of 12% of basic salary as per regulations. TI,e obligation of the group is limited to the amount
contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation.

The Trustees of the Fund are required by law and by its trust deed to act in the interest of the Fund and of all relevant
stakeholders in the scheme. The Trustees of the Pund are responsible for the investment policy with regard to the assets of
the Fund,

The Parent's contributions paid I payable during the year towards Provident Fund and Superannuation Fund are charged to
the Consolidated Statement of Profit end Loss or debited to the project costs every year. These funds and the schemes
thereunder Me recognised by the Income-tax authorities and administered by trusts

111edetails of provident fund and plan asset position are given below'

Particulars

Planassetsasperiodcnd

Presentvalueoffunded obligation

Amount recognisedin Balancesheet

31 Mar~h, 2023

(3.87)

8.76

4.89

31 March, 2022

(3,74)

10.93

7.19

Assumptions used in determining present value of obligation of interest rate guarantee under a deterministic approach:

Parli~ulnrs 31 March, 2023 31 MaITh,2022

8.00%

7.25%

8.00%

8,50%

5,55%

8,5()"f"



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31March2023

('I:' in crores)

31 EmployeeBenefits (Continued)

C Compensated absences

The leave obligations cover the Parent's liability for sick and earned leave. The leave obligation is computed by actuary
who gives a bifurcation for current and non-current.

a) Changes in Present Value of Obligation:

Particulars Compensated absences

Forthe Year For the Year
Ended Ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

6.01 6.39

0.97 lAO

0." 1.51

(1.03) (1.72)

(1.78) (0.90)

(0.85)

4.76 5.84

Present Value of Obligation es lit the beginning

InterestCost

ServiceCost

Bcncfi18 Paid

Actuarial (Gain)I Lossonobligntiolls

PllslService Cost

Present Value of Objjgat:;O:":':":'~ili:':':"d:...- -====~",,====;;,;;;j

b) Bifurcation of Present Value of Obligation as at the end of the yeare

Particulars Cnmpensatcd absenCe!;

Forth" Year
Ended

31 March 2023

For the Year
Ended

31 March 2012

Current liability

Non-Current liability

4.89 7.19

Present Value of Obligation as at the end 4.89 7.19

c) Expenses Recognised during the year:

Particulars Compensated absences

For the Year IlorthcYear
Ended Ended

31 Manll2023 31 March 2022

interesl COS!

Service Cost

Actuarial LossI(Goin) recognised

PostServiceCost

ExpensesRecognisedduring the year

0.97 1.40

0.58 1.51

(US) (0.90)

(0.85)

(0.22) L17



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

(~ill crores)

31 Employee Benefits (Continued)

D Significant estimates. Actuarial assumptions lind sensitivity

Thesignificant actuarial assumptions forwere as follows:

Particulars As at
31 March 2023

A,at
31 March 2022

Gratuity

Discount rate

Reteof'retumon planassets

Salarygrowthrate

Retirement age

Mortality RuleDuringemployment

Mortality RateAfteremployment

Maximum gratuitypayable per person

Compensatedabsences

Discounting Rate

Retirement Age

FutureSalaryRise

Mortality Table

WithdrowRl Rates

7.25%

8.00%

60 years

Indian AssuredLhoes Mortality
(2012.14)

Indian AssuredLivesMortality
(2012.14)

Unlimited

7.25%

60 yenrs

8.00%

Indian Assured Lives Mortality
{2012_14}

25.00%

6.10%

9.00%

GOyeors

IndianAssured LivesMortalit)' (2012_
14)

hldianAssured LivesMortality (2012­
14)

Unlimited

6,10%

GO yeers

9,00%

IndianAssured LivesMortality (2012_
14)

20,00%

Significant actuarial assumption for the determination of defined obligation are rate of discounting, rate of salary increase
and rate of employee turnover. The sensitivity analysis below have been determinedbased on reasonably possible changes
of the respective assumptions OCCUlTing at the end of the reporting period, while holding aUother assumptions constant.

Parti~ulors

Projected benefitobligation oncurrentessumpnons

Deltaeffectof+1% chango in rateof discounting

Deltaeffectof -1%changein rateof discounting

Deltaeffectof+1% changeinrilleof salaryincrease

Deltaeffectof-I % changein rateof salaryincrease

DeltaeITeet of+I% changeinrate ofemployee turnover

DellnelTeel of_1% changein rateof employee turnover

Gratuity

31 Marcb 2023 31 Marcb 2022

8,70 10.93

2,84 (0.83)

2,71 1).8\!

2,6& 0.87

2,&2 (0.23)

2,77 (0.17)

2,24 0.1&

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as
it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be
correlated. Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value ofthe defined benefit obligation has
been calculated using tile projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied
in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet.
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Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended31 March 2023

(~ill crores)

32 Related Party Transactions

As per Indian Accounting Standard on "Related Party Disclosures" (Ind AS-24) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the 2013 Act") are as follows:

32.1 List oj Related Parties and Relationships

Sr. No. RelatedPnrty

Holding COnllumy

TntnSonsPrivate Limited

Joint Ventures (including ~tcp down Joint Vcntun~)

Ardon! Properties PrivateLimitod (ceasedto be njoinl ventureon 15Juue2022)

Arvindand SmartVnlncHomesLLP

SohnnCityLLP

Sector 113 Ga!evida Developers Private Limited (fonuallyknoWI\ osLenlODTree Land & Developers Private Limited)

One Bangolero Luxuryprojeots LLp

Kolknta-One Excello" Private Limited

HL Promote" Privale Limited (ceasad 10be ajoint ventureon 18October 2022)

Landkari Builders Pvt.Ltd.

FelluwSubsidiaries

10 lnfiniti Retail Limited

II 'ata AlG Geueral Insurouee ComplUly Limited

12 Tota Cou,u!tlUleyServices Limited

13 Tata Rea[ty and InfTa'tlueturo Limited

14 Arrow lnfraastnte Private Limited

15 Ecoflf!llSe1"1'ices Limited

16 Intern.tional lnfral:llliid Pvl. Ltd.

I? TRIL lnfopurk Limited

18 Gurguou R.erntech Lin,ited

19 Tata Commlmkutions Limited

20 Tote Tolesorvlccs Limited

21 Tuta Telegervices (Maharashtm) Limited

22 Tala Medical & Diagnostic Ltd

23 TutnA1A IU$\lrnnOe

24 TataEleetronic 1'>t ltd

25 Durg Shivuath Ex.l'res, WaY" Pvtltd

A'Bodates of Parent Comtlany

26 Tnta Coffee Ltd

27 VoU., Limited

28 Tata Business SUPPOlt Servioe' Limited

29 The !ndim, Hotels Company Limited

30 Tnta Global Beverages Ltmhcd

31 TitM Cempany Linlited

Employee TruitS wheretherll I, slgoificunt influence

32 Tata Housing Development Company Ltd" Employee, ProvideDtFund

33 TutnHousing Development Company Ltd - Employee, Group Super Annual!on

34 TutnHou,ing Development Company Ltd" Employees Comp,'ohensivc Gl1lluityTmst

Key Managemcnt Personnel, with who1l11ranlucliulls nrc enlered

35 SllujtlyDntl- Managing Director & CEO

36 Ritcsh Kamdur (company SccLcl1lry)



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31March 2023

32.2 Rel~ted PUti)' Transactions
ff in eeures

Sr.Na. Pnl'ty Ntune Nature of Tmnsaetlcn Fer year ended Feryear eudcd
31 Mal'th 2023 31 March 2022

1 Tata Realty & Infrastructure Limited, a) Income
(FellowSubsidiary) OtherIncome 1.46 2,68

b} Expenses
Professional Pecs (Deputation Charges) 7.45 4.82
Insurance

c) Other Transactions
EquityCapitalissued 182.48 500.00

SharePremium 317.52

d) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Receivable 0.57 2,89

e) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundrvCreditors 0.48 0.27

2 Sector 113 GatevidaDevelopersPrivateLimited II) Income . .
(Joint Venture) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits 155.86 162,23

SaleofPMC 3.06 0.72

Sale ofBran ding Fee 9.38 3.22

b) Other Transactions

Loan Given 16.35 59.79

Loan Repaid 158.00 \7.7.00

Expenses incurred on behalf ofRelated Party 0,00 0.09

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable

Sundry Debetors 5.73 11.30

Interest accrued hut not due 690.22 537.93

Inter Corporate Deposit 291.54 433.19

Advance 0.09

d) Outstanding Balances Payable

Sundry Creditors 0.45

3 Kolkata One Excelton Private Limited a) Income
(Joint Venture) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposits 9.27 10.55

Branding Fees 6.78 3.22
PMe 1.00

b) Other Transncrlons

Loan Repaid 15.30 9,77

Expenses incurred on behalf ofRelated Party 0.4G 0.46

Expenses incurred byReinted Party on our behalf

c) Outstanding Receivuble

Interest accrued but not due 52.46 43.24

Inter Corporate Deposit 63.09 78.39

Advance 0.07

d) Outstanding Payable

Sundry Creditors 27.96 0.45

4 Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP II) Outstanding Receivable.

(Joint Venture) Advance 0.96

Capital contributions: 63.84
Project management fees 0.63

Branding Fees 0.27

Interest Payble ,"3

b) Othel' Transactions

Expenses incurred on behalf ofRelated Party .



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of tile consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2023

32,2 Related Party Transactions
(~in eeercs

Sr. No. Party Name Nature of Transaction Foryellrellded Fer yenreudetl
ar March 2023 31 Marcil 2022

6 ArdentPropertiesPrivateLimited a) Income
(JoinlVenture) Interest Income on LOIlll and Inter Corporate Deposits 1.66 7.29

InterestIncome on CeD 4.17 18.94
Sale of Branding Fee 3,36

SaleofPMC 0.89

b) OIlier Transactions
Loan Given

Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party

c) Outstanding Receivable
SundryDebtors 4.59
Advance 0.26

Interest accrued b\11 no!due 77.33
Inter CorporateDeposit 50.85

(I) Oursnmdlng Payable
SundryCreditors (0.26)

7 SohnoCityLLP II) Income
(JointVenture) Interest Income on Partners LLP 8,05 7,87

b) OtlICr Transactions
Investment made LLP 2.60 0.53

c) Outstanding Receivable

Sundry Debtors 1A3 1.43

Interest accrued but not due 48.l9 40.20

Advance 0.04 .

d) Outstauding Payable
Sundry Creditors (0.04)

S Lanclkart Builders Private Limited a) Income
(Joint Venture) Interest Income on Loan and Inter Corporate Deposils 0.88 7.97

b) Ollie" Transaeticns

Loan Given 24.18

Loan Repaid 0.68 33.5(1

Expenses incurred on behalf nfRelated Party 23.37

c) Olltstanding Receivable

Inter Corporate Deposit 5.84 (1.68

Sundry Debtors 2.14 1.71

Interest accrued but not due 0.19 0.00

9 One Banglore LuxaT)'Project LLP a) Other Transactions
--

(Joint Venture) Investment made LLP (1.20) 10.33

Sa10of Branding Fee 5.56

SaleofPMC 0.78

Expenses incurred on behalf of'Rclated Party 1.4(1

b) Outstanding Balances Recelvnbles

Sundry Debtors 5.81

10 HL Promoters Private Limited II) Other Transactions
--

(Joinl Venture) Sale of material 0.17

b) Other T'ransactiens
Expenses incurred on behalf of Related Party 0", 0.01

b) Outstanding Balances Receivables

Advance Recoverable 0.05 0,05
Sundry Debtors 29.72 29.89

.",""
c) Out~tandiug Balances Payable

.=::::,:",. S\1udJV Creditors

(()., i ;~:;;;)
/i

~~~ >!
ft.~f... \"/' (, ...>

:S(;;~t/ ~~r(2;
:d I~C

~:6



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(or the year ended31 March 2023

32.2 Related Party Transactions
({ in Cl'1lros)

Sr. No. PnrtyName Nature of'Transaction For year ended Foryearended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

II TitanCompanyLimited a) E-"penses
(Associate ofParenl Company) SellingExpenses 2.61 1.13

InterestonleO 0.75

b) Outltnndlng Balances Receivables
Adcences 0.02 0,08

c) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors o.l5 (0.03)

12 Tala AIG General Insurance Company Limited a) EXIJCnSeS
(FellowSubsidiary) InsurancePremiumpaid 0.42 1.45

b) Other Transaerion
ClaimReceived 0.00 0.34

c) Outstanding Balances Receivablu
CDBalnnce 0.00 0.07

Prepaid .. 0.04

13 Tata ConsultancyServiceLimited n) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) RepairsandMaintenance- Others/Professional Fees 7.34 7,n

b) Other Trnnsaeticn
Purchaseof IntangiblesAssets 0.03 11.31

c) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors 1.43 0,29

14 Tala TeleserviceLimited a) EXllenses
(FellowSubsidiary) Administrative and OilierExpenses 0.17 0.16

b) Outstanding Balances Payl\hle
Sund Creditors 0.D2 l},O6

15 Tata ElectronicsPrivateLimited II)Expenses
(Fellow Subsidiary) Administrative and OfherBxpensea ,

16 Tata Medicalend DiagnosticsLimited 0) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) Administrative andOther Expenses .

17 Tata 'I'eloservices MeharashtraLimited a) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) Administrative and OilierExpenses 0.21 0.12

b) Outstanding BalllncesPayable
S\llldryCredimrs 0.01 0.01

18 TamComunicationsLimited a) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) RepairsandMaintenance>Others 4.57 6.26

b) Outstanding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors 0,05 1.02

~

19 TamATA Life Insurance Co, Limited. n) Expenses
(FellowSubsidiary) InsurancePremiumpaid 0.11 0,21

b) Outstauding Balances Payable
SundryCreditors 0.37

20 The Indian Hotels CompanyLimited a) gxpeuses
(Associateof Farent Company) AdminiSlrative and OtherExpenses 0.3!J '"4

b) Outstanding Balances P:lY:lbkJ
SundryCreditors 0.04 0.00

~



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2023

32.2 Related Party Transactions
(~In emrcs

Sr. No. Party Name Nature ofT''llIlSnctioll FOI' year ended For year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

21 Voltas Limited a) Expenses
(Associate of Parent Company) Repairs and Maintenance - Others 0.66 0.18

Rent 2.87 2.76

b) Outatandlug Balances Receivable
Deposits 1,27 1.27

b) Ontstanding Balances Payable

Sundry Creditors 0.00 0.04

22 Tata Sons Private Limited. a) Expenses
(Holding Company) Professional Fees 0.01 O.ot

b) Otber Transaction
Expenses incurred byRelated Party on our behalf 0.22 1l.56

c) Ontstanding Balances Receivable

Receivable 45.07 44.53

d) Outstanding Balances Payable
SUlldryCreditors 1l.01

23 Illfillity Retail Limited n) Expenses

(Fellow Subsidiary) Selling Expenses 0.04 0.35

b) Ontstanding Balanc(ls Receivable
Advance

24 Durg Shivnath Expressways ft) Finance costs

(Fellow Subsidiary) Interest Expense all Inter Corporate Deposits 1l.82

b) Ontstllnding Balances Payable
Sundry Creditors

25 Arrow Inftaestate Private Limited a) Income
(Fellow Subsidiary) Donation

b) Expen~es

Rent 1M 1.117

c) Outstandtng Balances Receivable

Security Deposit 0.31 0.31

d) Ontstanding Balances Payable

Sundry Creditors 0.10 0.28



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyearended31 March2023

32.2 Related Party Transactions
(~in crores

Sr. No. PllrlyName Naull'(lofTransactillll ForyCllrended Foryear ended
31 Mardi 2023 31 Mnrch 2022

26 G\lfgaonRealtechLimited II) htcome

(FellowSubsidiary) Donation

b) Expenses

Receivingof Services 0.22 0.15

c) Outstanding Balances Receivable
Security Deposit 0.06 0,06

d) Outstanding Balances Payable

Sundry Creditors 0.03 0.03

-
27 TATACoffeeLimited a) Expenses

(Associateof Parent Company) InterestExpense on Inter CorporateDeposits 0.74

b} ceer Transaction

Loan Taken 30,00

Loan Repaid . M.OO

b) Outstanding Balances Payable

SundryCreditors

28 The Tata Power Company Ltd a) Income

(Fellow Subsidiary) Project Management Consultancy 4,47

29 Ecofirst Services Limited II) Eapenses

(Fellow Subsidiary) Receiving of Services 0.12

b) Outstanding Balances Payable

Sundry Creditors 0.07

30 TATA lMG Healthcare Solutions Pvt Ltd II) E"penses
(Pellow Subsidiary) Receiving of Services 0.03

b) Income
Rent Income 0.32

b) Outstanding Balances Receivable
SundryDebtors 0,21

c) Outstanding Balances Payable

SundryCreditors

31 Directors Directol' Sittillg Fees
S,San than akrb·hnan 0.06

SucbetnShah 0,06

Dileep Choksi 0,06

Banmnli Agrawaia 0.01 0,01

SandhyaKudtarkar 0,12 0,04
Nipun Aggarwal 0.02

Kumesh Parekh 0.12 0.Q3

RermBaSil 0.00 O.O!

• Denotesfigures below Rs 50,000

~

Tit<) sales to and purchases from related parties including property, plant and equipment are made in the normal course of business and on terms equivalent to those that prevail in
arm's length uunsacfions. Outstanding balences at the year-end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash.

'Tho CNnp"ny's tate of interest is at Arm's length for the intercorporate loans given to related parties



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the year ended31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

33 Details of current borrowings:

Parrlculars

Secured;

Luaus repayable 011 demand from bnnks

Short Term Loans- 1

Subsidiary- Short Term Loans- 2

Subsidiary. Short Term Loans- 3

Unsecur<ld:

A~ at

31 March, 2(123

375.16

100.00

"'''31 March, 2622

186,15

0,36

12.22

Lonas npayllble on demand from banks (indudes cash credits, wOl'king capital demand loans lind shllrl term 101l1lS)

Short Term Loans- 4

Inter Corporate Deposits from others

s-rcn 21

Commercial Paper

CommercialPaper cl

Subsidiary -Commercial Paper- 2

374.95 239,64

10.50 10.50

200.00 900,00

100,00

1,060.61 1,448.87

Loan (Short Term Loans 1) availed by the Parent are secured by pari passu hypothecation of construction materials, book debts, current assets and money receivables
of the Parent Company, both present and future, Further, there is negative lien on the Premises admeasuring about 2,338 sq. ft. situated at Eruchshaw building,
Mnmbai for ~ 44.02 crores (As at 31 March, 2022 ~ 1.58 crores). The Interest rate is ranging from 7.6% p.a. to 8% p.a. (for the year ended 31 March 2022: 5.50%
p.a.to 7,80% p.a.),

2 Loans availed by a Subsidiary (Subsidiary -Short Tenn Loans 2) are secured by Subsidiary's first charge under multiple banking arrangement byway ofhypothecation
of entire current assets of the company both present and future. The interest rate is ranging from 6.85% p.a. to 9.00% p.a. (for the year ended 31 March 2022: 6.85%
p.a. to 9,00% p.a.)

Loan (Short Tenn Loans 4) availed by the Parent are unsecured loan repayable on demand from bank, short term loan from others, inter corporate deposits from
related parties and others are ranging from 5.45 % p.a. to 7.70 % p.a (for the year ended 31 March 2022: 5.25 % p.a to 9.10% p.a.)

4 Loan (Subsidiary-Short 'I'ermLoens 3) availed by Subsidiary are secured by Land (14.25 acres) and Building (both present and future) situated at Banshankri,
Hoskerehalli village, Bangalore.

As per the shareholder agreement made on 14 January 2011, shareholders of a Subsidiary company (S-ICD 1) should grant unsecured loans in the same proportion as
holding of equity in the company in order to finance projects in the Maldives. The interest rate is 10.65% p.a.Above loans are repayable within 12 months from the
reporting date.

6 Holding Company (Commercial Paper 1) has outstanding Commercial Papers aggregating face value of~ 200 crores (net proceeds ~ 197,79 crcres) [As at 31 March
2022: ~ 900 crores (net proceeds ~ 867.52 crores)]. The Commercial Papers carry interest @7.75% p.a (As at 31 March 2022 4.40% p.a to 5,50% p.a.) & are
repayable within a period ranging from 60 days to 365 days from the date of allotment.

7 Subsidiary Company (Commercial Paper 2) has outstanding Commercial Papers aggregating face value of ~ NIL [As at 31 March 2022: ~ 100 crores)



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes formingpart of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 Marof12023

(e in crores)

34 Details of Long-term borrowings:

Secured:

Debentures - Neu-Cenvertjble Red~mnble [refer foot note (i)]

(1) 5000 (As at 31 March 2022: 5000), 5.75% (P,Y g.60 %)- Debenture.oH 1,000,000 each

(Due furredcmption on 06 Felmmry 2023ill, at theendofduceyean from the dalecr ssce) (refernote12(ii)(d)
below)

(2) 5000 (As at 31 March 2022: 5000), 9.\0 %. Debentures oH 1,000,000 eneh

(Dtl. for redemption on 19MEl)" 2023Le. at iheendof threeyours ii-om !hedalecf'issue)

(3) 2000(As at 31 March2022: 2000),9.10% _Debentures or~ I,OOD,DuO each

(D\\efor redemption on 19May2023l.e. at theendoftllre. yenrsfromthe daleoflssue)

(4) '6000 (Ai at 31 March2022 :Nil),8A8 % - Debentures on: 1,000,000 euch

(DLle for I'edemption 01129 Jlll\2026i.c. at theendof threeyearsfromthe daleof issue)

(S) 3000(Asat 31March2022: Nil),7.04 % - Debentures of~ 1,000,000 each

(Duefor redemption on 25 March2025i e. at thecad ofthrcc yearsfromihedateofisslle)

(6) 1700 (Asat 31Mareh2022: 17(0),7,15% -Debcntureson' 1,000,000 each

Tobe mntually agreed betweenCompanyandStandard Chartered Bankonor before
8thAnguit,2023(whiehis 24 monthsfromthe DeemedDateof Allotment

Asat

31 March, 2023

Long-tern, Current
maturities af

long_term
debts

500,00

200,00

600.00

299.84

17OJJO

As at

31 March,2022

Lang-term Current
mnturitiesof

hmg_term
debts

500,00

500.00

200.0ll

170.00

Loan from Banks:

DeutscheBank

Unsecured:

1950(Asat 31March2022: 1950),9.35%Deb.ulllreson' 1,000,000 each
(Dueforredemption on23 September, 2(22)

3,000 (As at 31March 2022: 3000,7.10 % DebentnfOs of Rs 10,00,000 each
(Duefor redemption on3\ March,2(25)

1,069,84

278.02

1,347,86

700.00

700.00

870.00

260,46

299.76

1,430.22

500,00

195,00

695.00



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores)

34 Details of Long-term borrowings: (Continued)

(i) Details of security provided in respect ofthe Secured Debentures of the Group:

1 Security for Item Nos. 1 to 5 :
First Charge on loans and advances to subsidiaries, Non-Current Investments, Interest accrued on Loans with related parties (excluding those charged
in favour ofbanks), present and future.

(ii) (a) Interest rate has been reset for N,C,D, of'Rs. 500 crores which is due for redemption 011 06th February 2023 from 8.6% p.a. 10 5,75% p.a, (w.e.f 28
March 2022)

(b) Interest rete has been reset for N,C.D ofRs 195 crores is redeemed on 23 September, 2022 from 9.35% pa to 7.20% pa (w.e.f 26 March 2022)

(c) Borrowings from bank are secured by Land (25.21 acres) and Building (both preseat and future) situated at seshagirirapalyavillage, Dasanapura Hobli,
Banglore North Taluka, Banglore.



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(or IlleyelJl'entl~d 3/ Morch 2023

(~ill crorcs)

35 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule III oCCompanies Act, 2013,by way of additional information, refer below:

a) As lit lind for tile yenr ended Jll\Iarcb, 2023

NaIll. of lhe Mtily A.at
31 Murch 2023

N.t,....t.

Fortlley.arcaded
31 Mnrchl023

Shn.olnP",litl(I.")

For lI,oy~"r ~n(l.d

JI1'.11lt<h20n

Shn,..ln Olher
C~mp,..h.ndvoln<~nle I (10")

For lI,rycur rnded
31 1'.10l'<h2023

Sh>l,'.lnMol
Comj>rrhun,lvoIn'bnrrl (10")

A.%of
<on,olldnlod

ncla"cl.

A",,,unl A.%of Amount A.%ofOlhor
(f in em,...) obn'blld"lod (t In oror ..) Comp,,,h.n.i...

profit u,·lo" incumr

A,noun! A. % oHoM
(l In cro,.o.) <omproh'",h'.

jRl:olll.I(I~,,)

AlIl"Unl
(~Incrore.)

0.40 J.79 19.02

0.22 2.OJ 0.04

{5.54) (52.15) 1.18

(6.l0) (57.39) 2.51

(38.59) (363.t1) 5.50

(0.15) (1.38) 0.26

(11.51) (100.34) J.30

(25.94) ('244.09) 6.48

'" 1:"75 (1),01)

0.02 0.23 (0.00)

(6.58) (6US) l.67

7.22 67.93 2.64

(16.19) (152.JZ) 0.41

1.16 10.89 (0..18)

U.SO 129.82 (0.89)

(0.01) (0.05) 0.00

(9.J9) (88.36) (0.52)

1.24 11.63 0.01

(8.64) (81.30) 0.98

(21.70) (204.20) ~.56

100.00 940.96 100.00

1,014.90

(30.9J)

125.55

124.28

151.43

(56.59)

(994.51)

(121.83)

----
1,152.26

5.02 8J.93

(0.12) (11.64)

(9.38) 76.J7

(43.72) (31.24)

(959.25) 100.00

839.66

1.76

(0.0ll)

(11.28)

(5.28)

(14A2)

(219.76)

(4J.lJ)

(411.79)

P.,ont

Sub,ldJnri••

Iud!>'D

Tnl. ValueHom., Limited

Coa'ept D""olop",", & Lo",jug Limited (fotlnorly kru",,, .,
Con""plMlu'kel;ng Ol1J M,·erti,illg Limited)
KridoyRealtyPdvnt. Limited

Primolon Infru.ttuduro Private Limited

Pl'omont]-Iilbid< Pri""te Limited

THDC Ma""gotltent SOT"'''''' Limited (nlttnorly kno"n .,
THDCF,cility M.n,gemenl Limited)
BawrtV.l". Home, (Bol..,) PrivntoLimited

HLTRo,idencyPri""I. Lhnited

.'lj'll"'1lizers S",t.in,b!e FO\ll1dntion

SmartVal"oHom., (NcwPmj,ot) LLP

Sm",t VolueHome, (peeny"Pmject)Pri"aleLimiled

ArdonlPrup"rti., Pri,,",cLinul,d( w,',f. 15.06,2022)

HLPromotersPri""l. Limiled(W,e.f. 18,10.2022)

SASRenltech Ll.P (w_",f. IS,j(j,2022)

PromontHilliopPrivateLimilod

Tcchnopoll'Knnwl,dgePorkLimited

ForeIgn

ApexReoltyPrivoleLimited

World_Olle DevelopmentCompanyl'te, [,imited

World-One(SriloukR) Projeot> Pto.Linulc'<1

O"eColombD Projc"Ct (Privot.) LImited

TOTAL

a) Adju'lmont, arblng out of con,oli,lalion

bl Non_oonlroUb'g inle,...!> INCll

Fo".lgn Suj"ldlary

ApexReallyPriv,lcLimilcd

!1jointVenlu"". (~. noceguih· ",elh"d1

Indian

ArvindondSmartValueHome, LLP

80hna cnv LLP

On. Dong.loreL"Xllry Pl'll,;""t,Ll.l'

Kolkala-OnoE~'ollon Pri"ot. Limited

S",ror 113 Got."ido Devdopcr, l'rivate l.imiled

L.ndkolrtBuilde", 1"1_ LId

TOTAL

218.89 2,059.67 50.57 (485.14)

(18MJ)

(0..18)

(11.29)

(24.20)

(52.78)

(2.45)

(JU5)

(62.14)

"'"0.05

(16.05)

(15.34)

(3.95)

3.61

0.52

(21.J5)

(2.28)

1.78

0.33

(2.95)

(2.39)

4,49

0.71

(0.31)

0.22

(0.17)

(0.03)

0.29

0.23

(O.H)

(0.07)

(8.22)

1.14

(7AO)

3.06

(9.79)

(6.09)

(1.88)

0.11

(OM)

(0,12)

(6AO)

49.85 (~83.05)

10.80 (182.21)

0.04 (0.38)

1.10 (U.46)

2.50 (2~.24)

5.45 (52.78)

0.25 (2.45)

W (31,36)

6.41 (62,14)

(0.01) 0.00

(0.00) 0':05

1.63 (15.81)

2.66 (25.7!1)

0.41 (4.02)

(O.37) 3.61

(0,88) 0.55

0,00 (0.01)

0.3J (3.20)

(0.10) I.n2

1.74 (16.86)

4.20 (40.66)

100.00 (969,04)

(673.94)

(1.12)

(0.08)

(11.28)

(5.17)

(14A4)

(219.76)

(43.28)

(969,0~)



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for Iheyear ended 31 March 2023

(il' in crores)

35 For Disclosures mandated by Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013, by way of additional tnformatlon, refer below:

a) As at and fur the year ended 31 Mardi, 2022

Name of tho .nUt,· A,at Fo, Iho,.o .. "ndell For the ~·.nr ""d.d For th. yonrendod
31 Mntdt 1012 31 l\1a,..,h2021 31 M,ueh 2e21 31 Mnrdl 2011

Noland. S],a,'.ln p""nll (I.,,) Sh.roln Ollie. ShorEIn totnl
Cornln'oltemh'. In""mc I 0"".) Comprchcn,h'.lnwmc' (In")

A.%of Amount A.'!oof Amoune As %.fOther Amount A. % oftotnl Amount
oon,olidoted ('h,crom) "nn,nlfdold (f In 01'<1'''') Cornpr<hcno[ve (,mc.o...) •• mJ'r<hcn,lvo ('lner"...)

net."ot. pront or In" Income Inconto1(lo..)

PnNn! 149.81 2,042.73 2.34 (8.32) (1.66) (1.03) 3.19 (9.3~)

Sul"ldlarlo.

Imlu,"

Tal. Val'1< Homo.Limit'd 13.64 186.00 23.~6 (84.84) (0.33) (0.20) 28.91 (85.05)

ConoeptDevelopers& Lo""i.1ILimilod (tbrmorly known •• U8 2.40 0.114 (0.14) 0.05 (0.14)
ConceptMorkding .nd Advertising Limited)
KridnyRo,lty PrivatoLimited (2.91) (40.55) 3.112 (10.73) (0.03) (0.02) 3,66 (l0.75)

Princetonh,it.,tnlOturePl'ivate Limirud (2.43) (33.15) 7.31 (26.01) (O.ll) (0.07) 8.88 (26.07)

PronlOnt HiIl,id. PrivllteLinlited (22,"16) (310.32) IU5 (51.03) 17.39 (5l.O3)

TIIDC MOlI!\gement Sm';ee. Li"liled (funnerry known as 0.08 1.01 (O.lO) 0.35 (0.12) 0.35
T1-lDC FaoiIityMlm.gemcntLimited)
SIIlllrl VIIlueHo= (Eoi,or)PrivateLimited (5.65) (76.98) 9.87 \H.lt) 0,05 O.M 1l.95 (J5.0S)

HI.T Re'idenoyPrivateLimit'd (13.34) (18l.95) 7,15 (25.44) 8.67 (25.44)

North BombayRe,1 E,t,te Priv.te Limit,d (sll:;knd ofl'w,'.f
25.0~.2021)

Sj'llCTgiz.rs SU,lllUlilblo Found.tion 0.12 1.66 om (0.06) 0.02 (0,06)

SmartVIIIIl.Hum"" (NewPrujem)LLP (w.•. fIS,M,2021)

S,,",rl V.lll. Hom" (P""tl)'ll PJ1>jecl) Private Limited (\V••,f (3.38) (46.06) 4.71 (16.76) (0.03) (16.79)
21.5.2021)
P'QmonlHilltop1'rh,.t. Limiled(w.¢.f09,06.2021) 8.89 121.2G (7.ml) 25.17 (0.02) 25.15

T.clulOpoli,KnowledgeP,rk Limited (MO) (0.05) Q.on (0l00) 0.00 (MO)

ForeIgn

Apo~ Ro,It~· PrivnteLimiled (6.25) (85.15) 2040 (8.~4) (J.44) (2.14) 3.64 (10.67)

Warld-OneDevelopmentCump,nyPte. Limit'd 0.7B 1M2 1.12 (7.55) 5.3~ 3.33 1.44 (4.22)

World-Ono{Sriinnko) Pl'Ojem,Pte, Limiled (4,1l) (64.43) 7.05 (2~.Q6) (~.01) (3.73) 9.81 (28,7~)

O"e ColomboProject(private)Limited (IU'l) (t63.$4) 22,94 (~LS1) 106.25 65.99 5.31 (15..~8)

TOTAL 100,00 1,363.55 100,00 (355,6~) 100.08 62.10 102.85 (293.53)

n)Adjuslmonl> llrblng oul of<on'olldntlon 115.04 211.8~ 62,8S (134.15)

bl Non.... ntrolliny Intom,l. (NeD

FOl'dgnS"II'idlary'

Ap,x ReallyPriv"teLimited (29.~1) (2.99) (0.75) (3.74)

c) Joint V.nlu..,s I", nercquity meliJpd)

In'l"'"

Anind ,ndSmatt V,IuelIom" LLP 34,73 (0.07) (0.07)

Sobn. CityUP 52,fl7 (4.28) (4,28)

On. B.ng.lom L""llrJ-' PlOj.ct,LLP 15~,49 0.35 0,35

IlL P'Ulnot= Prjv.t, Limited (~5,52l (4.56) (4.56)

K~lkot,·O"" F.;<ooltOll PriveleLilnit.d (26.28) (5.21) (5.21)

S.otor 11) (Iot.,'ld. D,velope", Privat~ Limitod (formorly (~68,91) (109.48) (109.48)
lrnn\\n., LemonTreeL'nd & DoveloFer> Priv.t. Lilnilcd)

A,dentProp"'lie, l'ri\'atoLimiled 3.95 29,33 29.33

LondknrtBuilder.,Pvt,Lid (45.73) (1l.7l) (1l.7J)

TOTAL 1,071.65 (252.39) 62.76 (293.53)



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

for theyear ended 31 March 2023

(f in crores)

36 Assets pledged as Security

Tile carryingamounts of financialand non-financialassetspledged as security for non-currentand current borrowingsare disclosedbelow:

Particulars Refe~ Asat As a!
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

(Al Current

Financial assets

Firstcharge

Tradereceivables '.l{b) 132.09 147,75

Cashandcashcqnlvalema 9(e) 6.34 160,53

Bonkbol:mccs oth::rl!llln above '.l(d) 1.20 0,10

Loans 9(e) 47.89 52,52

Otlwrfinancial assets 9(1) 5l.20 100,58

Nen-financialassets

Firstcharge

Inventories a 2,354.63 2,773.58
Total current assetspledged as security 2,593.35 3,235,06

(D) Non-current

Financial assets

Firstcharge

Investments 5(a} 990,37 1,056,6&

Loans 5(b) 1,417,76 1,596,01

Otherflnarcinl resets 5(c} 0.16

Nonfinandal assets

Property, plantandeqoipmeot 3

TotAlnon-currents assets pledged as security 2,408.29 2,652.69

Total assetspledged as security 5,001.64 5,~~7.75

37 Expenditure on Corporate social responsibility

For the Year Ended
31 March 2023

Amount reqnired to he spent liS per Section 135 af the Act

FortheYeul' Ended
31 Mlll'ch2022

Amouot paid/spent during the yeur all:

(i) Coostruction/acquisition of anyasset

(ii) OnpurposesotherUlun (i) above

Amount yet to be paid:

(il Construction/acquisition of anyasset

(li) OnpurposesotherUlan (i) above

Tornl

2.%

2.96

1.60

1,60



Tata Housing Development Company

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
jar the year ended 31 March 2023

(z in crores)

38 Interests in other entities

(a) Subsidiaries

The group's subsidiaries at 31 March, 2023 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held
directly by the group. TIle country of incorporation or registration is also their principal place ofbusiness.

Name of entity Plnce of Owne'"shipinterest held by the Ownership interest held by the Principal
business! group non-controlling interest activities

Counlryof
incorporation 31 MlIl'Ch 31 Murch 31 Manh 31 Mnrch

202l 20U 2023 2022
% % % %

Ccmcept Developers & Leusing Limited India 100 100 Realestate& alliedactivities

TataValueHomesLimited Illdi~ 100 100 Realestate& alliedactivities

ApexRealtyPrivateLimited Maldivcs 65 65 35 35 Realestate& alliedactivities

ArdentProperties PrivateLimited(w.e.f. 15.06.2022) India 100 Renlestate& alliedactivities

HL PWffioters PrivateLimited {w.c.f 18,10.2022) India 100 Renlestnte&alliedactivities

KildayRealtyPrivateLimited India 100 100 Renlestate & alliedactivities

THDCManagement Services Limited (fomlerI)" knownas THDC Indio 100 100 Reelestate& allied activities
FacmlyManagement Limited)
Teehnopolis Knowledge PlII"k Limited India 50 SO 50 50 Realestate& alliedactivities

PromontHillsidePrivateLimited India 100 100 Realcetetc& alliedactivities

World-One Development Company Pte.Limited Singapore 100 100 Investment Company

World-One (SriLanka)Projects Pte. Limited Singapore 100 100 Investment Company

OneColombe Project(Private)Limited Sri Lanka 100 100 Reelestate& alfied activities

SmartValueHomes(Boisnr) PrivateLimited fndin 100 100 Realestate& alliedactivities

SASReoltech LLP(w,e.f. 18.10.2022) India 100 Realestate& allied activities

HLT Residency PrivateLimited India 100 100 Roalestate& alliedactivities

Synergizers Sustainable Foundation India 100 100 Corporate SocialResponsibility
activities

Princeton Infrastructure PrivateLimited Jndj~ 100 100 Realcstetc& allied activities

PremontHilltopPrivateLimited lodi~ 100 100 Realestate& alliedactivities

SmartValueHomes(peeoyaproject)Private
India 100 100 Reo! estale& alliedactivities

Limited

(b) Non-conrrolhng interests (NCI)

Set out below is summarised financial information for each subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the group. The amounts disclosed
for each subsidiary are before inter-company eliminations,

Summarised balance sh~t Apex Realty Private Limited TeehnopclisKnowledgoPark
Limited

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2023 21122

Currentassets HIll.54 15.74
, ,

Currentliabilhics 197.51 167.Q3 0.06
,

Nd current Assets (96.96) (91.30) • ;-
Non-current assets 8.60 6.15

Non-current liabilities 0.05

Netuon_cm'rentniseis 8.60 6.15
-

(0,05)

Net assets (88.36) (35.14) (0.05) (O,OS)

Accumulated NCI (30.93) (29.80) (0.03) (0,02)

Summarised statemcnt of Profit and Loss ApexRealty Private Limited TechnopoHs KnowledgePark
Limited

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 3023 2022

TotalIncome 17.88 5.41

Profil!(Loss) for lheyear 5.02 (3,53) (O.Ol) ·OWer comprehensivo income (B.22) (2.13)

Total comprehensiveincome (3.20) (10,66) •
Profil/(Loss) allocated toNcr 1.76 (2.99) (0.00) •
Dividends paidto NCI.
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued)

(b) Non-ccntrolljng interests (NCI) (Cot/tinued)

Apex Realty Pl'ivnteLimited TcchnopolisKnowledgePark
Limited

Cashflows fromoperating IlClivilios

Cashflows frominvesting activities

Cashflows fromfinancing activities

Net increaseJ (d~reaso) in cash and cub
equivalents

31MHch 31MMCh
2023 2022

19.83 2.59

0.31

(l.Ot) (1.05)

18.82 1.86

31 March
2023

31 Marm
2022

(c) Transactions with Non-Controlling interest- No Transactions

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures

Set out below are the joint venture of the Group as at 31 March, 2023 which, in the opinion of the management are material to the Group.The entities listed
below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares which are held directly by the Group.The country of incorporation is also their principle place of
business and proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion ofvoting lights held.

Nnme of entity Plnceof % of ownership Relationship Accounting Cnrrying amount Cin crores)
business! interest method 31 Marcil 31 March

country of 31 Mardi W23 202' 2022
incorporation

Sector 113 Gatevide DevelopersPrivate Limited (formerly India 51.00% JojntVenmre Equity (579.69) (463,91)

known as Lemon Tree Land & DevelopersPrivate Limited)
Kolkata"one ExceltonPrivate Limited [Refer note 15 (e)l India 51.00% JointVenture Equity (35.95) (26,27)

HL Promoter, Private Limited (np to 15.10.2022) India 51.00% JointVenture Equity (35,52)

S"hnll City LLP India 50.00% JointVenture Equity 83.17 53.44

Arvind and Smart Value Homes LLP India 50.00% JointVenture Equity 33.75 34.78

Oue Bnngalore Luxury Pl'lljeds LLP India 51.00% JointVenture Equity 154,66 158.49

Ardent Pl'opeliies Private Limited (up to 14,M.20n) India 30,00'/0 JointVenture Equity 3.95

Landkllrt Bnilders Pvt. Ltd. India 51.00% JointVenture Equity (67,78) (55,99)

Total equity accounted investment, (net) #REFI (386.03)
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38 Interests in othe.. entities (Continued)

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Cantil/ued)

(Ii) Summarised financial Inrcrmation for joint ventures

The tables bellow provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures that are material to the Group. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not the Parent's share of those amounts, They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for
differences in accounting policies.

Summarised balance sheet Arvind and S,nMt Value Homes HL Promoters PrivMeLimited
LL'

31 March 31 Murch 31 March 31 March
2023 2022 2023 2022

Currentasse(s

Cash& cnshequivalents 0.16 0.12 4.44

Otherassets 127.29 127.66 172.93

Tolal cunent assets 127.45 127,78 177.37

Total non-current assets 0.35 0,90 0.67

CurrentUabilities

Financial iiabiHlies (excluding tradepeyeblee) 0.42 2.63 68,34

OtherLiabilities 1.81 0.42 6.59

Total currentliab~ilies 2.23 3,05 74.94

Non-current liabilities

Financial liabilities (excluding u'nde payables) 250,9&

OtherLicbiliries 0.01 0.01 0,46

Tolal non-current liabilities 0.01 o.m 251.44

Netassets 125.55 125.62 (148.34)

.
RuonciHation to carrying amounts Arvind and Smart Value Homes HL Promoters Private Limited

LL'
31 March 31 Marcil 31March 31 Mncch

2023 2022 2023 2022

Openingnet assets 125.65 125.77 (139.36)

Profit/Closs) for theyear (0.08) (0.12) (8,90)

Others (0.02)

Capi!al infused! (withdrawn) dllfingtheyem'

Othercomprehensive income (0.07)

Dividends paid

Closingnet assets 125.5..~ 125.65 (148.33)

GrOIlP'S sharein% 50% 50% 51%

Group'sshare 62.77 62,82 (75,65)

Additional investment by the Group

Goodwill

Consolidation Eliminations (29.02) (28.04) (9.87)

Cal'rying amount 33.75 34.n (85.52)

Snmmarised statement of profit and Joss Arvind and Smart ValueHomes HL Promolers Private Limited
I,LP

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 Ma"ch
2023 2022 20" 2022

TotalIncome 1.38 0.43 28,94

Interest income 1.48

Depredationandamortisation 0.00 0.00 0.02

Intereslexpense 0.01

Income laxexpeusef(credit) 0.05

Profit/CLoss) for theyear (0.08) (0.12) {8.90}

::.::. Othercomprehensive income!(Loss) (0,03) (0,07)
, <c.
~'I'~:9ta~~~~prebeusive income/(Loss) {O.OS} {D. 15) (8,97)

nil'iden~{CC01Ved

",-'. q
'~"~.~-"""
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38 Interests in other entities (ContinuelQ

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (CollilJllled)

(ii) Summarised financial information for joint ventures (Continued)

The tables below provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures that nre material to the group, TIle information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not the Parent's share of those amounts, They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made al the time of acquisition and modifications for
differences in accounting policies,

Summarised balance sheet One Banglllore Luxury Projects LLP Kolkata-One F.l<celton Private Limited Sector 113 Gatevida Developers Private
Limited (formerly Imownas Lemon

Tree Land & Developers Private
Limited)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 3! March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Mal'ch 2023 31 Mar<:h2022

Currentassets

Cash& eMhequivalents 1.72 2.87 10,91 1ll.44 89.69 52.50

Otherussets 160.12 63.14 503,38 42H,15 434.53 635,76

Total current assets 161.84 66.01 514.29 438.59 524.22 688,26

Total een-current assets 98.62 1ll0.68 3,88 10.32 39.46 35,76

Currentlillbilities

Fillcncillllicbilities (excludingtrcde payables) 5.43 88.22 164,97 948.23 773,07

OtherUabilities 107.22 3.04 364.30 129,11 193.44 148,06

Total current liabilities 107.22 8.46 452.52 294.Q7 1,141.66 nU3

Non-current liabilities

Fillllllcilllliabilities (excludingtrade pllyables) 121.85 181.90 416.39 553.66

OtherLiabilities 1.82 0.43 0.39 0.31 0,14 25.15

Total een-currentllabilirlcs 1.82 0.43 122.24 182.20 416.53 578.81

Net assets 151.43 157.MO (56.59) (27.36) (994,5!) (775.92)

Reconciliation to carrying amounts One BanglllofCLuxury Projects LLP Kolkata-One Excelton Private Limited Sector 113 Glltevida Developers Private
Limited (formerly known as Lemon

Tree Land & Developers Private
Limited)

31 March 2023 31 Marcll2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Openingnct assets 156.02 187.40 (27.36) (17.15) (738.21) (560.07)

Profit/{Loss) for thc ycur (5.28) (0,87) (14.43) (10.20) (219.76) (l'lM,1O)

Others 1.78 (36.54)

Cnpiul infusedI (withdrawn)duringthe yeur (1.20) {30.29)

Othercomprehensive inoonlC OJ! (0,22) (0.01) (0.01) (ON)

Dividends paid

Closing net usets 151.43 156.02 (41.80) (27.36) (994,51) (738,21)

GrOIlP'S shurein% SI% 51% 51% 51% 51% 51~1
Group's share Tl.23 79.57 (21.32) (13,95) (5m.2tl) (376.49)

Additioual investmentby theGroup 78,92 78.92

GuodwUl

ConsolidQtioll Eliminations (1.49) (14.63) (12,32) (72.49) (92.42)

Carrying QmOllllt 154,66 158.49 (35,95) (26.27) (579.69) (468.91)

Summarised slatement of profit and loss One Baegnlcre Luxury Projects LLP Kolkata_One Excelton Private Limited Sedor 113 Gatevida DevelopersPrivate
Limited (formerly known as Lemon

Tree Land & Developers Private
Limited)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 Manh2023 31 March 2022

TotalIncome 1.06 0.20 0.03 264.36 264,36

lmcrestincorne 1.02 0.16 0.03 0.54 0,54

Depreciation and amortisation 0.40 0.41 0.05 0.07 0.12 0,12

Interestexpense 0.04 0.04 162,98 162.98

Incometaxoxpcnsc/lcrcdit) (2.69) (0.66) (S.54) (3.40) 0,01 0.01

Profit/{Loss) for l!royear (5.28) (0.87) (14.42) (I0.20) (219,76) (178.10)

Othercomprehensive incomeJ(Loss) 0.11 (0.22) (0.01) (0.01) (0.04)

t;~'" C~ ,':"<"
.

(1.09) (14.44) (10.21) (219.76) (178.14)f;:,\;.;i>,: '.:(\ (5.17)

i,,>' ...... -"'\ '1,
~;::~

\'\"':':~:".
.: 0> )-

i\~?,<!i;, i\'/

!f::~! ''':)::::.1'0
L
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38 Interests in other entities (Continued)

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Colftillued)

(ii) Summarised flnanclallnfnrmatlon for joint ventures (Continued)

The tables below provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures that are material to the group,
The information disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures
and not Parent's share of those amounts, They have been amended to reflect adjustments made by the entity when
using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for

Summnrlsedbalancesheet Landknrt Builders Pvt. Lid Suhna City LLP

31 Mllrch 2023 31 March 2022 31 Mo,'ch 2023 31 March 2022

Currentnescts
Ca,h & cashequivalents 141.94 23,86 1.19 1.19

Other.sset, 1,017.70 742,32 181.28 180,45

Total current anets 1,159.64 766.18 182.47 181.64

Tntlll non·cufI'ent assets 6.31 3.19 0.03 3.00

CnrrentHebilitles
Finnncial liabilities (o~cluding lrndepayable,) 95.91 102.06

OtherLiabilities 94.75 4,82 58.22 51.67

Total currcnt liabilitie, 190.66 106.87 58.22 51.67

Non.turrent neumues
Flnuncinlliubilities (excluding trade payables) 241.44 384.05

OIherLiabilities 856.69 358.03

Total noD_currentt1nblltties 1,098.13 742.07

Nel "SlelS (122.83) (79,57) 124.28 132.97

Reconciliationto cnr'1ing nmonnts Lnndknrt Bnllders Pvt. Ltd Sohnll Cit)· LLP

31 Marth 2023 31 March 2022 31 Marcb 2023 31 Marclt 2022

Oponlng net assets (93.45) (56,84) 128.45 136.47

Profitfor theyeer (43.13) (36.51) (11.28) (8,56)

IudAS 115imp"cl(netof tax) (0.10)

CapitalinfusedI (wW'druwn) during the)"Oaf 0.54

Othercompreheasive income (0.12) (O.lO)

Dividends paid

Clusingnet assets (136.70) (93.45) 117.17 128.45

Group', ,hore in% 51% 51% 50% 50%

Group's share (69.72) (47.66) 58.59 64,23

Additiou"1 investment hytho Group

Goodwm

Consolidation Eliminations 1.94 (8.33) 24.58 (10,79)

Carrying omount (67.78) (55,99) 83.17 53,44

Summarised statement efprofit and loss Landkart Builders Pvt. Ltd Subna Citl'LLP

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Total inoome 3.90 1.45

Interestincome 2.98 0.06

Deprcoiatioulllld llIIlorti,otioll 0.13 0.13

Interestexpense 0.21 1.53 8.00 7,87

lucometllX expenxe/{credit) (0.04) 6,52

Profit/CLoss} for tbe}<)af (43.13) (36,51) (11.28) (8.56)

Otheroomprehensiva ineomo/(Ulss) (0.12) (0,10)

Total compreltcnsiw ineome1(Loss) (43.25) (36,61) (11.28) (8.56)

~::~~~~;::: ~:~'~::"";T~h;,,,;j;,o,in~:t,v:enture entitiescannot distributetheir profits by way of dividendsuntil
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38 Interests in other entities (Colltiflued)

(d) Interests in Joint Ventures (Continued)

(ii) Summarised financial lnforutntlon for joint ventures (Colftinued)

The tables below provide summarised financial information for those joint ventures that are material to the group. The information disclosed reflects the
amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant joint ventures and no! Parent's share of those amounts, They have been amended to reflect
adjustments made by the entity when using the equity method, including fair value adjustments made at the time of acquisition and modifications for
differences in accounting policies.

Summa"iscdbetencesheet Ardent Properties Prlvate Limikd •

31 March 2023 31 Morch2ll22

Currentassets

Cash & casllequiva1el'[s 143,25

Olherassel' 991,47

ToM current asscts 1,134.72

Totll1non.wrl"cntassets 19,42

Currentlillbililles

Firumcinllinbililies (exch,ding tradepay.ble,) 45.01

OillerLiabilities 700,70

'fotat current liobilltle, 745,71

Non-clII'rent liabilities

Financialliabilities (excluding lradepay.bles) 314.55

OlherLiabilities 0.14

Total non-eurrcntlinbUllles 314,69

Net assets 93,73

R«onciliation to carrying nmount8 Ardent Prn]lcrtlcs Prlvate Limited'

Op~ningnet a".t,

Profilfor theyellf

IndAS us impa"t (notorta~)

OthercOlllprelren,h'e income

Diyidend,poid

C1(}slngnCl aIlse(s

Group's sh.re ill%

Group's slmre

Fairvalueof inve,tmen( on rhedoteof divcl',ionof investment in ,ubsidiary

Consoiidallon Eliminations

Carrying l\nt(}unt

31 Mnrch2023

,%

31 March 2lI22

(130,59)

97,g8

(0.13)

(32,34)

30%

(9.85)

31.9i

(18.11)

3.95

Summari,cd stlrternentofprorrt and [OIS Ardent Propertie, Private I,lndted'

TotalIncome

Interest income

Dcprooialion Ilfld mn0l1i'ntion

Intereste~l'eDSe

Incomelax expen'e/(crodilj

Profit/(Los,)for thcycar

Othercomprehensive incomef(L",')

Totalcomprehcmh'C int(}meJ(Loss)

Dividend,received

31 March 2023 31 Mardl2ll22

112.91

D.05

0.44

(13.54)

97.88

(0.13)

97,75

Note on significant restrictions: The joint venture entities cannot distribute their profits by way of dividends until they obtain consent from their joint
venture partners.

*During the Year company had acquired the additional shares of the company and these company had became the wholly owned subsidairy
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39 Loans and Investments under Section 186 of the Act

The detailsortcens, guaranteesand investments under Section 18Gcrthe Act read with the Companies (MeeHngs of Boardand its Powers)gules, 2014
are!ISfollows'

A. Details ofillvestmcnts Illudc by the Group as on 31 Mnl'Ch 2023 (including Investments made In the IU'(!vious year)

Investmcnt ill equity sha ..es

N"moo(lh.ontily

Ar<I,"1 Prop'ItI'" Privat, Umitod ("I" not, 2)

Sodor 113G,t,"io,lJ<volopor,PriYllI, Limitod

l<lndko.,'BnHderiI'\1,Ltd

m, Pron,otor1l priv.'e Limit,d (,01;', nolo2)

Invesnnenr in Preference Shares

Nom' oflho .,~lly

Orno.l,Hou'mgP';v,t. Umitod

Investment ill Other Non·eul"rent investments

Non" oHh. 'nlily

On, 8'''8,10'' LuxuryProj"l, LLP

'mind findSm4l1V.I", HomosLLP

Sm"t V.luo Horne' New Prejeel LLP("rer nole2)

Sohn. City1LP

~" Dul"lng'heY"." A'M
31 M.",b2023 31 M,",h20J2

(40,90) 40,90

0.01 0.01

0,01 0.01

(4,08) 4,08

".M (44.98) -~

A,"' Dm'ltlglh.Y"'" A,.I
31 M.",h2023 31 Moro1'2un

0,05 0.00 0.05

Aul DUl'lnglh. )'O"r Aul
31 Mm"C1>2f113 31M""h2022

154,G~ (3.84) IS8.49

33.74 (1.04) 3~,78

83.16 31.10 52,06

271.55 26,22 245.33

rnvestmeneIn Compuliolily Convel1ible Debcntures

N"m,oflh.ontlty

Dirl' Sn" Lifo_Shorl TermFund _Mo"thlyDi'l'idond- Regular Pl.n ,·p')f<lut

N.m ••fth ••ndty Aul During 'ho YO'" Asol
311'.1",..,1>2023 31 M"rrh 2022

(79,9~) 7~.%

As.t DrU'ltlg'ltoyo.,r A..t
31 M."..,1>2V23 31 MOJ'oh20n

n.2~ 0.24

"" 0,24

As"t Lmlnginn dllrl.g tb. Leonr.furw.ddu'lng Asnl
31M."h20B }',,,. tbq',.r· 311'.1.,·<102022

291.54 16.35 15~,1)(I 4~:l,19

50,iS

~3.09 000 15.~0 73.39

210,09

5,84 0.6i 6.52

3Ga.47 1~,35 173,98 793.27

IS,GO%

10,1)(1%

12,00%

12.00%

~%_IS%

Rotootlnl.'.'f(P.>l.)

Soot", IlJ G,'evida Develop." Ptil'llloLimit,d

!lIo,nt PJ'op<J1i,,' Pl;V.1oL;milod(",ror 001"2)

Kolk.t.-ChJoExo,ltonP,ivolo Limil.d

HL Promot,,, Privol' Limilod(..fc, nol' 2)

l<lndlmrtBuildor>l'vI,Ltd

Nom' Drlbo ,ntlty(rofor DoteI)

(ii) Iuvestmenr in Mutual Fund units

B. Details of loans given by the C(lmpIIDylire as foUows:

Note 1:

Purposeof utilization of Joangiven10 the entities" Generalpurposeloan

Loan repaymenl terms- Repayable on dernund

Note 2:
During theYear companyhad acquiredlhe additionalshares ofthe company and these company had became[he whollyownedsubsidairy



lopmentCompanyLimited

Note~ fm'ming part of the consolidated financial statements (Ctmtitmed)
/orl""""o,.""I.,, 31M",~" ,OJ)

({incrol'csj

40 Acquisitionof a subsidiary

,A'
1) On 15June.022, 'fat. Vol". Home'Lim;lcd0 Suh,idi.ryCOll\p'11j' ofth' Gro"p"'quire<! oddilio"ol 70%shO!',,,pi",l of /\rd."t Prop,,,,li.,Priv,l. Limited, A'" ",,"II,
it l",s be<ome whollyo"m.d 'JLb,idiory 'omp,"y ofP,,,,,,t ofth. Group

Con.hloratloo
~Io'rt"o,

p.l'lI""lo" ArdentPtoportl••
PI-h'.I, Llmltod

Coo,idernlion paidin Cesh
36,9B

Indl<"t;,".P.I·,h.,o Prko Allot.lloo
"in ,roro,

porll,.I." Alilonlp",p.tIJO.
Prl1".toLlmllod

n"1. V.luoofJdOlltlft,d ."01 ••cqnired, Proporty, plo"to"d equipmont, 0,10
Olho, nO.-<llrronl"'01,-

" ([n<omo'fox allel, & Doforo<1 T"~) 19.36

'"
Othornoo_Ontrool"",t._ 0_37

;"~
-Cashand ,a,h "'lui,.. I.nt, 1l4,a7
_T",dc,'o,dv.ble' 0,02
_Inv<ntorio. 965,M
_Other<llIr.nt."cts 6,71

'10M V"luooflde"lifi.d A"ol. aoqulrerl(,) 1107,29

• V.l"e ofLi,bllitio, "'fumod, Cnrro,,! IJoblllllo,
_Provision, 0,15
_Trodo poy.ble, 32.52
_Othe,ourro"tli,bilitie. 735.52
·Oth""f"",ncialli.bilitie, 2,46
_Dolcrred'f.~

_lnOlJmo'fn.liabiJilio'

" Np"-currn"l Llnbllllim
_Borrowing, 2OS.6?
_T.. <10 poyobl., 5,20
_PrOyi';Dl\. 0.14
-Oth..-lillMCiolliabilitio' 20,78

Tot.1 v.]uoorJlobUltJo,""umed (b) J 065.45

, N<tAmb(a_b) 4U4

Mo.,u,omenl off,II' Yalu",
Th. ".lu.tion tecJuu<lJL" ""'" formo.,nr;ng thef.ir vol"". ofmoterial a,,,,t•• cqnlred.ltd lillbiliti<",,"UJ1\«l Wore 0' fDIlO\\~ ,

A"o" <.u.ld"ed V,dU.tiOll M.lb"d Romork'
Prop,,1y,PIBnl .nd Eq"ipmenl("PPE") BookV.lue Compo1\Y do" nul h"," ony ,i~"if<'.lrt mated.l

PPJ],'lll.rel"'", the notbookyalnoof Ill. PPE ...
Illll,U, J,me 2022, hove hoon,oll"ide,,"d to be
thoPPE

h",."lolJ hlOOlllCM<:!hod Inwntoryof COIl\P!UlJ' .,.., the ke)'10the b",;n..,
(Und,r tholn'ome Method,U,ovolm,tiou is "' ,ig"ilk.nl .momll of b"'ino" "oll",

"ho",d on OXjl<ct,d 'ash noW from ,alo 0 allr;bu,"hleto v"lue of the in"elltory, Therofero,
.".1 e" rotlu,cd by th. ,ost j",urred for lhe some hnw beon ",,1,,011 by ~,inJl hlOome
bringing'"'h"""'linlosalco\11e conditio.) Method

NotWorking Copllnlethorth,n bl'I01lt01Y (Le. Dobror,mlll BLlDkVo\ue As pOI' "",n,gomont,the om1'out marketprice ,,!
otlu:r"=t."o[,lllIlbihti,,,) II", d.hto,", orediloro and othor eluronl"",.w

llllbilitie" would upp""imolo tho hook volue,
I-lellC<U,o >IlItl< bo' bOIl" con,i<lored "t book
\'lIhle'"' at thoV.Ill,tionnolo, i.e, \5 JlUrO 2022

Proj"l Borrowlng, BookV"lue A, p<I' m,1\Jlgoment, the lair val". uf the Joan
wmud"ppfC'~imnte toe bookvalu."' on J, Jmle
2022

Gooll"tIll (C'pll,,] Re'erve)
Goodwill ..;, fromthe"' utsitieuha, bOllu r",o ni'e<losfollo,,~ tln,mr••

ArdonlProportl.,
PrI"OI, Llmll.d

Nol.
COllsider"lion A l6,9S
Fair Voluo ofPro--ox'"li"S mt.re,1illArdont 8.38
N.tA~"'t< tokenovel'at foir",luo onU,ev,,;u,,!itln dole n 41.84
Good"llI 3,52



lopmentCompanyLimited

xotcs forming part of the ccneclidnted financial stllfcmcllts (CQlltillued)
lor IlwY"<r""d'd 31 ,Hm'Cft10:3

« in "ore,)

2) On ISOOlooor 2022,PorenlCompnny oflh. Grol1p Mqulre<! .ddilioIUlIIOQ% ,I'ar. ""pitol"fsM lli:allll,hLLr A,. re",Il, it bn, bOlO.m" whollyowool.u",idi,ry
compnuyo[r.renl ofUleGroup.

Pnrti,ul.n

Con,;<!<,..tion oidin cosh

r"dJ,1Il1f.Pnrd"",.Ptl,,,AlIoc"tJon
fl!!nc,.. ...

PorH,u].." SAS R."UoohLLI'

Amounl. V.lu" ufld.nUll.d ..«t, ucqul",d, P",pert}',plont "ill equipmenls

" r"v"tmont

'" Cur,..",tAssol!
_Cn,l, nadOBsh <qu'v.I,nt, 0.00
_Trade ,..dvabI..
-Inventorio.
_Otho,ourr<nl ..,ols O.ol

Total VnJ"c ofide"uned Au.t, ,,'quJrcd (") 0.01

" Vol". ufLiabllitio, ."umed
; Curn"'t U.bilitie<

-P'ov;,;"," 0,02
_Olh"""lU'l'entli.bilitl<. 0,01

T.t.J •• lu. ufIJ.blllU.. n"um,rl (h) 0.03

NotA".U (._b) ."'

GMdIYlIl I (Copil,1Ro,o....o)
C. iloIRe",,,,,ori.;,, fmonth"" uloitionh.. bo<nrecunio<J""follow,

N"
Con,ido,.tion
NotA,,"t, tllkenOVOr "t folrv,lI1O "" ~l<l ,""lu"tioll <!ale
Co UolR.,",n



lopment Company Limited

Note! forming part of the consolidated Iluanetnl statements (CoIl/billed)
for III, flU" ."Jed 31 Marah 20JJ

(~ill "ore.)

2) Oil 18Ootober2022, PBruIlt CompOl'y ofthe Group o"quirododditioual49% .m "pi.. l ofHL Pronloto",Prh'oteLimito<lA•• ,".,,It, ill,., 1'0"01. whollyown.d
,ub,idio'Yomnp.ny of Parentoflhe G"'"p.2

Co",idenotion

Pnrtkul.rs

rndi,.lI~.Fur<hn.o Prio< Allo,.lIon
{incro",

P.r/I,ul"" HLl'rnmoto"
Prl".teLJ01llod

Amount

" v"lue oflclontln.d ."01, .'qulred, Properly. plont .nd equipment, 0.0;

" (Income T.x ....t, & DefeNd Tax) 0.62
m~

_C.,h on<!.,,1\ oqw,'ole,n, 11.36
.Tr.c1ereooi,,"bh 0.g6
_lnvelnori•• 12g,~8

-oth.".flllatICi.I""ots 0.18
-Oth<rcllrrent .....ts 4.20

Tolal V"lL,o"fidentlfied A"ol, "equfred (a) 146,23

, V.lllo "fU.bJlltio, ."umod, Cur"""l Ll"bilitio,
_Provisiol\' 0.08
_Trudopa;~bl., 7L93
_Oth.,ewrolltU.bilili., 16,30
_other fin","i.llillhiUlio. 1.29
_DotorrodT"~
_JnoomeTn>:lillbillli"

u Nnu_Curr<nl U.bJlttlo,
_BolIowing, 199.0D
_Tn!dopayahle,
_Otherfino",iolii.biUti.. 40,8~

_Prov;,;on, 0046

TotroJ v"lu. "fll.bUlUo, ."umed (b) 329.or. NolA!,ot, (._b) 181.78

Gnodl>illl (COI,U.Inosonoe)
GOLldwill",i,iu Ji"m tho"" ui,iliun 110, beenreo(\ ,ni...,du, follow. " Il\0""'"

HLP",moto,"

Noto
PrlvoteUmllOtI

COl\siclernll"n A
Neg,tiv. lnvo,lomontIICD pro";,i"n (100,)7)
Net A,,,t' t.ken over al fuir vah" on the val"otion dale u (la278)
GOlld1l'lIIl c, il"IR"",n'o 22.41

(Il) C.in rol.dng to '<'J"tolu"" or. ,ub,idl.f'j'

tin""",,

P.rtl",h"
At-d,,,tProp<rtl,, HLl',""oot.... P,i ..to

1'l'lv.tcUmit<d SAS R,lllt<d, L1,P Umit,d

Existing,Ial:. bef""'a'~lli,ition :tO% ~ .\t%

Addition,iSt,k,"",!"l,," ,~ 100% 49%

Oot"feh,"geinC,.'rot 1,.l\m_;r! 1~·P"_22 18·0e,·22
Book".I"e of~,o"ot."'ts(i,~t'''tity) 92.D5 1.95 (ISLoo)
Fai,.,'.lu, oftho",t..oat, (ie~,t .,,'ity)(A) 4U4 (0.02) (1fl2,n)
1'",01,,-,, """'id,,,,'io.(B) 4536 7JO
Le" :1'01,"I", ofnow.equi,itio,,! C",,,i~,,"'i"" p.io (C) 36,9~ (0,02)

Fei, V.lu, ofE"i"I"~ ,hm (D)~ (B)·(G) $3~

J'I'o,tmollIVIIl\l, ofth,l's,t ,oliryinCon",1 (E) JA5

Go;nl L"". " -" 4.9:t -



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for the yecr ended 31 March 2023

(ein crores)

41 IND AS 116 Disclosure:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MeA") through Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2019 and Companies (Indian Accounting

Standards) Second Amendment Rules, has notified Ind AS 116 Leases which replaces the existing lease standard, loci AS 17 leases, and other
interpretations, loci AS 116 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation lind disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors. It
introduces a single, on-balancesheet lease accountingmodel for lessees,

All of the Company leases at 1 April 2019 were either cancellable or short term or had a remaining period of less than one year from that date. Accordingly,
the transition to Ind AS 116 did not have any impact on the financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Company as a Lessor:
The Company has no assets that are given out on lease and hence has no there is no impact in the current financial year,

Company liS II Lessee:

A) Breakdownof lease""penlCS

Short-lam leaseexpense

Lowvalueleaseexpense
Total [el~'o e~pcnsc

B\1Vf· ' anal •
Pmiiculars

31 March 2023
I easelipbUitl",
Repcymerrt of lease li~bililie!

Interest01\10030 ti.biliti.s
Total
31 March 2022
Leale lI.h[!!t!cs

R~pa}1nent oflen'e linbilitics

Intcrcst Olllea,eJiubilitics

Totlli

(il'incrore,)

31 March, 2(123 31 Mal'l:h,2(122
2.81 3.37

2.81 3.37

(il' Inerorcs
LcsI than Behnen11\J1d2 2 and 5 yean Over 5 j'cars Weighted average

1year years effectiveinterest
rate %

2.03 2.31 6,32 0.73 7.8"4%
0.78 0.62 0." 0.02 7,84%
2.81 2.93 7.11 (1,75

1.84 2.00 4.18 5.16 7.84%

0.% 0.81 1.33 0,12 7.84%
2,80 2,81 5.51 5,28

42

(i)

Other Statutory information
The Group and its Joint Ventures does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the Company for holding
any Benami property

(ii) The Group and its Joint Ventures does not have My transactions with struck off companies,

(iii) The Group and its Joint Ventures does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

(iv) The Group and its Joint Ventures has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year

(v) Tbe Group and its Joinl Ventures has used the borrowings from banks and financial institutions for the specific pnrcpose for which it was taken.

(vi) The Group and its Joint Ventures hase not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other persoma) or entityues), including foreign entities
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that tho Intermediary shall

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group and its Joint Ventures
(Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Group and its Joint Ventures has not received any fund from any persoois) or entityfies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group and its Joint Ventures shall:

(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The Group and its Joint Ventures does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed
(viii) as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income

TElX Act, 1961).



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes fcrnnng part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for tte year ended 31 March 2023

(~ in crores}

43 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

Based on the information available with the Group and its Joint Ventures, the balance due to micro and small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is ~ Nil (31 March, 2022 : '{Nil) and no interest has been paid or is payable during the year
under the terms of the MSMED Act, 2006. The information provided by the Group and its Joint Ventures has been relied upon by the auditors.

Particulars

e. Ammll\ts payableto suppliersunderMSMED (suppliers)a, 01\31March, 2023

Principal

Interestdue thereon

b. Payment.made to suppliers beyondfueappoinledday during theyC(lr

Prindp.l

Intere,t duellIoreOIl

c. AmOlml ofintere,t dueand payablefor delayinpaymenl(whichhayebeenpaid bul b"J'ondtheappoinleddoyduringtheyear)
but withoutaddinjJ lhe inlere,t nnderMSMED

d. Amounlofinlcre,l accruedundremaining,mpnidas on31 March,2023

c. AmOlmt of interestremainingdue andp.yable 10 ,uppliers di,aUowable as deductibleexpenditure underIncomeTax Act, 1961

44 Provision for customer compensation and contingencies for customers claim

A••
31 Man:h2023

Alai

31 March 2022

Provision is made for estimated compensation claims to be paid to customers in respect of delay in handing over possession of flats. These claims are
expected to be settled in the next financial year Management makes all estimate of the provision based on expected time left for delivery and taking into
consideration past experiences

Provi.ion for eustcmercompemllltionPmikular.,

A,at
31 Mal1:h2023 "'"31 March2022

ProYi,ionfot·ConlingenclesCost I
AS<ll Nutl

31 March 2023 31 Murch 2022

Prow,ion ontstanding a.! at the beginningorthe yom'

Add:on N:coont of Couvmion of JV to Snb,idiary

Add:Additionsto provisions

Less; Utilisution

Provision ont.'ltanding'1$ nt the end orihe Jell,. (o.~pcclcd 10 be incurredwitiUn a
yenr)

5.89

(5.73)

0.16

49,23 29.14

13.24

8,57 6,85

(8,57) (6.52)

42.71 49.23

45 The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident Fund and
Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment had released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, lind invited
suggestions from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will assess the impact and its
evaluation once the subject rules are notified. The Company and its Indian subsidiaries will give appropriate impact in its financial statements in the period
in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the financial impact are published



Tata Housing Development Company Limited

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
for theyear ended 31 Marc!l2023

({ in crcres}

46 There are no significant subsequent events that would require adjustments or disclosures in the financial statements as on the balance sheet date

47 Previous period figures have been re-grouped I re-classified wherever necessary, to conform to curren! period's classification in order to comply with the
requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013

In terms of our report attached

ForBSR&Co.LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No' I01248W!W-!00022

Farhed Bam]!
Partner

Membership No: 105234

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of'Dh-eetors of
ala Housing Development Croup and Its Joint ventures Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

Saujay Dutt
ManagingDirector& CEO

IRitcsh Kamdar

CompanySecretary
Membership No. A20154

Place: Mumbai

Date: 18th May 2023



Statement pUl'SlJant to first prov~ to suo..sedion (;IJof «>clion 129 of the Compani"" Act. 2013. read witlt n.lI,,-S of tompanl"" (Accounts) Rul"". 2014 in tlt,,- pr,,-scribed Form AOe-1

Statement containing sali,,-nt features ofth,,- finandal statem,,-nt of Subsidiaries/ Assodate companies/ Joint Ventures

PartA: Subsidiaries

(",crores

Reporting periDd for

the subsidiary Exchange rate as on the last
Profit". Nameofthe subsidiary

The date since when concerned, if Reporting date of the relevant Share Reserves &
Total Assets

Total
InVleStments Turnover before

Provision for Profrtafter proposed
% of sIlarehoJding*

Other

No. subsidiary was acquired different from the currency financial year in Case of Capital Surplus liabilities
taxation

taxation taxation dividend Income

holding company's foreign subsidiaries
reporting period

A rata Housing DevelopmentCom any limited ~ 3/31/2023 Indian Ru ees 1.00 1,280.97 778.71 5,051.34 2,991.65 990.57 381.32 -472.88 12.23 -485.11 Parent 365.70
SUbsidiarj",,:

1 Concept Marketin &Advertising Limited. 9/6/1969 3/31/2023 Indian Ru es LOO 0.05 1.96 2.29 0.28 0.05 (0.14] 0.24 -0.38 100.00%

2 APEXReal Pvrivate limited 9/25/2010 3/31/2023 M" '" 0-", (88.39) 109.34 197.651 5.02 5.02 65.(l{)% 17.88
3 nme Fadlity Management limited. 9/14/2000 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees LOO 0.05 (1.43) 86.55 87.93 2.07 (2.69) (0.24 ) -2.45 100.00% 0.04
4 Technopolis Knowled Par1<limited 9/25/1997 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 3.62 (3.67) 0.00 0.06 (0.01) -0.01 50.00% 0
5 Ardent Properties Private Limited. 6/15/2022 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 0.54 sr.ss 298.761 230.83 800.14 (25.35 (0.00) 2534 100.00% 2.70

5 Krid Real Private Limited 11/18/2011 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 0.01 52.16) 162.62 214.77 3.05 (1135) (0.07) -11.29 100.00% 0.10

7 Princeton Infrastructure Private limited 3/15/2019 3/31/2013 Indian Ru ees '.00 2.55 (59.93) 164.84 222.22 8.02 (24.20) -24.20 100.00% 0.18
8 Promont Hillside Private limited 3/10/2012 3/31/2013 Indian Rupees "'" 0.01 (363.12) 371.15 73425 (52.78) -52.78 100.00% s.sa
9 Promont HiHto Private limited 6/9/2021 3/31/2023 indian Rupees LOO e.so 125.32 152-29 22.47 71.20 11.17 '.0; 8.52 100.00% W

10 SynergizersSustainable Foundation 5/15/2012 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees LOO 0.00 1.75 "" 0.02 L" 0."" 0.08 100.00% 0.07
11 Tata Value H"mes limited. 9/8/2009 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 800.00 (796.21) 518.24 514.45 63.71 (182.22 0.21 182.43 100.00% 14.88
12 SVH(Pee a Project] Private Limited 5/21/2fJ21 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 2.50 (64.37] 230.07 291.95 58.99 (16.04) -16.04 100.00% O.W

13 5VH (Boisar) Private Umited 8/24/2012 3/31/2013 Indian Rupees COO 0.01 {108.3S] 17.05 125.39 3.98 (31.78) (0.13) ar.ss 100.00% 1.03
14 SVH(New Project] Private limited 9/15/2021 3/31/2013 Indian Ru eS LOO 0.19 0.05 0.28 0.05 0.05 0.05 100.00% 0.05
15 HLTResidency Pvt ltd 7/3/2013 3/31/21J13 Indian Rupees LOO 0.01 (244.10) 119.05 363.14 4.14 (62.14) -62.14 100.00% 0.'"
16 HLpromoters Private ltd 10/18/2022 3/31/2023 Indian Ru LOO '.00 (160.32 169.66 32L97 48.00 (4.02] (0_06) ·3.95 100.00% 0.33
17 $AS Realtech LLP 10/18/2022 3/31/2023 Indian Rupees 1.00 '.W 3.61 ".'" 4.15 3.92 C." 5.50 1..99 3.61 100.00%
18 World-One D<welopment Co. Pte. ltd. 12/18/2012 3/31/2023 ;oD fiL83 10.90 0.73 171.64 160.00 0.05 0.12) -0.12 100.00%
19 WorldOne (SL]Pr"jPte Ltd 7/25/2013 3/31/2023 ;oD 61.83 0.05 (81.35] 89.44 170.74 9.38) -9.38 100,00%
20 One - Colombo Project Pvt. ltd. 10/30/2013 3/31/2023 '" 0." 0.05 (204.24) 184.96 389.16 (43.72) -43.72 100.00%

* % of share holding of the Company and its subsidiaries

Additional details:

I Name ofsubsidiaries which are yet to commence operation

No. of shares Issued during the year 18,24,81,751 which was subscribed byTata realty and Infrastructure Limited a subsidiary of Tata Sons Private limited.

Total NumberofShares ason 31st March 2022: 12,809,651,842.Tata SOIlSPrivate limited holds 72,98,67,398 shares (56.98%], Tata Realtyand Infrastructure Limited a subsidiary of'Tata Sons PrIvate limited holds 55,08,17,119 (43.00%), Tatalndustries Limited a subsidiary ofTata Sons Private Limited holds 2,84,338 (0.02%)
Names of the subSidiaries which are yet to commence operations: None.

Allthe subsidiaries have financial year end 31st March 2023.

4 The foreign wrrencyfigures have been converted into Indian Rupee on the basisofapproprlate exchange r<ltes.The Exch.nge Rates as on 31st March 2023 are:
(a) AverageRate'.

(b) Closing Rate:

(c) The amount offoreign entities have been reported in INIt

5 Figures Below Rs. 50,OOOaredenoted by·

~
, Ritesh Kamdu
Company Secretary

Membersl1ipNo.A20154
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For and on behalf creue Board crntreetcrs
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Part B;As5ociiltes and Joillt Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129{3} of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of the entity Latest audited Date on which the Reporting currency SharesoftheAssociate I JointVentures held by the Description of how there is significant Reason why the Networth Profit/ Loss forthe year

balance sheet Associate or Joint Company as on March 31, 2023 influence Associate / Joint attributable to
d,~ Vellturewas No of shares held Anlountof Extent of Venture is not shareholding as per Considered in Not Considered

asseeetee or by the company in investment in holding consolidated latest balance Consolidation ('I: in Consolidiltion
acquired associate / joint associate / joint (in sheet ("(crores) crores} (":: crores)

venture· venture- Ill: crores} percentage)·

B. Joint Ventures

1 Kolkiltil-Qne Excelton PrIVate limited 31-Mar-23 8-Nov-13 'N' 5,100 0.01 51.00% There is significant influence due to The entity is (33.64) (7.36) (7.07)

shareholding and joint control overthe consolidated by

economic activities indirectly through parent way of ecutty
comp,my. accounting

2 land Kart Builders Private limited 31-Mar-23 18-Ju1-19 'NR 10,410 0.01 51.00% There tssignmcant influence due to The entity is (67.78) (22.06) {21.19)
sharehoiding and joint control over the consolidated by
economic activities indirectly through parent way of equity

company. accounting
3 Sector 113 Satevlda Developers Private Limited 31 Mar-23 3O-Dec 11 'N' 12,750 0.01 51.00% There is significant influence due to The entity is {582.02) [112.08) (107.69)

shareholding and joint control over-the consolidated by
eCOnomic activities indirectly through parent wayofequity

company. accounting
4 One Bangalore Luxury Projects LLP 31-Mar-23 s-oc-is '" NA 158.01 51.00% There is Significant influence due to The entity is 154.64 (2.64) (2.53)

shareholding and joint control over the consolidated by

economic activities indirectly through parent way of equTty

company. accounting
5 ArvInd and Smart Value Homes uP 31-Mar-B 25-Apr-11 'N' NA 38.00 50.00% There is significant influence due to The entlty is 33.74 (0.04) (0.04)

shareholding and joint control overthe consolidated by
economic activities indirectly through parent way of eouftv
company. accounting

6 SOHNACnYL1J' 31-Mar-E 22-Nov-12 '" NA 131.38 50.00% There issignificant influence due to The entity is 83.17 (5.64) (5.64)
shareholding and joint control over the consolidated by

economic activities indirectly through parent wayofequity

company. accounting
7 Hl Promoters Private limited Converted to NA 'N' NA NA NA NA NA NA (17) (16)

Subsidiary on

18/10/22
8 Ardent Properties Private llmited Converted to NA 'NR NA NA NA NA NA NA [1) [1)

Subsidiary on

15/06/22

• Number of shares, amount ofinvestmentand extent of holding by the Company and its subsidiaries

Place: Mumbai
Dale: 18th May 2023

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors
Tata HOllWIg Development Company Limited

CIN: U45300MH1942PLC003573

SanjayDntt
Ma:naging Director & CEO

DIN No: 05251670
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Figures Below Rs. 50,000 are denoted by *


